
CORVALLIS

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

May 21 2007

1200pm and700pm
CORVALLI
ENHANCING COMMUNITYLIVABILITY

Downtown Fire Station

400 NW Harrison Boulevard

COUNCIL ACTION

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

I ROLL CALL

II CONSENT AGENDA

The following items are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion There will

be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council member or a citizen through a Council

member so requests in which case the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and

considered separately Ifany item involves a potential conflict of interest Council members

should so note befare adoption of the Consent Agenda

A Reading ofMinutes

1 City Council Meeting May 7 2007

2 For Information and Filin Draft minutes may return if changes are made by the

Board or Commission
a Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Commission Apri16 2007

b Citizens Advisory Cormnission on Transit April 11 2007

c Core Services Committee May 10 2007

d CorvallisBenton County Public Library Board Apri14 2007

e DowntownEconomicVitality Plans Implementation Committee

Apri126 2007

Housing and Community Development Commission April 18 2007

g Planning Commission Apri14 2007

h Prosperity That Fits Committee May 9 2007

L Watershed Management Advisory Commission April 18 2007

B Confirmation ofAppointments to Boards Corrnnissions and Committees Capital
Improvement Program Coinmission Stover Citizens Advisory Commission on Civic

Beautification and Urban Forestry Mauldin Downtown and Economic Vitality Plans

Implementation Committee Remcho Downtown Parking Commission Upton
Housing and Community Development Commission Littlefield

C Announcement ofVacancy on Committee for Citizen Involvement Peutz

City Council Agenda May 21 2007 Page 253



D Schedule public hearings for June 4 2007 to consider State Revenue Sharing Funds for

Fiscal Year 20072008 and a Fiscal Year 20072008 budget

E Schedule a public hearing for June 4 2007 to consider an appeal of the Community
Development Director decision related to an administrative zone change ZDC 0700001

Seventh Street Station

F Schedule a public hearing for June 1l2007 to consider a vacation request MIS06
00045 Witham Oaks

G Approval ofan application foraFullOnPremises Sales Commercial Establishment

liquar license far Happy Tokyo Inc dba Tokyo Japanese Steak House Sushi Bar
250 SW Third Street

H Schedule an Executive Session following the regular noon meeting under ORS

1926602ehistatus of real property transaction status ofpending litigation or

litigation likely to be filed status ofemploymentrelatedperformance

III ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA

IV ITNFINISHED BUSINESS

A City Legislative Committee May 16 2007

B Adoption ofFindings ofFact and Order relating to an appeal ofa Planning Commission

decision WRG0600001 Cornerstone Associates

C Municipal Judge Employment Agreement evening meeting

V MAYOR COUNCIL AND STAFF REPORTS

A MayorsReports

l Proclamation ofPublic Worlcs Weelc May 20262007

2 Proclamation ofa ONE Community May 21 2007

3 Proclamation ofMental Health Month May 2007

B Council Reports

C Staff Reports

1 City ManagersReport April 2007

2 Council Request Followup Report May 17 2007

3 Neighborhood Empowerment Program process

City Council Agenda May 21 2007 Page 254



VI VISITORS PROPOSITIONS 700pm Note tlaat VisitosPropositions tivill contiue

followir7g azy scheculedpublic heczrings ifnecessaryaad if czny are sc7iedzlecl

A Willamette Criminal Justice Council Presentation on Methamphetamine

VII PUBLIC HEARINGS 730pm

A A public hearing to consider an appeal ofa Planning Commission decision PLD06
00012 SUB0600005 Witham Oaks

VIII IX STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS ORDINANCES RESOLUTIONS AND

MOTIONS

A Human Services Committee None

B Urban Services Committee None

C Administrative Services Committee May 10 2007

l Allied Waste Services Annual Report
2 Economic Development Allocations Orientation

X NEW BUSINESS

A Fair Housing Council ofOregon award presentation noon meeting

XI ADJOURNMENT

For the hearing impaired a sign langttage interpreter can be provided with 48 hours notice prior to the

meeting Please call 7666901 orTTYTDD telephone 7666477 to arrange far such service

A LARGE PRINT AGENIACAN BE AVAILABLE BY CALLING 7666901

A Cornrrurlity Tliat HoosDiversity

City Council Agenda May 21 2007 Page 255



C I T Y   O F   C O R V A L L I S

A C T I V I T Y   C A L E N D A R

MAY 21 - JUNE 2, 2007

MONDAY, MAY 21

< City Council - 12:00 pm and 7:00 pm  - Downtown Fire Station, 400 NW Harrison
Boulevard

TUESDAY, MAY 22

< No Human Services Committee

< Commission for Martin Luther King, Jr. - 12:00 pm - City Hall Meeting Room A,
501 SW Madison Avenue

< Urban Services Committee - 4:00 pm - Madison Avenue Meeting Room,
500 SW Madison Avenue

WEDNESDAY, MAY 23

< Downtown Parking Commission - 5:00 pm - Downtown Fire Station,
400 NW Harrison Boulevard

THURSDAY, MAY 24

< Administrative Services Committee - 12:00 pm - Madison Avenue Meeting Room,
500 SW Madison Avenue

< No Urban Services Committee

< Downtown/Economic Vitality Plans Implementation Committee - 4:00 pm - Madison
Avenue Meeting Room, 500 SW Madison Avenue

SATURDAY, MAY 26

< No Government Comment Corner

MONDAY, MAY 28

< City holiday - all offices closed



City of Corvallis May 21 - June 2, 2007
Activity Calendar Page 2

TUESDAY, MAY 29

< Prosperity That Fits Steering Committee - 5:30 pm - Madison Avenue Meeting
Room, 500 SW Madison Avenue

WEDNESDAY, MAY 30

< City Legislative Committee - 7:30 am - City Hall Meeting Room A, 501 SW Madison
Avenue

< Urban Services Committee - 5:30 pm - Madison Avenue Meeting Room,
500 SW Madison Avenue

THURSDAY, MAY 31

< Fire Chief Candidates Community Reception - 5:00 pm - Madison Avenue Meeting
Room, 500 SW Madison Avenue

FRIDAY, JUNE 1

< Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Commission - 7:00 pm - Madison Avenue Meeting
Room, 500 SW Madison Avenue

SATURDAY, JUNE 2

< Government Comment Corner (Councilor George Grosch) - 10:00 am - Library
Lobby, 645 NW Monroe Avenue



CITY OF CORVALLIS 
COUNCIL ACTION MINUTES 

MAY 7,2007 

SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION - 

- 

Agenda Item Infomation 

Consent Agenda I 
Pages 224-225 
ltems~emoved Prom Consent Agenda 
1, COI Facility Debt Transfer 

Unfinished Business 
1. Sustainability Coalition Update 

2, Planning Commissioner Selection 

3. Legislative Committee -May 2,2007 

4, City Attorney Employment Agreement 

Pages 226-228,252 - 

MG~ Reports 
1. CPRB appointments Yes 
2. CCI Council Liaison - Wershow Y es 
3, Older Americans Month - May 2007 
4. Drinking Water Week - May 6-12,2007 
5. Get There Another Way Week - 

May 14-18,2007 
6 .  Enhancing Community Livability - Jim 

and Ruth Howland 
7. Van Buren Bridge project update 

Pages 228-229 
Council Reports 
1. College Hill area tour (Wershow) 
2. OSU events (Wershow) 
3. Local food breakfast (Wershow) 
4. Ward 2 meeting (Daniels) 
5. South Central Park tour (Daniels) 
6. Sustainability Coalition participation 

(Daniels) 
7. Open space tour (York) 
8. Exhaust emissions (Brauner) 
9. USC meeting dates (Wershow) 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 

Yes 
Yes 
Yes 

Approved transfer passed 8-0 

Approved ad hoc committee 
role passed U 
Elected Bird, Saunders, 
Weber - Reopened partial-term 
vacancy recruitment process 
and include BRC vacancies, 
advertise separately passed U 
HB3000-communicate no 
position passed U 
SB400-communicate support 
of compromise language 
passed U 
Approved addendum passed 
8-0 
7 

Proclaimed 
Proclaimed 

Comcil M-iwtes Symmary - May 7,2097 



Council Minutes Summary - May 7,2007 Page 222 

Decisions/Recommendations 

Accepted report passed U 
ORDINANCE 2007-09 
passed U 
Accepted report passed U 
Accepted report passed U 

Increase four rates passed U 
Accepted report; modlfied 
loan agreement passed U 

Approved passed U 
• Affirmed without 

amendments passed U 

Approved process; direct 
referral to Council passed U 
Approved passed U 
Approved passed U 

RESOLUTION 2007-05 
passed U 
RESOLUTION 2007-06 
passed U 
RESOLUTION 2007-07 
passed U 
RESOLUTION 2007-08 
passed U 

Agenda Item 

Staff Reports 
1.  Social Services Administration 

Contract Extension 
2. Core & D-EVPIC budget implications 
3. Downtown Commission 
4. Council Request Follow-up Report - 

May 3,2007 
5. Van Buren Bridge project update 
Pages 229-23 1 

HSC Meeting Items - April 17,2007 
1. Corvallis Fall Festival Annual Report 
2. Civil Rights Ordinance; New Charter 

Provisions 
3. Majestic Theatre Annual Report 
4. Boys & Girls Club Annual Report 
Pages 231-232 

ASC Meeting Items - April 19,2007 
1 .  Ambulance Rate Review 
2, daVinci Days Loan Agreement 

Page 232 

USC Meeting Items - April 19, 2007 
1. CAS w o r t  Lease Assignment 
2. Council Policy Review: 02-7.15, "Fee- 

in-Lieu Parking Program" 
Page 232 

USC Meeting Items - May 3,2007 
1.  Arrport Lease Assignment Procedures 

2. COI Airport Lease Assignment 
3. Mid-Valley Painting Atrport Lease 
Page 233 

Other Related Items 
1. USDA Forest Service Grant 

2. OAC Donation 

3. Risk Management Fund supplemental 
budget 

4. Parks & Recreation Fund supplemental 
budget 

Pages 233-234 

Executive Session 
1. Potential Litigation (Comcast) 
2. Municipal Court Judge employment 

agreement 
3. City Attorney employment agreement 
Page 234 

Information 
Only 

Yes 

Yes 
Yes 
Yes 

Yes 

Yes 
Yes 

Yes 

Held for 
Further Review 

- 



Glossary of Terms 
ASC Administrative Services Committee 
CCI Committee for Citizen Iwolvetnenf 
COI Community Outreach, Inc. 
Core Core Services Committee 
CPRB Community Policy Review Board 
D-EVPIC Downtown/Economic Vitality Plans Implementation Committee 
E D  Economic Improvement District 
FIB House Bill 
HSC Human Services Committee 
OSU Oregon State University 
PC Planning Commission 
SB Senate Bill 
U Unanimous 
USC Urban Services Committee 
USDA United States Department of Agriculture 

Council Minutes Summary - May 7,2007 

- 
-- 

Decisions/Recornmendations 
-- 
- 

- -- 

No action taken consensus 

- 

ORDINANCE 2007-1 0 
passed U 
RESOLUTION 2007-09 
passed U 
Uphold PC decision to 
approve repest as amended 
passed U 

- 
- 

Page 223 

- 
- 

- 

Held for 
Purfher Review --- 

- 

- 

- 

Agenda Item Information 
Only - 

Visitors' Propositions 
1.  Oregon Business Magazine Tour 

(Barlow, Van Powell) 
2. Wildcat Park update (Hoffman) 
3. America's Affordable Communities 

Initiative (Epley) 
4. Signs in parking strips (Epley) 
Page 235 - 

- 

New Business 
1. America's Affordable Communities 

Initiative 
Pages - 235-236 - - 

Public Hearings 
1 .  Downtown EID renewal 

2. Cornerstone Associates 

Papes 236-25 1 - 

- 

Yes 

Yes 
Yes 

Yes 
- 

- 

- 



CITY OF CORVALLIS 
COUNCIL ACTION MINUTES 

May 7,2007 

The regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Corvallis, Oregon, was called to order at 11 :59 am 
on May 7,2007 in the Downtown Fire Station, 400 NW Harrison Boulevard, Corvallis, Oregon, with Mayor 
Tomlinson presiding. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

I. ROLLCALL - 

PRESENT: Mayor Tomlinson, Councilors Beilstein, Zimbrick, Brauner, Grosch, Brown, 
Wershow, Daniels, York, Hamby 

Mayor Tomlinson directed Councilors' attention to the items at their places, including: 
A revised Ward map for the Planning Commission applicants (Attachment A); 
A memorandum regarding Historic Resources Commission vacancies (Attachment B); 
An e-mail from Kirk Nevin related to House Bill 3000 (Attachment C); 
A letter to Richard Hein, PresidentKEO Oregon State University Federal Credit Union, related to 
Economic Vitality (Attachment D); 
Lnformation on House Bill 3000, Field Burning (Attachment E); 
Urban Services Committee Minutes -May 3,2007 (Attachment F); and 
Get There Another Way Week Proclamation (Attachment G). 

Mayor Tomlinson reported that New Business will be deferred to the evening meeting to allow citizens an 
opportunity to testify during Visitors' Propositions about the Affordable Communities Initiative. 

Mayor Tomlinson announced that item H, Approval of a transfer of debt from one location to the Community 
Outreach Facility on Reiman Avenue, has been removed from the Consent Agenda. 

Mayor Tomlinson noted that the April 16,2007 Council Meeting minutes have been amended to correct the 
spelling of a name and comments from Councilor Beilstein. 

II. CONSENT AGENDA - 

Councilors Hamby and Zimbrick, respectively, moved and seconded to adopt the Consent Agenda 
as follows: 

Reading of Minutes 
1. City Council Meeting - April 16,2007 
2. City Council Work Session - May 1,2007 
3. For Information and Filing (Draft minutes may return if changes are made by the 

Board or Commission) 
a. Airport Commission - April 3,2007 
b. Core Services Committee - April 12,2007 
c. Downtown Parking Commission - March 28,2007 

Council Minutes - May 7,2007 Page 224 



Historic Resources Commission - March 13, 2007 
Planning Commission - February 2 1,2007 
Prosperity That Fits Steering Committee - March 26 and April 23,2007 
Watershed Management Advisory Commission - March 21,2007 

B. Announcement of Appointments to Advisory Boards, Commissions, and Committees 
(Capital Improvement Program Commission - Stover; Citizens Advisory Commission on 
Civic Beautification and Urban Forestry - Mauldin; Downtown and Ec~nomic Vitality Plans 
Implementation Committee - Remcho; Downtown Parking Commission - Upton; Housing 
and Community Development Commission - Littlefield) 

C. Approval of a Systems Development Charge reimbursement request for SW 30th Street 
improvements to Oregon State University 

D. Schedule a public hearing for May 21,2007 to consider an appeal of a Planning Commission 
decision (PLD06-00012, SUB06-00005 - Witham Oaks) 

Approval of an application for a "Full On-Premises Sales and Catering and Off-Premises 
Sales" liquor license for Magenta Restaurant & Catering, 137 SW Second Street (New 
Outlet) 

Approval of an application for a "Limited On-Premises Sales" liquor license for Dede's, 
1786 NW Ninth Street (Change in Ownership and Additional Privilege) 

G. Approval of an application for an "Off-Premises Sales with Fuel Pumps" liquor license for 
Shell, 1680 SW Third Street (Change in Ownership) 

Acknowledgment of Comcast Rate Filings 

Approval of a permit to occupy the public right-of-way (Oregon Department of 
Transportation - SW 35th Street) 

K. Schedule an Executive Session following the regular noon meeting under ORS 
192.660(2)(h)(i) (status of pending litigation or litigation likely to be filed; status of 
employment-related performance) 

a ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA - 

Approval of a transfer of debt from one location to the Community Outreach Facility on 
Reiman Avenue 

Councilor Zimbrick declared a conflict of interest. 

Councilors Daniels and Grosch, respectively, moved and seconded the approval of a transfer 
of debt from one location to the Community Outreach facility on Reiman Avenue. The 
motion passed eight to one with Councilor Zimbrick abstaining. 

Council Minutes -May 7,2007 Page 225 



A. Sustainability Coalition Update 

Councilor Brown rcpolaed that he attended the April 30 Sustainability Coalition meeting 
with Goallcilars Wershow and Daniels. Befme the City pledges iful1-paxtaers~p, the 
following issues should be addressek 
1. Assurance of broad cumunity sup@% 
2. Aaalysis of how the Cadition operates, esta'blisbs fnture goals amd framework; and 
3. Analysis ofthe negalhe effects on vulnerable parts of the c o m e .  

Councilms Wershow md Daniels, respectively, moved md ssoilded to approve that the ad 
boc Sustainability Coali%ion Co-ea take ari active role wiih Coalition members to 
hither develop and r e h e  the C~aIition" evolving structure and work p b .  Tbe mation 
passadm&mously. 

Assistant to City ManagerlCity Recorder Louie announced that Cauneil iutenniewed 'five 
candidates dwingth~ May 1 Work Session to fill b e  3-yaw fern P W g  Commission 
vwmcies begimhg July 1,2007 md aim pa~tial-tern vacancy expiring on Jme 30,2008. 
Council a p e d  to vote on the three %year term vacancies an the Erst ball04 and tfim vote 
to fill the partial-tern vacancy. Anyone receiving Eve or more votes will Be automatically 
selected to the Planning Commission. 

Councilor Oros& reported that although he was not able to attend the May I meeting? he 
1i.sten.ed to the audio recording. 

Council members cast their votes for three Planning Commissioner applicants. The votes 
were as follows: 

Councilor Wershow 
Councilor Daniels 
Councilor Zimbrick 
Councilor York 
Councilor Hamby 
Councilor Grosch 
Councilor Brauner 
Councilor Beilstein 
Councilor Brown 

Bird, Saunders, Weber 
Bird, Saunders, Weber 
Bird, Saunders, Weber 
Bird, Saunders, Weber 
Bird, Saunders, Weber 
Bird, Saunders, Weber 
Bird, Saunders, Weber 
Bird, Knapp, Weber 
Bird, Smders, Weber 

Ms. Louie announced that Ms. Bird, Ms. Saunders, and Ms. Weber were re-elected to three- 
year terms on the Planning Commission. Ms. Bird and Ms. Weber received nine votes each, 
Ms. Saunders received eight votes, and Mr. Knapp received one vote. 

Ms. Louie requested Council use the second ballot to vote for Mr. Schofield or Mr. Knapp 
for the partial-term vacancy. 

Council Minubs - May 7,2007 Page 226 



In response to Councilor Brauner's inquiry, Ms. Louie clarified that if neither candidate 
receives a majority of votes (five or more), Council has the option of voting again to try to 
reach majority or direct staff toreopen the recruitment process. Councilors are not required 
to vote for either candidate. 

Council members cast their votes for the partial-term Planning Commissioner applicant. 
The votes were as follows: 

Councilor Wershow 
Councilor Daniels 
Councilor Zimbrick 
Councilor York 
Councilor Hamby 
Councilor Grosch 
Councilor Brauner 
Councilor Beilstein 
Councilor Brown 

Blank 
Blank 
Blank 
No Vote 
No Vote 
No Vote 
No Vote 
K ~ ~ P P  
No Vote 

Ms. Louie tabulated the votes and reported that Mr. Knapp received one vote. Five 
Councilors indicated no vote and three Councilors returned blank ballots that will be 
counted as no votes, 

Councilors Brauner and Grosch, respectively, moved and seconded to direct staff to reopen 
the recruitment process for the partial-term Planning Commission vacancy. 

Mayor Tomlinson referred to Attachment B, Historic Resources Commission (HRC) 
Vacancies, and inquired whether Council wanted to include the HRC vacancies in the 
Planning Commission recruitment process. 

Councilor Brauner amended the motion to include the Historic Resource Commission 
recruitment process with the remaining Planning Commission vacancy, and notice the 
vacancies for each Commission separately. Councilor Grosch seconded the amended 
motion. The motion passed unanimouslv. 

City Legislative Committee - May 2,2007 

City Manager Nelson reported that Council originally decided not to take a position on 
House Bill 3000 (HB3000) related to field burning. During a subsequent Council meeting, 
two citizens testified about HB3000 and the issue was referred back to the City Legislative 
Committee (CLC). The CLC reviewed the impact of HE33000 on the grass seed operation 
at the Airport and the City of Eugene's position. In the meantime, the CLC learned that the 
legislative review of this bill is over for 2007. The CLC believes taking a position at this 
time would be premature due to unknown future legislative positions and effects. 

Councilors Zimbrick and Wershow, respectively, moved and seconded to direct 
Mayor Tomlinson to communicate to Senator Morse and Representative Gelser that the 
Council takes no position on HB3000, and Council states its support, as it has in the past, 
for ecological processes promoting healthy living for all. The motion passed unanimouslv. 

Council Minutes - May 7,2007 Page 227 



Mr. Nelson said Senate Bill 400 (SB408) expands collective bargaining legislation, The bill 
failed at the Legislature; however, compromise language has been drafted by the League of 
Oregon Cities recognizingthat a similar bill will return to the Legislature during the current 
session. CLC recommends support of the compromise language. 

Councilors Zimbrick and Brown, respectively, moved and seconded to direct 
Mayor Tomlinson to communicate to Senator Morse and Representative Gelser that the 
Council supports the compromise SB400 language. 

Mr. Nelson clarified that the language changes are very subtle and related to bargaining 
status of stafing and safety issues. If staffing and safety issues cannot be agreed upon, an 
arbitrator could make staffing level or safety budget decisions, 

Councilor York noted that the current language refers to "direct and substantial effect," 
SB40.0 states "relates to3'' and the compromise language uses "significant impact." 

The motion passed unanimouslv. 

Councilor Wershow updated the Council on HE32468, Federal Forest Legacy Program, 
currently being reviewed by the Senate. EHB2468 passes, it would allow for open space 
spending outside of the Urban Growth Boundary. 

MA_YOR,_c!UNCIZ. AND STAFF REPORTS 

Mayor's Reports 

Mayor Tomlinson reported that he has begun review of potential Community Police Review 
Board members. He will accept additional nominations. 

Mayor Tornlhson announced that Councilor Wershow will serve as the Council liaison on 
the Committee for Citizen Involvement. 

Proclamation of Older Americans Month -May 2007 

Mayor Tornlin~on said Coun~ilorZjfnbrick will read tbis proclamation at Cascades 
West Coun~il of Government. 

Proclamation of Drmlring WatGr Week - May 6-12* 2007 

Mayor Tomlhon read the proclamation. 

Publi~ Works Director Rogers encamgeed Cowallis oil5zens to drin2c the "good 
Cornallis water." He recognized Councilor York for his consi.stent use of a 
Corvaliis water bottle. Mr. Rogers s*ernind't;d citizens to conserve water resources. 

Get There Another W y  Week - May 14-1 &, 2207 

Mayor Tonlinson read the proclamation. 

Comcil Minates - May 7,2007 Page 228 



Mr. Rogers acknowledged the good work the Corvallis citizens do in alternative 
transportation. 

Mayor Tomlinson reported that the Madison Avenue Task Force held their annual Spring 
Garden Festival on May 6.  He honored Jim and Ruth Howland by presenting them with an 
Enhancing Community Livability Proclamation. 

3. Council Reports 

Councibr Wershow thanked Councilor Brown for the College Hill area tour. 

Councilor Wershow reported on the following Oregon State University (OSU) events: 
Associated Students of OSU (ASOSU) Open House -May 8, 
ASOSU awards and inauguration - May 3 1, 
Asian-Pacific Month with food demonstration - May 8, and 
Invasive species presentation - May 9. 

Councilor Wershow attended the local food breakfast on May 5; the OSU Agricultural 
Department gave a presentation. 

Councilor Daniels announced that a Ward 2 meeting will be held at the Library on May 8. 
Agenda items include the Downtown Strategic Plan, Downtown Urban Renewal District, 
neighborhood livability, and a panel discussion on sustainability. 

Councilor Daniels announced that a tour of the South Central Park area is scheduled for 
May 10 at 6:00 pm. The tour begins at Artcentric. 

Councilor Daniels encouraged Council to identify additional groups that should be involved 
in the Sustainability Coalition. 

Councilor York reported that he toured a 26-acre parcel south of Country Club with the 
Open Space Advisory Committee on May 1. He will host Government Comment Corner on 
May 12. 

Councilor Brauner announced that he received a telephone call related to the regulation of 
exhaust emissions. He expects the caller to make a presentation during Visitors' 
Propositions. 

Staff Reports 

1. Social Services Administration Contract Extension 

City Manager Nelson said the City has a 15-year history with United Way to administer 
the Social Service b d s .  Staff proposes an extension of the contract for one year with 
future discussions related to identifying them as a sole source vendor or issuing a 
Request for Proposals (RFP). In the past, proposals have only been submitted by United 
Way. 

Council Minutes - May 7,2007 Page 229 



Councilor Hamby requested information about how much staff time is saved by not 
processing a RFP and how the administrative fees have changed since the United Way 
contract was initiated in 1992. 

2. Budget Implications of Core Services and Downtown and Economic Vitality Partnership 
Plans Implementation Committee (D-EVPIC) Work 

Mr. Nelson reported that both committees are on task. The Core Services Committee 
will work on issues for the Fiscal Year 2008-2009 budget. The D-EVPIC may forward 
recommendations for staff and/or institution support for the Economic Vitality 
Partnership Plan during the 2007-2008 budget process. 

Councilor Yorknoted that some staff support will be offset by sunsetting the Riverfront 
and Downtown Parking Commissions. Mr. Nelson replied that from a Public Works 
standpoint, parking will continue to require staff support. 

3. Downtown Commission (Downtown Corvallis Strategic Plan) 

Mr. Nelson said one recommendation for the formation of this Commission is for the 
Mayor to appoint a short-term group to work with Planning staff to determine purpose, 
who participates, size of Commission, and Council liaison(s). Staff suggests the work 
group include members from the Downtown Corvallis Association (DCA), Downtown 
Parking Commission, Riverfront Commission, City Council, and a non-DCADowntown 
supporter. 

In response to Councilor Daniels' inquiry, Mr. Nelson said staff is looking for the 
individual perspectives the work group can bring forward. 

h response to Councilor Hamby's inquiry, Mr. Nelson said the Downtown Parking 
Commission may fold into the Downtown Commission at a later date. He clarified that 
there is a Council approved process to ensure all stakeholder groups are represented. 
Sidewalk issues have not been specifically addressed by the Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Advisory Commission, but they may be included in fiture discussions. 

Mayor Tomlinson clarified that this small work group is to provide recommendations 
on forming the Downtown Commission and is not issue based. The Council agreed by 
consensus to the forming of a work group as proposed. 

4. Council Request Follow-up Report - May 3,2007 

Mr. Nelson briefly referred to the items in the Report. 

Councilor Hamby thanked Allied Waste Services for their generous donation to Transit. 

Councilor Brauner commended the City Attorney's Office for their research on the 
eligibility of Wildcat Park Redevelopment for Parks Systems Development Charge 
Funding. He said the project is continuing and close to meeting the fund raising goals. 

Council Minutes - May 7,2007 



A work party and community project to rebuild the park has been scheduled for May 30 
through June 3,2007. 

Mayor Tomlinson referred to the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) letter regarding the 
Van Buren Bridge Project. ODOT is reviewing new transportation data related to the placement of 
a parallel bridge or a northern bypass route. 

In response to Councilor Daniels' comments, Mayor Tomlinson said ODOT has considered a 
northern bypass route since January 2007. Councilor Brauner added that the bypass is an extension 
of the south bypass and has been in the long-range planning for many years. The extension has not 
been included in the funding cycle because of the associated high cost. ODOT recently completed 
an impact study and cost analysis and determined that bridge replacement and bypass completion 
were cost comparable while the northern bypass route may better solve traffic issues. 

Councilor Daniels noted that a northern bypass could conflict with the North Riverfront Park 
development proposal. 

Councilor York requested a map of the northern bypass route. 

Councilor Wershow announced that the Urban Services Committee will meet on May 22 at 4:00 pm 
and May 30 at 5:30 pm to discuss sidewalk cafes. Both meetings will be held in the Madison 
Avenue Meeting Room. 

VIII. & IX. STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ORDINANCES. RESOLUTIONS, 
AND MOTIONS 

A. Human Services Committee - April 17,2007 

1. Corvallis Fall Festival Annual Report 

Councilors Wershow and Brauner, respectively, moved and seconded to accept the 
Corvallis Fall Festival annual report for Fiscal Year 2006-2007. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

2. Civif Rights Ordinance; New Charter Provisions 

City Attorney Fewel read an ordinance relating to City Charter provisions, 
amending Municipal Code Chapters 1.1 8, "Ward Boundaries;" 1.21, "Ward 
Residency Requirement;" 1.23, "Civil Rights;" and Ordinance 93-20, as amended. 

ORDINANCE 2007-09 passed unanimously. 

3. Majestic Theatre Annual Report 

Councilors Wershow and Brauner, respectively, moved and seconded to accept the 
Majestic Theatre annual report for Fiscal Year 2005-2006. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

Council Minutes - May 7,2007 Page 23 1 



Boys and Girls Club Annual Report 

Councilors Wershow and Brauner, respectively, moved and seconded to accept the 
Boys and Girls Club Amual Report for Fiscal Year 2005-2006. The motion passed 
iuran~ously. 

Administrative Services Committee - April 19,2007 

AmbuIance Rate Review 

Gounoilars Zimbrisk and Brown, respedt~ely~ moved and secmded tat 
Increase the Speoidity Care F r t m ~ p ~ r b  base rate to $879, 
ItImase th6 A d m d  Li& Support 2 base rBte ta $808, 
Increase the Advmced Life Zivpport 1 base rate to $798, 
Increase the Evaluation and Treatment with no transport rate to $249.50, and 

* Maintain dl other Emergency MediGal Support semi~e charge at eunrent lev&. 

The motion passed uaanimouslv. 

daVinoi Days Laan Agwmer& 

Councilors Zimbrick and Brown, respectively, moved and seconded to accept the 
daVinci Days 2006 annual report and modify the terms of the Economic 
Development Grant and Bridge Loan agreements as recommended by staff, 
including a mandatory annual $2,000 minimum bridge loan payment. The motion 
pmsed unanimously. 

Urban Services Committee -April 19,2007 

Airport Lease Assignment - CAS 

Councilors Grosch and Hamby, respectively, mved and seconded to approve the 
lease assignment for CAS and authorize the City Manager to sign the consent to 
assign. The motion passed unanimouslv. 

Council Policy Review: 02-7.15, "Fee-in-Lieu Parking Program 

Councilors Grosch and Daniels, respectively, moved and seoonded to re- 
Council Policy 02-7.15, "Fee-in-Lieu Parking Program for Parking-Related 
Improvements in the Central Business District and the Everfront District,'kithout 
amendments. The motion passed unmsnimouslv. 

Councilor Grosch reported that the Urban Services Committee will be discussing Sidewalk 
Cafes on May 22 and 30. The May 10 and 24 meetings have been cancelled. 

Council Minutes - May 7,2007 Page 232 



D. Urban Services Committee -May 3,2007 

1. Airport Lease Assignment Procedures 

Councilors Daniels and Grosch, respectively, moved and seconded to approve 
changing the airport lease assignment process to provide a mechanism for the 
Airport Commission to forward unanimously approved, simple lease assignment 
recommendations directly to the City Council by way of the Consent Agenda. 

Councilor Grosch explained that the process currently takes several weeks to 
complete due to the Airport Commission recommendation going to Urban Services 
Committee (USC) prior to a recommendation being approved by Council. If 
significant changes are recommended or if the Airport Commission does not have 
unanimous approval, the issue will move forward through the USC. 

The motion passed unanimously. 

2. Airport Lease Assignment - Community Outreach, Inc. 

Councilors Daniels and Grosch, respectively, moved and seconded to approve the 
lease assignment from Community Outreach, Inc., to RCBEC, LLC, and authorize 
the City Manager to sign a lease agreement with RCBEC, LLC. 

Councilor Zimbrick declared a conflict of interest. 

The motion passed seven to one, with Councilor Zimbrick abstaining. 

3. Airport Lease - Mid-Valley Painting 

Councilors Daniels and Hamby, respectively, moved and seconded to approve the 
proposed lease with Mid-Valley Painting and authorize the City Manager to sign the 
Landmuilding Lease Agreement. The motion passed unanimouslv. 

Councilor Daniels clarified that the Sidewalk Cafe5 issues being discussed on May 22 and 
May 30 include fences and clearance, fee to occupy the public right-of-way, and beverage 
service after 1 1 pm. 

E. Other Related Matters 

1. Mr. Fewel read a resolution accepting a grant from the Oregon Department of 
Forestry and the USDA Forest Service for a scholarship to the Municipal Forester 
Institute ($750) and authorizing the City Manager to sign grant agreement 

Councilors Grosch and Brauner, respectively, moved and seconded to adopt the 
resolution. 

RESOLUTION 2007-05 passed unanimously. 

Council Minutes - May 7,2007 Page 233 



Mr. Fewel read a resolution accepting a donation from Osborn Aquatic Center 
patrons totaling $7,500 for the installation of additional handrails at the aquatic 
center and authorizing the Finance Director to make the proper budget 
appropriations. 

Councilors Zimbrick and Wershow, respectively, moved and seconded to adopt the 
resolution. 

RESOLUTION 2007-06 passed unanimously. 

Mr. Fewel read a resolution relating to the Risk Management Fund; rescinding 
Resolution 2007-4 and approving a new supplemental budget for the Risk 
Management Fund. 

Councilors Daniels and Wershow, respectively, moved and seconded to adopt the 
resolution. 

RESOLUTION 2007-07 passed unanimously. 

Mr. Fewel read a resolution relating to the Parks and Recreation Fund; rescinding 
Resolution 2007-4 and approving a new supplemental budget for the Park Fund. 

Councilors Grosch and Brauner, respectively, moved and seconded to adopt the 
resolution. 

RESOLUTION 2007-08 passed unanimously. 

Mayor Tomlinson read a statement, based upon changes in Oregon laws regarding executive sessions. The 
statement indicated that only representatives of the news media, designated staff, and other Council- 
designated persons were allowed to attend the executive session. News media representatives were directed 
not to report on any executive session discussions, except to state the general subject of the discussion, as 
previously announced. No decisions would be made during the executive session. He reminded Council 
members and staff that the confidential executive session discussions belong to the Council as a body and 
should only be disclosed if the Council, as a body, approves disclosure. He suggested that any Council or 
staff member who may not be able to maintain the Council's confidences should leave the meeting room. 

The Council entered Executive Session at I:20pm. 

City Attorney Fewel, Public Works Director Rogers, Admin Division Manager Steckel, and Franchise 
Specialist Steele briefed the Council on potential litigation (Comcast). 

(Mr. Fewel and Mr. Nelson left the meeting at 2: 1 1 pm; Councilors Zirnbrick and Hamby left the meeting 
at 2: 1 2 pm.) 

The Council discussed the Municipal Court Judge and City Attorney employment agreements. 

Council Minutes = May 7,2007 



Mayor Tomlinson recessed the Council at 2:14 pm and reconvened the Council at 7:00 pm in the Downtown 
Fire Station, 400 NW Harrison Boulevard, Corvallis, Oregon. 

I, ROLLCALL 

PRESENT: Mayor Tomlinson, Councilors Beilstein, Zirnbrick, Brauner, Grosch, Brown, 
Wershow, Daniels, York, Harnby 

VI. VISITORS' PROPOSITIONS 

Marti Staprans Barlow, Oregon Digital City Guides, announced that Oregon Business Magazine 
chose Corvallis for the 25th anniversary "Business is Good!" tour to be held on September 1 1 and 
12. The tour spotlights people, industries, and communities and their unique contributions to 
Oregon's economic vitality. Ms. Barlow said Corvallis' participation provides an opportunity to 
brand the city as a creative, entrepreneurial, high tech, academic, and livable community, promoting 
sustainability. A birthday celebration will be held on the riverfront with entertainment provided by 
the Cowallis Community Band and native Meredith Brooks. Ms. Barlow encouraged Councilors 
to invite their constituents to participate in the events. 

Linda Van Powell, Civic Outreach President, said Corvallis is one of only 18 Oregon cities chosen 
for the Oregon Business Magazine tour. 

Councilor Wershow noted that youtube.com profiles many Corvallis businesses. Ms. Barlow said 
she is developing a Web page that will include links to the specific youtube.com videos, additional 
Corvallis businesses, and Web pages of tour sponsors. 

Mark Hoffman, Wildcat Park Steering Committee Chair, reported that $1 18,000 has been raised in 
private funds since August 2006, and an additional $20,000 to $30,000 is needed to purchase 
materials to rebuild the Park. A work party has been scheduled for May 29 through June 3,2007 and 
volunteers are needed to complete the many phases of this project. Additional information is 
available at www.newwildcatpark.org. Mr. Hoffinan thanked the City for the cooperative agreement 
with Corvallis 509J School District for Wildcat Park maintenance and restroom services. 

Ed Eulev, Corvallis Matters, said the America's Affordable Communities Initiative will be 
detrimental to Corvallis land use planning and has the potential of overturning zoning that conflicts 
with affordable housing. Mr. Epley encouraged Council to not accept the Initiative. 

Mr. Epley aIso testified about signs placed in parking strips. He said real estate companies 
frequently place for sale signs in the parking strips. Some companies remove them when informed 
of the sign ordinance while others do not comply. Mr. Epley finds the signs offensive. 

& NEW BUSINESS 

A. America's Affordable Communities Initiative 

Mayor Tomlinson reported that staff recommends directing the Housing and Community 
Development Commission (HCDC) to review the work described in the resolution and local 
laws and regulations to determine whether they present barriers to affordable housing. 

Council Minutes - May 7,2007 Page 235 



City Attorney Fewel read a resolution accepting the United States Department of Housing 
and UrbanDevelopment's call to become an active participant in itsNationa1 Call to Action 
for Affordable Housing Through Regulatory Reform; and directs the Corvallis HCDC to 
review pertinent City laws and regulations with the goal of reporting back to the City 
Council within one year from the date of the Resolution. 

Councilors failed to move adoption of the Resolution. 

In response to Councilor Hamby's inquiry, Mayor Tomlinson said the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requested the resolution and staff recommended 
referral to the HCDC. 

Councilor Zirnbrick said he supports sending the issue to the HCDC for review; however, 
he is not comfortable with the resolution language. His perception is that HUD may view 
regulatory barriers in parts of the Comprehensive Plan (CP) and Land Development Code 
(LDC). 

Councilor Brauner said he would support a review by the HCDC and recommendation to 
provide an easier method of moving fonvard with affordable housing without undoing land 
use planning. He reminded Councilors that they adopted a goal related to affordable 
housing. 

Councilor Grosch said he does not support the resolution or a referral to HCDC. The City 
adopted regulations such as the Comprehensive Plan, Land Development Code, System 
Development Charges, permitting processes, Planning Commission reviews, and many 
more. He opined that the issue is broader than something Council would normally ask of 
an advisory board. A significant amount of community outreach and staff time would be 
required to constitute a regulation. If the issue is regulation, then it should be reviewed by 
Council with feedback from staff'. If it is referred to HCDC, Councilor Grosch requests an 
evaluation of the project scope and recommendations on how to conduct it thoroughly. 

Councilor Wershow noted that the Economic Vitality Partnership is already addressing some 
of these issues. 

Councilor Daniels said the letter and resolution has been drafted on assumptions that there 
is too much regulation and that regulation contributes to the cost of housing. As part of their 
long-term work projects, the HCDC is already reviewing affordable housing and the land 
use implications. 

The Council agreed by consensus to take no action. 

PUsLIC HEARINGS 

A public hearing to consider renewal of the Downtown Economic Improvement District 

Mayor Tomlinson reviewed the order of proceedings and opened the public hearing. 

Council Minutes - May 7,2007 Page 236 



Staff Report 

Planning Manager Towne explained that the Downtown Corvallis Association (DCA) 
requests Council consideration of the re-establishment of the voluntary Downtown 
Economic Improvement District (ED) for a five year period. If the Council agrees, an 
ordinance to amend Municipal Code Chapter 10.07, Economic Improvement District, and 
a resolution to authorize the process must be adopted. 

Mr. T o m e  referred to Exhibit E ofthe staff report: map identifying the 2007 proposed EID 
properties and a tax-lot listing of the properties. Exhibit H includes two letters received by 
property owners asking to be removed from the EID. The two properties are identified on 
the map and can be removed now or later. 

David Dodson, DCA EID Task Force, said the task force reviewed past efforts and 
determined what would make sense for new boundaries. He clarified that the assessment 
only applies to commercial properties; residential and governmental properties are not 
included. If a building is mixed-use, only the retail portion is assessed. Mr. Dodson added 
that the majority of DCA funding comes from E D  participation. 

Questions o f  Staff 

Councilor York: How does the task force deal with property owners opting out of the EID? 
Mr. Dodson -Members will educateproperty owners on DCA benefits and explain how 
the assessment is used. The conversations also help members evaluate and reassess 
boundaries. 

Councilor York: Is the preference to remove the two properties now or later? 
Mr. Dodson - It is preferable to leave the properties in the EID at this point to be 
counted as part of the entire EID. If property owners representing more than 33 
percent of the assessment remonskate, the EID wouldfail. 

Councilor Beilstein: If 67% participation is needed, why not leave out entire blocks? 
Mr. Dodson - The property boundaries and assessment changes with each re- 
authorization. The DCA has chosen to leave the properties in and allow the property 
owners to remonstrate. 

Councilor Beilstein: What happens if the 67% participation is not met? 
Mr. Dodson - The DCA can ask for a continuance and re-evaluate boundaries. 

Councilor Beilstein: Is this the frs t  five-year voluntary E D ?  
Mr. Dodson - This is the secondfive-year voluntary EID. 

Public Testimony - Sup~ort  - None. 

Public Testimony - Opposed 

Lenore Wood, 1201 NW 3rd Street, said as anew downtown property owner and landlord, 
she would prefer a three-year EID and that it remain voluntary. 

In response to Councilor Beilstein's inquiry, Ms. Wood confirmed that she received notice 
of the E D  Public Hearing; however, a map was not included. 

Council Minutes - May 7,2007 Page 237 



Public Testimony - Neutral - None. 

Mayor Tomlinson closed the public hearing. 

Deliberations 

City Attorney Fewel read an ordinance amending Municipal Code Chapter 10.07 (Economic 
Improvement District) and imposing assessments on property within the Downtown 
Voluntary Economic Improvement District. 

ORDINANCE 2007-1 0 passed unanimouslv. 

Mr. Fewel read a resolution to levy an assessment in the amount of $1.25 per $1,000.00 of 
the Assessor's Real Market Value. 

Councilors Wershow and Grosch, respectively, moved and seconded to adopt the resolution. 

RESOLUTION 2007-09 passed unanimously. 

Continuation of a public hearing to consider an appeal of a Planning Commission decision 
(WRG06-00001 - Cornerstone Associates) 

Mayor Tomlinson reviewed the order of proceedings and opened the public hearing. 

Declaration o f  Conflicts of  Interest - None. 

Declaration o f  Ex Parte Contacts 

Councilor Grosch stated that he had a conversation with Cornerstone Associates, Inc. Board 
President Peter Ball regarding site development and process options prior to the Planning 
Commission hearing. The conversation will not impact his ability to make a fair and 
impartial decision. 

Councilor Brown declared that he joined in the conversation with Councilor Grosch and 
Mr. Ball. The conversation will not impact his ability to make a fair and impartial decision. 

Declaration o f  Site Visits 

Councilor Daniels, Grosch, Zimbrick, Harnby, and York all declared making a site visit. 

Objections on Jurisdictional Grounds - None. 

Staff Overview 

Associate Planner Adams reported that the subject site is located on SE Crystal Lake Drive 
between several "Evanlte site" parcels and within the Willamette River Greenway (WRG) 
overlay. The Comprehensive Plan Map designation is Mixed-Use Transitional, and other 
properties in the area are designated Residential Low Density, Open Space Conservation, 

Council Minutes - May 7,2007 Page 238 



and Residential Medium Density. The Land Development Code (LDC) designation for the 
subject site and the properties to the south and east is General Industrial, while the 
properties to the north and west are Intensive Industrial. Properties located immediately 
across SE Crystal Lake Drive are RS 3.5, Low Density Residential. 

Mr. Adams reviewed the above existing conditions on an aerial photograph and added that 
the Cornerstone property consisted of two primary buildings, a portion of which burned 
down in 2006. The remaining site is developed with gravel storage areas, informal 
landscaping, material storage (lumber), and industrial buildings belonging to Evanite. 

Mr. Adams explained that the applicantlappellant requested to construct a 3,000 square foot 
(sq ft) building related to manufacturing, wood products, and work space. As aresult of the 
new building, additional vehicle and bicycle parking spaces would be required, as well as 
new site landscaping per the General Industrial and WRG Districts, as noted in the LDC. 

Mr. Adams identified the three issues of the appeal: 
The applicantlappellant contends their request did not constitute development; therefore 
the proposal should have been processed as a building permit and not reviewed through 
the WRG overlay. 
The applicantlappellant contends that the Conditions of Approval placed on the 
development are not substantially supported by evidence in the record. 
The applicantlappellant contends that some ofthe Conditions ofApproval placed on the 
development are unconstitutional exactions not relevant to the proposal. 

Planning Manager Towne clarified that the General Industrial zoning ofthe subject property 
is due to the proposal being submitted prior to the December 3 1,2006 effective date of the 
new LDC. 

Mayor Tomlinson announced that failure to raise an issue, accompanied by statements or 
evidence suficient to afford the City or other parties the opportunity to respond to the issue, 
precludes appeals to the State Land Use Board of Appeals based upon that issue. He also 
announced that failure of the applicant to raise constitutional or other issues relating to 
proposed conditions of approval with sufficient specificity to allow the local government 
to respond to the issue precludes an action for damages in Circuit Court. 

Auulicanf/Appellant Presentation 

George Heilia, representing Cornerstone Associates, Inc., presented materials outlining the 
appeal (Attachment H). He said Council has the opportunity to direct staff not to interpret 
ordinances in a manner limiting development. City staff was not required to treat this 
application as subject to the WRG Conditional Development procedure. 

Mr. Heilig referred to Exhibit 1 ofhis attachment, identified as a photograph of the previous 
6,000 sq ft building that burned in 2006. He noted the sloped roof and impervious surface 
that allowed for storm water runoff. The Site Plan (Exhibit 2) identifies the locations ofthe 
burned building pad and proposed new 3,000 sq ft  building. The Plot Plan (Exhibit 3) 
provides additional details of the proposed new building. 

Council Minutes -May 7,2007 Page 239 



Mr. Heiligread LIE Sectjon 3.3020, in part 
" ' ~ ~ e d o p j n z e ~ ~ '  as wed i~ $-his sec t i~n  incIudes chmge ofuse or i i ~ r n z ~ c a t i ~ ~  of 
Zavdd~rwattwzdses e m @  for those activifies listdm exemptions in Section 3.30.30 
belaw. " 

Mr, Heilig eontended thaf staff interpret-tad the language to ddeeide th& gdng fi-om a 
6,000 sq fZ building to a 3,000 ssq ft building was an hteflsificatian af use.  he analysis of 
"'htensification' is related to impervious surfaces. The staff analysis states that the 
impdous surface mi the new building will create a s tom water issue, yet the proposal 
identifies storm water flowing to the st- water dram in SE Crystal L&e M e .  
residual of the burned building is a cement slab h t  ~ o l l e d  ra5n water- Mr. Hedfg 
challenged how reducing the size oftbe building, and draining the storm water directly to 
the stom wafer collection qu&Eies as an "intmsification of me" in the proposal. 

Mr. Heilig read LDC Section 3.30.30.k, in part: 
"A change of use of a building or other structure that does not substantially alter 
or aflect the land or water upon which it is situated." 

Mr. Heilig said the subsection refers to existing structures; however, staff could have 
interpreted it to include the change of use of building that was destroyed by f ~ e .  He opined 
that the exemption is silent about changing the location of a building. 

Mr. Heilig said Conditions of Approval should not be imposed when there are common 
sense ways to avoid them. The linkage is whether new construction or renovation will be 
encouraged. He said this land use decision is important because it highlights the 
interpretation activity. Sometimes that activity involves gamesmanship of whether one 
interpretation is more right than the other, rather than how one can provide assistance. 

Mr. Heilig stated that in an attempt to find another definition of "development," staff used 
a concept of "materiality." The dictionary defines material as something of substantial and 
essential import. Staff could have concluded replacing a 6,000 sq ft building with a 3,000 
sq ft building was not material; therefore, not development, The question is whether this 
change is substantial enough to impose $30,000 in conditions. 

Mr. Heilig encouraged Council to empower staffto balance the interests to promote newness 
and not encourage staff to create with narrow interpretations. If Council concludes this 
request should not have been considered as a Conditional Development under WRG, it will 
not remove the building permit process and regulations dealing with building codes. 

Mr. Heiligreferred to Exhibit 7 (Condition of Approval 8), related to taking land for public 
right-of-way (ROW). Staff recommends that the front of the property is "taken" for the 
expansion of SE Crystal Lake Drive and a public easement be given for public utilities. He 
read fi-om Schultz vs. City of Grants Pass: 

"In Schultz vs. the City of Grants Pass, the local government required roadway 
dedications as condition of approving a partition application. The local 
government's justification for proposing that exaction was that the property in 
question might upon firther and future applications be subdivided, and that in turn, 
might result in 20 homes being built on the site. Thus the justification for the 

Council Minutes - May 7,2007 Page 240 



roadway dedications conditions was that those conditions would mitigate 
transportation impacts that could be generated if at some point in the future these 
sites were developed in a manner that was not yet permitted. 

Applying Dolan, we [Court of Appeals] rejected that rationale, saying, the City's 
justification for conditions is (in the words of the City's own supplemental 
fidings), the impact of 'potential development of the partition track.' In other 
words, the City imagined the worse-case scenario assuming the petitioner would at 
some undefined point in the future attempt to develop their land to their full 
development potential of as many as 20 subdivided residential lots. Further 
assuming that petitioners would obtain all of the necessary permits and approvals, 
and on the basis of that scenario it calculated the impacts of the development and 
tailored conditions to address them." The Court of Appeals ruled that this could not 
occur under Dolan. 

Mr. Heilig stated that staffs analysis is exactly the same for the taking of the frontage 
property. Staff used terms "could intens@," "people who could work," if the General 
Industrial site develops to its full capacity. The analysis on which exactions can be exerted, 
is whether the site will generate an adverse impact that is required to mitigate adverse 
impact and is roughly proportional to the impact. Quotes from the original staff report to 
the Planning Commission are included in Exhibit 7, and clearly show that the analysis for 
the exaction, taking of the frontage, and utility easement, is based on potential future 
increases. Dolan vs. City of Tigard states that it is not permissible for the City to "require 
the dedication of private property for some future public use when such fiture use is not 
occasioned by the construction sought to be permitted." In this case, the project sought to 
be permitted is a reduction in half of what was there before the 2006 fire. There is nothing 
identifying current impact from this development, only potential future impact. This 
proposaI is for a charity that cannot afford onerous exactions and the City should not require 
them. The Conditions might serve the overall good of South CorvaMis, but they do not serve 
Cornerstone. 

Mr. Heilig referred to Condition 5, related to parking. Staff report Exhibit It, pages 15 
through 17 include a staff analysis that identifies 51 existing parking spaces. The six 
additional parking spaces required provide a total of 57 spaces. The project uses 39 spaces 
and the new building occasions eight. Therefore, only 47 spaces are needed. Mr. Heilig 
said the issue is how many spaces need paving. The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 
requires two paved parking spaces, which Cornerstone will provide. The cement slab left 
from the burned building includes six paved spaces. Cornerstone suggests that existing 
parking can be accommodated on site by paving only two of the spaces on the east side of 
the new building and including six new spaces in the heavily graveled surface. The savings 
would be approximately $4,200. Staff has not proved a need ''driven by a reasonable 
response" per Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS). 

Mr. Heilig said Condition 10 is driven by the fact that the WRG Conditional Development 
standard was used. If the WRG was not used, expensive paving would not be required. Mr. 
Heilig referred to a photograph of the current bus stop in Exhibit 6 of his handout. He said 
there has never been a report of injury or problems at the current bus stop. 

Council Minutes - May 7,2007 Page 24 1 



Mr. Heilig referred to Condition 9 which requires a 28 foot setback in atriangle shape. This 
requirement is also driven by the WRG and will cause the loss of one or two Giant Sequoia 
trees. 

Mr. Heilig said SE Crystal Lake Drive holds public easements on both sides ofthe drive and 
there is no immediate need for a seven-foot easement on the east side of the existing fence 
line as required in Condition 12. He opined that it will be more appropriate for the City to 
take the utility easement from Cornerstone and Evanite when the City wants to remove the 
trees and widen the street. 

Mr. Heilig referred to page eight of the staff report. He said staff requested landscaping. 
The Site and Plot Plans show a new building between SE Crystal Lake Drive and the 
existing antiquated buildings that serve as a visual buffer, along with the existing Giant 
Sequoia trees. Parking will be located on the east side, or opposite of what is visible by the 
residents across the street. Cornerstone is willing to add arborvitae next to the building and 
install drip irrigation. Mr. Heilig reminded Council that each dollar required by the City for 
these Conditions reduces the ability for Cornerstone to care for their associates. 

Questions o f  Applicant/Appellant 

Councilor Grosch: Do you believe that the only additional parking needed is next to the 
new building? 

Mr. Heilig: Other than the ADA pavedparking spaces added to the new building, the 
remainingproperty can accommodate parking requirements in the graveled areas. 

Councilor York: Do you prefer a ROW dedication with condemnation proceeding? 
Mr. Heilig: When the Capital Improvement Program designates SE Crystal Lake Drive 
for expansion, then the entire community area would benefit. The law states that the 
impac t~om the subject proper9 daes not have to fund the entire community good. 

Mayor Tomlinson noted that Council sets policy and procedure, and when Mr. Heilig uses 
the term "staff' the assumption is that he is referring to Council. Mr. Heilig responded that 
staff, not Council, made the interpretations and staff is requesting affirmation of their 
interpretations. Mr. Heilig opined that Council should inform staff their interpretation is 
incorreet and encourage them to be more balanced and less literal. 

Councilor Brauner: What was the previous use on this site? 
Mr. Heilig: Originally the land was used as a gravel pit. Prior to the Cornerstone 
building burning, the land was used primarily for storage and work area for the 
Cornerstone Associates. 

Councilor Brauner: Are you contending that this proposal is not a "change of use" in 
addition to not an "intensification"? 

Mr. Heilig: Yes, even though "change of use" was not referenced by stafl Staflused 
"infensification" and then used a second definition of "development" related to 
material change. 

Council Minutes - May 7,2007 Page 242 



Councilor York: One test of intensification is impervious surface. The slab from the 6,000 
sq ft building remains and this proposal is to add a 3,000 sq ft building elsewhere on the 
property. Is the new building on impervious or pervious surface? 
c Mr. Heilig: The location for the new building is apewious (graveled) area. The storm 

water on the old building was not managed because of its age and lack ofinformation 
about the run08 Because the old building site is now a&t slab, the water moves at a 
slower rate, and most likely migrates under the slab. The new building will connect to 
the City's storm water system, which will not only result in "no change, " it willprovide 
an improvement for water runoff: 

Staff l ie~ort  

Mr. Adarns said the LDC clearly identifies development to be an activity making materials 
changes in land or structure. The WRG broadens the development definition to include 
intensification of use and/or land. Construction of a new building would result in material 
changes to the property and introduce new impervious materials; thereby, causing an 
intensification of that portion of the property. Because none ofthe WRG exemptions apply, 
the application of WRG standards and the processing of this proposal as a Conditional 
Development was appropriate. 

Mr. Adams said Conditions 1-6,13, and 14 ensure consistency with development standards 
that apply to the proposal. These Conditions were reasonably applied and consistent with 
both the LDC and applicable ORS. 

Mr. Adams stated staff disagrees with the ApplicantlAppellant that Conditions 7,9, and 10 
are exactions. Staff believes these Conditions have the same purpose as Conditions 1-6,13, 
and 14, and ensue consistency with development standards that apply to the proposal. 

Mr. Adams explained that Condition 11 is advisory and only ensures that a storm water 
facility design is consistent with the Stormwater Master Plan, if determined to be necessary 
by the amount of impervious cover created by this proposal. The Condition informs the 
applicant of the requirement. 

Mr. Adams said Conditions 8 and 12 have the effect of being exactions. The 
Applicant/Appellant would be required to dedicate additional ROW along SE Crystal Lake 
Drive and provide a private utility easement. Both result in the use of private property for 
a public purpose. Staff broadened the analysis provided to the Planning Commission to 
include more findings that address the rational nexus and rough proportionality tests 
required for exactions. The analysis reveals there is rational nexus between burdens placed 
on the public system by this proposal and the proposed solution, which consists of 
dedication of additional ROW to allow for construction of pedestrian and bicycle facilities, 
and to extend private utilities. The proposed solutions are roughly proportional to the 
impact that is caused. Staff shows that at a minimum, the introduction of eight individuals 
to this property, based on the number of parking spaces required, does result in rough 
proportionality with similarly situated residential properties along this portion of SE Crystal 
Lake Drive, with respect to the amount of ROW they have provided to facilitate necessary 
transportation improvements. Staff analysis is not relying on a future potential use of the 
site, but what would occur as a result of this proposal. 

Council Minutes - May 7,2007 Page 243 



Questions o f  Staff 

Councilor Brauner: Is it correct that Conditions 8 and 12 require a dedication, but not 
improvements to the property? The dedication would only reserve the property for future 
use. 

Mr. Adams: Correct. Three options were provided to ensure construction of identified 
transportation facilities: I)  build the facilities, 2) prepay for the facilities to be 
constructed at a later date in a more comprehensive project along the entire street, or 
3) participate in a Local Improvement District (LID) through a non-remonstrance 
agreement. 

In response to Councilor Hamby's inquiry, Mr. Adams confinned that rough proportionality 
only applies to the exactions and the proposal was reviewed by the Planning Commission 
because of the WRG overlay. 

Councilor Grosch: The ApplicantIAppellant can choose to improve the ROW, pay for the 
improvements and Zone of Benefit, or not improve the property and complete a non- 
remonstrance that ensures when the property develops in the future, they agree to financially 
participate. 

Mr. Adams: Correct, except for the creation of the Zone of Benefit. The 
Applicant/Appellant would be required to determine the amount of money needed to 
construct the required improvements (e.g., sidewalk andplanter strip) andprovide the 
monies to the City. The funds would be held until those improvements are constructed 
in entirety with a4acent properties. 

t Mr. Towne: The dedication is not associated with increasing vehicular traffic, it is 
associated with pedestrian facilities to provide adequate pedestrian access along the 
j-ontage of the roadway. There would be no Zone ofBenefit because it is not an 08-site 
improvement. 

Mr. Towne noted the full Planning Commission report describes staff analysis of the 
proposal and includes the Planning Commission's Notice of Disposition. Other issues are 
important to the approval or denial of this proposal, but are not the sole issues associated 
with the proposal. The proposal is a Conditional Development with the concept that 
Conditions of Approval may be necessary to mitigate the impacts of certain types of 
development. Additionally, LDC Chapter 1.6.20, Common Words, "Development" and 
"Redevelopment" are defined. In the WRG Section, "Development" is listed in quotation 
marks, meaning it refers back to and includes Chapter 1.6, Definitions; therefore, expanding 
the definition. 

Public Testimony - Suuuort 

Peter Ball, Cornerstone Association, Inc. Board President, noted his previously submitted 
written testimony. Cornerstone is trying to work cooperatively with the City to create an 
environment to help people move forward with development. The proposal is not to serve 
more individuals than are currently being served; therefore there is no increase to the use 
of the property. The surface area of the proposal is 1.5 percent of the entire property, which 
makes water drainage insignificant. 

Council Minutes - May 7,2007 Page 244 



Councilor Daniels: The written testimony refers to staff not being responsive. What did 
staff not respond to? 

Mr. Ball: Discussions were held with City staffrom the Planning Department up to, 
and including, the City Manager, with the intent ofpresenting a cooperative project to 
the Planning Commission for approval. Staff was not responsive to the practical 
realities of ass'isting Cornerstone, other than helping to identifi the process. In 
retrospect, Cornerstone should not have invoked WRG and only applied for a building 
permit. Everyone took time to listen, but no one gave any consideration to holding a 
meeting to discuss aproject that would be approved. 

Councilor Daniels: Do you contend that the land use conditions (landscaping, driveways, 
etc.) are not "normal"? 

Mr. Ball.- Cornerstone expects to comply with any reasonable building code and does 
not necessarily object to codes not related only to the structure. 

Councilor Daniels: What is meant by "alternative and hidden agendas" referred to in 
paragraph six of your written testimony? 

Mr. Ball: It seems as ifthere is an attempt to create opportunity where projects can be 
micro-managed beyond what creates a reasonable proactive environment to help 
citizens accomplish projects within the code. An impasse is eventually created that 
discourages development and removes creativity. 

Councilor Hamby: Are you saying that the definition of working cooperatively and being 
reasonable is that the LDC should not apply to you? 

Mr. Ball: Cornerstone does not believe in some of the LDCJs applications to the 
proposal. Cornerstone expected to create an environment to discuss issues with the 
result being a cooperative project that could be presented to and approved by the 
Planning Commission. There is room for staflto compromise, which is what was 
expected. An example is a Condition to provide paved walkways. The most direct path 
between the bus stop and location of a newly constructed building has existing 
pavement. Why would there be a requirement to construct a paved walkway that goes 
nowhere? 

Mayor Tomlinson recessed the Council from 8 5 6  until 9:OS pm. 

Councilor York: Do you feel that as a non-profit organization providing a community 
service, the City should be more lenient on your project versus the for-profit developer? 

Mr. Ball: No; cooperation should be applied to everyone. As a community, we need 
to be cooperative and encourage existing business to make reasonable enhancements 
and new development that meets reasonable guidelines. The interpretations of the 
guidelines are toopicky. 

Councilor Beilstein: If the application had been to construct a new building on the existing 
site of impervious surface, would it not be considered deveiopment? 

Mr. Ball: Cornerstone was told that rebuilding on the existing site would trigger a 
WRG review. Building awayJi.om the oldsite, removes people@om the more industrial 
parts of the property. Drainage and surfaces were discussed early in the process. 

Council Minutes -May 7,2007 Page 245 



Councilor Brauner: Which Conditions would cause additional costs and how much? 
Mr. Ball: Landscape - $2,400-$3,600; parking - $3,300-$4,200; storm water 
conveyance -$4,200-$6,000; Rowdedication- $8,5004 15,000; walkway construction 
- up to $2,300. 

Councilor Zimbrick: What will happen to the old building site? 
Mr. Ball: It is currently being usedfor lumber storage. Structurally, it could not meet 
building code requirements for a new building. 

David Gilbert, Board Treasurer of Cornerstone Associates, Inc., said he was impressed with 
how diligent staff works to minimize overhead, provide service to associates, and raise 
funds. The costs associated with the Conditions of Approvals of the proposal will create a 
hardship for Cornerstone and force less services for the associates. The additional eight 
parking spaces are only required because of the building, not because Cornerstone needs 
them. Building a smaller building does not create additional impact, and the requirements 
seem unfair. To rebuild a smaller building after a casualty loss and be required to spend an 
additional $30,000 to $40,000 is questionable. Additionally, Cornerstone must certify that 
the land is clean before it can be dedicated to the City. This property has been known as 
hazardous since it housed the sand and gravel business. The City suggests dedicating the 
additional ROW is a small matter, when no one yet knows what condition the land is in, and 
there is no known use for the ROW now or later. 

Public Testimony - Or,z,osition 

Dana C m b e l l ,  1360 SE Crystal Lake Drive, lives across the street from the proposed new 
building. She is not concerned about the Cornerstone organization, she is concerned about 
the construction of a new building in South Corvallis. As a property owner, she is required 
to follow every code and regulation specific to Corvallis and believes Cornerstone should 
also be required to follow the codes and regulations. The proposed building will be located 
closer to her home and the other five residences located across from Cornerstone and 
Evanite. Many of the homes have bedrooms fronting SE Crystal Lake Drive and are 
exposed to lights, landscaping, and noise. Ms. Campbell suggested that a buffer is 
appropriate. 

Public Testimony - Neutral - None. 

Az,plicant/Ap~ellant Rebuttal 

Mr. Heilig stated that LDC Section 3.30.30.k (substantiality test) does apply to the proposal. 

Regarding rough proportionality, page 14 of the staff report uses terms such as could 
intensify, are anticipated, employees that may occupy, etc. This analysis is not permissible 
under Dolan vs. City of Tigard; therefore constituting "takings." 

Mr. Towne said the reasons for the Conditions is to mitigate impact. Mr. Heilig questions 
whether staff has identified the impact of the replacement structure. The construction is not 
new, it is replacement of a building destroyed by fire. It wiIl be located in a new place, but 
it is half of the size of the building that was in place when Ms. Campbell moved into her 

Council Minutes - May 7,2007 Page 246 



residence. The issue is the interpretation of whether the WRG Conditional Development 
should be applied. Cornerstone believes a correct interpretation would be that this property 
is not subject to the WRG Conditional Development. 

Sur-Rebuttal - None. 

Questions o f  Staff 

Councilor Zimbrick: Regarding Exemption k - is there an opportunity for a mitigation plan 
that could comply with the change of the use of a building or structure that would not 
substantially alter the land or water? 
F Mr. Towne: Stafdoes not believe Exemption k applies because the proposal includes 

construction of a new structure. The proposal is clearly "development" because there 
is a material change in the land, it is construction of a new structure, and there is no 
change in use. Mitigating run-of is d i f f e n t  and addressed in a number of the 
Conditions. The City is not aware of what the storm water treatment or transmission 
on that site includes. When a new structure is constructed and/or new parking is added, 
the City deals with the run-of consistent with the Stormwater Master Plan. The 
Conditions related to water qualiby, treatment, and conveyance associated with 
impervious surface could be considered a mitigation plan. 

Councilor Beilstein: Condition 11 relates to water quality facilities and states, in part, that 
ifthe proposed new pollution generating impervious surface (PGIS) is 5,000 sq ft or greater, 
the applicant shall construct water quality facilities. Will the new PGIS be 5,000 sq ft or 
greater? 
+ Civil Engineer Reese: Based on the application, the City does not yet know. 
Councilor Beilstein: Is it feasible for the applicant to keep the new parking and space 
accessible to motor vehicles less than 5,000 sq ft, thus avoiding this requirement? 
+ Mr. Reese: Engineering has not reviewed the design for maneuvering vehicles on the 

site. Planning would need to determine how much maneuvering space is required. 
+ Mr. Towne: A parking space is roughly 10 by 20 feet. Ten parking spaces would be 

2,000; added to 3,000 sq$ proposal would equal 5,000 sq 3. The parking spaces could 
be a little smaller, but once maneuvering and drivewizy space is added, it will most 
likely be more than 5,000 sq 3. 

Councilor Beilstein opined that the requirements are somewhat onerous and inquired what 
the City could do to make the requirements less onerous and still comply with standards. 

Councilor Brauner: Regarding Condition 11, the 3,000 sq ft facility does not generate 
vehicle pollution, so only the parking and vehicle maneuverability needs to be less than 
5,000 sq ft? 
+ Mr. Reese: Correct. 
Councilor Brauner: One concern of the applicantlappellant is the internal pedestrian 
walkway and existing hard surface. Does the pedestrian walkway need to be new or can it 
be a part of the existing surface? 
r Mr. Towne: The walkway can utilize existingsurface. The Council and community 

have established clear and objective criteria that staff is attempting to apply. Within 

Council Minutes - May 7,2007 Page 247 



the walkway criteria, there is a repiremertt to have a separated surface (paise4 
curbed, etc.) b e ~ e m g e d e t r i n  and v&llc-erlar use. 
Mr. A d m :  Based an the dimensiuns of the existing vehicle access that frmels fhrough 
the site, one-way traflc is facilitared weld and two-wtp traflc is margintlI, making 
pedes~ian movement questionable. 11t is likely rkaf- additionalpedestrian use facil fties 
will need to be constructedd 

Councilor Daniels noted that during her site visit, traffic was heavy and she had difficulties 
maneuvering between vehicles. She agreed that pedestrians would need to be protected 
from vehicle movement as expected on any industrial site. Councilor Daniels opined that 
there would be no reason to amend Condition 11. The applicantlappellant will either meet 
the threshold or not. 

In response to Councilor Daniels' comments, Mr. Towne confirmed that the site has been 
industrial for many years. He said the issue of having pavement over a surface that 
pedestrians will be using is fairly important since the City does not know what chemicals 
may be in the ground, even at surface level. 

Councilor Grosch opined that Council could consider past use of the property. The majority 
of people who work at Cornerstone use Dial-A-Bus or private transportation. There are very 
few associates working outside of the building. He expressed little concern for the need of 
an internal sidewalk. 

Councilor Daniels said a pathway would need to be constructed between the new building 
and old building pad if the associates are going to continue using the old building pad. 

Councilor York opined that an internal sidewalk is required regardless of the current tenant. 
The requirement is based on the LDC. 

Councilor York: Were the same ROW dedications and private utility easements applied to 
the COHO Cohousing project? 

Mr. Reese: The COHO project was conditioned for exactly what is listed in the LDC. 
ROW was dedicated to meet the requirements as well as the construction of sidewalks 
andplanting strips. 

Right to Submit Additional Written Argument 

Mr. Heilig waived the right to submit additional written testimony. 

Mayor Tomlinson closed the public hearing. 

Deliberations 

Councilors Wershow and Daniels, respectively, moved and seconded to uphold the Planning 
Commission's decision to approve the request. 

Page 248 



Councilor Beilstein said before the ROW is dedicated, an expensive environmental 
assessment must be conducted. He inquired why the City needed the dedication at this point 
rather than when the improvements are made. 

Councilor Grosch responded that because of the new development, the site must be brought 
up to current standards, which requires the ROW dedication. There are no current plans to 
expand SE Crystal Lake Drive and this proposal will not add traffic to the Drive. There is 
no pressing need and no overwhelming benefit to dedicate the ROW immediately. 

Councilors Grosch and Beilstein, respectively, moved and seconded to amend the motion 
to remove Condition of Approval 8. 

In response to Councilor Hamby's inquiry, Mr. Towne confirmed that the City would be 
required to pay for the environmental analysis if the property is dedicated at a later time. 

Councilor Brauner said he agrees with the Planning Commission and staff that this project 
is development. The Condition requires a review of whether this development increases use 
and impact to require the dedication. He opined that replacing a 6,000 sq ft building 
employing x number of employees with a 3,000 sq ft building employing the same number 
of employees does not intensify the use to warrant this type of condition; therefore he will 
support the amended motion. 

Mr. Towne clarified that there is available land on the site for additional development. 
Condemnation may not be the only way to obtain the ROW. The development: is in a 
General Industrial Zone which requires the first 35 feet along SE Crystal Lake Drive be 
landscaped (Condition 2). 

City Manager Nelson noted that the LDC does not allow the City to differentiate between 
profit and non-profit businesses. 

Mr. Nelson suggested a compromise of asking for the dedication with an offer of financial 
relief and a future requirement to participate in the improvement. The burden would then 
be passed on to the greater public, street fund, or other entity. The width of ROW is needed 
because of the Transportation Master Plan and the requirement that fair share go with the 
development. 

Councilor Brauner clarified that the compromise means asking for the dedication without 
any improvement or financial impact, and the ROW dedication would be reserved for future 
development. The only issue would be the environmental assessment before the dedication. 

Mr. Towne explained that there are three levels of assessment, starting with a base level of 
likelihood of pollution. Although there is no simple solution, the area subject to dedication 
has been relatively unused. 

Councilor York noted that the ROW dedication is not due to the development generating 
more traffic. It is for pedestrians, collector, landscaping, and part of the Transportation 
Plan. He is reluctant to eliminate the requirement. 

Council Minutes - May 7,2007 Page 249 



Councilor Daniels said she would not support removing Condition 8; however, she is 
agreeable to obtaining the ROW dedication without immediate financial impact. She is 
concerned about the environmental assessment. 

Councilors Grosch and Beilstein, respectively, amended and seconded their motion to 
remove the last sentence of Condition 8: 

"The applicant shall also construct, secure, prepay, orpetitionfor Collector Street 
standardpark strip and setback sidewalk along the development site's SE Crystal 
Lake Drivefiontage, including relocation of the existing fence." 

In response to Councilor Hamby's inquiry, Mr. Towne said if the above motion is approved, 
there may be an opportunity with further development at this site for sidewalk construction. 
Mr. Nelson said it could be backfilled through another funding source. 

In response to Councilor Beilstein's inquiry, Mr. Nelson explained that an irrevocable 
consent to participate means a pledge to participate financially with the development at 
some point in the future. Mr. Reese added, if a local improvement district is formed in the 
future the applicant would be required to participate. 

Mr. Towne explained that the language in Condition 8 does not need to be removed because 
the applicant can dedicate the properly, sign a petition, and not expend funds at this time. 
The petition does not remove their responsibility. 

Councilor Wershow said he was not in support of the motion because future applicants will 
express need which will eventually put the financial burden on the City. 

Councilor Beilstein stated that he is attempting to remove the financial burden as it is not 
commensurate with the impact of the development. When the development is substantial 
enough to increase use then the City has an obligation to obtain the cost from the developer. 

Mr. Fewel said Council has approved this type of condition for years. The City takes the 
ROW now and the applicant signs an irrevocable consent to a LID that can be constructed 
some future date. Only benefitted properties pay for the improvements. If one-third of the 
properties remonstrate, the LID will fail. 

Councilors Grasch andBeilstein withdrew their amended motion to remove the last sentence 
of Condition 8. 

Mr. Towne said Condition 8 language could be amended to read: 
"The applicant shall also construct, secure, prepay, or sign an irrevocable petition 

for public street improvementsfor Collector Street standardpark strip and setback 
sidewalk along the development site's SE Crystal Lake DriveJi.ontage, including 
relocation of the existingfence." 

Mr. Towne read LDC 4.01.1 10.h related to the three-level environmental assessment. 
Mr. Fewel said an environmental assessment must occur before the City can take the 
dedication. 

Page 250 



Councilor York noted that this language only deals with assessment and not cleanup. The 
assessment would help the City determine if they want the dedication. If there is 
contamination, clean-up would occur when the site is developed further. Mr. Towne added 
that the City can refuse to accept the ROW based on the environmental assessment. 

Mr. Nelson said he could not recall needing an environmental assessment beyond the first 
phase. The concern is the cost to the applicant. The environmental assessment costs 
increase once the assessment moves beyond the first level. He inquired about limiting the 
language to the first level assessment and conducting a second review if needed. 

Mr. Adams added that the rough estimate for the width of the needed ROW is ten feet, 
which is mostly occupied by trees. 

Councilor Grosch and Beilstein withdrew their motion to remove Condition 8. 

Councilor Grosch inquired whether the landscape buffering in Condition 2 will still apply 
if amendments are approved for environmental assessment in Condition 8. Mr. Towne 
confirmed that Condition 2 is a completely separate issue from Condition 8. 

Mr. Towne read amended Condition 8 language, in part: 
". . .and provide an environmental assessment for all land to be dedicated in 
accordance with LDC Section 4.0.11 O.h. I .  Should a level one assessment be 
deemed necessary, the Citv mav choose not to accept the public rinht o f  wav. The 
applicant shall also construct, secure, prepay, or s i m  an irrevocable petition for 
public street improvements for Collector Street standard park strip and setback 
sidewalk along the development site's SE Crystal Lake Drive frontage, including 
relocation of the existing fence." 

Councilor Grosch and York, respectively, moved and seconded to amend Condition 8 as 
proposed. 

Mr. Towne confirmed that LDC Section 4.0.1 10.h. 1 only includes the environmental site 
inspection. If the inspection results in unclean land, further discussion will occur with the 
applicant to deal with the environmental impacts and whether the City will accept the 
dedication. 

In response to CounciIor Zimbrick's inquiry, Mr. Fewel explained that if the assessment is 
not good, the City would not accept the dedication, but still have the irrevocable petition to 
form the LID. 

The motion passed eight to one with Councilor Hamby opposing. 

The original motion to uphold the Planning Commission's decision to approve the request 
passed unanimously. 

Council Minutes -May 7,2007 Page 25 1 



WNSHIED BUSINESS - continued 

XI. 

City Attorney Empioyment Agreement 

Camcilor Bram-er ~efemed' to the City Attorney emplayment agreement addendum 
(Attachment I) and explained t b t  tZle language represents a 2.2 pescent inflationary 
ad@sment effe0tiv.e Jdy I ,  2007 and an add-itional 1 percent adjustment effective December 
1,2007. He stated appreciation for the City Attorney's recognition of the Ci&y9s financial 
condition and his willingness to agree to m inflationary-only adjustment. 

Comcilor Zimbrick declared a conflict of interest, 

Councilor Grosch noted that the p&fomance evduation was satisfiactory a d  commended 
Mr. Fewel for the work he and his staff provides. 

Councilors Bfauner and Daniels, respectively, moved, and seconded to approve the City 
Attorney employment agreement addendum. The mation gassed eight to one with 
Councilor Zimbrick abstaining. 

The meeting was adjourned at 10:45 pm. 

APPROVED: 

CITY RECORDER 

MAYOR 

Page 252 



Planning Commissioner Qplicants 
Oecnpation and Residence Loeation Guide 

A T T A C m M T  A 
Page 252-a 

Ward 
or 

UGB 
- - 

I 8 

- - - 

7 

- -- 

5 

3 

- - 1 

6 

- 

Commissi~ner's 
Residential 

- - - 
- - 

~ t f d r e s s  

3 245 NW. S Jktassel Drive 
1 

- - 
1765 NW Alta Yista 
lzriive 

- 

1252 NW Pierce Way 

8886 SE Bayshore Circle 

- - -  

958 W Sycamore 
Avenue, Apt. 19 

l - -  - - 

Map 
Lscatirrn 
Nmber 

1 

2 

--- 

3 

4 
1 

5 

- - 

- -  - -  - - - - - - - - - 

Co.dssiclnerls 
Name 

- 

rSazyn Bh-d 

Denise Saunders 

-- - 

Patpi~ia We$@ 
- - - - - - - 

Dm Schofield 

Mark &am 
- -  - -- 

- - - - - - 

Corn~sdonerf s 
Occ~patj~n 

- 
- -- -- 

- -- 

assistant ~ T O ~ ~ S S O T  - I 

ve-q medicine I 

(fetimd] 
- 

attorney 

electrim1 m&eei- 
- - 

- 1 . -  - 

professional organizational 
deuelapmenthealth care -- - 

Itdmid&a6ve _mhtaB2 

-- 



M E M O R A N D U M  
- 

-- 

TO: 

FROM; 

DATE: 

RE: 

ISSUE: 

Mayor and City Council 

Ken Gibb, Community Development Directo 

May 2007 

d 
CURRENT HISTORIC RESOURCES COMMISSION VACANCY 

There are three vacancies opening on the Historic Resources Commission as a result of terms 
ending June 30,2007. 

II. DiSCUSSlON: - 

Vacant and expiring Historic Resources Commission positions are filled by the City Council through 
a recmitment and selection process in which the posifi~ns are advertised, and interested citizens 
are invited to apply. The selection process involves cumpleting an application and being interviewed 
by the City Council (with pre-selected questions). When all candidates are interviewed, the Council 
makes the selections. 

Once new Commissioners are selected, staff provides basic orientation and an overview of the 
planning process. Staff also provides copies of necessary planning related documents including 
the Land Development Code, and the Vision 2020 Statement. As needed, additional training is also 
available for the Historic Resources Commission members. 

Ill. PROPOSED SCHEDULE: 

The recruitment schedule is tentatively proposed as follows: 

Advertisement 
Receive appiications 
Schedule interviews 
Council interviews 
Appointments 

IV. ACTION REQUESTED: 

Wednesday, May 9,2007, and Sunday, May 13,2007 
Through 5 p.m. on Friday, June 1,2007 
Week of June 4-8,2007 
Tuesday, June 12, @ 520 p.m. 
Monday, June 18,2007 I 

City Council is asked to accept ~e schedule for the Historic Resources Commission appointments 
and advise as to recommended changes to the application packet that is attached. 

Review and Concur: 

ATTACHMENT B 
Page 252-b 



CORVALLIS 
ENHANCING CDMMUNlTYLIV@ILITY 

THE CITY OF CORVALLIS 
INVITES APPLICATIONS 

FOR HISTORIC RESOURCES COMMISSION VACANCIES 
(3 Openings for 3-year Terms running July 1,2007 to June 30, 201 0) 

The Corvallis City Council invites interested persons to apply for a position on the Corvallis 
- Historic Resources Commission (HRC). The City Council will interview applicants and 

make selections at a time and place to be announced. 

0 The HRC advises the City Council on matters pertaining to historic and 
cultural resource preservation, and reviews Historic Preservation Permit 
applications for compliance with applicable land use regulations. 

0 The HRC consists of nine members appointed by the City Council. Three 
terms will be filled with three-year terms beginning on July I, 2007. Qualified 
applicants will demonstrate a positive interest, competence, or knowledge in 
historic preservation; prior experience in quasi-judicial decision making; and 
a community-wide perspective on balancing multiple objectives associated 
with community planning. Additionally, qualified applicants will have a strong 
background in one of the following fields: 

Archeology Conservation Historic Architecture 
Architectural History Curation Historic Landscape Architecture 
Conservation Engineering Historic Preservation Planning 
Cultural Anthropology Folklore Historic Preservation 

History 

Members of the HRC receive no compensation and attend I -2 regular evening meetings 
each month. Review of materials for meetings averages 1-2 hours per meeting, although 
in some complex cases review can take up to 3 hours. 

An application packet may be obtained from the Community Development Department, 
Planning Division, 501 SW Madison Avenue, or by calling the Community Development 
Department, Planning Division, at (541)766-6908. An application is also available on the 
City's web site at: www.ci.corvallis.or.us (select "What's New"). Completed forms must be 
returned to this office by 500 p.m. Friday, June 1,2007. 

Kathy Louie 
Assistant to City ManagerlCity Recorder 

Please publish as Display Ad: Wednesday, May 9,2007, and Sunday, May 13,2007 

Page 252-c ' 



ORDINANCE 2006- 15 

. . - - ~ ~ ~ ~ - ~ ~ E  -- ,- -- - ~ ~ - J I N ~ - ~ c I ~ ~ - ~ ~ D E -  ~ ~ ~ ~ - 1 - l - ~ - t t - ~ 0 & & y & - ~  -, - - - -- - - 
" 9 

COMMISSIONS," AS AMIENDED, REPEALING SECTION 1.16.250, l'EIISTOR1[C 
' PRESERVATON ADVISORY BOARD," CREATING A NEW SECTION 1-16.325, 
"HISTORIC RESOURCES COM11MSSION9" GM) DECLARING AN EMERGENCY 

TED3 CITY OF CORVALLIS ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Corvallis Municipal Code Section 1.1 6.250 "Historic Preservation Advisory Board" 
is hereby repealed. 

Section 2. Corvallis Municipal Coda Chapter 1.16 is hereby amended to include a new Section 
1.16.325 'TTktaric Resources Commission," as follows: 

Section 1.16.325 Historic Resources Commission 

1. A Historic Resources Commission (KRC) is hereby created for the City. 

2. This Commission shall consist of nine members as described in '3.a" through "3.d'" below, 
in the context of fulfillbg at least one uf the following b e  Primary Atttibutes for all 
Commission. members: 

a) Ademonstrated positive interest, competence, or knowledge inhistoric preservation; 

Prior experience in a quasi-judicial decision-making capacity; and/or 

A comuni@-wide perspective on balancing multiple objectives associated with 
comm.uni@ planning. 

3. An individual appointed to the Commission may represent both "a" and up to one of the 
ather categories in '%" though "d'" below. However, an individual appointed to the Board 
may not be counted to satisfy representation hr  both "8' below. and eithtx '%" or "c," In 
addition, a member of the Planning Commission shall serve as an ex oEcio member of the 
Commission with all the rights and privileges attendmt thereto except the right to vote. 

To the extent that they- are available in the community and fiilfill at least one of the 
Primary Attributes outlined in "2" above, at least Eve members W i n g  one or 
more of the Federal Historic Preservation Professimal Qualification Standards listed 
in 1-12 below. If a reasonable effort has been made to fill these five. positions, the 
positions may be filled by persons Fulfilling the qualifi~atiom in "'b'%ougb "d" 
below, 

Page I - Ordinance 

Archaeology: (a) ReEstaric Archaealogy - Graduate degree in Anthropology 
or Prehistoric Archaeology, plus 2.5 years full-time professional experience; 
or (b) Historic Archaeology - Graduate degree in Anthropology or Historic 
Archaeology, plus 2.5 years full-time professional experience; 

Page 252-d 



2. Architectural History: (a) Graduate degree in Architectural History or a 
closelyrelated field, plus 2 years full-time professional experience; or (b) an 

- -  _ .  --- undm&r:ad~~ate=degre~~~hiterstnm1=~~to~or~a:~loselyrelated=field~plus ---------- 

4 years full-time professional experience; 

3. Conservation: (a) Graduate degree in Conservation or a closely related field, 
plus 3 years full-time professional experience; or (b) an undergraduate degree 
in Conservation or a closely related field, plus 3 years full-time 
apprenticeship in the field; 

4. Cultural Anthropology: (a) Graduate degree in Anthropology with 
specialization in Applied Cultural Antlropology, plus 2 years full-time 
professional experience; or (b) an undergraduate degree in anthropologywith 
specialization in applied cultural anthropology, plus 4 years full-time 
professional experience; 

5 .  Curation: (a) Graduate degree in M~~seum Studies or a closely related field, 
plus 2 years full-time professional experience; or (b) an undergraduate degree 
in Mzrseum Studies or a closely related field, plus 4 years full-time 
professional experience; 

6. Engineering: (a) State Government-recognized license to practice Civil or 
Structural Engineering plus 2 years full-time professional experience; or (b) 
a Masters of Civil Engineering degree with course work in Historic 
Preservation or a closely related field, plus 2 years full-time professional 
experience; or (c) a Bachelor's of Civil Engineering degree with one year of 
graduate study in Historic Preservation or a closely related field, plus 2 years 
hll-time professional experience; 

7. Folklore: (a) Graduate degree in Folklore or a closely related field, plus 2 
years full-time professional eqerience; or (b) an undergraduate degree in 
Folklore or a closely related field, plus 4 years filll-time professional 
experience; 

8. Historic Architecture: (a) State Government-recognized license to practice 
Architecture plus 2 years full-time professional experience; or (b) a Masters 
of Architecture degree with course work in Historic Preservation or a closely 
related field, plus 2 years full-time professional experience; or (c) a 
Bachelor's of Architecture with one year of graduate study in Historic 
Preservation or a closely related field plus 2 years fdl-time professional 
experience; 

9. Historic Landscape Architecture: (a) a State Government-recognized license 
to practice Landscape Architecture plus 2 years full-time professional 
experience; or (b) a Masters degree in Landscape Architecture with course 
work in Historic Preservation or a closely related field, plus 2 years fill-time 
professional experience; or (c) a four or five year Bachelor's degree in 
Landscape Arclvtecture plus 3 years full-time professional experience; 

Page 2 - Ordinance 
Page 252-e 



1 0. Historic Preservation Pladng: (a) State Government-recomed 
certification or license in Land Uae Planning, plus 2 years Eull-time 

L_ - .. ,-_ _ :. _ I _._ _ . .. , *-=-. ._ _ -__ p ~ f e ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ e x p e ~ e n ~ e ~ ~ ~ @ ~ ~ a ? ~ ~ ~ t e ~ d e - g e e ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ & - g - ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ - - - ~ ~  - .,. - 

work in Historic Preservation or a closelyrelated field, pius 2 years fill-time 
professiond experience; or (c) an undergraduate degree in P l d g  with 
course work in Historic Preservation or a closely related field, plus 4 years 
full-time professional experience; 

11. Historic Preservation: (a) Graduate degree in Historic Preservation or a 
closelyrelated field, plus 2 years full-time professional experience; or (b) an 
undergsaduate degree in Historic Preservation or aclosely related field, plus 
4 years Eull-time professional experience; or 

12. History: (a) Graduate degree in History or a closely related field, plus 2 years 
MI-tine professional experience; or (b) an undergraduate degree in History 
or a closely related field, plus 4 years fbll-time professional experience. 

To the extent that they are available in f i e  community and fi~fiFill at least one of the 
Pfimary Attributes outLined in "2" above, at least one member &om each established 
Historic District. These Historic Dishict representatives must be property owners 
and reeidents of the Historic District that they represent; 

To the edent that they are available ia the commmity and hlfill at least one of the 
l5mary Attributes outlined in '22"above, at least one member that is a representative . 

of Qregon State University. If an Oregon State University Historic District is 
eventually established, this member requirement will no longer be needed, as an 
OSU representative would already exist through '23:' above; and 

d) To the extent that they fulfill at least one of the Primary Attributes outlined in "2" 
above, additional members representing the genera1 public, as needed, to -fill the 
Commission's nine positions. 

4. The Commission shall be a quasi-judicial decision-maker for matters that include the 
followring: 

District Change decisions regarding the application or removal of a Historic 
Preservation Overlay in cases whae a public h&g is required by Land 
Development Code Chapter 2.2 - Development District Changes; 

ERC-level Historic Preservation Permit decisions; and 

Appeals of Director-level Historic Preservation P e t  decisions. 

5.  The Commission shall advise and assist Comcil, the Planning Commission, and the 
Commwaity Development Director In matters pertaining to historic and cultural resource 
preservation. Such maws  shall include: 

a) Recommendations concerning meailments to sections of the Land Development 

Page 3 - Qrdinance Page 2524 



- Code pertaining to historic preservation. 
I b) Recommendations concerning the nominations of sites or structures for the National 

- - - - -- - - - - - - - - - . - - Register of-Historic Place 
c) Recommendations concerning additional inventories andlor surveys 

historic sites and structures. 
d) Coordination of public information or educational programs pertaining to historic 

and cultural resources. 

6. Upon expiration of a terrn or vacancy, a public announcement of the opening will be 
announced in a newspaper of general circulation in the City. The notice shall contain the 
qualifications for appointment in subsections 2) and 3) and a list of the qualifications of 
existing Commissioners. After receiving applications, Council shall conduct interviews. 
Ifmore than one application is submitted, Council shall hold a ballot vote conducted by the 
City Recorder. Any person receiving a majority vote shall be appointed to the Historic 
Resources Commission. If no person receives a majority vote, the two receiving the most 
votes shall be voted upon again. The one then receiving the majority vote shall be appointed 
to the Historic Resources Commission- 

Section 3. The general welfare of the public will be promoted if this ordinance takes effect 
immediately. Therefore, an emergency is declared and this o r d h c e  shall take effect immediately 
upon its passage by the City Council and its approval by the Mayor. 

Section 4. Section 1.16.325.6 oftheMunicipa1 Code describes the process bywhichthe Historic 
Reso~xrces Commission is to be appointed. Council recognizes that this process will take one to two 
months to complete. Because of this potential delay and the importance of implementing these 
provisions and the Historic Preservation provisions of the Land Development Code included in 
Ordinance 2006- 14 , the Council declares the Land Development Hearings Board to be the 
interim Historic Resources Comrnission until October 1,2006, or until such time as a quorum (five 
members) of the Historic Resources Commission described in Section 2, above, is appointed. By 
a majority vote, the Council may extend for two additional months beyond October 1,2006, the 
Land Development Hearings Board's status as the interim HRC. 

PASSED by the City Council this f i f th  day of June ,2006. 

APPROVED by the Mayor this f i f t h  day of June 2006. 

EFFECTIVE this f 15th day of June ,2006. 

f Y$ 

Mayor 

Page 252-g 
4' 

Page 4 - Ordinance 



C - 
COR~ALLIS 
ENHANCING COMMUNIW LIVABILITY 

Community Development Planning Division 
P. 0. Box 1083 

Corvallis, OR 97339 
(541) 766-6908 Fax 754-1 792 

Historic Resources Commission 

Application 

Packet 

Deadline: Return by 5:00 p.m. Friday, June 1, 2007 

Page 252-h 



THE CITY OF CORVALLIS 
Historic Resources Commissioner 

The City of Corvallis has been designated a Certified Local Government by the State of Oregon 
for the purpose of implementing a l-listoric Preservation program that is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan, the Statewide Planning Goals, and other state and federal guidelines. This 
program js implemented locally by Corvallis MunicipalCode Section I. 76.325- Historic Resources 
Commission (CMC) and the Corvallis Land Development Code (LDC), primarily Chapter 2.9 - 
Historic Preservation Provisions and Chapter 2.2 - Development District Changes. Among other 
actions, these provisions establish the Historic Resources Commission as the decision-making 
authority for discretionary decisions affecting historic resources. The job of Commissioner on the 
Historic Resources Commission (HRC) is described below. 

JOB SUMMARY 

Review and make quasi-judicial decisions on Historic Preservation Permit requests 
submitted under the provisions of LDC Chapter 2.9- Historic Preservation 
Provisions, Section 2.9.1 00.04, 2.9.1 10, and 2.9.1 20. Such reviews are for 
situations where a public hearing is required for Alteration and New Construction, 
Demolition, and/or Moving activities to be carried out on a Designated Historic 
Resource and/or in a Historic District within the Corvallis city limits. Reviews are 
processed through a public hearing consistent with state-mandated open meeting 
requirements and LDC Chapter 2.0 - Public Heahgs. 

.Review and make quasi-judicial decisions in situations where a public hearing is 
required for Development District Changes that involve either the placement or 
removal of a Historic Preservation Overlay on a property, consistent with the 
provisions of LDC Chapter 2.2- Development District Changes. Reviews are 
processed through a public hearing consistent with state-mandated open meeting 
requirements and LDC Chapter 2.0- Public Hearings. 

Review and make quasi-judicial decisions on appeals of the Director's decision on 
Directar-level Historic Preservation Permit requests submitted under the provisions 
of LDC Chapter 2.9- Historic Preservation Provisions, Section 2.9.1 00.03. Appeals 
are processed through a public Rearing consistent with state-rnandated open 
meeting requirements and LDC Chapter 2.0 - Public Hearings. 

Assist in the development and dissemination of training and other informational 
materials regarding historic resources, historic districts, and application of the City's 
Historic Preservation provisions. Such materials may include guidelines to assist 
owners of Designated Historic Resources in discovering options to consider for 
repair, maintenance, or construction of other improvements to these resources. 

Assist in decisions regarding completion of additionall historic resource inventories. 

Assist in planning and implemenkg activities for Historic Preservation Month each 
year. 

L:EDWlming\Bpards and Ca&obsk@K%3KC h d ~ t \ H r s t O r i i :  Rt?~omes Comissioner- Job &?scrip Page 2524 



Periodically attend conferences and other training or information-sharing activities 
as funding and tjme commitme~nts allow. 

DECISION-MAKING AUTHORITY 

As a part of Its responsibilities, the HRC makes quasi-judicial decisions. These decisions 
are similar to court praceedings in which affected parties are afforded procedural 
safeguards. The quasi-judicial process is characteristic of most meetings of the HRC. 
Personal notice must be mailed to property owners and occupants living within a 
prescribed distance from the affected area, Unlike legislative cases, the HRC members are 
expected to avoid outside discussion of the business at hand and must declare any such 
contacts. The decisions are discretionary. 

Although quasi-judicial decisions of the Historic Resources Commission (HRC) are land 
use decisions, they are focused on the criteria specifically related to Designated H isbr i~  
Resources. Thus, permit requests from an owner of a Designated Historic Resource that 
fail within the applicable parameters of LDC Chapter 2.9 - Hisfork Presetvation Provisions 
and some decisions regarding placement or removal ofa Historic Preservation Overlay are 
the purview of the HRC, but decisions regarding other land use issues (e-g., Conditional 
Development Permits, etc.) are not. Actions meeting the descriptions in Section 
2.9.il00.013 are reviewed by the Commun'Ry Development Director administratively, but 
these may be appealed Q the HRC. These types of decisions of the HRC are final 
decisions unless appealed to the City Council. 

As indicated, decisions will be made based an a review of the development proposal 
against specific criteria. To assist in the decisio~n-making, a staff repork will be prepared 
and presented that provides the analysis needed to make the decision, The staff report 
wit1 be available one week in advance of the public hearing. It will generally contain a 
recommended decision to approve, approve with conditions, or denythe requested Historic 
Preservation Permit. It will also contain findlings ahd conclus~icrns in support of that 
recommendation. Based on the Commissioners4 review of the proposal against the 
appropriate criteria, the HIRC may support the recommendation in the staff report or may 
arrive at another decision, If a different decision from that reommended in the staff report 
is anrived atby the HRC, the Commission will need to provide findings and conclusions in 
support of that decision based on the facts presented durlng the heating and the 
appropriate criteria. 

Consistent with this decision-making authorrty, the City Attorney's Office will provide legal 
advice as needed. This advice may be provided via staff reports and memoranda or the 
presence of an attorney at some public hearings. 

The W RC also provides comment and direction on other H~S~ORC Preservation issues in the 
community, such as Historic Preservation ]Month and decisions regarding additional 
inventory efforts. 

Page 252-j 

L\CD\PlanningBd and C o r n  Rmimnat\Historic Reirources Commissimer- Job description.wpd 



Ill, TIME COMMITMENT 

It is expected that the HRC will meet once every month to review and make decisions on 
Historic Preservation Permits. The length of each meeting will vary depending on the 
number of permits to be handled. Assume a minimum of one hour. 

As indicated, the staff report will be available one week in advance of the hearing. This will 
allow some time for preparation. If questions or concerns arise during this review, please 
contact staff in advance of the hearing to allow time to fully address the issue. 

Additional assignments or duties (preparation for Historic Preservation Month, development 
of guidelines, etc.) may require additional time commitments. Generally, the HRC will have 
control over the number and frequency of such efforts. 

IV. QUALIFICATIONS 

Qualifications for the HRC are fully articulated in CMC Section I .I 6.325. Members shall 
be appointed by the City Council as follows: 

All Commission members shall fulfill at least one of the following three Primary 
Attributes: 

A demonstrated positive interest, competence, or knowledge in historic 
preservation; 

Prior experience in a quasi-judicial decision-making capacity; and/or 

A community-wide perspective on balancing multiple objectives associated 
with community planning. 

One member of the HRC shall be appointed from each Historic District, and each 
such member shall reside in and own property in that district. 

One member of the HRC shall be appointed as a representative of Oregon State 
University. 

To the extent available in the community, five members of the HRC shall meet the 
qualifications pertaining to the various types and levels of historic resource 
expertise described in CMC Section 1.16.350. Otherwise, members will be 
appointed from the general populace. 

The remaining members may be appointed from the general populace. 

Individual members may fulfill multiple categories, though not all combinations are 
allowed (see CMC). 

Page 252-k 
L:\CDVla&gSa@ds an@ C o m t n i s s i o n s ~ ~ C  ReLiui;tmentWstoric Resources Ce&ssiaaer- Jab dew 



City Planning Division 
501 SW Madison Avenue 

Corvallis, OR 97333 Telephone 766-6908 

2007 Historic Resources Commission Application 
Interview date: Tuesday, June 12th, 2007 @ 5:20 p.m. 

Please answer the questions that are attached. 

Please return ta the Planning Division by 5 p.m. Friday, June 1,2007. 

Name: - 

Address (home) - -- Phone(h) -- 

Address (work) - - Phone (w) - - 

E-mail (work) - - - - E-mail(home) - - 

Occupation/Profession: - - - -- - -- 

Please list each source of income that is 10% or more of your total household income: - 

- - 

Please identify your communitylcivic activities including business or professional organizations: 

Please list all financial interests in real property located in Benton County: 

Please indicate your interests, qualifications and/or philosophical attitudes toward the responsibilities of a 
Historie Resources Commissioner: - 

Please indicate any famIllarity you might have with historic preservation planning, Corvallis land use 
regulations, and/or the Oregon State Historic Preservation Office programs. 

-- - 
- - --- 

-- - 
- -- 

CertNmtion: I certify the foregoing information to be true and exact to the best of my knowledge. 

- - -- 

Candidate's Signature Date 

This appIicafion provides general biographical information fo assist the City Council in meking their appointments to the 
Historic Resources Commission. lf you wish to elaborate on any of tiie above items, please attach additional pages. 

Page 252-1 

2007 Application Packet/Historic Resources Commission 



City Council Interviews 
Historic Resources Commission 

3 Commissione~*s - term expires June 30,2010 

Questions 

Please answer the following questions and return with your application. 

1. Why would you like to be on the Historic Resources Commission and what do you 
thlnk is the role of the Historic Resources Commission? 

Explain your understanding of Historic Preservation in Corvallis. 

Briefly, tell us about a Historic Preservation decision that interested you and share 
your observations about the process and the decision. 

Describe !XJ,IJ you meet at least one of the followirtg criteria: 

A demonstrated positive ilnlterest, competence, or knowledge in 
hjstoric preservatian,; 

Prior experience in a quasi-judicial decision-making capacity; and/or 

A community-wide perspective on balancing multiple objectives 
assaclated with community planning. 

Page 252-111 



5. Indicate if you meet at least one of the criteria identified on the following pages: 
(Note: It is not required that you meet one of these qualifications to be 
appointed): 

Page 252-n 



3 .  Archaeology: (a) Prehistoric Archaeology - Graduate degree in Anthropology or 
Prehistoric Archaeology, plus 2.5 years full-time professional experience; or (b) 
Historic Archaeology - Graduate degree in Anthropology or Historic Archaeology, 
plus 2.5 years full-time professional experience; 

2. Architectural History: (a) Graduate degree in Architectural History or a closely 
related field, plus 2 years full-time professional experience; or (b) an 
undergraduate degree in Architectural History or a closely related field, plus 4 
years full-time professional experience; 

3. Conservation: (a) Graduate degree in Conservation or a closely related field, 
plus 3 years full-time professional experience; or (b) an undergraduate degree in 
Conservation or a closely related field, plus 3 years full-time apprenticeship in 
the field; 

4. Cultural Anthropology: (a) Graduate degree in Anthropology with specialization 
in Applied Cultural Anthropology, plus 2 years full-time professional experience; 
or (b) an undergraduate degree in anthropology with specialization in applied 
cultural anthropology, plus 4 years full-time professional experience; 

5. Curation: (a) Graduate degree in Museum Studies or a closely related field, plus 
2 years full-time professional experience; or (b) an undergraduate degree in 
Museum Studies or a closely related field, plus 4'yealrs full-time professional 
experience; 

Engineering: (a) State Government-recognized license to practice Civil or 
Structural Engineering plus 2 years full-time professi~nal experience; or (b) a 
Masters of Civil Engineering degree with caurse work in Historic Preservation or 
a closely related field, plus 2 years full-time professional experience; or O a 
Bachelor's of Civil Engineering degree with one year of graduate study in Historic 
Preservation or a closely related field, plus 2 years full-time professional 
experience; 

Folklore: (a) Graduate degree in Folklore or a closely related field, plus 2 years 
full-time pr~fessio~nal experience; or (b) an undergraduate degree in Folklore or a 
closely related field, plus 4 years full-time professional experience; 

Historic Architecture: (a) State Government-recognized license to practice 
Architecture plus 2 years full-time professional experience; or (b) a Masters of 
Architecture degree with course work in Historic Preservation or a closely related 
field, plus 2 years full-time professional experience; or O a Bachelor's of 
Architecture with one year of graduate study in Historic Preservation or a closely 
related field plus 2 years full-time professional experience; 

Historic Landscape Architecture: (a) a State Government-recognized license 
to practice Landscape Architecture plus 2 years full-time professional 

Page 252-0 



experience; or (b) a Masters degree in Landscape Architecture with course work 
in Historic Preservation or a closely related field, plus 2 years full-time 
professional experience; or O a four or five year Bachelor's degree in Landscape 
Architecture plus 3 years full-time professional experience; 

10. Historic Preservation Planning: (a) State Government-recognized certification 
or license in Land Use Planning, plus 2 years full-time professional experience; 
or (b) a graduate degree in Planning with course work in Historic Preservation or 
a closely related field, plus 2 years full-time professional experience; or O an 
undergraduate degree in Planning with course work in Historic Preservation or a 
closely related field, plus 4 years full-time professional experience; 

11. Historic Preservation: (a) Graduate degree in Historic Preservation or a closely 
related field, plus 2 years full-time professional experience; or (b) an 
undergraduate degree in Historic Preservation or a closely related field, plus 4 
years full-time professional experience; or 

12. History: (a) Graduate degree in History or a closely related field, plus 2 years 
full-time professional experience; or (b) an undergraduate degree in History or a 
closely related field, plus 4 years full-time professional experience. 

Page 252-p 



From: 
ent: 

I 0: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

near Charlie, 

kirk nevin [kirksnevin@ya hoo.com] 
Thursday, May 03,2007 6:47 PM 
Mayor 
Louie, Kathy; jon.nelson@council,ci.corvallls.or.us 
conflict of interest? I think so 

As 1 mentioned t o  you, I was c3isappointed i r l  t he  outcome of the Legislative Comittee v i s  
a ~5.s &he fi4Ld-burdng resolution that mrk Enapp and I had presented t o  ycsu and f;he 
Council, 

Since tha t  meeting, I ' v e  learned that the City of .CBmal-1,9s pmsfics;, on a31 annual basis,  
by f i e l d  burzliag. Apcoxdiag EQ a mema from Steve Rogers, Public Works, dated 4/23/07, 
Larry Vend1 of V a e l l  Farms rents 1100 acres +/= from the c i t y  of Corvallis. 

H e  grows primarily grasEs seed on the City l a d ,  a d  he pays the  C & t y  a fee  (I don ' t  knew 
the fomu1a f o r  the fee,  hu t  the r e su l t  averages abmt  SQ3,50 per 
acre) annually fsr the use o* the land. i~ccording t o  the menno from M r .  Rogers, 'Wr ,  Veaell 
burns between 200 and 400 acres of C i t y  land per year as pa r t  of what m. Venell considers 
to  be an essenkial wriculL.ural practice (which I consider to  be x5diculous, but t h a t ' s  
another subject)  . 
M r ,  Vermell implies thaE, without f i e l d  burning, revenues t o  Corvallis would be Lower. 
Thus, it is in the  besk intexests of the City c6 bum the f ie lds .  

I ' m  d i sapp~in ted ,  M r .  Mayor. The fact that the  City 
of C~milLXs pro f i t s  by i i e l d  burning is a major conf l ic t  of in t e re s t ,  and sbouLd h9ve 
been disclased t o  M r .  Knapp and nyself at  the Colmeil meeting. 7;n fac t ,  Z think a l l  
Council menibemrs should have recused themselves a t  the beginning of the debate on the 
resolution; I&. Knapp md I could then have voted on tBe resolution, and the  r e su l t  ... 
lmost surely 2 yea, D nay,.. might have helped get HB3000 out of commiktee i n  Salem. 

Government Ezequat ly drisapgoints. It's not jus t  the big s t u f f ,  W, Mayor.,. i t ' s  l i t t l e  
things like t h i s  that  make c i t izens  wary of any paxeicipatian in government fo r  Tear o f  
being contaminaCed, by the lack of soul. a d  basic e th ics  i n  tke day-to-day process, 
regardless of the level  of government. 

Actually, l i t t le  confl ic ts  Pike t h l s  one are embarassing. If I were on t h e  Council, I 'd  
be p re t ty  &agpy with U s  s i tua t ion  ... and I might want t o  know who should have been 
aware of the contract with Venell, and wby tha t  infomaQion wasn't a v a i l a l e  a t  the 
Council meeting ... and I'D very disappointed t h a t  Jon Nelson kept t h i s  infomatian sem-et 
i n  the meeting of the Legislative Comit tee ( f  Saeikeve he mmtLoxled the report in, h i s  
i n i t i a l  remarks to the Cmmi t l t ee ,  but g w e  no d e t a i l s ) ,  M r .  Nelson must Jhve b d w n  of the 
confl ic t ,  and Sailed t o  disclose i t  during tkpe meeting. What E n d  of gavement  i s  tha t?  
Normal, I gue@S. 

Mark a d  1 await an e m l a a t i o n  for- this unseemly behaviar. 

ATTACHMENT C 
Page 252-q 



CORVALLIS 
ENHANCING COMMUNITY UVABlLlPf 

OBce of the Mayor 
501 SW Madison A . m e  

P.Qk Box 1083 
CofladJiS, OR 97339-1083 

(541) 766-6985 
EAX: (541) 766-6780 

e-imd: mayor@ colttld1.ci,c~~r~allis.rjr.us 

Richard S. Hein 
PresidentKEO 
OSU FederaJ Credit Union 
Post Office Box 306 
Corvallis, OR 97339 

Dear Rick, 

Thank you and the Corporate Roundtable for hosting Jon and me. I t  was good to hear the 
Roundtable's perspective and I look forward to getting together in the fixture as o w  
community works on economic vitality. 

Four major items surfaced from your conversation with us. First, the inclusion of a long- 
term vision in the Economic Vitality Partnership Prosperity That Pits plan is required. 
This vision would enable our community to understand and focus on our strategic 
direction. Second, the Prosperity That Fits Plan should acknowledge and react to eleven 
economic drivers that impact our economic competitivensss. Third, given the plan's 
vision, is a sea change in the attitude and attention to economic vitality required. And 
fourth, the Roundtable indicated their desire for the City Council to re-think the 
consequences of the new MUCS zoning along the Ninth Street business corridor. 

In reflecting on the Roundtable's comments since our meeting, most EVP partners 
believe the Corvallis 2020 Vision Statement, especially the Central City and Economic 
Vitality sections, embodies the Prosperity That Fits Plan vision. 

To re-cap my comments, the active participation of the Corporate Roundtable in the 
community implementation of the Prosperity That Pits plan is desirable. The 
Roundtable's issues will only be addressed as a result of your steering committee 
participation, task ownerdup and funding through the plan's implementation process. 
Please also consider partner mentoring as a means to britzg your substantial business and 
community knowledge to the effod. 

ATTACHMENT D 
Page 252-r 



CORVALLIS 
ENHANCING COMMUNITY LIVABILITY 

Office of the Mayor 
50 1 SW Madison Avenue 

P.O. Box 1083 
Corvallis, OR 97339- 1083 

(541) 766-6985 
FAX: (541) 766-6780 

e-mail: mayor @ council.ci.corvallis.or.us 

Again, thank you for the opportunity to speak to the Roundtable and I look forward to 
your participation in the community's economic vitality efforts. 

Sincerely, 

Charles C. Tomlinson 
Mayor 

cc: Corvallis City Council 
Jon Nelson 

Economic Drivers 

1. Land Availability and Permitting 
2. Labor Availability 
3.  Roads and Bridges Infi-astructure 
4. Electricity/Natural Gas and Basic Services 
5. Worker's Compensation 
6. State and Local taxes 
7. Water 
8. Pre-approved Permit Costs/Time£rame 
9. Access to rail, ports and interstates 
10. Vendor/Customer Alliance 
11. Natural Resource Competitiveness (Soils and Water) 

A Community That Honors Diversity 

0056 

Page 252-s 



ATTACHMENT B 

MEMORANDULM 

April 23,2007 

To: 

Subject: 

Maym an8 City Council 

Steve Rogers, Public Works Director 

HB 3000 Field Burning 

Issue: 

How would HE 3000 (elimination of field burning) impact the: municipal airport grass seed 
revenue. 

Much ofthe 1,100 acre ahport property is under contract to Venell Farms to grow craps. The 
average revenue of this contract to the Airport Fund during the last five years is $48,000 per year 
(EY 06-07 was $41,652). The primary crop has historically been grass seed. HB 3000 would 
ban the use af field burning as a tool to raise ibis crop. 

For the last several years, valley farmers have been restricted to 40,000 acres of field burning per 
year and , during this time, Venell farms has typically burned 200- 400 acres per year on the 
airport property which is an equivalent burn rotation of about once every 4-5 years. 

Discussion: 

Staff are not knowledgeable of p s  seed farming practices. The basis for the information 
included here was a telephone discussion with Larry Venell manager of Venell F m s .  

Burning revitalizes seed crops by removing matted vegetation and sanitizing the ground. Absent 
this tool, increased mechanical and chemical melhods are employed. Given decreased bmable 
acres, Mr Venell believes that yields have generally decreased. Given the variability of yields 
fkom one year to the next, he was not able to qqantify the decrease. The alternate methods, 
although again not quantified, increase the energy and chemicals that are applied to the fields to 
maintain the harvest volumes at the highest possible levels. Even though field b d g  is 
currently restricted, the elimination of burning as a tool is likely to be a bigger impact as the 
fields can now still be revitalized on about a five year rotation witbout the use of mare extreme 
(in terms of fuel and chemical use) measures. 

Using FY 06-07 as an example, a ten percent increase in farming cost, would have decreased 
h d s  to the airport about $3,250. A ten percent yield dea-ease would have cost about $4?150. 

ATTACHMENT E 
Page 2524 



ATTACHMENT C 

Nebon, Jon 
_.,__- --, --&-._I- --_-,_ -__I.--- -- .,---__+. - _ ,----- " - -  .- . I .  .- 

From: WILSON Brenda S ~renda.S.Wilson@ci.eugene.sr.ua] 
Sent: Wednesday, April 18,2007 I Or22 AM 
To: Nefson, Jon; Louie, Kathy: 

CE: TAYLOR Dennis M; WALSTQN Mary F; JONES Angel L; CWYLEB Alex D 

Subject Info on HB 3000 
Attachments: hb3000.intro.pdt staff HB 30OO.pdf 

Nelson: 
As I stated in our phone 4, I arn responding to your request 'to D d s  Tqlor for hfbmtian re: HB 
3000 - the field badag bill htro4uced by Rep. Holvey. I 

We have taken a High Support position on this bill. 1 have attached a copy of om staff recamendation 
an this bill. We have talked to Rep Holvey about an amendme11t to exempt prescriptive and ecological 
bwns and he is Ok with that.. 

A public hearing was held on 4-6 in the House Health Care Committee. The purpose of that hearing was 
for testimony on the health aspects af field burning, so heaIth professionals testimony basically. On 4- 
13 it was passed out of that committee and will now go to the House AgrimIture and Natural Resources 
Committee. No public hearing has been scheduled in that committee yet. 

Here are the links to recordings ofthg Committee hearings on Hl3 3000 - jwt click on 4-6 - the hearhg 
for the public testimony on the health aspects. HI3 3000 is the first bill heard on that date - so start at the 
" b g h i n g  of the recording. On 4- 13, the wt>& session on the bill stafts on the recording at 1 :36 on the 
tape. 

ht~://www.le~.state.or.us/listn/ 
I hope this helps, please; let me know if you need any additional information. 

Brenda S. Wilson 
intergovernmental Relations Manager 
Eugene 541.682.8441 
Salem 503.378.1 505 

Page 252-11 



REP0RTID:CELEGS Legislathe Tracking 

Bills and Response Detail Report 

Bills - Sent Due Date Subiect Priority Recommendation 

HB 3000 3/8/2007 311 312007 Pri 3 Support 
Relating Clause: Relating to air quality 

Title: Prohibits open field buming, stack burning, pile buming and 
propane flaming. Requires registration for open burning of 
agricultural waste. 

Establishes Open Burning Management Account. Continuously 
appropriates moneys in account to Department of Environmental 
Quality for smoke management program. 

Declares emergency, effective on passage. 

Sponsored By: Sponsored by Representative HOLVEY; Representatives BARNHART, 
NATHANSON, Senators MORRISElTE, WALKER 

!2Ql&& Resaondent DF@ UDdated mQL&! Polic\! PQ!NJUl Recomendatioll 

Eric Wold Eric Wold WV-POS 3/18/2007 Pri I Yes VIII.A.l SupportrAm 

Comments: Overall, this bill would greatly improve the air quality in Eugene during the traditional, agricultural, grass-field burning season. Overall, the bill is beneficial 
to the City of Eugene. 

However, I would strongly recommend one addition to SECTION 2, to be inserted immediately after subsection 6. It would read: "Ecological prescription 
fires set or permitted by any public agency or not-for-profit land conservation organziation when such ecological prescription fire is set for the purpose of 
enhancing or maintaining native plant communities, enhancing or maintaining habitat for threatened or endangered species, reducing non-native weed 
populations, or reducing invasive plant species". 

The City of Eugene and its partners in the West Eugene Wetlands Partnership (e.g., The Nature Conse~ancy and U.S. Bureau of Land Management) 
have used ecological prescription fires over the past 20 years to maintain and enhance habitat in the West Eugene Wetlands. Ecological prescription fires 
are an important tool for us to use. Indeed, the wetland and upland prairie habitats that dominate the West Eugene Wetlands are widely thought to have 
been created and maintained by Native American's use of fire. 

Mary Walston Mary Walston CS-CMO 3/26/2007 Pri 2 Yes VIII.A.l SUPPO~~ 

Comments: This bill is sponsored by the local delegation and seeks to ban field burning. The Senate version is SB 996. This concept is within the legislative polcies 
document and should be supported based upon that. A level 2 is recommended as there are a number of other groups supporting the measure. 
M Walston 



Relating to air quality; creating new provisions; amending ORS 307.391,468.140,468A.. . . Page 1 of 17 

ATTACH-MENT 

74 th QREGQW LEGISEATIVE: H S B L X - - 2  0 07 Regular ~ e s s i o ~  

WOTE: M@kter wighin I + braces and plus signs + J in an 
mended section is new. M a t t e r  within I - braces m d  minus 
slgw - 4 i o  existing law t o  be omitted, New sections are within 

( + braces and plus s5gns + 1 . 

House B i l - l  3000 

Sponsored by Representative KOLVEP; BepresentstiYes WUWHAET, 
N A m S O N ,  S&@~QZS X Q ~ I S E T F E ,  WmRER 

F!&e f o l l o ~ i r i g  sr;lrmnary is not pzepared by the sponsors of the 
measwe and is not a par t  of the body thereof subject t o  
c a ~ s i d e r a t i o a  by the Legislative Assembly. I t  is a e&tor+s  
brief statement of the essential features  of the mswsurs as 
introawed.  

Prohibits open f i e l d  burning, stack bum-1aQ, pi-le bxixnhg wd 
propane Flantlrrg. R ~ i r e s  seglsc~atior~. f o r  open b-ing of 
agjicultural w a s t e .  
EstabLiBhes QD@ BW&.ng Wag-efl~gpf Aecount. Conthilously 

hppFopr-iatas money6 i n  aecsunt t o  Depar tmat  of EndrommtaL 
Qual iey  £ex- smoke m a n a g e m e n t  program. 

rnclares emergency, effective on passage. 

A BTU FOR A!N ACT 
Relating; t o  air quality;  creating new provisions; amending QRS 
303.391, 468.240, 468A.029, 460A.135, 468A.550, 46%A,555, 
468A.560, 468A.570, 468A-595, 4L68A.597, 468A.600, 468A.605, 
468A.610, 468A.615, 468As992, 476.010, 476,380, 478.OQ1, 
478,960 and 496.340; repealing OR5 468A.575, 469A.580, 
468A.585, 468A.590 and 4681.620; appropxbatfng naney; and 
declaring an emergency. 

Be It Enacted 151g We P e o ~ i e  or Ehe Ste;t;e of QseQon: 
SE€!TZOFJ 1. 0BS 468,240 is amenqed to re&: 
466.349. ( 2 )  In ~ W t i o n  t o  any other penalty provided by l aw,  

;Iny pexson who v i o l ~ f e s  any 00 khe following shall in- a c i v i l  
penalry fox each day of violation i n  the amount prescribed Xsy t he  
schedule adopted mder ORS 468.130: 

(a) The terms of conditions of: any permit required o r  
authorized by. law and issued by the D e p a r t m e n t  of! E~virorrmfmtnl 
Quality o r  a regional a i r  qual i ty  oontrol authority. 

(b) Any provision sf QRS 164.785, 488.305, 454.010 to 454.040, 
454.205 t o  454.255, 454.505 to  454.535, 454.605 to  454.755, QRS 
chapter 457 and OBS chapters 468, 468B and 468B. 

Ic) Smy r u l e  or 6:tandard or order of the. Fnvis#L-im@taf Quality 
Commfssion adopted sr issued pur$uarlt to  ORS 448.306, 454.039 to 
454,040, 454.205 t o  454.255, 454.505 t o  454,535, 434.605 t o  
454,755, QRS ckmapte-r' 467 and ORS chaptegs 468, 46- m d  468B. 

Ed) &ny tern o r  condit$on of a v-ariaace granted by ehe 
c o d s s i o n  or depaz~ent pursuazlC to QrrS 467.060- Page 252-w 



Relating to air quality; creating new provisions; amending ORS 307.391,468.140,468A ,... Page 2 of 17 

(e) Any rule or standard or order of a regional authority 
adopted or issued under authority of ORS 468A.135. 

(f) The financial assurance requirement under ORS 468B.390 and 
468B.485 or any rule related to the financial assurance 
requirement under ORS 468B. 390. 

(2) Each day of violation under subsection (1) of this section 
constitutes a separate offense. 

(3) (a) In addition to any other penalty provided by law, any 
person who intentionally or negligently causes or permits the 
discharge of oil into the waters of the state shall incur a civil 
penalty not to exceed the amount of $20,000 for each violation. 

(b) In addition to any other penalty provided by law, the 
following persons shall incur a civil penalty not to exceed the 
amount of $10,000 for each day of violation: 

(A) Any person who violates the terms or conditions of a permit 
authorizing waste discharge into the air or waters of the state. 

(B) Any person who violates any law, rule, order or standard in 
ORS 448.305, 454.010 to 454.040, 454.205 to 454.255, 454.505 to 
454.535, 454.605 to 454.755 and ORS chapters 468, 46819 and 468B 
relating to air or water pollution. 

( C )  Any person who violates the provisions of a rule adopted or 
an order issued under ORS 459A.590. 

(4) In addition to any other penalty provided by law, any 
person who violates the provisions of ORS 468B.130 shall incur a 
civil penalty not to exceed the amount of $500 for each day of 
violation. 

(5) Subsection (1) (c) and (e) of this section does not apply to 
violations of motor vehicle emission standards which are not 
violations of standards for control of noise emissions. 

(6) Notwithstanding the limits of ORS 468.130 (1) and in 
addition to any other penalty provided by law, any person who 
intentionally or negligently causes or permits open 

{ - field - ) burning { + of agricultural waste as defined in 
ORS 468A.550 + ) contrary to the provisions of ORS 468A.555 to 
468A.620 and 468A.992, 476.380 and 478.960 shall be assessed by 
the department a civil penalty of at least $20 but not more than 
$40 for each { - acre so burned - } { + instance of a failure 
to register an open burning of agricultural waste + } .  Any fines 
collected by the department pursuant to this subsection shall be 
deposited with the State Treasurer to the credit of the General 
Fund and shall be available for general governmental expense. 

{ - As used in this subsection, 'open field burning' does not 
include propane flaming of mint stubble. - } 
SECTION 2 .  ORS 468A.020 is amended to read: 
468A.020. { - ( 1  - } Except as provided in this section and 

in ORS 476.380 and 478.960, the air pollution laws contained in 
ORS chapters 468, 46811 and 468B do not apply to: 

{ - a - 1 { + (1) + 1 Agricultural operations and the 
growing or harvesting of crops and the raising of fowls or 
animals, except 

{ - field - ) { + that open + } burning { - which - ) 
{ + of agricultural waste as defined in ORS 468A.550 + shall 

be subject to regulation pursuant to ORS 468.140, 468.150, 
468A.555 to 468A.620 and 468A.992 and this section; 

{ - b - } { + (2) + 1 Use of equipment in agricultural 
operations in the growth of crops or the raising of fowls or 
animals, except { - field - 1 { + that open + } burning 

{ - which - ) { + of agricultural waste + }shall be subject 
to regulation pursuant to ORS 468.140, 468.150, 468A.555 to Page 252-x 



Relathg to air quality; creating new provisions; amending ORS 307.391,468.140,468A .... Page 3 of 17 

468A.620 and 4681.992 and this section; 
{ - c - 1 ( e (3) + f BarJJecue equiptent used in 

comection v.6t.h any residence; 
- ( 1  - 1 ( + (4) * 1 Agricultural la&i  lear ring 

opertztlone or lmd grading; 
{ - (e) - f { + (5) + } HeSiting equipment in or used in 

connection with residence& used exclusively. as dwellings for not: 
more khan four families, except woodstoves which shall be subject 
to replatian under this section, QRS 468A.460 to 468A.480, 
468A.490 am4 468A. 515; 

{ (£1  - 3 { -/i (6) f 3 Fires set or permitted by any 
public agency when such fire is set or permitted in the 
performance of its official duty for khe purpose of  weed 
abatement, prevention or elimination of a fire hazard, or 
instruction of employees in the methods of fire fighting, which 
;in Ehe o~inion of the agency is necess-; 

{ - ) - } { + (7 )  + ) Fires set pu~-smmt to p e d t  %or 
tbe purpose OE instruceton of mplames 0s private industrial 
concerns in mechods of fire fighting, or for civil defense 
instruction: { + or + f 

{ - (h) - } { + (8) + 3 The propagation and raising of 
nursery stock, except boilers used in come6tion w i t h  the 
pragagation and raising of nursery stock [ - ; - f { + . + 

( - (i) The propane flaming of m i n t  stubble; or - f 
C - ( j ) Stack or pile burn1 ng of residue f r a m  Christmas 

trees, as def in& bn OR$ 571.505, during the period beginning 
October 1 and ending May 31 of the Bollowing year. - 3 

C (2)  AS used in subseetian (1) of this sectiGn, 'field 
burning' does not include proDane flaming sf m h k  ~t&b%e. - f 
SECTLQN 3 .  ORS 468A.550 i s  meraded to read: 
468A.550, - 1 - 3 As used in QRS 468A.555 to 46&A,620 

and 4688.992: 
{ + ( 2 )  'Agricultural waste' means any organic waste material 

gmeratd or used by aa agricultural operation, excluding: 
(a) Perennial and annual grass seed; 
(bi Cereal grain crops; 
(c) S t m w ;  
(d) Mint stubble; 
fe) Christmas trees as defined in DRS 571,505; and 
( f )  Associated residue generated or used by an agricultural 

operation, 
(2)  '.Ope~ hrniag' means my burning Conducted in sac3 a manse: 

that combustAon art is not effectively controlled and that 
comus€Fon products are not: vented t.hrougl.1 a stqck or chimgt, 
including buf no€ Limieed to buulsing conducted in open outdoor 
fires, common burn barrels and backyard incinerators. 

(3) 'Open burning of agricultural wastet means the burning of 
agricultural waste material by open burning on my land. + 1 

. { - (a) - 1 { + (4) -t 1 'Research and! development of 
alternatives to field burning' iacludes, but is not limited to, 
projects concerned with cultural practices for producing grass 
seed without field burning, environmental impacts of alternative 
seed production methods, straw marketing and utilizatibn and 
alternative crops. 

C - (b) - 1 { + ( 5 ) + 1 ' Smoke management ' wms the daily 
control of the conducting of wen { - field - 1 burning 

{ + of agricultural waste + }to such times and places and in 
such amounts so as ko provide for ehe escape of smoke a d  
pqrticu&ate matter LhereErorln into the atmosphere with m b i m a l  
intrusion in50 critics ;md minimal impact an public health and h Page 252-y 



Relating to air quality; creating new provisions; amending ORS 307.391,468.140,468k ... Page 4 of 17 

such a manner that under existing meteorological conditions a 
maximum { - number of acres - ) { + amount of + ) registered 

{ + agricultural waste + ) can be { + open + 1 burned in a 
minimum number of days without substantial impairment of air 
quality. 

{ - c - 1 { + ( 6 )  + 1 ' Smoke management program' means a 
plan or system for smoke management. A smoke management program 
shall include, but not be limited to, provisions for: 

{ - (A) Annual inventorying and registering, prior to the 
burning season, of agricultural fields for open field 
burning; - 1 

{ - B - I { + (a) + 1 Preparation and issuance of 
{ - open field burning - } permits { + for open burning of 

agricultural waste + 1 by affected governmental agencies; 
{ - C - } { + (b) + 1 Gathering and disseminating 

regional and sectional meteorological conditions on a daily or 
hourly basis; 

{ - D - 1 { + (c) + 1 Scheduling times, places and 
amounts of agricultural { - fields - } { + waste + ) that may 
be open burned daily or hourly, based on meteorological 
conditions during the burning season; 

{ - E - 1 { + (dl + 1 Conducting surveillance and 
gathering and disseminating information on a daily or more 
frequent basis ; 

{ - (F) - ) { + (e) + ) Effective communications between 
affected personnel during the burning season; and 

{ - (G) - ) { + (f) + } Employment of personnel to conduct 
the program. 

{ - (2) As used in this section, 'open field burning' does 
not include propane flaming of mint stubble or stack or pile 
burning of residue from Christmas trees, as defined in ORS 
571.505. - ) 
SECTION 4. ORS 468A.555 is amended to read: 
468A.555. The Legislative Assembly declares it to be the public 

policy of this state to { - reduce - ) { + prohibit + ) the 
practice of open field burning { + and to reduce the practice of 
open burning of agricultural waste to the maximum extent 
possible + 1 while developing and providing alternative methods 
of field sanitization and alternative methods of utilizing and 
marketing crop residues. 
SECTION 5. ORS 468A.560 is amended to read: 
468A.560. { - (1) Except for the fee imposed under ORS 

468A.615 (l)(c), the provisions of ORS 468A.550 to 468A.620 and 
46819.992 shall apply only to open field burning, propane flaming 
and stack or pile burning of grass seed or cereal grain crop 
residues on acreage located in the counties specified in ORS 
46814.595 (2). - ) { + The following types of open field burning 
are prohibited: 

(1) The burning of perennial grass seed crops used for grass 
seed production; 

(2) The burning of annual grass seed crops used for grass seed 
production; 

(3) The burning of grain crops; 
(4) The propane flaming of mint stubble; and 
(5) The stack or pile burning of Christmas trees, as defined in 

ORS 571.505. + ) 
{ - (2) Nothing in this section shall apply to the propane 

flaming of mint stubble. - 1 
SECTION 6. ORS 468A.570 is amended to read: 

h + h . l A x n ~ = ~ r  1-w date nr n~l(l7r~alm~ac11r~chh3nnn rlir/hh?nnn intrn html 

Page 252-2 



Relating to air quality; creating new provisions; amending ORS 307.391,468.140,468k ... Page 5 of 17 

4688.570- (1) As used in t h i s  section: 
(a) 'Marginal condttions'  means  atmospheric condition9 sucb 

tha t  smoke and par t i cu la t e  matter escape i n t a  the upper 
atmasphere with some d i f f i c u l t y  bat not such t B a t  limited 
addikional smoke and p a r t i a l a t e  mtt& would constPtute a danger 
t o  the  public healtb safery. 

(b) ' m g i n a l  say' means a day on which marginal conditions 
&st. 

(2)  For pqose l ; r  of QRS 476.380 and 478.960, the  Bnviranmental 
Qvabity Commission s h a l l  c l a s s i fy  d i f fe rent  types o r  cornbinations 
of atmospheric condikions as marginal conditians and sha l l  
specify the extent { - and types - 1 of f + open + ) burning 

{ + a£ agr icu l tura l  w a s t e  + ) t ha t  may be allowed under 
di f ferent  coxrbinatians of atmospherb eond5tions. A schedule 
descr;i.bing the 

( - types and - 1 extent of I 4 open + 1 burning f + of 
agr icu l tura l  waste + 1 t o  be permikced on ea& type of marginal 
day s h a l l  be prepared and cixcu1aEed to  a l l  public aga~Lr?s 
responsible fo r  p ~ o v i d l n g  $~£omaE-ion an& issuing permit-s l.mdcr 
ORS 476.380 and 478.960. The scheZ14le sW2. f - give f i r s t  
priority ea khe burnfng of perennial grass seed crops used f o r  
grass seed production, second p r i o r i t y  to annual grass seed crow 
used $%r grass  seed production, t h i r d  pxior i ty  t o  grain crop 
burning, and Eaurth p r i o r i t y  t o  a21 other burning and s h a l l  - 1 
prescr ibe duration of periods of t i m e  during the day when 

{ + open + } burning { + a£ agrkculkural waste u ) is 
authorized. 

{ - ( 3 )  In preparing the schedule under suhseckion (23 af 
t h i s  section, the  c d s s i m  sha l l  provide f o r  the  asslgnr~ellt of  
four th  p r i o r i t y  burning by the S t a t e  DeparEDent 8f Agr ieu l tue  3n 
accordance w i t h  the mmolrmdum of mdesstaiiding established 
pursumt ko ORS 468A.585. - ) 

f 4 - } ( + ( 3 )  + ) In preparing t he  sche&ule requf red 
under subsection (2)  of t h i s  section, t h e  cornmissLon sha l l  weigh 
t%e econum5c consequences sf scheduled C + open + 3 burnings aria 
the  f e a s i b i l i t y  of a l te rna t ive  actians,  and sha l l  consider 
weather conditions and other fac tors  necessary t o  protect  t h e  
publie hea l th  and welfare. 

{ - 5 - ( a (4 )  t ) 4 - Noneof - ) The functions of 
the cbrmnission under t h i s  swtim o r  under ORS 476.380 o r  
478.960, as  it r e l a t e s  to 

{ - agricultural - ) C + open + ) burning C 4 of 
agr icu l tura l  w a s t e  + I ,  { - s h a l l  - } { + may + ) be 
performed by any regional air qualiky conkrol author-ity 
established under OR9 468A.105. 
SECTION 7. QRS 468A,595 is mended to read; 
468A.595. In order t o  r ~ J . a t e  open I - f i e l d  - 1 

hwaing  t + of agfictdtwcaS waste + } p ~ r s u a n t  t o  ORS 468A.610: 
(1) In  suck areas of the s take and for such periods of time as 

i C  cons5ders necessary t o  carry our the pol icy of LIRS 468A.010, 
&he E n v i r ~ m e n t a l  Quality Commission by r u l e  m a y  prohibi t ,  
r e s t r i c t  o r  l i m i t  ( - classes,  types a d  - ) { + the + 1 
extenr. and moun t  of C + open burning of agricultural, w a s t e  + ) 

{ - burning f o r  perennial grass seed crops, annual grass seed 
crops and grain crops - 1 . 

( 2 )  Xn addition t o  but not i n  l i e u  of the provisions og ORS 
468A.610 and of any a ther  rule: adopted under subsection (1) of 
t h i s  section, t he  comission sha l l  adopt ru l e s  fo r  Nultnomah, 
Washington, Clackamas, Marion, Polk, Yamhill, L i m ,  Bentan and 
Lana Counties, which provide for  a snare rapid phased redaction by Page 252-aa 



Relating to air quality; creating new provisions; amending ORS 307.391,468.140,46811 .... Page 6 of 17 

certain permit areas, depending on particular local air quality 
conditions and soil characteristics, the extent { - , type - ) 
or amount of open { - field - ) burning of C - perennial 
grass seed crops, annual grass seed crops and grain crops - } 

{ + agricultural waste + }and the availability of alternative 
methods of field sanitation { - and straw utilization and 
disposal - } . 

(3) Before promulgating rules pursuant to subsections (1) and 
(2) of this section, the commission shall consult with Oregon 
State University and may consult with the United States Natural 
Resources Conservation Service, or its successor agency, the 
Agricultural Stabilization Commission, the state Soil and Water 
Conservation Commission and other interested agencies. The 
Department of Environmental Quality shall advise the commission 
in the promulgation of such rules. The commission must review and 
show on the record the recommendations of the department in 
promulgating such rules. 

{ - (4) No regional air quality control authority shall have 
authority to regulate burning of perennial grass seed crops, 
annual grass seed crops and grain crops. - } 

{ - (5) - 3 { + (4) + 1 Any amendments to the State 
Implementation Plan prepared by the state pursuant to the federal 
Clean Air Act, as enacted by Congress, December 31, 1970, and as 
amended by Congress August 7, 1977, and November 15, 1990, and 
Acts amendatory thereto shall be only of such sufficiency as to 
gain approval of the amendment by the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency and shall not include rules promulgated by the 
commission pursuant to subsection (1) of this section not 
necessary for attainment of national ambient air quality 
standards . 
SECTION 8. ORS 468A.597 is amended to read: 
468A.597. Unless otherwise specifically agreed by the parties, 

after straw is removed from the fields of the grower, the 
responsibility for the further disposition of the straw { - , 
including burning or disposal, - 3 { + in a manner provided by 
the Environmental Quality Commission + ) shall be upon the person 
who bales or removes the straw. 
SECTION 9. ORS 468A.600 is amended to read: 
468A.600. The Environmental Quality Commission shall establish 

standards of practice and performance for open { - field - ) 
burning { - , propane flaming, stack or pile burning - 1 { + 
of agricultural waste + } and certified alternative methods to 
open { - field - } burning { + of agricultural waste + 1 .  
SECTION 10. ORS 468A.610 is amended to read: 
468A.610. (1) - Except as providedunder ORS 46811.620, - 1 

No person shall open bum { + , + 1 or cause to be open burned, 
{ - propane flamed or stack or pile burned in the counties 

specified in ORS 468A.595 ( 2 ) ,  perennial or annual grass seed 
crop or cereal grain crop residue, unless the acreage has been 
registered under ORS 468A.615 and - 1 { + any agricultural 
waste unless i- )the permits required by ORS { - 46811.575, - ) 
476.380 and 478.960 have been obtained. 

{ - (2) The maximum total registered acreage allowed to be 
open burned per year pursuant to subsection (1) of this section 
shall be: - 3 

{ - (a) For 1991, 180,000 acres. - } 
- (b) For 1992 and 1993, 140,000 acres. - 1 

{ - (c) For 1994 and 1995, 120,000 acres. - 1 
f - (d) For 1996 and 1997, 100,000 acres. - 1 
C - (e) For 1998 and thereafter, 40,000 acres. - } Page 252-ab 

A 11 Q 1?nn7 



Relating to air quality; creating new provisions; mending ORS 307.391,468.140,468A .... Page 7 of 17 

{ - ( 3 )  The miurmiurimurn t6ta$ ac2eage allow& to be propane 
flamed under subsection (1) 0% this sectLon shall be: - 1 

{ - (a) fn 1992. through 1997, 75,000 acre& per par; and - 1 
{ - (Zj) IB 1998 and thereafter, 37,509 acres per year may be 

propane Samea. - I 
{ - (4) (a) After dmriary 1, 1998, fields s'maL1 be prepared 

for propane flaming by removing all loose straw or vacuuming or 
prepared using sther techniques approved by rule by the 
Environmental Quality Commission. - ) 

{ - (b) After January 1, 1998, propane equipment shall 
satisfy best available technology. - 1 

( - (5) Notwiichstanding the limitations Set fo%th in 
subsection (2) of this seetion, in 5991 and thereafter, a m.twr%EWn 
af 25,000 acres of steeg terxain and species identiffed by the 
Dlrectoz of AgrieulCure by xqIe may be open burned and shall not 
be included in the m.dmum koeal p&mitted acreage. - ) 

C - ( 6 )  Acreage segis't-ered to be open burned under this 
section may be propane flamed at the registrant's discretion 
without reregiete~ing the acreage, - 1 

{ - (7) In the event of the rqistration of more than the 
maximum allowable acres for open hurtling in the counties 
specifTed in O.RS 6688.595 (2 ) ,  after 1996, the conrmkssion, after 
consuStation with tzhe State Department of Agriculture, by rule of 
order m y  assign priority of pemits base? on soil 
characteristics, the crop type, terrain or drainage. - 1 

{ - (8) - } ( + (2) ;mn addition to the requlFements of ORS 
476,380 and 478.960, t. )permits- { - shall befssuedwE3 
burning shall be aflowed f o r  the m&%imm acreage specifhd in 
subsection (2) of this seetion unless - 1 { + described in 
subsection ( 2 )  of thss section shall be issued pursuant to rules 
established by the Environmental Quality Commission. Open burning 
QE agricultural Waste shall be allowed for the maximum amount of 
agricultural waste specified in a permit unless + 1: 

(a) The daily detdnation of suitability of meteorological 
conditio-ns, regional or Po-cal air quality conditions or other 
burning conditions rewires that a maximum I - number of 
acres - } { + amount of agricultural waste + 1 not be 
( + open t- } burned on a given day; or 
(b) The comnissf on finds after hearing E.hat othex reasonable 

and economically feasible, environmenka2ly acceptable 
alternatives to the ggsctice of azmur?l open -( - field - 3. 
burning ( 9 of agx%ct;zlturah waste + 1 have been devel-oped. 

{ - (9) - ) .( + ( 3 )  + 3 upon a finding of extreme aanger to 
publie healrb or safecy, the commission may order temporary 
qnexgency cessa'tban -of all open Q - field - ) burning I - , 
propane flaming or stack ur pile burning in any area of the 
couatbes listed 5.n dRS 468A.595 (2) - ) { + of agricultural 
waste, or day other £ o m  of agricultural burning permitted by 
statute or rule + 3. 

{ - {I63 - ) { + (4 )  + } The cammission shall act on any 
application for a permit under { - OR5 468A.575 - 3 f -e this 
section + } within 60 days of registration and receipt of the f'ee 
required under ORS 468A. 615, The comission m y  oxder fimex&eney 
cessation of open C - field ; 3 burning { + og ~igricultural, 
waste + ) at any time. Any other decision sequired under this 
section must be made by ehe ~ormrdssion on or before Jwe 1 of 
each year. 

SECTION 11. ORS 468A.615 &s anended ta read: 
468A.615. (1) - (a) - } On before April 1 of each year, 

4 - the grower of a grass seed crop - 1 { + a person intending Page 255.2-ac 



Relating to air quality; creating new provisions; amending ORS 307.391,468.140,468A .... Page 8 of 17 

to engage in the open burning of agricultural waste + } shall 
register with the county court or board of county commissioners, 
the fire chief of a rural fire protection district, the 
designated representative of the fire chief or other responsible 
persons the { - number of acres - 1 C + amount of agricultural 
waste + 1 to be open burned { - or propane flamed - } in the 
remainder of the year. { - At the time of registration, - 1 
The Department of Environmental Quality shall { - collect a 
nonrefundable fee of $2 per acre registered to be sanitized by 
open burning or $1 per acre to be sanitized by propane 
flaming. - 1 { + establish a schedule of fees to be paid by 
registrants based on the amount of agricultural waste to be open 
burned. + } The department may contract with counties and rural 
fire protection districts or other responsible persons for the 
collection of { - the - 1 { + registration + 1 fees which 
shall be forwarded to the department. { - Any - 1 { + The 
department may require an additional fee from a + } person 
registering after April 1 of each year { - shall pay an 
additional fee of $1 per acre registered - } if the late 
registration is due to the fault of the late registrant or one 
under the control of the late registrant. Late registrations 
must be approved by the department. Copies of the registration 
form shall be forwarded to the department. The required 
registration must be made and the fee paid before a permit shall 
be issued under ORS { - 468A.575 - } { + 468A.610 + } .  

{ - (b) Except as provided in paragraph (d) of this 
subsection, the department shall collect a fee in accordance with 
paragraph (c) of this subsection for issuing a permit for open 
burning, propane flaming or stack or pile burning of perennial or 
annual grass seed crop or cereal grain crop residue under ORS 
468A.555 to 468A.620 and 468A.992, The department may contract 
with counties and rural fire protection districts or other 
responsible persons for the collection of the fees which shall be 
forwarded to the department. - } 

{ - (c) The fee required under paragraph (b) of this 
subsection shall be paid within 10 days after a permit is issued 
and shall be: - } 

{ - (A) $8 per acre of crop sanitized by open burning in the 
counties specified in ORS 468A.595 (2) ; - } 

{ - (B)  $4 per acre of perennial or annual grass seed crop 
sanitized by open burning in any county not specified in ORS 
468A.595 (2); - 3 

{ - (C) $2 per acre of crop sanitized by propane flaming; - 1 

{ - (D l  For acreage from which 100 percent of the straw is 
removed and burned in stacks or piles: - 1 

{ - (i) $2 per acre from January 1, 1992, to December 31, 
1997; - } 

{ - (ii) $4 per acre in 1998; - ) 
{ - (iii) $6 per acre in 1999; - } 
{ - (iv) $8 per acre in 2000; and - } 
{ - (v) $10 per acre in 2001 and thereafter; and - } 
C - (E)  For acreage from which less than 100 percent of the 

straw is removed and burned in stacks or piles, the same per acre 
as the fee imposed under subparagraph (D) of this paragraph, but 
with a reduction in the amount of acreage for which the fee is 
charged by the same percentage as the reduction in the amount of 
straw to be burned. - ) 

{ - (d) The fee required by paragraph (b) of this subsection 
shall not be charged for any acreage where efficient burning of 

Page 252-ad 



Relating .to air qmlity; creating new provisions; amending ORS 307.391,468.140,468A .... Page 9 of 17 

stubble is accomplished wFth equipment certified by the 
degartmeslt for field sanitizing purpos;es or with any other 
certified alternative method to open field burning, propane 
flaming or stack or p&Le burning* The fee required by paragraph 
(b) sf th3s subseceon sliall R O ~  be: charged fo r  any acreage not 
harvested priar Lo burning ar for my acreage not burned. - ) 

(2) All fees collected under this seetian shall. be ESeposFted 5x1 
the State Treasury to the credit f - of Che Deparemwt oE 
Agriculture Service Fund - 1 4 -I- of the Open Burning Nanagment. 
Account established under section 21 of this 2007 ~ c t  + ) , Such 
moneys are oontinuausly appz-opriated to the { - Stake 
Department of Agriculture - 1 { + Department of Environmental 
Quality 4 1 for the purpose of carrying out the duties and 
responsibilities { - carried out by the State Department of 
Agriculture - 1 f + of the department + I pursuant to { - the 
memorandum of understanding established under ORS 46811.585 - 3. 

C + Ehe provisions of ORS 46814.555 ko 4688.620 and 
468A.992 + 1. 

( 3 )  rt is the intention of the Legislative Assembly that k h e  
programs fax smoke management, air quality monitofkng and the 
enforcement of mles mder OR5 468A.550 t~ 468.A.62Q antt 468A.992 
be operated { + by the depazment +- I in a m w e r  that mdn&zes 
the resources available for the research and development prugrm, 
Therefore, with regard to the disburserment of funds collected 
under subsection (23 of this section, the K - State Department 
of Agriculture - 1 4 + de-parbent + 3 shdll act in accordance 
with the intent of the Legislative Assembly m d  shall: 

(a) Fay an amount { + base6 on the number of p-emits issued 
a d  mount of agricultural waste open burned in each rural. fire 
protection distfict c 3 to the ccruntp or board of county 
co&ssioners or the $ire chi& sf the rural fire protection 
digtr5ct ar other responsible person { - , for each fire 
protg~rion dietrice, $1 per acre regisgazed fax each of the first 
5,000 acres registered for open field b ~ n i n g  ad. propme f3ambg 
in the district, 75 cents per =re registered Ear eacb of the 
second '5,000 acres registered in the district and 35 cents per 
acre registered for all acrewe registered i n  the district in 
excess sf 10,000 acres, - 3 to cover the cost of and to be used 
solely for bhe purpose of administering the program of 
registration of { - acreage - I E + agricultural waste + ) to 
be + apw a 3 burned, issuance of permits, keeping of racords 
and other matters directly related to { - agricultural 
field - 1 { 9 open + ) burning I + of agricultural waste + 1 ,  

{ - Ear each acre from which straw Is remaved and burned in 
stacks or piles, the State D q a r t x n e n t  of rtgrkculture shall pay to 
the county ar board. of county co&ssioaers, or the fire chief of 
the rural fire Brotection dist~ict og ot;her responsfble perma, 
85 cents per acre. - ) 

(b) Desisate an amoz-ult to be used for the srnoke management  
program, The ( - State Department of Agricultwe - 3 

+ department + + by contract with the Oregon Seed Council og 
otherwise shall organize rural fire protection districts and 
growers, coordinate and provide comunications, hire ground 
support personnel, provide aircraft surveillance and provide such 
added support sewices as are necessary. 
tc) Retain funits { - for the operation and maintenance of the 

WiLZamette Valley field burning air quality impact monitoring 
network a d  - 3 to insure adequate enforcement of r u l e s  
esLablisbed by the En~iro~ental Quality Commission governing 
stzandards a£ practice for open { - field - 1 burning C - , Page 252-as: 



Relating to air quality; creating new provisions; amending ORS 307.391,468.140,468 ... Page 10 of 17 

propane flaming and stack or pile burning - } { + of 
agricultural waste + } .  

{ - (d) Of the remaining funds, designate an amount to be 
used for additional funding for research and development 
proposals described in the plan developed pursuant to section 15, 
chapter 920, Oregon Laws 1991. - 1 
SECTION 12. ORS 476.010 is amended to read: 
476.010. (1) As used in ORS 476.010 to 476,115, 476.150 to 

476.170 and 476.210 to 476.270, 'alterations,' 'construction, ' ' 
family,' 'hospital,' 'occupancy' and 'private residence ' have 
the meanings given those terms in ORS 479.168. 

(2) As used in ORS 476.030 and other laws relating to the 
duties of the State Fire Marshal, 'governmental subdivision ' 
means a city, county, municipal corporation, quasi-municipal 
corporation and rural fire protection district, created under the 
laws of Oregon. 

(3) As used in ORS 476.380: 
{ + (a) 'Agricultural waste' means any organic waste material 

generated or used by an agricultural operation, excluding: 
(A) Perennial and annual grass seed; 
(B) Cereal grain crops; 
(C) Straw; 
(D) Mint stubble; 
(E) Christmas trees as defined in ORS 571.575; and 
(F) Associated residue generated or used by an agricultural 

operation. + 1 
{ - (a) - } { + (b) + } 'Commercial waste' : 

(A) Means any waste produced in any business involving the 
lease or sale, including wholesale and retail, of goods or 
services, including but not limited to housing. 

(B)  Means any waste produced by a governmental, educational or 
charitable institution. 

(C) Does not include any waste produced in a dwelling 
containing four living units or less. 

{ - (b) - 1 { + (c) + 1 'Demolition material' means any 
waste resulting from the complete or partial destruction of any 
man-made structure, such as a house, apartment, commercial 
building or industrial building. 

( - (c) - } { + (d) + } 'Domestic waste' means any 
nonputrescible waste, consisting of combustible materials, such 
as paper, cardboard, yard clippings, wood or similar materials, 
generated in a dwelling, including the real property upon which 
it is situated, containing four living units or less. 

{ - (d) 'Field burning1 means the burning of any grass field, 
grain field, pasture, rangeland or other field by open burning or 
by use of mobile equipment or flaming equ5pment on any land or 
vegetation. - 1 

(e) 'Industrial waste' means any waste resulting from any 
process or activity of manufacturing or construction. 

( £ 1  'Land clearing debris' means any waste generated by the 
removal of debris, logs, trees, brush or demolition material from 
any site in preparation for land improvement or construction 
pro j ects . 

(g) 'Open burning' means any burning conducted in such a manner 
that combustion air is not effectively controlled and that 
combustion products are not vented through a stack or chimney, 
including but not limited to burning conducted in open outdoor 
fires, common burn barrels and backyard incinerators. 

{ + (h) 'Open burning of agricultural waste' means the Page 252-af 

httn~ll.rxnxmr lea c t g t ~  nr 11~ln7~~0lm~~~11r~~Ihh2nnn ii;rkh?nnn intrn html 



Relating to air quality; creating new provisions; mending OW 307.391,468.140,468.,, Page 1 1 of 17 

burning of ags5cultuxal waste material by opq burning on any 
lad. + 3 

SEiCTIQN 13. ORS 476.380 is amended to read: 
476.380. (1) No person, outside the boUb3aa~fas of a rural fire 

protection district or a forest $goeec$i~n district, shall cause 
or permit to be initiated or maintained on the property of the 
person, or cause to be inicfaeed or maintained an the property oa 
another my open bul-egng of C t agricultural waste, 4 1 
commercial waste, dem~lition material, domestic wash, industrial 
waste - , C. + or +. ) Land clearing debris € - ox f i d d  
burning - ) without first secMng a permit from the county 
court or %&d of camtp. commissioners. 

(2) TBe ceunty court or board of county comLssione~s, or its 
designated representative, shall prescribe con65tbon-s for 
issuance a£ any permit and shaL1 refuse, revoke or postpone 
issuance of permits when necessary to peewe~t danger to life or 
properry or to protect the air resowces oE bhis state. The 
~nvironmental Quality Cormrrissian shall notify the State Fire 
Marshal of the i - kme of and - ) time f ~ r  C + open + 1 
burning C - to be - 1 { + of agricultuxal waste + 1 allowed 
on each day under sche4ules adopted pursuant to ORS 468A,570 a d  
468A.595. The State F k e  Marshal shall cause all comty courEs 
and boards of o6ltnky c~m9ssianers ar their designated 
regrasentatived in the affected areas to be natifiea! af the 

f - type oE and - 1 time for 4 + open .t 1 burning t;o be 
allowed on each day and of any revisiarts of such conditions 
during each day. The county court, board or fepresentgtive shall 
issue permits only in accordance with schedules of the 
E4visamatal Quality Cummissio~ adopted pursuant to this section 
and ORS 468A.555 to 468Pr,62Q ma 468A,992, 476.990, 478.960 and 
478.990 but may redue= the hou5rs d l d w e d  for burning if necessary 
to prevent danger to lf5e or property from fire. The State Fire 
Mizrshal may refuse or posmone gemits when necessary in the 
judgment of the State Fire Narshal to prevent danger to life or 
property from fire, notwithstanding any determination by tBe 
county coure sz board oE co-rznty coatmissioners or its deslgaated 
officer. { - NoEwiGhsltand-ing any &her provision of kh&s 
subsectiaa, b r  a permit for the propane flaming sf mixit: stabble, 
khe county  COW^ or boar& of caunty c&ssioners, or its 
desigmak& representative may only prescribe cozzditions necessary 
to prevent the spread of fire or to preveak endangering life or 
propercy and may refuse, revoke or postpone gemissibn to conduct 
the propane flaming m1y when necessary ta prevent danger t c s  life 
or property Exom fire, - 3 

( 3 )  Nothing in thfs section; 
La) Requires pemf ssion fbr  ~ C a r E i n g  a campfire in a manner 

otherwise lawful, 
Ib) Believes a g e r s o ~  sta?3ing a fire fram responsibility f o r  

providing adequate protection to prevent 5njuxy or damage to the 
property of another. I£ such burniag results in the escwe 05 
fire and 5njuz-y 6r &mag& to the property of anotheri such escape 
and damage or h j u q  c~nstitlrltes prima facie evidenee that the 
burning was nofz safe. 

(c) Relievet 8 persdn who has obtained permission to start a 
fire, 02 the agent of the person, from legal L%&Uity for 
pro~exty dmnage resulting from the fire. 

(d) Pernits an act within a city ar regional air quality 
cmtrol authority aGea that otherwise is unlawful pursuant to an 
ordinance of the city or r u l e ,  regulation as order of the 
regional authority. Page 252-ag 



Relating to air quality; creating new provisions; amending ORS 307.391,468.140,468 ... Page 12 of 17 

(4) The county court or board of county commissioners shall 
maintain records of all permits and the conditions thereof, if 
any, that are issued under this section and shall submit at such 
times, as the Environmental Quality Commission shall require such 
records or summaries thereof to the commission. The Environmental 
Quality Commission shall provide forms for the reports required 
under this subsection. 
SECTION 14. ORS 478.001 is amended to read: 
478.001. (1) As used in this chapter, unless the context 

requires otherwise: 
(a) 'Board of directors' or 'district board1 means the 

governing body of a district. 
(b) 'County' means the county in which the district, or the 

greater portion of the taxable assessed value of the district, is 
located. 
(c) 'County board' means the county court or board of county 

commissioners of the county. 
(d) 'District' means a rural fire protection district proposed 

to be organized or organized under, or subject to, this chapter, 
(e) 'Owner' or 'landowner' means a legal owner of real property 

or the vendee of a contract of purchase of real property, if any, 
to the exclusion of the vendor. The term includes a unit owner, 
as defined in ORS 100.005. 

(2) As used in ORS 478.960: 
{ + (a) 'Agricultural waste' means any organic waste material 

generated or used by an agricultural operation, excluding: 
(A) perennial and annual grass seed; 
(B) Cereal grain crops; 
(C) Straw; 
(D) Mint stubble; 
(E) Christmas trees as defined at ORS 571.505; and 
(F) Associated residue generated or used by an agricultural 

operation, + ) 
- (a) - 1 { + (b) + ) 'Commercial waste' means any waste 

produced in any business involving the lease or sale, including 
wholesale and retail, of goods or services, including but not 
limited to housing, and means any waste produced by a 
governmental, educational or charitable institution; however, it 
does not include any waste produced in a dwelling containing four 
living units or less. 

{ - b - 1 { + (c) + 1 'Demolition material' means any 
waste resulting from the complete or partial destruction of any 
man-made structure such as a house, apartment, commercial 
building or industrial building. 

{ - c - } { + (d) + ) 'Domestic waste' means any 
nonputrescible waste, consisting of combustible materials, such 
as paper, cardboard, yard clippings, wood, or similar materials, 
generated in a dwelling, including the real property upon which 
it is situated, containing four living units or less. 

C - (d) 'Field burning' means the burning of any grass field, 
grain field, pasture, rangeland or other field by open burning or 
by use of mobile equipment or flaming equipment on any land or 
vegetation. - 1 

(e) 'Industrial waste' means any waste resulting from any 
process or activity of manufacturing or construction. 

(f) 'Land clearing debris' means any waste generated by the 
removal of debris, logs, trees, brush or demolition material from 
any site in preparation for land improvement or construction 
projects . 

(9-1 'Open burning' means any burning conducted in such a manner Page 252-ah 

1 I 4  n ,#.fir\- 



Relating to air quality; creating new provisions; mending ORS 307.391,468.140,468 ... Page 13 of 17 

that  c-~f ius t ion a5r is not eEfeet$uely coaksolled and chat 
combu$tcicm product;i.s are nae ~ented t,Wough a sea& OE chimney, 
including but, noE l i r n i € &  eo burning mducted i n  open outdo@r 
f i res ,  common burn barrels and backyard incinerators, 

{ + (h) 'Qpen burning of agricultural waste means the 
burning of agricultural waste material by open burning on any 
land. -I. ) 

SECTION 1 5 ,  OR5 478,960 is amended ta read: 
478.960. 11) No one, within the boundaries of a d fs t r i c t ,  shal l  

cause or. gemit t o  be in i t ia ted  or  maintained on one'; awn 
propegty, a2 cause t o  be initiated or maintained on tZle property 
of motbef, w y  open 15azalng of { +. agrfcu2tural waste, a ) 
c s m e r ~ i d  wasfe, demol=2tion nrater-ial, d-mestit: wasE9, ind~~;stui&l 
w a s t e  - , - 1 { t or + 3 land clearing debris - o r f i e z d  
burnhg - ) without ffrse eecuring permission from the f i r e  
chief of the d i s t r i c t  and complying wiith the direction af the 
fix631 chief. A deputy of a f i m  chief has the power to perfarm m y  
act or duty of the fire chief u d e r  tshis section. 

( 2 )  The f i r e  chief shall  prescribe conditions upan which 
permission i s  granted m d  whidh are necessary to  be observed in  
se t t ing khe f i r e  and preventing it from spreixding and endangering 
l i f e  o r  property crr endangering the a i r  resaurces of this state. 
The Environrnent-al Quality ~ormnission shall notify the State F i r e  
Msrsh~lof  the ( - type of and = 1 time for  { + open 9 1 
brsrraing to  be anowed on eadh day uoder schedules adopted 
mrsu&t to ORS 468a.570 Earsd 0gs 468at.595. The state ~ L t e  wr;hal 
shall cause a11 f i r e  chiefs arrd theis depuePes 5n the affected 
area t o  be nofkfied of the 

4 - type and - 3 t i m e  for  { .t open .s 1 burning t o  be allowed 
an e&ch day w i t h  updating messages each day as required, A fire 
chief or  deputy shall grant permission only in accordancswith 
the schedule of the Environmental QualJty Codssicsn but may 
reduce hours ko be allowed for  1 + open + 3 burning i f  necessary 
t o  greven"t,mger t o  l i f e  o r  property from f i r e ,  The State F i r e  
Marshal may refuse, revoke or pastpone permkssion w h e n  necessary 
i n  the judgment of the Stake Fire Marshal fo  prevent danger to 
Iif e or propefky from fire, notwithstanding any d e t e d n a t i o n  by 
the fbrd ckrf ef . 

13) E ~ t h h g  i n  t h i s  sect ibn relieves a person staYtApg a fire 
from ~espansdbPZi$y $02 protiia.&hg adequate proteetion t o  pfeuent 
injury or  dmage t o  t he  perma OX property of mother. If such 
( + open + 1 5 r n i n g  ~ e s u l t s  in the escape of fire and izxjaxy 

or  &amage to the person or property of a n ~ t h e r ,  such escape and 
damage o-r injury constitutes prima facie evidence that  the 

C + open a 3 burning w a s  nat safe. 
( & )  Within a d i s t r i c t ,  no person shall ,  during the Eire season 

declared under ORS 477.505, operate any equiment i n  forest 
harvestbg o r  agr imltura l  operakions powered by an intexnal 
c o ~ s t i o i i  engine on or  within one-eigbth of one mile 05 
forestland unless each piece of equipment is  provided w i t h  a f5re 
e.xCirigu%sher of sufficient  sige m d  cwaciky iuld w i t h  such other 
tools a d  sire-fighting emipfnent, as m y  be reasonably required 
by the Sire chief of the aist~fet, The plrovisi~as of thfa 
subsectLon do get wgly  k o  rrtack5.fsery Fewlake& W ORS chapkez 
477. 

(5)  No persan shal l  dAspos-e oE any bluilaing or builahg 
wreckage wichin a district by EIxe wilthaut having ffrse secure& 
pemfssian therefar f r o m  the E i r e  ckief. No person shall  refuse Page 252-d 



Relating to air quality; creating new provisions; amending ORS 307.3 9 1,468.140,468. .. Page 14 of 1 7 

to comply with any reasonable requirements of the fire chief as 
to,the safeguarding of such fire from spreading. 

(6) This section is not intended to limit the authority of a 
district to adopt a fire prevention code as provided in ORS 
478.910 to 478.940 or to issue permits when the { + open + 1 
burning is done by mechanical burners fired by liquid petroleum 
gas. 

(7) The fire chief shall maintain records of all permits and 
the conditions thereof, if any, that are issued for 

{ - field - 1 { + open + 1 burning { + of agricultural 
waste + 1 under this section and shall submit at such times, as 
the Environmental Quality Commission shall require { + , + 1 such 
records or summaries thereof to the commission. The Environmental 
Quality Commission shall provide forms for the reports required 
under this subsection. 

(8) Notwithstanding any other provision of this section 
{ - * -  . 1 { + I + )  

{ - (a) - } a permit is required for { - field - ) 
{ + open + 1 burning { + of agricultural waste + ) authorized 

pursuant to ORS 468A.550 to 468A.620 and 468A.992. 
{ - (b) For a permit for the propane flaming of mint stubble, 

the fire chief may only prescribe conditions necessary to prevent 
the spread of fire or to prevent endangering life or property and 
may refuse, revoke or postpone permission to conduct the propane 
flaming only when necessary to prevent danger to life or property 
from fire. - 1 
SECTION 16. ORS 496.340 is amended to read: 
496.340. (1) Except as provided in subsection (3) of this 

section, whenever real property owned by the State Fish and 
Wildlife Commission is exempt from taxation on January 1 of any 
year by reason of its ownership by the state, the commission 
shall pay to the county in which the property is situated an 
amount equal to the ad valorem taxes that would have been charged 
against the property If it had been assessed to a taxable owner 
as of January 1 of such year as provided in subsection (2) of 
this section. The county assessor shall determine the value of 
such property and shall notify the commission of the 
determination of the county assessor. Upon request of the 
cornmission, the Department of Revenue shall review the 
determination of value and shall redetermine the value if it 
concludes the value initially determined was substantially 
incorrect. 

(2) (a) Except as provided in paragraph (b) { - or (c) - ) of 
this subsection, the value of the property shall be computed at 
its assessed value under ORS 308A.107 or for forestland use, 
whichever is applicable. 

{ - (b) Paragraph (a) of this subsection shall not apply to 
any property upon which open field burning takes place. If open 
field burning takes place on any property described in this 
section, the property shall be valued at its highest and best use 
rather than the values authorized in paragraph (a) of this 
subsection on the January 1 following the date of the open field 
burning. If in the next year, the open field burning is 
discontinued, paragraph (a) of this subsection shall apply the 
next January 1 and each year thereafter as long as no open field 
burning occurs. - ) 

{ - c - } { + (b) + ) Paragraph (a) of this subsection 
shall not apply to any property acquired by the commission after 
September 9, 1971, if such property was valued under farm use or 
forestland use special assessment provisions, at the time the Page 252-aj 

4/18/3007 



Relating to air quaw, creating new provisions; amending ORS 307391,468.140,468 ... Page 15 of 17 

property was acquired by the commission. However, no payments in 
lieu of taxes made ta a c m t y  pursuant to this section prior to 
January 1, 1974, shall be refunded to the comt-dssion. 

(3) This section does not apply to real property used for bfrd 
farms, fish hatcheries, office quarters, fishing access sites or 
impamdments, capital improvements or real property dewired 
pursuant to the Act o$ Nay 19, 1948 (62 Stat. 240), FubLic Law 
80-537. 
(4) The amotulC p~escr~bed in subsectZon (I,) of t a s  section 

shall be de:emLaed annually by the %sessor ofE the county in 
uirhic5 the properey is situaited and cercffied by the assessor to 
the counry cQur't or the board of cQunfy eomissioners. A notice 
of the de~ermination, siwed by the county judge or the 
chairperson of the board of county ca~ssioners, shall be mailed 
to che principal office of the comission not later than October 
15, The notice shall cantsin a statement of the value of the 
property aad a complete explmation of the method used in 
computing the amount elaimed pursuant ta subsection (1) of khis 
section. mot later than November 15, me commission shall pay 
each amount, less a dlsc~unt equivalenk t~ khat which 2s pjovldad 
in QRS 311.505. Paymelt  shaU be made go the courrty treasurer, 
who shall distribute ehe payment to the t&ng diatriets of tho 
comky accordancs w i t h  the scB&ule of percentages compur-ed 
under OES 313.390. 

(5) Votwithstanding any acher pxnvisian of the wildllfe laws, 
the aommdssion shall make the payments to counties required by 
this section annually from the moneys in the State Wildlife Emd 
established hy ORS d96.3QO. 

SECTTON 17. ORS 468A.992 is amended to read: 
468A.992. { - ( 1  = ) In addition to any liability or 

penalty movidad by law, the C = State - 1 Department of 
{ - Agriculture - ) ( 4 Environmental Qualiky + 1 may impose a 

civil penalty on any person who fails fo cowby with a prov5sion 
of ORS 868A-555 to 4683,629 or &y rule adopted eheeeimder, a?? a 
permit issued under 0 s  46e-A.555 to 468A.620t relating to open 

C = i d  - 1 burnkra-g + of ag~%cultwg1 waste + 1 .  
( - (2) TBe State DepaxtnBnt Of Agriculture shall impose any 

cZuil pmalty ullder this seeeion in the same manner as the 
Department QE Environmental Qudiky imposes and collects a civil 
penalty under ORS 468.160. - } 
SECT108 18. aRS 307.391 is amended to read: 
302.391. RadLo comm~u1icat~ons equipment, meteorological 

equipment or other tangible personal property used in connection 
with the operation af the 1 - field - 2 { + open + 1 burning 
smke manwement program established under- ORS 468A.555 to 
468A.620 and 468A.992 is exempt from ad va20rem properky 
taxation. 

,%3CTLON 19. ORS 468A.135 is mend:ed to read: 
468A. 135. / 1 ) men authorized GO db sd by the mk%roilrnw&al 

Quality C~dssion, a regiowl auakiority famed under OR$ 
460A.LO5 shall ex~rcise the f~rlctiona relating to air pallution 
control vesee8 in the commdssfan and the  Department of 
Enviromental Quality by ORS 468,020, 468,035, 468.065, 4268.070, 
468.090, 468.095, 468~220, 468,140, 488A.025, 468A.040, 468A,Q50, 
468a.055, &6%A,065, 4688.070 arrd 468A.700 to 468A.755 i n s o f a  as 
such functions are applicable to the conditions and situations of 
the tezritoq within the regional authcrrlty. The regional 
authority shall carry out these functions in the manner provided 
for the comissian and the department to carry out the same 
functions. Such functions may be exercised wer both Page 252-ak 



Relating to air quality; creating new provisions; amending ORS 307.39 1,468.140,468 ... Page 16 of 17 

incorporated and unincorporated areas within the territory of the 
regional authority, regardless of whether the governing body of a 
city within the territory of the region is participating in the 
regional authority. 

(2) No regional authority is authorized to establish or alter 
areas or to adopt any rule or standard that is less strict than 
any rule or standard of the commission. The regional authority 
must submit to the commission for its approval all air quality 
standards adopted by the regional authority prior to enforcing 
any such standards. 

(3) Subject to ORS 468A.140, 468A.145 and 468A.165, when a 
regional authority is exercising functions under subsection (1) 
of this section, the commission and the department shall not 
exercise the same functions in the same territory. The regional 
authority's jurisdiction shall be exclusive. The regional 
authority shall enforce rules and standards of the commission as 
required to do so by the commission. 
(4) The commission and the regional authorities may regulate, 

limit, control or prohibit by rule all air contamination sources 
not otherwise exempt within their respective jurisdictions. 
However, { - field - 1 { + open + I burning { + of 
agricultural waste + ) and forestland burning shall be regulated 
by the commission and fire permit agencies as provided in ORS 

468A.555 to 468A.620 and 468A.992, 476.380, 477.505 to 477.562 
and 478.960. 
SECTION 20. ORS 468A.605 is amended to read: 
468A.605. The Department of Environmental Quality, in 

coordinating efforts under ORS 468.140, 468.150, 468A.020, 
468A.555 to 468A.620 and 468A.992, shall: 

(1) Enforce all { - field - 1 { + open + 1 burning rules 
adopted by the Environmental Quality Commission and all related 
statutes; and 
(2) Monitor and prevent unlawful { - field - ) { + open + ) 

burning. 
SECTION 21. { + The Open Burning Management Account is 

established separate and distinct from the General Fund. Moneys 
in the Open Burning Management Account are continuously 
appropriated to the Department of Environmental Quality and may 
be used only to pay the administrative expenses of carrying out 
the provisions of ORS 468A.555 to 46812.620 and 468A.992. Interest 
earned by the account shall be credited to the account. + ) 
SECTION 22. { + ORS 468A.575, 468A.580, 468A.585, 468A.590 and 

468A.620 are repealed. + 1 
SECTION 23. + This 2007 Act being necessary for the 

immediate preservation of the public peace, health and safety, an 
emergency is declared to exist, and this 2007 Act takes effect on 
its passage. + ) 

Page 252-a1 

httn.llwwxx7 leu c t ~ t p  nr I ~ c I ~ ~ ~ P o I ~ P R ~ I T ~ P c ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~  dir/hh?nnO intrn html 



Relating to air quality; aeatbg newprowisions; amending ORS 307.391,468.140,468 ... Page 17 of 17 

Page 2 5 2 - a  



This document has been localized for Corvallis; it is 
adapted from a similar document passed recently in 
Lane County, Oregon. 

Mark Knapp 
geocogent@yahoo.com 

Kirk S. Nevin 
kirksnevin@yahoo.com 

Page 252-an 



ELIMINATES THE PUBLIC HEALTH 
RISK CREATED BY FIELD BURNING 

Page 252-ao 



Draft Resolution in Support of a Ban on 

Whereas, a primary duty of government is to protect public health, rc 

residents have clean air to breathe, 

Whereas, each summer and fall, the burning of grass seed and cereal 

in the Willamette Valley produces smoke that is inhaled by Corvallis 

Whereas, such smoke is composed of both fine and coarse particles, c 

combustion of organic matter, that contain carcinogenic compounds si 

hydrocarbons, benzene, aldehydes and metals,' 

Whereas, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), upon revi 

studies, reports an association between exposure to particulate matter E 

problems, including aggravated asthma, chronic bronchitis, reduced lw 

heartbeat, heart attack, and premature death in people with heart or lwn 

Whereas, even short-term exposure to fine particulate air pollution has 

risk for hospital admissions for cardiovascular and respiratory ailments. 

Whereas, exposure to smoke fi-om field burning presents significant risE 

respiratory function, including the elderly and children, and especially e 

respiratory difficulties, including children and elderly persons with resp 

Oregon Department of Environmental Quality, Fact Sheet: Open Field Burning in th, 
2007), hnp://ww.deq.state. or.us/aa/factsheel/07aqO 19 field.~df. 
2 EPA, Fact Sheet: Final Revisions to the National Ambient Air Quality Standards for, 
(Particulate Matter), 1, (September 21,2006), htt11://www.epa.govlpmipdfs/20060921~ 
3 Journal of the American Medical Association, Fine Particulate Air Pollution andHo> 
Cardiovascular and Respiratov Diseases (March 8,2006). 
Oregonians may be particdarly vulnerable to field burning smoke m light of the state 

asthma. See Oregon Asthma Program, Oregon Asthma Surveillance Summary Report, 
ht tp:Nwww.oregon .nov /DHS/uh/as thmaldoc~t  visited January 26,2007). 
worst prevalence of asthma in the United States. Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance S 
Asthma 2005, h~:l lappsnccd.cdc.nov/brfss/ l is t .asu?caAS&2005&ke 16&si 



Whereas, under state law, the Oregon Department of Agriculture (ODA) regulates the practice of 

field burning in the Willamette Valley to reduce smoke impacts on populated areas, but its 

success is limited by "unexpected wind shifts, rapidly changing mixing heights, rapidly 

decreasing transport wind speeds and directions, other meteorological factors, and inefficient 

lighting techniques." 

Whereas, under state law, the CorvaIlis City Council is precluded from protecting residents of 

Corvallis h m  field burning smoke, 6 

Whereas, 1,182 complaints were received from Willamette Valley residents by ODA in 2006, 

exceeding the 1,106 complaints received in 2005,475 in 2004,206 in 2003,705 in 2002, and 

608 in 2001. 

Therefore, be it resolved, the Corvallis City Council strongly urges the Oregon State Legislature 

to enact a ban on field burning in its 2007 legislative session. 

' Oregon Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Division, Smoke Management Program, Summary of the 
2006 Field Burning Season, 7-8 (Dec 2006), http:/ /www.ore~n.~ov/OD~/docs/~dflsrnoke fb sum2006.pdf 

ORS 468A.595(4). 
7 Oregon Department of Agriculture, p. 8. 

Page 252-aq 



PAUL R. HOLVEY 
STATE REPRESENTATIVE 
DISTRICT 8 

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

To: House Committee on Health Care 
Date: April 6, 2006 
Chair: Rep. Mitch Greenlick and Committee Members 

Thank your for hearing House Bill 3000. This bill prohibit$ open field burning, stack buming, pile 
burning and propane flaming. It does allow for open burning of agriculture waste under permit 
and authority of We Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ). The bill also establishes the 
Smoke Management Program and the Open Burning Management Account under the Authority 
of the DEQ. 

I have been contacted by hundreds of individuals across the state and many organizations all in 
support of HB 3000 eliminating field burning. Amongst those organizations are the Lane County 
Medical Society, the Oregon Medical Association, the American Lung Association of Oregon, 
the Oregon Lung Specialists, the Lane Regional Air Protection Agency, the City of Eugene and 
the Lane County Board of Commissioners. 

I introduced this sweeping legislation because of the extreme threat to the public health of 
Oregonians as a result of agricultural field burning. In 1991, the Oregon Legislature passed 
legislation to reduce and regulate field burning, and also to develop and provide alternatives to 
this practice. That legislation also stopped the reduction of field buming in 1998 at a level of 
about 65,000 possible acres allowed to be burned. Since that time 16 years ago, we now know 
much more about particulate matter air pollution and smoke, and its health effects, and 
specifically the effects of fine particulates referred to as PM 2.5 and the toxics contained in 
smoke. 

There is clear and convincing scientjfic; evidence that both long-term and short-term exposure to 
fine particulates and smoke h v e  significant adverse human health effects. 'These effects even 
occur at exposure levels below the standards established by the Environmental Protection 
Agency and the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality. 

A DEQ Field Burning letter states, "Occ;lsjonal, short-term particulate sources such as field 
burning or prescribed field burning can have adverse health impacts on the public, especially 
sensitive groups like asthmatics." A document from the EPA states, "Health studies have 
shown a significant association between exposure to fine partides and premature mortality." 
Another EPA fact sheet states, "Exposure to particulate matter and significant health problems 
ean cause aggravated asthma, chronic bronchitis, reduced lung funct,ion, irregular heart beat, 
heart attack, and premature death h people with heart or lurig disease." The Journal of 
American Medical Association states: "Even short-term exposure to fine particulate air pollution ' 

has been found to increase the risk for hospital admissions for cardiovascular and respiratory 
ailments." Beyond these statements, there have been deaths In both Idaho and Washington 
that have been directly linked to exposure to field buming smoke, not to mention numerous 
traffic deaths and accidents caused by smoke. We all remember the 7 deaths and 38 injured in 
1988. 

The ern-issions from field burning grass residues contain a mixture of solid and liquid particles, 
which include particufate matter, carbon monoxide, methane, and toxics like Acetaldehyde, 
Acrolein, Benzene, Butadiene, Formaldehyde, Methyl Chloride, Toluene, and Xylenes. Unlike 
coarse particulate matter, fine particulates lodge deep in fhe lungs and the body's defenses are 

Page 25 
Office: 9CID Court Sf NE, Salem, OR 97301 -- Pkone: 503-9~35140% - rep.paslPtr~Iv~yO@~e.~r,~s 

Distriw. B0~51048, Eugene* 08 91405 - Phone: @1-=-5@3S 



unable to remove them. Toxics from the emissions recombine and attach to these fine 
particulates. 1 have provided the committee with many studies and medical testimonies to 
substantiate this information, and there are others here to testify to the health effects of field 
burning smoke. 

I think it is also important to briefly talk about the effectiveness of smoke management and 
monitoring of the emissions from field buming. Smoke management is intended to bum when 
conditions are favorable in directing the smoke plumes away from the more densely populated 
areas. However, smoke management and conditions are not always predictable. This practice 
of course means that many of our smaller communities are literally designated as sacrifice 
zones. 

The measurements data, and standards used by both the EPA and the DEQ are very site 
specific and most often based on averages that do not reflect the extremely high levels that 
much of our population is being subjected to. And frankly our smaller communities do not 
breathe averages. 

Some of our averages actually throw out at least the six worst impact days and often the worst 
impact hour. When you hear that field buming is only 2% of the annual air particulate matter in 
the state, you should consider the methodology used to get that figure. I can also prove that in 
the 4 largest acres bum days, more carbon monoxide is generated from field burning in Oregon 
than is generated in 6 months by the largest emission producing factory (Weyerhaeuser 
Containerboard plant) in the southern Willamette Valley. There are others here to briefly testify 
to some of these facts as well. 

Mr. Chair and Committee, the cost to public health and our quality of life from field burning is too 
high. As a matter of fact, the Washington State Department of Ecology in a cost benefit 
analysis concluded the costs to the public (such as increased medication use, increased 
hospitalization, missed work, etc.) far exceeded the cost to farmers to employ alternative 
methods to buming. Field burning of about 60,000 acres grass seed residues was mostly 
halted in Washington and their production and yields have significantly increased since then. 
Court action has halted all agricultural field burning in Idaho. It is time for Oregon to halt this 
practice now. 

Given that this information is available and known, I believe it is incumbent on the State of 
Oregon to end the unnecessary practice of field burning, whether it is accomplished by the 
Executive Branch, the Legislative Branch, or the Judicial Branch, it needs to happen, and I 
believe it would be negligent if this Legislature or Executive branch do not end field buming this 
year. 

Mr. Chair and Members of the Committee, I urge you to pass House Bill 3000 and make every 
effort to ensure it is enacted into law. Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

Paul Holvey 
Oregon State Representative 
District 8 

Page 252-as 



- - v 

Fact Sheet 

3pen F L d  Burning 
T - -- In the ..rIIamette Valley 

Background 
The Oregon Department of Alrriculture (ODA) 
Smoke Management Propram regulates the 
burning of up to 65,000 acres of annual and 
perennial grass seed crop residue and cereal 
grain residue within the Willamette Valley each 
summer. 

Field buming disposes of leftover straw and 
stubble on fields after grass seed harvesting. It 
controls weeds, insects and plant diseases which 
helps maintain grass seed purity, reduces use of 
pesticides and herbicides, and improves yields. 
The practice began more than 50 years ago, with 
as much as 250,000 acres being burned in the 
mid- 1980s. 

i'k Smoke Management Program isjiu2ded 
enclusive& through gmwerfees. 
h 1995, ODA was directed by House Bill 
3044 to operate the entirefleld burning 
program, through a contractual agreement 
with DEQ. 

Health effects from smoke 
Field buming smoke is comprised of several 
pollutants that have the potential to cause health 
problems, depending on the level and duration of 
exposure. Field burning smoke contains fine 
particulate matter, which can be inhaled deep 
into the lungs. In addition, field burning smoke 
contains carbon monoxide and carcinogenic 
compounds such as polycyclic aromatic 
hydrocarbons, benzene, aldehydes and metals. 

A 1988 accident on Interstate 5 involving While efforts are made to conduct burning under 
multiple cars and causing seven fatalities was optimum smoke dispersal conditions, some field 
-ributed to decreased visibility due to field buming smoke impacts do occur. However, 

ling smoke. This led to passage of House Bill these impam ranly cause air qudify to exceed 
3243, which called for the phase-down of field tl, federal health ns 
burning from 250>00° acres to current 65,0°0 is beuuse most fidd burning smoke impacts are 
acres. Currently, the state's Smoke Management ofrelatively short duratioR and occur d-g the 
Program affords greatest protection to the summer months, when particulate air pollution 

major population levels are much lower than they are in 
but offers lesser protection to some smaller winter months. 
population areas. 

Quick Fa&: 
The phase-dawn ofJield burning occurred 
porn 1991 to 1998, with the acreage limit 
reducedpom I80,oOO down to 40,000 
acres. The current limft of 65,000 is based 
on 40,000 acres plur a 25,000-acre 
limitation for certuin fire- depednt  grass 
species andgrasses grown on highly 
erodable soils on steep slopes. 
Although state law aIlows the burning of 
65,000 acres, over the pas Jive years actual 
buming h memged about 50,000 acres. 
Field buming typiEa11~ starts midJuly and 
en& mid-October, with a majon'ty of 
burning in AugusrYearly September. Most 
fieldr are not h d  every year. 
To avoid smoke impacts in populated areas, 
buming is permitted only afer carefitl 
evaluation ofweather conditions using the 
latest meteorological forecasting techniques. 
About 75% of all the acreage is burned on 
just 10 to 15 days during the summer. 
Cumntly there are about 150 growers who 
bum in the Willmette Valley. 

Although field buming is unlikely to cause 
violations of federal health standards, exposure 
to field burning smoke can still pose health risks. 
Short-term exposure can cause health problems 
for people with pre-existing respiratory problems 
(e.g., asthma, bronchitis and chronic obstructive 
pulmonary disease), or to sensitive populations 
such as young children and the elderly. 

For the general public, short-term exposure to 
smoke may result in eye irritation, scratchy 
throat, runny nose, headaches, and allergic 
reactions. While little is known about the long- 
term health effects fiom exposure to field 
burning smoke, some research has shown health 
effects can range from reduced lung function to 
development of chronic bronchitis, and even 
premature death. 

The Oregon Department of Agriculture, in 
conjunction with researchers at Oregon State 
University, is currently planning to conduct a 
human health risk assessment of field burning in 
the Willamette Valley. This assessment will h e l ~  

Air Quality 
Division 
Airshed Planning 
P~ogram 
81J SW 6'~vesrue 
Partland,ORrn 
Phone: (503)2294278 

@oo) 452-401 1 
Fa: (503) 223-5675 
Contao t :W. i enF- i  
-.4wo?%P@w/ 

Oregon 
n ~ ' z -  +- !.-! '@!?'L~'!F 

For more iafomuthm 
ODA Smoke bhqpmnt 
Program, Mew 
www.oregvn~10DAl 
(503) B64"Il 

tri ~iamiin kwicc% 

~ ~ e I b ~ -  
A l t a m a t i v e f m m >  
Jsge type) of this document 
cap be made available. 
cfmt8atDEQ'sOfficeof 
Co 'atioml62 
outfew4 podad  (M3) 
229-5696 (toU-&e in OR at 
1-80045241 1, zS%J 

Page 2 5 2 4  



charactehze exporrured risk & '  
commsutities. 

Vtsibility effects from smoke 
hadditiontohealthefYkcts,smokecanaff~ 
outdoor remation W t i e s  and impair visibility 
or the Wty to view nearby mountaim and other 
scenic areae. P a i d  visibility pratection rules 
w i r e  states to adopt smoke management plane 
that address outdamburning practices like deld 
burning and forestrylnmhg. 

The phase down in Wi11mette Valley field 
burning wer the years has led to some 
hqnwemenZs in summerthe visibility in 
Oregtm's wildern- ereas and Grater Lake 
National Park. This improvement can also be 
a~ibuted toweekend dct ions  on field 
bunring, which are m place frem July 1 tbmgb 
Sept, 15, to protect visibility in the Orego11 
Cascades during hYghest vieitation and 
r d o n  use period. 

Alternatives to field burning 
b addition to smoke management, ODA 
manages researoh and development into 
s l ~ ~ e s .  This ineludes M n g  ways to 
maintain high yields without burning, straw 
removal and mark& and almative imps.  
A4temdves to field burning are amen* 
practiced kmqghoutthe Wiilamette Valley. 
These include crap mitttion, ohemid 
appli#rtionq stnrw mwal and ptopme 
flaming. Tfre baling nnd selling of gmss seed 
straw has become an imprbnt aghdturd 
commodity. The stnw is sold all OVW the world 
as an animal Eeed supplement and for otheruses. 

k t  fundin8 fiwn ODA and the Oregon Seed 
CaMcil (OSC) is used for laPearch into 
almtives to fidd burning. In 2004, ODA and 
OSC distributed appxhfdy $370,000 hr 
" A l m e s  to Field Burning" d 
Pmjectw ODA md OSC bave &ded m avenge 
of $3 19,000 &y in research Iwajec;ts since 
the 1999-2000 funding cycle. State tax aedits 
are also used to provide e q i p m  and 
hhstmcture to promote alternatives to buaaing. 

MlnWng smoke impacts frcMl burning 
For the 65,000 acres currently a l l d  for 
buming, ODA c01~t .d~  the time, amount and 
location ofbundn~ in order to avoid mke  
intrusions into cities or impacts on the public. 
The best conditiana for bwning are whm smoke 
rises to high $evPws, dispems, aad is 
&auspted away fbm majar populated areas. 
This praotice makes the smoke plume visble 
from long distaaces, &en DQU&~ public 
d c m  and tmnplaints, but actually minimizes 
ground mokeimpkts to the public 

Quick foctr: 
~ m e r s  are repused to regWer their 
P e w  a d  obtain brmrpennits. Permits 
repire being aBle ao light ajteM wfthin 
one hwn. This he& ensure that the 
burning krResplace when corditiopls 
tare &'U fmable. 
G m e r s ~ ~ l o w  spet$k bunring 
irt.mi~* ispued by ODA. ODA abo 
madslatkrPcm er?foreemmtpmgmm 
which cwt result mjhesjbr v i e  
of- ~~* 

Grawers must aLso meet fire 
reqttbmenfs set by the ,'%We Fire 
M M U  
ODA w s  state-oxj%e-iiri weuther 
l i , r e ~ t e c ~ s a n d ~ e Y  
m&tP to tkmnine geographic 
MORS witerejieIdS can he ignited to 
aririmize the smoke impact m the 
public. 

r Otkrelenrenisof  the^^ imI& 
a network ofair mdtorsplaced in 
m a ~ ~ ~ p c p t t W w z  eentws tluot&mt 
the Wilhmette Valley, & tormck air 
qual~andjcnrcrpkeinpmts. 

e Y%epwgrrn isstq@ed@ll-time l ya  
Pro@'=" -gw* P W f =  
cool.djnatoPraad~eml@. 
SeascwtaUy, ktheprqpr;rsn ~ P I O Y S  two ' 

~ ~ s r a a d  lwoJiekrdnators .  

Complaints about fidd burning 
OITA openrtes two field bwning complaint lines, 
v&id are availableto the public year-round. 
The Salem number is for d e r s  in the north 
Willam- Valley; the Eugene number is for 
callers m ths swtfi paticm of the Valley. 

SPIear Complaiat fdne: (W) W 7 0 9  
Engene Camplaint Line: (541) 686-7600 

Comments and co~~plaints provide supplemental 
Mmnation on the extent and location of smoke 
problems, CaUm may d y e  a tape recording 
asking the callerto 1-e a mesmge d d b i n g  
the smoke problem. Complaints sre cumpiled 
d y  and neported to the -or's OfBce. 
In 2006, ODA received 1,182 ~ l d n t s ,  up 
slifly firnn 2005's toclll of 1,106. In previous 
years the numbers afcamplmnts were as 
fbUows: 2004 (275), 2003 (206), 2002 (705), 
2001 (608). 

Page 252-au 



Fields u~f Fire 
In ths WesG the time-honsr~d tradition of 
field burning is now misinga host ofmajor 
health m c m  afler a csnft.oversia1 death 

-.z- 

cends in the Idaho ski 
- 

I ~ o r o o a u m - s ~  nmo amoxtt-coasra --[IT 

I Page 252-av 



C OEUR DykLENE, IDAHO-Dr. Robert West wasn't looking to make 
history when a local deputy phoned last September to tell him 
MarshaMason had died. In fact, it didn't take the Kootenai Coun- 

ty coroner long at all to figure out that his former patient had died from 
a severe asthma attack-the deputy had found Mason's electric inhaler 
still running next to her slumped body. Yet West was certain there was 
more to the story. Lots more. 

Just ayear earlier, he had performed a mastectomy on Mason, a 49- 

year-old waitress, and she had progressed 
nicely, r.etnming to her job at Granny's 
Panby in nearby Rathdrum. Though she 
continued to battle asthma, including a 
flare-up that landed her in the hospital in 
early August, Mason "was not an asthma 
patient who was hooked up to her nebu- 
lizer 24 hours a daym West says. "You had 
to be impressed by the fact that this lady 
who was previously well was now dead." 

What changed? West believes that the 
sooty billows of smoke mnerated the day 
befo>e by agricultural geld burning t&- 
gered the fatal attack. It wasn't a claim he 
made e a s ~ ,  either. West supported fann- 
ers' rights to burn their fields when the 
winds transported smoke away -from cities 
and towns. He had spent his childhood on 
a wheat farm in North Dakota, where he 
had seen iirsthand the regenerative pow- 
ers of fire on cropland Still, West under- 
stood that soot particles posed a heaIth 
threat, and the afternoon of September 13 
was one of the haziest, soupiest days he 
had seen inhis 31 years in Coeur d'Alene. 

He also understood that if he were to 
label .field burning a culprit in Mason's 
death he would "have people down my 
neck" Nonetheless, he listed two causes 
on the death certiticate: an acute asthma 
attack and "severe air pollution" caused 
by field burning. "VICTIM WITH KNOWN 
ASTHMA SUBJECTED TO INTENSE AIR 
POLLUTION FROM WHEAT FIELD 
BURNING; he wrote. The finding may 
well mark the first time that a coroner in 
this country has directly linked a death to 
air pollution in more than 40 years. 

Now, almost a year later, field-burniilg 
season has started again in Idaho and 
eastern Washington, a practice time- 
honored at least since the days of Lew- 
is and Clark Torched fieIds send forth 
huge plumes of smoke that often resem: 
ble a looming tornado or  a mushroom 
cloud .from a bomb. Like its incendiary 
cousin the d&e ,  field burning is a 
familiar rural ritual. But growing scien- 
tific and medical evidence that field 
burning poses serious health hazards for 
people with respiratory problems is fueI- 
ing opposition to the practice. "She didn't 

have to die, and I don't want anyone else 
to become a statistic," says Diana Ahem, 
Mason's older sister. "They are burning, 
and it's killing people, and it's wrong." 

Polluted air can and does kill. In 1952, 
the infamous Great London Smog was 
blamed for the deaths of more than 3,000 
people. Earlier this month, a Carnegie 
Mellon University study estimated that 
more people are killed by air pollution 
from traffic than by traffic mashes. 

Ordinarily, however, epidemiologists 
merely infer that air pollution Mls 
Americans. That is one reason M? '3 

death-and the place it occurred- 
shock-Her home near the northern tip of 
Idaho, aconservative corner of a most con- 
servative state, is a place where agriculture 
and timber interests have long held sway. 
West, a Republican who was first elected 
coroner in 1984, says, 'T absolutely knew 
I'd be challenged if I put down air pollu- 
tion on the death certificate." 

Out, daritned soot 
Fanne~s today torch sugar-cane fields in 
Florida, Louisiana, and Texas, rice straw in 
California, Arkansas, and Missouri, and 
grass fields in the Pa&c Northwest And 
ranchers burn millions of acres of grazing 
pasture in Kansas. Farming by fire reduces 
the erosion of topsoil and controls dust by 
eliminating the need for tining operations 
to clear residue and plant new seed. On the 
prairie, fire boosts grass yields for cattle 
and reduces the need for chemicals to con- 



71 ?iv&i% pest i n f d r l s i  Emm d e  A l w &  EEw a g-pear-old &csrnPmk a s h i %  but &e am&, which got uwme 
C~lls- tcmb tens d &on- Wk, XdghQ, wi& @O &*asis, have had ;vea~t & she d d d  dmgies to 

sands o f a m  &chyea~ .to &p &e begkmiq trf: s&od ffeeiag dwt and make, were s p d c  and mpre 
Y&fiddbu$aghml& ax& tw. Kmt& County for w e e i  at a time to dietable, Pa"me dgyg d k e  she &- 

I t ~ t e s ~ ~ ~ l ~ w i t h ~ -  a d d ~ o ~ t o g m s s ~ & e , I % e & -  ~dfmm'@eh@pitdinA,ugmtfo2- ' 

ous 111itms~1c swI +es fhax m e -  PEZ~S' gmup Save QIZF 9uinma snd  he lowing an a d m a  @ttsl& M m  e m  
-ate deep into &e hqp. lT&m&es by the &ates~fdf&o a d  Washkgton to rmtriei: hd at a rdkkb hmiiy xemhn. Far 
N a d  t%m5? snt3 fidd b m g  under the Am&- With the most p w  th&, bas was a life of 
~ ~ ~ ~ s & o ~ l d P E E b I i ~  xm&Zities&a%aingtbetth~p&~- ~ ~ p h ~ - E b H ~ r i t ~ d t . s p & ~  
H e a l t h r n g g e ~ - f h e g ~ ~ 6 & h ~  late pllittio~ d . d e  M&ep RBi& respi- home she shared *th ber second hbus- 

plan@ aad &w m ~ ~ o n  @me@ may rafory preblems fhe right to attend bad> Pat, was &e newbu@~hered Bay 
be 31&0& leading unmg&td air- sr,hoqkt tnwel freelys and play hpablic: m i n h  seat and lzid&m by-skmge 
q e  Eorgbly 60,0043 her3m.m wks. In June, a federal @dge pmkd c~~ipaFtment reserved f ~ r  her tbr~e 
die p r t s n a q  d pear beawe d the W ~ ~ g t o n  State SF- jadgm-eiut in grand- 
p&ep&&i&n,m*@tlre- &e ause. SO8 bas appealed. O a ~ ~ ~ S , s h e a ~ z y ~  
mare than & mm$iaed m m  fhn z e a & t a W d e W w b - s b  
motor vekide accidents andhomiaidg. The Vietfm b t s r  WMX -the B e  cusbm- But, 

E : v e n ~ n 6 n e s c x , t p ~ ~ e s ~ ~ ~  i U i w s k M a s o n b ~ i n b d  work, c r ) ~ a n d w h e e e i n g & r , h e n ~ ~  
*yeanc .aeae-up  d i z h r o n i c m -  &&erf wastilling her vegetable g a r b  bhmn was sest borne aftea j&a %Q n&- 
es. Koatenai and adjoining Banner- or makixrg wooden mooszin &e&q next &w. U&~wn to ~ ~ a f e w d e s - h w n  
County have an estimated 14@0O re& to her m a  ~?3QQsqm&-b&hme h her bow& bluegrass growers am f ie 
h & s  &w f r ~ m  &I &~tric Ri&dmm She loved to raft the Moyie BaikTmm Prairie would sbon start W- 
bron&*, iind &e two c~unties opiiec- Bber, camp3 and Wgr-Tzl l397, she hg 632 axes. About60 iOes todm mb,  

w;rs cliagiosed with a d d  @se fif ni%z&ihid grew- on the Caevr 4Yikne 
evenmom blue 

mmplaia almt&e mole, 
bRBithhi4&utbenordgm 

. 1 M a s b n h a d p u t h k a i E n g ~ h ~ ~ d s  
~ d ~ ~ h ~ ~ ~ ~ h C b ~ ~ -  

%QWn, ~ e ~ d ~ d  t 5 l ~ S ~ d - ~ E i s t  fb- 
paPfi&t~e.:~cbb'~;.'~;Lsr P ~ 2 . 5  matkg, af 

i 6nee 45day- ~bwm, .aeason-Ml 
: nrimagraw! per duBiem&er, For a ~ F M  

.time the h~-- Ba~worsealr- 
poUutio~ %aq mast mqim Amxicm 

Page 252-ax 
Bc ~ R I S  b u K g  6, &UUI 



cities ever have during the year. 
State officials said afterward that read- 

ings above the 100-mierogrm level 
essentially meant 4peop1e am going to be 

but Mason doesn't appear to 
have M e d  suffocating until some fime 
after 4:45 am. Her husband, a logger 
working the %oat owlP shift, had take4 off 
shortly after 2 am, leaving Matsh alone. 
NIarsha had toldhim she was f d h g  bet- 
ter and would get up to take her medim- 
tion. But wben she tried breathing in the 
medicine through the nebulizer mouth- 
piece7 somethingwas terribly wrong. The 
m e d i a  misf was not loosening the 
bronchial spasm shutting down her 
mucus-filled lungs, 

It's hard to c o r n  the 

1Meye, who did not burn on September 13, 
noted tbat there was no airquality meter in 
Ri&drum, so me wuldn4 h o w  that high 
~ e ~ e l s ~ n d e a ~ o n t h e p r a i r e  
actually~tthetown. 

The North Idaho Farmers Assodation, 
whom Meyer represens on the local &ti- 
zen-farmer smoke management advisory 
board, soon seized on a story in .fhe CWT 
d 2 b  Press that said Pat Mason had 
been shocked to see news mprts bfaming 
Marsha's death on gcass smoke and that 
he believed Marsha had died from an ad- 
verse reaction to medication. k two in- 
terviews with W;S. Nms, Mason said he no 
longer believed Marsha had an adverse re- 
action and that grass smoke might have 

vessels in their eyes. 
Unable to loosen e 
bronchial muscles that 

late pollution for only a couple of hours at 
a time-so the 24-horn averages always 
failwithinfedmiillimiB. 

At the stateled, both the Coeur dJAlene 
~beandgmwersantheRathdnrm~e 
run smoke management programs that rely 
on speciaZly sbfW local weather stations 
and otherpo11ution monitors that can alert 
~ t o t h e d a y s b e s t ~ d f m b ~ g .  
Last month, new Idaho Department of 
Agrieultum f i e l d - b e g  d e s  went into 
~ f o r t h e ~ i i m e f o r c o u n ~ w i t h o ~  
a smoke management program. 

Some bluegrass &rowers have eztperi- 
rnented with no-bm alternatives with 
limitedsyws, but most h e r s  stiU find 
that burning crop residue is cheaper and 

stimdates higher yields 
in later years.-"~ wish we 
didn't have to burn, but 
it's an economic necessi- 
ty: contends Meyer. 

The aftermath 
In the end, Mason's death 
helped prompt a single 
change in field-burning 

CDZI.&O~ &e opening to Phe regulatiom. To take ac- 
ahap ,  acute a h a  v ie  count of short-lved air 
tims camat expel the air pollution spikes, the state 
b d y i n t h e 2 l u n g s t o  Department of Environ- 
draw a -fresh breath mental Qualitywillinsti- 

Once her nebulizer tote a burn ban when an 
Med to help, Masm hourly PM2.5 reading 
knew she needed emer- reaches 100 mic~gams 
gency help. At 4:5l a.m. per mbic meter. 
she d e d  9% x m q g  Still, Mason's death 
to gay  h e e n  whe~es: badtbeea forgotten. She 
"I'm having an asthma grew up in a tight-hit 
attack.. . haelpl"The dis- Carol Aaernam gaMens as Hnnu-amen smom moves rowam ner name. fam@ of 14 sl'bhgs. Her 
patch- got Masan's ad- Field burning can be h f i l  to people with respi~atiq ailments. i u n d w a s s o ~ t b a t  
dress, but he appmdy onlookers evert stood in 
Wed to hear her complaint of an asthma helped zrigges her asthma attack the basement ofthe funeral parlor to watch 
attack As a dt, he &patched the howevery assertdin a statement fie service on d o x d d m d ~ o ~ t  Mar- 
Koomai (untyshfls depariment rather that "Members of CMarsha'sl family ac- sha was the fjrst of the 14 children to die, 
than an a d d m e ,  andde shed33 didnot cept that her death was largely due to and-hesskter Diana ABem delivered 
enter Mason's house mxtil20 minuteslater. lifestyle choices Marsha had made." Fam- tbe eulogy, she looked out to see ;the qniv- 
In the midst of the 911 cd, Mas011 and -friends, NIPA reported, said &at enhg lip of their 72-pr-old mother, and 

dropped the receiver. She somehow man- M-ha "smoked most of her life, worked tears streaming down the &tees of eight of 
aged to open the fmnt doorkfbre sitting on in a smoky environment had asthma and her brothers, four ofthem former marines. 
the window seat next to the entrance. breast cancer and was likely diabetic" Bill They didn't deliver antiburning spee&- 
Her legs dangled as close to the door as pos- Dole, abluegrass grower who did burn on es at the herd or at the cemetery later 
mile, presumably awaitiry: an ambuhce. September 13, says: was a neat that day, but Mason's siblings and two 
And then Masan, atop tbe bay window lady who sewed me many a cup of coffee daughters have qui& re&d an attor- 
bench She treasured, died, waitingto exhale. at Granny's. But she was a very sick lady ney, asking him both to investigate the c b  

who c~uldbarelf walk to the restaurant." cumstances of ;Marsha's death and to ad- 
The farmer Dole points out that field burning in vise them what to do to prevent dxequent 
Wayne Meyer, a bluegrass p e r  and state Idaho has never generated enough pollu- field-ljmxing-related &tatitits. 
legidator, knowsfield bumkg is controver- tion to violate federal or state ak qu* At a a visit to sitha's grave in 
sid. For 30 years, Meyex h e d  his blm stan-. Butthis  safe^ record obscures R a t h h  asthewiud soughedthrough the 
grass6elds and, Eke othm growers, had r e  the factthat the Environmental Protection toweringpines n e t  Mamsha'sbrothtz Pat 
spandedta pubZicc0mplaints. h the  outcry Agency does not regulate emisions h m  Griffns left a silk bluebird by her headstone 
after &son's death, the grass gram re- agricultwd bumiog d e s s  they violate to honor herbe  ofthe o~rdoo1~. ' W h  not 
peatedly denied raspons'bilay. Bibal06- federal air quality standardsJ which are jllstgoing~sayhysisterpassedmay'iind 
ciaEs insisted that &om the reserva- based on %+-hour averages. Field burning leave it at that,a he d We win not let 
tionbadnot~~thetownof~fhdrmn. generates tremendous peaks of particu- Wi&ds death beber naught? 

Page 252-ay 
Copyright 2001 u.S.N~ws &WORLD REPORT, L.P. Reprinted wirhpennission. 

For subscriptions to U,s.W~ws & WORLD REPORT, please call 1-890-436-6520. Visit U.S.NEWS & WORLD WQRT on the Web at www,usnews.com. 



What Experts Are Saying About The Health 
Impacts of Air Particulates from Field Burning 

"Health studies have shown a significant association between exposure to fine parti- 
cles and premature mortality." (Phd2.5 NAAQS Implementation, www.epa.gov/ttn/ 
naaqs/pm/pm25 index. html) 

"There is clear and convincing scientific evidence that significant adverse human- 
health effects occur in response to short-term and chronic particulate matter exposure 
at and below 1 5pg/m3, the level of the current annual PM2.5 standard." (Letter to EPA 
Administrator Stephen Johnson, 09/29/06) 

"Occasional, short-term particulate sources such as field burning or prescribed field 
burning can have adverse health impacts on the public, especially sensitive groups 
like asthmatics." (DEQ Field Burning letter, 10/20/06) 

"Even short-term exposure to fine particulate air pollution has been found to increase 
the risk for hospital admissions for cardiovascular and respiratory ailments." (Journal 
of the American Medical Association, Fine Particulate Air Pollution and Hospital Ad- 
mission for Cardiovascular and Respiratory Diseases, 03/08/06) 

"Long-term exposure to fine particulate air pollution is associated with the incidence 
of cardiovascular disease and death among postmenopausal women." (The New Eng- 
land Journal of Medicine, Long-Term Exposure to Air Pollution and Incidence 
of Cardiovascular Events in Women, 02/01 107) 

"Particle pollution significantly increases the risk of dying early. High levels of particle 
pollution can shorten life, even if the exposure is over a short period, like hours or 
days. People can die within days or weeks when breathing high levels, which field 
burning can produce. Many studies over the past two decades have confirmed this, 
including large studies around the world." (Health Effects of Fine Particulate Air Pollu- 
tion: Lines that Connect, Pope CA, ~ o c k e k  DW, Air Waste Management Association, 
2006) 

"Epidemiological evidence has established a clear link between small airborne parti- 
cles and health, particularly for an at-risk population comprising people with existing 
pulmonary conditions such as asthma, emphysema, chronic bronchitis or heart dis- 
ease." (Estimates of the Benefits and Costs From Reductions in Grass Seed Field 
Burning, 12/27/96) 

"Scientific evidence conclusively documents that particulate air pollution, such as that 
generated by agricultural field burning, increases the incidence of respiratory and car- 
diac disease." (Letter from 87 physicians in Kootenai County, Idaho calling for the end 
of field burning.) 

Page 252-az 



"Is a clear temporal relationship between documented airborne particulate matter ex- 
posure from grass field residue burning and documented health effects that are con- 
sistent with these documented exposures, and that are also consistent with the known 
biological effects of exposure to the chemical components of the smoke resulting from 
grass field residue burning." Declaration of Ricahrd B. Schlesinger, Ph.D. in Safe Air 
For Everyone v. Wayne Meyer, et al.) 

""Ambient (outdoor) air pollution is now recognized as an important problem, both na- 
tionally and worldwide. Our scientific understanding of the spectrum of health effects 
of air pollution has increased, and numerous studies are finding important health ef- 
fects from air pollution at levels once considered safe. Children and infants are among 
the most susceptible to many of the air pollutants." (Ambient Air Pollution: Health Haz- 
ards to Children, American Academy of Pediatrics, Pediatrics, Vol. 114) 

"The increase in relative risk for heart disease due to air pollution for an individual is 
small compared with the impact of the established cardiovascular risk factors such as 
high blood pressure or high cholesterol. However, this is a serious public health prob- 
lem due to the enormous number of people affected and because exposure to air pol- 
lution occurs over an entire lifetime." (Robert D. Brook, M.D., lead author of the Ameri- 
can Heart Association statement Air Pollution and Cardiovascular Disease: A state- 
ment for Healthcare Professionals From the Expert Panel on Population and Preven- 
tion Science of the American Heart Association, 06/01/04) 

Page 252-ba 



OFFICERS 
C h h i l  
m( Nil 
Xey 
McMmr*& 

sccretm'y 
3 3  Jenstin 
W m € D M 1 ~  
P- 

Itn?abllf01 
Dmo'leary 
GeSnMcrhrrr & eo PC 
P r n W  

I%; CI~akmn 
Vkginin HuR 
T i 4  

u z m o e  
R w  C'nrruw 
Vanmme~s 

v;r&tii Brill 
rigad 
&mgc Hosi-iilft 
Fergigar Welkrpul CsrilJl blgm 11% 
PmYld 
W m  w, Ph.D.b F P  
Po&ml C&~*:mf Eleanc 
&nauUl 

MkhwI S Lcrvk MD 
L . ~ J E Y ~ ~ c  Mlv 
1%- 

WTmy S-NltCilOJe mq. 
~ ~ 6 ~ 6 t W o l t I ~  
I'odd 
Wti$W m y  
bb 0 5 1 ~ 8 ~  

Swab Snow 
PonIirad 
Frplhkn ',Ye% 
[I*uThee76€a&.~ 
llaarl 

SUE F@E 
cSOAMABC)a~ I 

rx=m-- 
Prsidmt 
K ; u n o l ~ ~ ~ M D  
Pordasd t w@ CWIc 
W M  

~Pilsl wdonl 
M e w  I-kjpald* MD 
Oenrlmriot CffLtk 
w 

74.20 SW Bddgepon Raild 
Suite 200 
T i ,  OR 97324-7730 

(503) 924-4094 
I -%a666J 
IW-577-LUNEi (in Oregon) 
FAX; 1403) 524-41 20 
i e f o @ ~ ~ g o ~ i l ~ t g  
HIW\V Iwcegon arg 

Imgrmving Lifq One 
Breath ag a Time 

AMERICAN 
LUNG 

I ASSOClATlONc 
of Oregon 

Date: April 6,2007 

Re: Eaf 3000 Open field* pile and stock bwnnW 

Dear Representative Hcil~lcey, 

Thank you very much for your leadership on prohibiting fieid burning in Oragon. We fully 
support your effort to pass House Bill 3000 his l@slntive session, 

The practice of burning or woad in fie]& p p i s  large mmmts d@cIe pollution, or 
pa~ticulale matter, which we tiny bits of ash and mot that can fodge deep inside the lui~gs a d  
hnm the body- They p h c e  b a h  fmc (PM 2.5) md cosrrse particles (eM 102 hrsicle 
pollubn ikom crop ;bumin8 can r a m  these threats ts bumn hdth: 

Particle pollution sipificantly in~:raws the dsk af dpng edy-  High leMs of 
pmkle poliugon afi shqxten life, even if rhe exposum is over a shert period, like 
haus or days. People can die \ktitMn d3yvor weeks when breathg h i i  levels, 
which fteIdbdng can prurdute, my studies over* p a ~ r  two 8euiks have 
*onfirmed this, ineludifig 1- studies m n d  tka world. Pope €!A, Bor;kery DW. 
Health Effects of Fine Pnrti&Iate Air Polhtionc Lines that Connect 3 A k  W s t ~  
Yunge A . s ~ c  ulo6: 56:709-742.) 

Mare rhan 2,000 pew-reyiewed studies on the sub* hwe boen prtbpished size 
1 996, a o n f i n g  Ihe srrong retaliomhip between pdck pOIMon, illness, 
hospi~aktion aad ptem8ttm d ~ t h  The USi EnvironmemDf Protmtion Agency 
recently completed a review of lhese stmiis and linked padde poJ1ution to 
premature dwrh from czdiovmcukndimse. kwf att& and srrokes, as -11 as 
walsenhg COPD, and m y  cause lung c a m -  4U.S. EPA- Air Quality 
Biteria For ~ m l a ~ e  M W ,  October 2OW.j 

Those r n o ~  at riSk a d  the mstugEmlable among m: childm under 18, those over. 
65, tfim aii& lung diseases tih ashma ;md COPD. those with ea'di~~m~1m 
di~eases nrrd dies. 

r Children's lungs develop mostly after they're born ikd sir pollution from burning can 
affect the ability @of the lungs to develop nonnally, Ieading to a Iifetime of breathing 
problems. Children are alsu outside more than adult& so hey risk b~athing mow of 
this pollution The Amerim Academy of Pediatricians wium that particle pollution 
has been linked to inf't dm% low birth weight and premature birth. (American 
Academy of Pediatrics Committee on Environmental Health, Ambient Air Pollution: 
hedrh h;lzar& to children. Pedibfriccs 2004, 114: 1699-1 707.) 

People with lung d i m e s  already bave difficulty breathing because their lungs don't 
work as well. Pdcle pdlufion triggers asthmeawcks. increased risk of 
hospitalization md emergency mom visits, increased use of medicines. New s~adies 
are finding that pWkles may mccease risk of developing chronic bronchitis as well as 
lung cancer. (U.S. EPA, 2003). 

People with diovascular diseases have an in-ed risk of developing problems 
and like dinbetis can silffer increased hwrt disease, heart failure, heart attacks* and 
dysrhythmiss, strokes and hospital admissions for these conditions. (Pope and 
Dockery. 2006). 

Page 252-bb 



Seniors are also more likely LO suffer from worsened cardiovascular and respiratory 
diseases as well as premature death because of breathing high levels of particle 
pollution (U.S. EPA. 2004). 

The affects of field burning affects the people of Oregon. These peopIe live in your districts. 

Please join the American Lung Association and stand up fur their health Support HB 3000 

Bmuse when you can't breathe nothing else matters nf 

Page 252-bc 



Field Burning: The Facts 

Oregon grawew burn an average af 50,QOO acres per year. 

In 2006, grass seed growers produced more than 12,000 tons of pollution from field 
burning. During the four highest burning day's growers produced more than 770 tons 
of fins particulates, 4,885 tons of carbon monoxide, and more than 676 tons of toxic 
chtSdcals like benzene. During these four days, the amount of carbon monoxide gene 
erated from burning equds half the total yeady carbon monoxide output generated by 
the largest smokesfack pollluter in the Southern WillarnePte Valley. 

iha smoke from field burning mntains fine particullate matter (Pk5). T h e  particles 
(roughly 1/30 the size of a human heir) are dangerous because they lodge deeply in 
the lungs where they can cause and aggravate major health problems, 

Scientific evidence elearty drrcuinerlts the rel-ationship between exposure to PMsaa and 
health problems. The Journal of the American Medial Association states that "even 
short-te~m expsure to fine parficsllate air pollution has been found to increa'se the rilsk 
fur hospital admissions far cardiovascular and respiratory ailments." The EFA states 
that *many scientific studies have found an assodation between exposure to paam- 
Iate matter and a series of significant health problems; indudhg : aggravated aslth-ma, 
chronic brmchitis, reduced lung function; irregular heafibeat; heart attack; and prema- 
ture death in people Mth heart or lung disease." 

Standards used in measuring and monitoring field burning smoke do not protect the 
puhlic health. Studies that cjte that field burning represents 2% of particulate pollution 
do not accurately portray the problem. These studies include coarse particulate mat- 
ter (PMla), but PM2.5 particles are those that are dangerous to the body. Monitoring 
also use formats that average down the true impact of field burning by removing the 
highest pollution days and averaging data over a number hours and days. 

Eliminating Field Burning will not ruin the industry. Since the legislature began reduc- 
ing the amount of acreage that can be burned, the number of production acres in Ore- 
gon has increased. Washington State has seen similar results since it eliminated the 
practice with acres grown and yields per acre Increases since 1998. 

Viable alternatives to field burning exist. Growers can retain the straw on their fields, 
bale and export the product as livestock feed, or rotate their crops with meadowfoam 
to fight weeds and create oil that can be sold for use beauty products. 

Page 2-52-bd 

- - ,  - 



/ 
Buck 

Allergy & 
Asthma 
Clinic 

Ti 
Representative Paul Holvey 
900 Court St. NE H-475 
Salem OR 97301 

Dear Reprewnitattive Hol'veyey, 

Richard Buck M.D. Virginia Buck M.D. 
Board Certified Physicians 

220 1 Willamette St. - Suite C Eugene OR 97405 

54 1-683-0730 

The fallowing is a letter of support that we are sending to our State Senators and Representatives. 

As specialists in asthma and allergy in Eugene and Springfield, we are writing to e q p s s  our coneem about 
grass field burning- The exposure to small particuke matter from field blrrning in the surnm&r and from wood 
smoke and air pollution has been asswiated with worsening of asthma, The result is  an increase in emergency 
room visits, hospital admissions, and increased medication use, This ras$ to the individual and to soeiery is 
unacceptable- 

Specifically with regard to field burning, Oregon is now the anb Northwestern State in which fteld burning i: 
lawful. Washington SWe has banned open RcId burning and a recent Federal Court dwisjon stated that field 
burnjng k illegal im Idaho. Q~egon's asthma rare is significantly higher &an the national me, 9.9%% campared 
7.7*/ir, and b e  County's rate of 1 0.5% is seeond only to Linn County at 1 1.9%. 

The €PA finally acted last month to cut the amount of fine particulate matter from smoke to be allowed in the 
air. 'IYlis will result in dbpping the level in the air at which burning of w d  is allowed. Them will also be 
increased pl.e!ssure Its eliminate fidd krnitlg to meet this new standardd Now is the time for the State Legislatu 
to act and c~mpl~tely ban field burning smoke in Oregon. 

The@ ws viable dtgnatives to burning and these must be implemented statewide- It is na _longer wwphble r 
allow the economic interests of200 grass seed growers to take precedence over h e  ~heatth of thousands of other 
Oregonians. 

I ask you to work with Representative Halvey to develop a legislative solution hai brings field burning to an 
end. 

Virginia M. Buck, M.D. Richard 0. Buck, M.D. 

Page 252-be 



OREGON MEDICAL ASSOClATlON 

April 3,2007 

Dear Honorable Representative: 
I am writing on behalf of the Oregon Medical ~ssociation to eficourage you to vote in favor of HB 
3000, a bill that bans field burning. The OMA supports HB 3000 because field burrring increases air 
pollution and bas adverse heaIth effects an those exposed ta it, 

There is no question that field burning increases air pollution, and while some may claim that the 
level of pollution is acceptable, this reasoning flies in the face of recent scientific studies. Even if 
exposure to particulate matfer in the PM2,* range is short-term, there me still significant risks to public 
health, especially to people with asthma or other respiratory conditions. Both the EPA and 
Departm& of Environmental Quality agree that human heidth is adversely affected by short-term 
exposure to particulate sources such as field burning. Additionally, an article appedng in the 
February New England J o u d  of Medicine reported that '%@em exposure to fine pdculate air 
pollution is associated with the incidence of cardiovascular disease and death among post- 
menopama1 women." 

Exposme to fine particdate matter (PM2.5) increases the number and severity of asthma attacks, 
bronchitis, may increase cardiovascular risk, or even lead t~ premature death. D M .  has long been 
supportive of asthma education and prevention measures and believes that HI3 3000 would make 
great strides toward preventing unnacessary air pollution and improving air quality for our patients. 

Please vote YES on HB 3000 - for yom health, and the health of your constituents. 

Sincerely, 

John E v w ,  M.D. 
Chair, Community Health Committee 

Page 252-bf 

11740 SW #* Parkway, Suite TOO 
Portland, Oregon 972!23-9038 
phm 50a.~i9.8000 



January 18,2002 

Dear Neighbors, 

We, physicians of Kootenai County, join our colleagues in Sandpoint in calling for an end to 
agricultural field buming in North Idaho. Scientific evidence condusively documents that 
particulate air pollution, such as that generated by agricultural field buming, increases the 
incidence of respiratory and cardiac disease. 

For years, our first-hand experience has shown us that the pattern and intensity of smoke 
exposure caused by field burning is particularly harmful to many individuals, especially those 
with cardiac and respiratory illnesses. 

We recognize that farming bestows benefits on communities it serves and that growen have 
legitimate concerns about ending field burning. However, we feel that the suffering of those 
adversely affected by field smoke is without adequate justification. 

We support in particular efforts to preserve the economic viability of agriculture in our 
communities while, most importantly, bringing the practice of field burning to an end before 
others are needlessly endangered. 

Signed, 

Frederick P. Ambrose, M.D. 
Henry Amon, Jr., M.D. 
Duane R Anderson, M.D. 
David R. Barnes, M.D. 
Thomas J. Bassler, Jr., M.D. 
Thomas P. Beaton, M.D. 
George C. Bell, M.D. 
Richard K. Bell, M.D. 
Robert G. Benedetti, M.D. 
Eric Benson, M.D. 
Barry Bergen, M.D. 
Paul Berger, M.D. 
Christopher Billingslea, D.O. 
Mark Brinkman, M.D. 
Jemlyn Brossfield, M.D. 
Timothy Bums, M.D. 
Richard 6. Caldwell, M.D. 
David Chambers, M.D. 
Donald Chisholm, M.D. 
W. Eric Chun, M.D. 
Henry D. Covelli, M.D. 
Duane Craddock, M.D. 
Stephen Craig, M.D. 
David E. Davenport, M.D. 
Michael Dixon, M.D. 
Andrea Dominey, M.D. 
Henry Downs, M.D. 
Bradley, Drury, M.D. 
Adie Esau, M.D. 

Terese M. Fandel, M.D. 
R0bert.C. Farr, M.D. 
Ronald M. Fritz, D.O. 
William Ganz, M.D. 
Alan 6. Grouet, M.D. 
Carl L. Hanson, M.D. 
R. Randel Henneberg, M.D. 
Keith Hewel, M.D. 
John F. Hoffman, M.D. 
Robert Holman, M.D. 
Stephen Iacoboni, M.D. 
Karen M. Ireland, M.D. 
Michael W, James, M.D. 
Peter C. Jones, M.D. 
George C. Kutteruf, M.D. 
James Y. Lea, M.D. 
H. Mark tickey, M.D. 
Lee Lindquist, M.D. 
Rey V. Luce, M.D. 
Gordon Luther, M.D. 
Albert 3. Martinez, M.D. 
Jefii-ey D. McDonald, M.D. 
Robert M. Warland, M.D. 
Richard A. Mciandress, M.D. 
Susan Melchoire, M.D. 
Linda S. Michalson, M.D. 
Brendan Mielke, M.D. 
Bruce K. Miewald, M.D. 
Terence E. Neff, M.D. 

Stephen A. Moss, M.D. 
Robert Mulvihill, M.D. 
L. Raymond Newcomb, M.D. 
Adam Olscamp, M.D. 
James P. Osmanski,II, D.O. 
Lorene Osmanski, M.D. . 
Patrick J. Parden, M.D. ' 

Romeo Pavlic, M.D. . 
Anthony D. Peters, D.0- 
Timothy T. Quinn, M.D. 
Thomas R. Rau, M.D. 
Terrance A. Riske, M.D. 
Richard 3. Robinson, M.D. 
Linda Sakai, M.D. 
Mary A. Sanderson, M.D. 
Antoine Sarkis, M.D. 
Peter V. Semogas, M.D. 
Robin R Shaw, M.D. 
Douglas R Stafford, M.D. 
Ronald J. Stout, M.D. 
J.H. Strimas, M.D. 
Haluk Tezcan, M.D. 
Stanley A. Toelle, M.D. 
R. Alan Wales, M.D. 
Michael Wiederkehr, M.D. 
Craig W. Wiesenhutter, M.D. 
David A. Wold, M.D. 
David P. York, M.D. 
Mirko Zugec, M.D. 

Page 252-bg 



URBAN SERVICES COMMITTEE 
MINUTES 

May 3,2007 

Present 
Patricia Daniels, Chair 
George Grosch 
David Hamby 

Visitors -- 

Lynn Roylance, Corvallis-Benton Chamber 
Coalition 

Staff - 
Jon Nelson, City Manager 
Steve Rogers, Public Works Director 
Jim Mitchell, Transportation and Buildings 

Division Manager 
EmeIy Day, City Manager's Office 

SUMMARY OF D!SCUSSION 

CONTENT OF DISCUSSION 

Councilor Daniels called the meeting to order at 4:00 pm. 

Agenda Item 

I. Airport tease Assignment Procedures 

11. Airport Lease Assignment - 
Community Outreach, Inc. 

Ill. Airport Lease - Mid-Valley Painting 

IV. Other Business 

I .  Air~ort Lease Assianment Procedures (Attachment) 

Public Works Director Rogers noted that the issue crf revising the airport lease assignment 
procedure had been discussed by the Committee, Public Works staff, and representatives 
of Corvallis-Benton Chamber Coalition (B-CCC). Previously, airport lease assignment 

ATTACHMENT F 
Page 252-bh 

Information 
Only 

Held for 
Further 
Review 

- -  

- -- 
-- 

Recommendations 
- 

Approve changing the airport lease 
assignment process to provide a 
mechanism for the Airport 
Commission to forward unanim~usly 
approved, simple lease assignment 
recommendations directly to the City 
Council by way of the Consent 
Agenda - 

Approve'the lease assignment from 
Community Outreach, Inc., to 
RCBEC, LLC, and authorize the City 
Manager to sign a lease agreement 
with RCBEC, LLC 

Approve the proposed lease with 
Mid-Valley Painting and authorize the 
City Manager to sign the 
LandIBuilding Lease Agreement 

- 



Urban Services Committee 
May 3,2007 
Page 2 

reviews and approvals required as much time as new lease reviews and approvals. The 
lease assignment transaction is fairly simple but is the City's only interaction with current 
and prospective lessees as they change ownership of a building on City-owned land; 
therefore, the City handled lease assignments similar to new leases. Currently, the Airport 
Commission reviews lease assignment requests and forwards recommendations to the 
Committee, which forwards recommendations to the Council. The current lease 
assignment process can delay business sale transactions. According to the City's standard 
airport lease, lease assignment approval cannot be unreasonably withheld. Staff typically 
assesses the potential for the new lessee to meet its financial obligations to the City, which 
would be the only reason to withhold a lease assignment approval. Staff suggested 
amending the lease assignment review and approval procedure so that the Commission's 
recommendations would be forwarded directly to the Council under the Consent Agenda, 
without review by the Committee. 

Transportation and Buildings Division Manager Mitchell added that staff presented to the 
Airport Commission the Committee's previous suggested amendments to the standard 
airport lease document: changes regarding notifications, removing the term "immoral" from 
the section regarding nuisances, and updating the non-discrimination verbiage. These 
amendments would be included in all future lease assignments. Any other lease 
amendments would necessitate the Committee's review of a lease assignment request. 

In response to Councilor Hamby's inquiry, staff confirmed that no other issues are 
forwarded from advisory bodies directly to the Council under Consent Agenda. Councilor 
Grosch noted that interim liquor license approvals are presented to the Council, based 
upon staffs administrative review, without review by a Council Standing Committee. 

Councilor Hamby indicated support of the proposed procedure change. In response to his 
inquiry, Mr. Rogers explained that the proposed procedure represents how the lease 
assignment process would be conducted. The City does not have a written procedure for 
lease assignment request reviews and approvals. Council meeting minutes would 
document the Council's approval of a procedural change. 

Councilor Hamby asked that a lease assignment request which receives a dissenting vote 
from the Airport Commission be forwarded to the Committee for review, so a Commission 
member would have opportunity to express their concerns. Councilor Grosch noted that 
the Council Liaison to the Commission should be able to address any Commission 
concerns regarding a lease assignment request. 

Based upon a motion moved and seconded by Councilors Grosch and Hamby, 
respectively, the Committee unanimouslv recommends that Council approve changing the 
airport lease assignment process to provide a mechanism for the Airport Commission to 
forward unanimously approved, simple lease assignment recommendations directly to the 
City Council by way of the Consent Agenda. 

Page 252-bi 



Urban Services Committee 
May 3,2007 
Page 3 

11. Aimort Lease Assiqnment - Community -- - Outreach. Inc. (Attachment) 

Mr. Rogers explained that Community Outreach, Inc. (COI) will sell its building on leased 
property at the Corvallis Airport lndustrial Park. The new building owner (RCBEC, LLC) 
will occupy the building. The Airport Commission unanimously approved the lease 
assignment request. He noted that staff assembled far the Committee's review the series 
of leases involving the subject building. 

City Manager Nelson noted that the Business Enterprise Center (BEC) interim location (the 
subject building) meets its current needs. Long term, the BEC hopes to have a facility at 
the Oregon State University South Campus Technology Park. 

Mr. Mitchell added that the Airport Industrial Park can be a potential site for expanding 
businesses that begin at the BEG. 

Based upon a motion moved and seconded by Councilors Hamby and Grosch, 
respectively, the Committee unanirno~~stv recommends that Council approve the lease 
assignment from Community Outreach, Inc., to RCBEC, LLC and authorize the City 
Manager to sign a lease agreement with RCBEC, LLC. 

111. Airport Lease - Mid-Valley Painting (Attachment) 

Mr. Rogers explained that the City owns a building at Cowallis Airport Industrial Park that 
has been used as a storage facility. The building was recently leased by Gerry Sturis of 
G&C Maintenance. Mr. Sturis' partner, Randee Fields, wants to continue leasing the 
building under a different business name (Mid-Valley Painting), which creates a new lease 
arrangement. The lease term would be one year, which staff supports in this case 
because the land is more valuable for re-development in the future; until that opportunity 
exists, a short-term lease is advantageous to all parties involved. The lease includes 
provisions for standard square-footage land and building rates. 

In response to Councilor Grosch's inquiry, Mr. Mitchell explained that the lease provisions 
address storage of substances, such as volatile materials associated with a paint business. 
Staff inspects leased properties and facilities at the beginning and end of lease terms; City 
lease provisions allow staff to inspect leased premises during the term of a lease. The 
building does not have drains, so there is little likelihood of any substances from the 
painting business entering the storm water or sanitary sewer drainage systems. 

In response to Councilor Mamby's inquiry, Mr. Mitchell clarified that the lease before the 
Committee would not be subject to the new lease assignment review procedure, as irt 
constitutes a new lease to a new entity. 

In response to Councilor Hamby's furtherinquiry, Mr. Mitchefl explained that leased parcels 
typically extend from the abutting street to the back of the lot, even though the building 
andlolr parking area are small. The United States Department of Agriculture leased the 

Page 252-bj 



Urban Services Committee 
May 3,2007 
Page 4 

property at one time and required a lease that constrained the leased property to the 
building footprint. The G&C Maintenance lease included provision of a ten-foot buffer for 
which the lessee was responsible. 

Based upon a motion moved and seconded by Councilors Grosch and Hamby, 
respectively, the Committee unanimously recommends that Council approve the proposed 
lease with Mid-Valley Painting and authorize the City Manager to sign the LandIBuilding 
Lease Agreement. 

IV. Other Business 

A. The Urban Services Committee meeting scheduled for May 10,2007, is canceled. 

B. The Urban Services Committee will conduct a special meeting May 22, 2007, at 
4:00 pm in the Madison Avenue Meeting Room. 

C. The Urban Services Committee meeting scheduled for May 24,2007, is canceled. 

D. The Urban Services Committee will conduct a special meeting May 30, 2007, at 
530 pm in the Madison Avenue Meeting Room. 

Councilor Daniels adjourned the meeting at 4:22 pm. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Patricia Daniels, Chair 

Page 252-bk 



MEMORANDUM 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

Urban Services Committee 

Steve Rogers, Public Works D i r e c t o w  

April 16,2007 

SD.J&T: Lease Assignment Procedures 

ISSUE 
Should the City change the airport lease review and recommendation process to allow simple 
lease assignment recommendations fiom the Airport Commission to go directly to City Council 
by way of the consent agenda? 

BACKGROUND 
State law requires that the City Council review and approve all red estate transactions for the 
City. The current city procedure is for lease assignments for Airport property to be reviewed by 
the Airport Commission, the Urban Services Committee and the City Couneil. 

DISCUSSION 
When a building is sold or re-ranted at the Airport Industrial Park, the lease assignment process 
involves Corvallis Benton Chamber Coalition staff, City staff, Airport Commission, and the 
Urban Services Committee, be-fore it reaches the City Council. In the past, this process has taken 
up to six weeks to complete, when everyfhing is working correctly. In the case when a lease 
assignment is a direct assignment because of a sale or a restruchuing of the participants in a 
lease, this process could be made more efficient and effective by skipping the Urban Services 
Committee and going directly to the City Council by way of the eonsent agenda. The leases 
include a clause which states that the City must approve a lease assignment, but that the City 
"will not unreasonably withhold" the approval. The due diligence necessary to form a 
recommendation on the lease assignment would be performed by staff and the Airport 
Commission. Public: process and meeting notice requirements would still be satisfied by having 
the public meeting at the Airport Commission. The b o r t  Commission has a liaison fkom the 
City Council, who can facilitate the communication about different lease activities at the Aqort.  
Ifthere is an issue or difficulty with a lease, that item could be pulled %om the consent agenda 
and discussed by the City Council. 

In addition, if the City Council liaison anticipates that the lease assignment would not be 
appropriate for the consent agenda, then the Airport Commission process could forward the lease 
assignment to the Urban Services Committee instead. I n c l m g  items that are currently in the 
process, the last six months has seen four leases and five lease assignments. Of those 
assignments, all of them would be simple lease assignments, appropriate for being placed on the 
consent agenda, This proposed change in procedure has been reviewed and approved by the 
Airport Commission. 

Page 252-b1 



This change in pro~edure will reduce the mount of staffhours and Committee t h e  required to 
process a lease assignment reqzzest. With tihis process, it should be possible for a lease 
assignment to be seen by the Airport Commission an the first Tuesday of the month and to have 
it approved by City Comcil on the third Monday of the month. In addition to staE time that will 
be saved, it reduces the number of meetings that the applicant needs to attend as well. 

RECOMMENDAmON 
S t ~ ~ d  the Airport Commission recommend that the Airport lease assignment process be 
changed to provide a rnwhanism for the Airport Commission to forward simple lease assignment 
recornendations directly to the Conallis City Council by way of the consent agenda. 

Review and Concur, 

City Manager 

Page 252-bm 



DATE: 

Page 252-bn 



Assignment of Lease 

April 11,2007 

KKOW ALL PEOPLE BY TEESE PRESENTS, that Community Outreach, Inc. ,an Orcgon non- 
pmfit corporation dues hereby yrant, bargain, sdl and assim and set over unto RCBEC LLC an 
Oregon limited liability corporation, its lessee's interest in a gtound Xestse dated July I, 1993, 
between the CITY OF CORVALLIS, Lessor and SSSI PROPERTIES: he,. Lessee, recorded 
August 35,1993, Microfilm No. 168859-93, Microfilm Records, Be~iton County Oregon and the 
First Addcndun .to Lease, including the terms md provisions thereof, recorded August 25 1993, 
bficrofilrn No.. 168890-93, ,Microfilm 'Records, Bmton County Oregon. 

The prcrpew covered by the lease and this Assignment of Lease is described cm Exhibit A, 
which is attached hereto arad by this refmace incorporated herein. 

The true and actual considemtion for this transfer is isc agreement by rhe Assignee, RCBEC 
LLC, to pay all of the Assignor's, Community Outreach, Inc. obligations mder said lease, 
including but not linlited to p a p e n t  of rent. Assignor warrants that there has been no default 
under said lease, and said leasc is in full force arid effect, and it has the unqualified right to make 
this assignment md transfer of said lease. 

IX WITKTSS %'HEREOF: said Assignor has executed this assignnle~st on the day ,md year first 
virittcn above. 

COMVLXTTY OVTREACH, INC. 
An Oregon non-profi t corporation 

Dale: 

Acceptance of >4ssign men t 

The undersigned Assi~mce hereby accepts the foregoing assignment and agrees to abide by af I of 
the terns md ~ontfitions therein contained muld in the lease assigned thereby to be perfam~ed by 
the Lessee therein, and to indemnify and hold Assignor hamless from ally a~ncl all liability under 
such lease from t11c date of this Assignment and hcreaffcr. 

ASSIGNEE: 

---------...-.-- -- Daze: 
RCBEC LLC 

- - -- . ---. --- -> - - Date: 

Page 252-bo 



WgIr"kni&g at a point where tho northerly right-a$-my 
l h e  of S.@. A i r p o r t  Avmua (a 60-frof righk-cf-my) 
i~%emsac%s me% w~gt.ezr3y kx;md~w I b a  0% PaxetaX a O  oZ 
%%e forvazri~, orwan Hmlcipsll A f t p o r t  InBurzzlal 
ParX,'sai& peSM alse being a e  trva prrfnt ~f 
bginnlng: then=$, no- O *  02' east 258 f aiert: *htit.cc?., 
a&&& $1' WE~S* 380 $a@$;, t28hena;z~ oo~xlfi: 0' CP * pis&& 

 as^ esae % e-sz aos*~rPy sSqht-ef-@w &An@ 96 $ - W e  
rt ;$iva3rzae: waeaok d q  the rSq~**@~-w;rt.g~w~p 
300 h e - f  %.Q e paint' af! f t r ~ d d a g :  all M%B$J 

' In ;aee&lm 2 2 ,  a 342 SOU*&, 3 Was*s 
%%& k2GB53kt~ berid $&a, BWikib~ COUR*~ O Z B ~ I = ~ ~  + aPi& 
mxota%xa* 1, $94 a@a*m 

I h d w  cet46f~ &IP rke W n  & t r m n r  
waia testi.cd bf or. 
"93PB25 B f i  3 58 





Assignment of Lease 

May 3,2097 

KNQW ALL FEX3PLE BY THESE fRESEBT8, &at Community Outreach, bc. an 
Oreg~D man-profif corporation does hereby grmt, bargab* sell and assign and s& over u n t ~  
RCBEC LLC an Oregon limited liability co~mation, its l m s ~ e ~ s  interest in a @owd lawe 
dated July 1,1993, between the CITY OF CORVALLIS, Lessor and SSSl PROPERTIESa 
kc,. Lessee, recorded August 25,1993, h!f!befilrn No, 168889-93, M i c ~ o f h  Records, 
Be~$oa C o w  aeg011 and she First Addendm to Lease3 hcludijlg the terns and 
pravisi~ns thereof, recarded August 25 1993, Micrafi1m No. 1 5889043, Miejrofilm 
Reoords, Benbn County Oregon assigned to Csmurdv Outreach 'Inc. (COI) on 
September 13,2000, and then amended on May 14,2003 and May 15,2003. 

The me md actual cdnsidwafi~)~, for this trans& is the agPeem.mt by the Assignee, 
RCEEC LLC, to pay all sf the Assignor's, Gommmjty O u ~ c b ,  1%~. obligations under 
said lease, iBclading but nof limited ta payment of m t ,  &sipor wmmu that there has 
been no default und@ said lease, aacI said lease is in MI force mtl ~ f i c t ,  and it has the 
mquafiCied Tight to make d h  assignmat d g-dnsfer of said Iease. 

IN WITNESS JYHFdZEOP, said Assignor has executed this assignment pn the day and year 
written above. 

ASSIGNOR; 

CQIbfMUMTY ~ U T W C X ,  INC. 
AR Qmgm am-profit c~lpowlinn 

Date: - 

Page 252-br 



LEASE AMENDMENT and CONSENT TO ASSIGN 

The City of Corvallis, as Lessor under the lease between the City of CorvaUis and SSSI 
Inc. July 1,1993, amended on August 25, 1993, assigned ta Community Outreach Inc. (COI) on 
September 13,2000, and then amended on May 14,2003 and May 15,2003 and by this 
document, consents to the assignment by COI, Assignor, to RCBEC, LLC, Assignee, of all of 
Assignor" rigbt, title and interest in the lease assignment of the property described above; and 
the City accepts RCBEC, LLC. as Lessee under that lease. 

The lease described above is amended to remove from Section 4.C. the words '"or 
immoral. " 

The lease described above is amended by changing the Lessee in Section 21 to: 
RCBEC, LLC. 
Attn: Rich Carone 
7250 Avalon Drive 
Corvallis, OR 97330 

DATELI this day of - B 2007 

Cammuflity Outreach, In$, RCRBC, LLC. 

CITY OF CORVALLIS 

Approved As to Fom 

By: 
Jon S . Nelson, City Manager 

City Attorney 

Page 252-bs 



MEMORANDUM 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

Urban Services Committee 

Steve Rogers, Public Works Director+ 

April 16,2007 

New Lease - Randee Fields dba Mid Valley Painting 

ISSUE, 
The lease for the building and property at 490 SW Aupurt expires April 17,2007, A new lease: 
is proposed with Rmdee Fields dba Mid Valley Painting. 

BACKGROUND 
The buildG a&&& SW Anport Avenue is owned by the City of Corvallis. In the past it bas 
beax used by the U.S, Department of Agricdtare (USDA) Eor staraga Most raxntly it bas b m  
leased by Geny Sturis of G&G Maiutenanee. Mr. Fields has been w~rking with Gerry SWis atld 
jointly u-sing the building. 

DrISCUSSXQN 
The current property at 490 S W Airport Avenue is being used to house building supply 
materials. The cment lease fielder is not int-e~ested in extending the lease. The current lease is 
for one yew with two ten-year exteasions, Mr. Fields is not intmested b a ten-yew lease md 
wishes to enter a new one-year lease, It is the god of the City to keep th is  property under a 
short-term lease until a. better utilization of the area can 'be arranged, To accomrmodate this goal, 
-this lease is mitten to allow two extensions for one year e d .  The current lease rate for .Ihe 
property is $.Q825/sq B md $.19Jsq fi fm the building, far a m t M y  lease a f  $219.1 3. me le&e 
rate will remain the same initially, with CPI increases yearly on July 1. 

The property being leased includes juft 10 feeh around the building. This is an histor&d isfie 
due ta the USDA use of fbe property. Normally the lease would be f ir  a larger parcel. At this 
time, there does not seem to be my advmtqe in altering the parcel size. On April Yd, the 
Airport Commission ~ m m e n d e d  approval of this lease. 

RECOMMENDATION 
That the Urban Services Committee recommend the proposed lease to the City Council and 
authorize the City Manager to enter into a lease agreement with Mid Valley Painting. 

Review an8 Clancur 

Attachment: proposed lease Page 252-bt 



LGND/BUILDIING LEASE AGREEMENT 
CORVALLIS AIRPORT INDUSTRIAL PARK 

THIS LEASE, made this day of April 2007 is by and between the City of 
Corvallis, an Oregon Municipal Corporation, hereinafter referred to as the City, and W e e  
Fields, dba Mid Valley Painting, hereinafter referred to as the Lessee. 

PREMISES 

The Cornallis Municipal Airporthdustrial Park is owned and managed by the City of 
Corvalh and is operated as an Enterprise Fmd, in that all fees, land leases a d  rent revenues are 
retained by the CiQ for the exclusive operation of the Airport. For and in consideration of the 
covenants hereinafter set forth, the City does hereby lease tu Lessee and Lessee does hereby hire 
from the City that certain real property (hereinafter called the "Property"), improved with a shop 
building containing approximately 900 square feet (bereinafter called the %'Buiir@), located at 
490 SW Airport Avenue, Corvallis, Oregon, and more particularly described in Exhibit "A" legal 
description and Exhibit "B" site plan attached hereto (such Property and Building are hereinafter 
called the "Premises"). 

TERM 

The Lessee shall have the right to possession, use, and enjoyment of the leased property 
for a period of one year, beginnifig on April 17,2007 and ending April 1692008, Thereafter, 
the term of this lease may be extended by mutual approval of both parties, for up to two (2) 
additional one (I) year periods. Lessee shall notify the City at least sixty (60) days prior to the 
termination date of this lease of its intent to exercise this option. The City shall not withhold its 
approval fox the extension unreasonably. Good reasons for the City to withhold its approval 
would include but: not be limited to; failure of Lessee to provide insurance; failure of Lessee to 
make timely payment of rent; or the City's determination of a better use of the property. 

RENT 

A. Rental Rate. Lessee shall pay in advance, a monthly rent payment by the first day of 
each month beginning April I. 7,2007, and continue on the first day of each mon& thereafter 
during the term of this lease. The monthly rate for the above-described )and shall be determined 
as follows: $0.0825 per square foot x 7,000 square feet = $577.50 a an annual base rent. Annual 
leaserate/l2 = $48.1 3 as a monthly rent payment. 

The monthly rate far the above-described building shall be determined as follows: $0.19 per 
square foot x 900 square feet = $2,052.00 as an annual base rent. h m l  base rate112 = $1 71.00 
as a monthly rent payment. 

The total amount for land and building rental shall be determined as follows: $2629.50 as a total 
annual base rent. Total annual base renu12 = $219.13 to establish the base monthly rent. Rental 
payments are made payable to the City of Corvallis and are to be delivered in person or mailed to 
the City at the address givm in Section 21 of this lease. 

Page 252-bu 

Mid Valley Pahti~g/Cjty lease, Ag1ril2,2007 Page 1 of 9 



B. Rental Rate Adiustment. The rental rate shall be adjusted annually utilizing the 
January through December U.S. City Average Consumer Price Index, with adjustments made 
July 1 following the publication of the annual index, commencing July 2007. The City shall give 
written notice to Lessee at least thirty (30) days in advance of the annual adjustment date. 

C. Extended Term. If this lease is extended as provided in Section 2 of this lease, the rate 
shall be adjusted annually on the basis described in Section 3-B above. 

4. USE OF TFJX PROPERTY 

A. Permitted Use. The property shall only be used for any legal purpose permitted by 
applicable zoning laws, regulations and restrictions. 

B. Conformance with Laws, Lessee shall conform to all applicable laws and regulations, 
municipal, county, state, and federal affecting the premises and the use thereof. Lessee also 
agrees to comply with all City/Airport Industrial Park Master Plans as adopted by City Council. 

C. Nuisance. Lessee shall not use or permit the use or occupancy of the property for 
illegal purposes (as defined by City of Corvallis Municipal Code Chapter 5), or commit or permit 
anything which may constitute a menace or hazard to the safety of persons using the property, or 
which would tend to create a nuisance, or that interferes with the safe operation of aircraft using 
the Corvallis Municipal Airport. 

D. Hazardous Materials. Lessee shall not store or handle on the premises or discharge 
onto the property any hazardous wastes or toxic substances, as  defined in the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980,42 U.S.C. 55 9601 to 9675, 
and as further defined by state law and the City's Sewer Regulations, Municipal Code Chapter 
4.03 as amended, except upon prior written notification to the City and in strict compliance with 
rules and regulations of the United States and the State of Oregon and in conformance with the 
provisions of this lease. Any violation of this section may, at the City's option, cause this lease to 
be immediately terminated in accordance with the provisions of Section 18 of this lease. 

Prior to beginning operations, Lessee shall allow the City to inspect the premises and 
approve its processes for storing and handing Hazardous Materials. Lessee shall at all times 
operate in accordance with City approved procedures, and shall maintain strict compliance with 
all federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations regarding Hazardous 
Materials. Any violation of this section shall be grounds for termination of this lease as provided 
in Section 18, unless within ten (10) days of notification Lessee cures the violation or, if the 
violation is of such a nature that it cannot be remedied within ten (10) days, Lessee provides to 
City within (1 0) days satisfactory assurances, including financial assurances, that Lessee can and 
will correct the violation, and thereafter Lessee proceeds with reasonable diligence to do so. If 
the violation is caused by a discharge of a hazardous or bxic material or substance, the City shall 
have the right, at its option, to immediately take any action reasonably necessary to halt or 
remedy the discharge, at Lessee's sole expense. 

E. Roads. Lessee shall be entitled to reasonable use for its purposes of the roads now 
existing and serving the leased property. The City may locate and relocate roads as desirable to 
improve the Corvallis Municipal Airport and Industrial Park so long as reasonable and adjacent 

Mid Valley Painting/City lease, April 2,2007 
Page 252-bv 
U 

- .  



access is provided to Lessee on a continual basis. Lessee will agree to install a half-street 
improvement along the leased hntage of the leased premises to City standards as detailed in the 
Transportation Plan. The half-sfreet improvement may include: paving, curb, gutter, drainage, 
park strip, landscaping and sidewalks. 

F. Infras~~ture~Improvements. Lessee hereby irrevocably agrees to financiaIly 
participate in the future improvements for public water, wastewater, storm drainage Ad 
transportation consistent with the South Corvallis Area Refinement Plan and Airport and 
Industrial Park Master Plans. It is understood by Lessee that: 

1. The cost of the improvements shall be born by the benefitted property in accordance 
with state law, the Charter of the City of CmaIlis and its ordinances and policies. 

2. Tbe City in its sole discretion may initiate the construction of all or part of the Iocal 
improvements required, or may join all or p a t  of Lessees property with other property 
when creating a local improvement district. 

3. Lessee and Lessee's heirs, assigns and successors in interest in the psoperty shall be 
bound by this document which will run with the property. 

4. Lessee declares that the public improvements herein sought will directly benefit the 
described property. 

5. Lessee shall not challenge the formation of a loc&l improvement district and 
assessment of Lessee's leased property by City and in any proceedings therein will 
acknowledge this declaration if requested to do so by City. 

6.  Iu constsuing this section of the agreement singular words include the plural. 

WATER, SEWER, AND DRAINAGE SYSTEMS 

A, Water. Draina~e, and Domestic Waste. The City agrees to provide the use and 
benefits of the public water, sewer, and drainage systems as they now exist or may be later 
modified. Conditions for the use of these systems shall be the same as the conditions and 
regulations applying within the corporate limits of the City of Corvafis, including any 
assessments or charges for any expansion or intensification of Lessee's use of the property. 

B. militv Bills. Water, sewer, and drainage charges shall be paid by the Lessee in 
addition to the basic monthly rental and at the same rates applicable within the corporate limits of 
the City of Corvallis. The Lessee shall promptly pay all water, sewer, and drainage charges, and 
all other utility charges, for the premises as they come due. 

C. Prohibited Discharaes. Discharge of industrial waste, as that term is defined in the City 
of Corvalfis Sewer Use Municipal Code, Chapter 4.03 (as presently constituted or as amended hereafter), 
into the sanitary sewer system, drainage system, surface ponds or ditches, or elsewhere is 

- specifically prohibited, except as permitted by a valid Industrial Wastewater Discharge Pennit in 
strict accordance with the Sewer Use Ordinance and applicable state and federal laws. Violation 
of any provision contained in the City of CorvaIlis Sewer Use Municipal Code, Chapter 4.03 (as 

Mid Valley Paintincity lease, April 2,2007 
Page 252-bw 

Yage 3 of 5, 



presently constituted or as amended hereafter), may cause this lease to be immediately terminated in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 18 of this lease 

D. General Information Survey. As a condition of entering into this lease, the Lessee 
shall submit to the City a completed, signed General Information Survey, in accordance with the 
industrial waste provisions of the City of Cowallis Sewer Use Municipal Code, Chapter 4.03 (as 
presently constituted or as amended hereafter). The survey shall be submitted to the City at the time 
that this lease is signed. 

E. Discharye Res~onse Procedures. In the event of any discharge or spill of noxious or 
hazardous material into the environment, sewer system, or drainage system, Lessee shall 
irnmediatelynotify the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality and the City. The City and 
any appropriate state or federal agency shall have the right to inspect the premises immediately to 
determine if the discharge or spill constitutes a violation of any local, state, or federal laws, rules, 
or regulations. If a violation exists, the City shall notify the Lessee of the specific violations and 
Lessee shalI immediately cease all activities and use of the property until the violations are 
remedied, all at the Lessee's sole cost and expense and without expense whatsoever to the City. 

F. South Corvallis Drainape Master Plan. Lessee hereby agrees to comply with the 
requirements of the "South Corvallis Drainage Master Plan", approved by the City Council 
during February 1997. Future improvements within the Industrial Park in compliance with the 
approved drainage plan may include parcel assessments or charges. Conditions and regulations 
for any assessment or charges shall be similar to those conditions or regulations applying within 
the corporate limits of the City of Corvallis. 

6. DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

Ths agreement is made subject to the terms and conditions as referenced in the Airport 
Master Plan and in Chapter XIV Development and Building Standards of the Airport Handbook- 
In addition, compliance with all Corvallis development regulations is required relative to the 
City's Land Development Code (LDC). Where not otherwise specified by the Airport 
Handbook, the County's zoning provisions shall apply. Enforcement of development provisions 
is the responsibility of the City's Development Services Department and, where specified, by the 
Corvallis Arport Master Plan, the Airport Industrial Park Master Plan and the Auport Design 
Review Committee. 

ALTERATIONS, IMPROVEMENTS AND MAINTENANCE 

A. Right to Construct. The Lessee, at its own expense, may construct structural 
improvements on the leased property, subject to Lessee's compliance with all applicable City, 
county, and state laws and regulations and issuance of necessary building permits. 

B. Ownership of Improvements. Any buildings constructed by the Lessee on the leased 
property during the term of this lease shall belong to the Lessee and may be removed by the 
Lessee at will. Lessee shall have the right to enter the premises during the thirty-day period 
following termination of this lease to remove any of its property, including buildings or other 
improvements, on the leased premises. If, after thirty days after termination of the lease, any of 
said property remains on the premises, the City may retain the property, or, at its option, remove 
the property at the Lessee's expense. The half-street improvements along the property fiontage 

Mid Valley Painting/City lease, April 2,2007 Page 252-bx 



including paving, curb, gutter, drainage, park strip, landscaping and sidewalks will belong to City 
upon acceptance by the City. 

C. B u i l d h  and Grounds Maintenance. Strmmal maintenance of the Building is the 
responsibility of the City. Non-structural maintenance as well as exterior maintenance and 
upkeep are the responsibility of the Lessee in accordance with Section IV of the Airport 
Iadustrial Park Master Plan. 

ENTRY ON PROPERTY 

A. Ri&t to Inspect. The City shall have the right to enter the property at any reasonable 
time or times to examine the condition of the premises or Lessee's compliance with the terms of 
-this lease. 

B. Access. The City retains the ri&t to enter the leased premises at any reasonable time 
or times to repair or mod@ City buildings and/or utilities located upon the propkrty or to 
conduct repairs or other work an the property, provided such repairs or modifications shall be 
scheduled with Lessee to minimize any disruption to Lessee's business operations. 

ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING 

The Lessee shall not assign or sublease this le-asa 

The Lessee shall proeilptly pay fbr my nnatefial md labor used to improve the leased 
propeq and shall keep the leas& property free of any liens or encumbrmcies, 

The Lessee shall promptly pay all personal property taxes levied upon the leased 
premises during the tax year that they become due. Lessee shall not permit a lien for other than 
the current year's taxes to be placed on the leased property. 

INSURANCE 

A. Coverage Requirements. The Lessee shall purchase and maintain general liability 
insurance that provides at least premises and operations coverage. The limit of liability shall be 
no less than the amounts specified in the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300 as 
presently collstituted or hereafter amended. As of the date of this lease, those amounts are 
$50,000 far damage to property, $100,000 for injury to a person (plus special damages up to an 
additional $100,000), and $500,000 for any number of claims arising fiom a single ac~ident or 
occurrence. In addition, if the insurance policy contains an w u a l  aggregate limit, the aggregate 
shall not be less than $1,000,000. The policy shall name the City of Corvdlis, its oflicers, agents, 
and employees as an additional inswed. 

B. Certificate of Insurance. At the time that this lease is signed, the Lessee shall provide 
to the City a certificate ofinsiuance complying with the requirements of this section and 

Page 252-by 

Mid Valley Painting/City lease, April 2,2007 Page 5 of 9 



indicating that insurer will provide the City with 30 days notice prior to cancellation. A current 
certificate shall be maintained at all times during the tenn of this lease. 

13. HOLD HARMLESS 

A. General. The Lessee shall at all times indemnify, protect, defend, and hold the City of 
Corvallis, its officers, agents, invitees and employees harmless from any claims, demands, losses, 
actions, or expenses, including attorney's fees, to which the City may be subject by reason of any 
property damage or personal hjwy arising or alleged to arise from the acts or omissions of the 
Lessee, its agents, or its employees, or in connection with the use, occupancy, or condition of the 
property- Likewise, the City shall at all times indemnify, protect, defend and hold Lessee, its 
officers, agents, assignees, invitees and employees harmless fiom any claims, demands, actions 
or expenses, including attorney's fees, to which Lessee may be subject by reason of any property 
damage or personal injury arising or alleged to arise from the actions or omissions of, or entry 
onto the leased premises by, the City, its officers, agents, invitees or employees, or in connection 
with the repair, maintenance modification or other work the City may undertake that in any way 
relates to ox affects the leased premises, including without limitation, the work, repair and 
modification provided for under Section 8 3  of this lease. 

B. Environmental Protection. The Lessee shall be liable for and shall hold the City 
hannless fiom, all costs, fines, assessments, and other liabilities arising from Lessee's use of the 
premises during this and all prior leases for this site resulting in the need for environmental 
cleanup under state or federal environmental protection and liability laws, including, but not 
limited to, costs of investigation, remedial and removal actions, and post-cleanup monitoring 
arising under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 
1980,42 U.S.C. $tj 9601 to 9675, as presently constituted or hereafter amended. 

City shall defend and hold the Lessee harmless from all costs, expenses, fines, 
assessments, attorney's or other fees and other liabilities arising from the use of the premises by 
any persons or entities prior to the execution of this lease, except for any contamination caused 
by the Lessee during the initial term of this lease or any prior leases as a result of the Lessee's 
activities resulting in the need for environmental clean-up under City, State, Federal 
environmental protection and liability laws, including, but not limited to, costs of investigation, 
remedial and removal actions, and post clean-up monitoring including but not limited to liability 
arising under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 
1980,42 U.S.C. $4 9601 to 9674, as presently constituted or hereafter amended. 

14. NONDISCRIMINATION 

The Lessee agrees that no person shall be excluded from participation in the use of the 
premises on the basis of race, color, creed, religion, sex, sexual orientation, age, physical or 
mental disability, source of income, or national origin or shall otherwise be subjected to 
discrimination in the use of the premises and performance of this contract. 

15. CONDITIONS ON PROPERTY BY THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

This agreement is made subject to the terms and conditions and restrictions of transfer 
recorded in Book 121, Page 40 and Book 125, Page 239, deed records of Benton County, 

Mid Valley PaintingiCity lease, April 2,2007 

Page 252-bz 

Page 6 of 9 



Oregon, as modified by the Instrument of Release recorded in Book 182, Page 238 of said deed 
records. 

16. WAIVER OF BREACH 

A waiver by the City of a breach of any term, covenant, or condition of this lease by the 
Lessee shall not operate as a waiver of any subsequent breach af the same or any other term, 
covenant, or condition of the lease. 

17. DEFAULT 

A. DecIaration of Default. Except as otherwise provided in this lease, the City shall have 
the right to declare this lease terminated and to enter the property and take possession upon either 
of the following events: 

1. Rent and Other Pavments. If the monthly rent or any other payment obligation 
provided hereunder to the City, inclading but not limited to property taxes and utility 
bills, remains unpaid for a period of sixty (60) days after it is due, un-protested and 
payable, if not corrected after ten (1 0) days written notice by the City to Lessee; or 

2. Other Oblinations. Eany other default is made in this lease and is not corrected after 
thirty (30) days written notice to the Lessee. Where the default is of such name that it 
cannot reasonably be remedied within the thirty (30) day period, the Lessee shall not be 
deemed in default if the Lessee proceeds with reasonable diligence and good faith to 
effect correction of the default. 

B. Court Action. It is understood that either party shall have the right to institute any 
proceeding at law or in equity against the other party for violating or threatening to violate any 
provision of this lease. Proceedings may be initiated against the violating party for a restraining 
injunction or for damages or for both- In no case shalj a waiver by either party of the right to seek 
relief under this provision constitute a waiver of any other or further violation. 

TERMINATION 

A. Immediate Termination. Where a specific violation of this lease gives the City the 
option to terminate this lease immediately, this lease shall be terminated upon written 
notification to the Lessee. 

E3. TenninationVpon 30 Davs Default. En the event of any other default under Section 
17 of this lease, the lease may be terminated at the option of the City upon written notification to 
the Lessee as provided herein. 

C. Termination Upon 60 Days Written Notice. Ha  better use is determined by the City, 
tennination of the lease will occur 60 days after written notification of the Lessee and need not 
occur coincident with the end of a lease period. 

D. Surrender U p n  Termination. Upon tennination or the expiration of the term of the 
lease, the Lessee will quit and surrender the property to the City in as good order and condition 

Mid Valley PaintinglCity lease, April 2,2007 
Page 252-ca 

rage / 01 Y 



as it was at the time the Lessee first entered and took possession of the property under this or a 
prior lease, usual wear and damage by the elements excepted. 

E. Restoration of Property. Upon termination or expiration of this lease or Lessee's 
vacating the premises for any reason, the Lessee shall, at its own expense, remove and properly 
dispose of all tanks, structures, and other facilities containing waste products, toxic, hazardous, 
or otherwise, which exist on the leased property or beneath its surface and did not pre-exist the 
commencement of this lease. Lessee shall comply with all applicable state and federal 
requirements regarding the safe removal and proper disposal of said facilities containing waste 
products. If the Lessee fails to comply or does not fully comply with this requirement, the Lessee 
agrees that the City may cause the waste products and facilities to be removed and properly 
disposed of, and further Lessee agrees to pay the cost thereof with interest at the legal rate from 
the date of expenditure. 

F. Holding Over. No holding over upon expiration of this lease shall be construed as a 
renewal thereof. Any holding over by the Lessee after the expiration of the tenn of this lease or 
any extension thereof shall be as a tenant from month to month'only and not otherwise, and the 
exercise of rights provided under Section 7B shall not be deemed a holding over. 

19. RECORDING FEES 

The lease can be recorded with the Benton County Assessor's Office and the Lessee shall 
be responsible for paying all associated fees. 

20. ATTORNEY FEES 

If any suit or action is instituted in connection with any controversy arising out of this 
lease, the prevaihg party shall be entitled to recover, in addition to damages and costs, such sum 
as the trial court or appellate court, as the case may be, may adjudge reasonable as attorney fees. 

21. NOTICE 

When any notice or anything in writing is required or permitted to be given under this 
lease, the notice shall be deemed given when actuaIly delivered or 48 hours after deposited in 
United States mail, with proper postage affixed, directed to .?he following address: 

C& Lessee 
City of Corvallis Randee Fields dba Mid Valley Painting 
Public Works Department P.O. Box 1280 
Attention: Airport Manager Corvallis, OR 97339 
P.O. BOX 1083 541-760-5914 
1245 NE 3'* St. 
Corvallis, Oregon 97339-1 083 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this lease the date and year first 
written above. 

Page 252-cb 

Mid Valley PaintingKity lease, April 2,2007 Page 8 of 9 



CITY OF CORVALLIS, OREGON 

By: 
City Manager 

Date: 

Approved As-to-Form: 

City Attorney 

Mid Valley PaintingICity lease, April 2,2007 

Randee Fields dba Mid Valley Painting 

By: 

Date: 

Page 252-cc 

Page 9 of 9 



i -  - - I 

CORVALLIS 
ENHANCINGCOMMUNKY LIVABILITY 

Office of the Mayo-r 
5-01 SW Madison Avenue 

P.O. Box lo@ 
Gomallis, OR 97339- 1083 

(5443 766-6985 
FX% (541) 766-6780 

e-ma.  aa~@co~c~~ci.corvalLis.~r-1~s 

P R O C L A M A T I O N  

Get; There Another Way Week 

May 14-18,20Q7 

TVI-LEREAS, Use of traaspamti~n alternatives to &e single-occupancy ve!hicle (SOT) is vital to the quality of H e  
.and ecwomic men h q  of the citizens of CemaIlis: aad 

WHEREAS, Gi&eas, ind&$ingwoikers, students, senior &ens, pmplc with disabilities, and dime unable ta 
afford 0 s  u&e an aritomobiIe use eommuk options to g& access .t;o jabs, 3&0015, medical 
faeilrties, and other hadaen'tal s&s; and 

TVHEREAS, Use oFpilbHc transportation, walking bicycling, rclupeohp, a n d  vanpooM provides ca~mtzte 
optiops ti3 ei~plqees, s@d&ts, and other U~~ZE-SIS wihout the use of an SSV; and 

WHEI&AS, Use of eo-ute options deaeases h e  demand for autornob-ile parking, resulting in better use 0% 

land fa+ more productive uses, such as cosntgercia-l, iabrst&dI and residential development and open 
spar, and 

huewed public invesment transit services and other commme optbns pavide the patentid to 
expand the e m p l o p a t  base, pmvide job oiportwiti~s~ asd wbaacc p~ospeity; and 

WHlBIQG, Traat: conge6 tion that wastes productive t h e  can be de&ted &OU& the i t z ~ r ~ e d  a v d a b w  
and use ahpublic txmspartatio~ and other c-ute options; and 

E'XEXEA5, Walkhg md bicychg are healthy forms of: esetGise and can hdp to bcoq~orate physical acdviw into 
tihe daily routbe:; a d  

-S, The nag04 aug c 6 m ~ u n j v ~  md our c i t i z ~  face the risks to health and tfie envircmmerrt: that are 
bmught an by automabile exhaust emissions; 

NOW, 'IXZEREFQRE, I, Chwk C. Tomlinson, Mityc~ of Cam&, Oregon, do hmby pro* SMap 54-18,2007, 
as Get There Another Way Week in the city and axoutage all Comallis citizens to coasidef 
b i q i g ,  waking, c q a ~ h g ,  and vatlpwhg to &e ever& phmed in Comalli~. 

- - - -- 

Ch& C. T ~ m h o n ,  Mayor 

- -  - - 

Date 

ATTACHMENT G 
Page 252-cd 



CORNERSTONE 

APPEAL 

ATTACHMENT H 
Page 252-ce 



About 

Established: 
November 1,2001 with the merger of Bonney 
Enterprises, I ~ G .  and Open Door, Inc., two well 
established not-for-profit businesses for a combined 
total of 79 years of operation. 

Tax Exempt status: 
5 0 1 (c)(3) Cornerstone Associates, Inc, is a private, 
not-for-profit corporation organized for charitable, 
educational, and rehabilitation purposes. 

Governance 
A volunteer board of directors who are elected to 
serve three-year terms provides governance. The 
Cornerstone Associates, Inc. Board of Directors 
conducts no fewer than 10 monthly business 
meetings annually. 

Number of People with Disabilities Served: 
153 in the greater Benton and Linn county areas. 

Disability characteristics of people served: 
Mental retardation, autism, hearing impairment, 
seizure disorder, blindness, cerebral palsy, speech 
disorder, behavioral disorders, physical impairments 
which lead to limited use of one or more limbs, 
psychiatric and emotional disabilities. 

Board of Directors President: 
Peter Ball 

Executive Director: 
Nancy Maxwell 
E-mail: nmaxwell~,cornerstoneassociates.orq 

Support Services Manager: 
Naomi Bumham 
E-mail: nburnham~,cornerstoneassoeiates.org 

Licenses: Oregon Mental Health Division, Oregon 
Department of Agriculture, Oregon Landscape 
Contractor's Board 

Pub. 2/07 

Page 252-cf 



CORNERSTONE APPEAL 

Table of Contents 

Picture of old building ..................... 1 

SitePlan ................................. 2 

PlotPlan ................................. 3 

Chapter 3.30 = WRG ....................... 4 

Chapter 3.30 = Exemptions .................. 5 

Photographs .............................. 6 

Condition 8 and Quotes from Staff Report .... 7 

Legend of Storm Line ...................... 8 

BusStop ................................. 9 

Comprehensive Plan Excerpts .............. 10 

Page 252-cg 





:: FENCE LINE 
W- - WATER LINE 

-3s- - - - - -  SANITARY SEWER 
PROPERTY LlNE 

Site Plan m ,:,200 - - - 



Plot Plan 
~ ~ o ~ u r n e n l s  and Sellmgs\Erie Smllh\My R~ournanls\Cl!enl FlleslBroedlet&CCN Cornarslone\CCN kchlCAD MoUels\GCN 3.pln 

P-7 JECTTOT P~JZtNijiiibeTfield empty - 
FIE NAME -; CCNl ,Ibk 

~ R A W N  BY: Draftsmen field empt 
copyRleyT ~roadleif A ~ E ~ I ~ B ~ Y I :  1445 SE Crystal Lake Drive 
I Corvallis, Orecron 

Cornerstone Associates 

- 
-- 

Plot Plan 



CHAPTER 3.30 
WRG (UlLLAMETTE RNER GREENWAY) DISTRICT OVERLAY 

Section 330.10 - PURPOSES 

The Willamette River Greenway District is an overlay district that coincides with the adopted 
Greenway boundary and applies to all development permitted by the underlying districts. It is 
intended to: 

a. Protect, conserve, enhance, and maintain the natural scenic, historical, economic, and 
recreational quazties of lands along the WiIlamette River; 

b. Maintain or improve air and water quality within the Greenway; 

Implement goals and policies of the State of Oregon's Willamette River Greenway Program 
as required by the Oregon Revised Statutes; 

hplement policies of the City of Conallis Comprehensive Plan;. 

Establish standards and requirements far the use of lands withia the WilIamette E v e r  
Greenway in the City of Comas;  

Provide for review of any intensification of use, change of use, or development within the 
Willamette River Greenway of the City of Gomallis; and 

Increase and maintain public access to and along the Willamette River to create urban 
recreational opportunities, provide linkages to other transportation corridors, and provide for 
multiple use of urban land. 

Assure development is consistent with floodwater flow mitigation and management of a 
natural resource. 

- Section 330.20 - Tgpe I: CONDITIONAL DEVELOPMBW 

Development within this district, regardless of its classification in the underlying district, requires 
conditional development approval in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 2.3. In addition to 
notification requirements of Chapter 2.0 - Public Hearings, written public notice and a notice of 
disposition shall be mailed to the Oregon Department of Parks and Recreation. "Development" as 
used in this section includes change of use or intensification of land or water uses except for those 
activities listed as exemptions in Section 3.30.30 below. "Development" also includes D ~ O D O S ~ ~  

A L 

iocreases in air discharges that require permit approval by the orego; Department of Environmental 
Quality (DEQ). 

page 252-GIG 

LDC 07/19/93 



b. Seasonal increases in gravel operations under pewit from the State of Oregon; 

Secti~n 33030 - EXBMPTIONS 

The foUowing development activities do not require conditional development approval: 

a. Customary dredging and channel maintenance mnducted under p e d t  from the State 

Erasioa cantral operations not requiring a permit from the Oregon Division of State Lands 
and that constitute a reasonable emergency necessary for safety or the protection of property. 

I 

1 1  I 

5 I 

Scenic easements acquired under ORS 390.332 and their maintenance as authorized by that 
statate md ORS 390.368. 

Oregon; 

e. Additi~n or modificatim by  public uat ies  for existing utility lines, wires, fixtures, equipment, 
mlrcuits, appliances, and conductars. 

Flood emergency procedures and the maintenance md repair of &sting flood contra1 
facilities. 

S i p z  markers> aids, and similar item$ placed by a public agency to serve the public, 

Residentid accemory ckvelopi~~ent (exdnding structures), such as lawns, gardens, and pla) 
areas outside of the riparian management zme, as defined in Chapter 1.6 

Storage of eqaipment or mateid associated with permitted uses, providing it complies with 
applicable pmvisions of this Cade. 

Minor repairs or alterations to an existing structure for which no building permit is required. 

A change of use of a building or other structure tbai does not svbstantiaiEy dter ar affect the 
land or water upon which it is situated, 

Landscaping. 

C30asimctian of driveways. 

Maintenance and repair, usual and necessary for the cmtinmnce af an exkthg use. 

Reasonable emergeacy procedures necesszq for the safety or protection of property, 

Orber activities similar to those IWed in "a" - "0" above. The Director shall make such 
determhatioas and p m d e  notice in accordance with Chapter 2.16 - Request for 
Interpretation. 

Page 2 5 2 4  





""A 











CONDITION 8 

Dedication of Right of Way 

Legal Requirements 

Is them a connection between: 

the purpose of the dedication and 
some adverse impact that will result fim the development 

2. Is the amount ofthe dedication roughly proportioned to the degree of 
adverse impact the dedication is intended to impact 

The City has the budern of proof. 

Ouestions 

What is the purpose of taking Cornerstone's land. 

What is the adverse impact that will result from the new structure. 

Is the taking of the fkontage property eom Comerstone "rougMy 
proportional" to that impact. 

The City has failed to identify an adverse impact. 

If &re is an adverse impact, the City has failed to show it is generated by 
this 3000 square foot building. 

If there is an adverse impact from this 3000 square foot building, the City 
has failed to show that taking the frontage property will mitigate that impact 
or that taking their property is roughly proportional to the mitigation if there 
is any resulting mitigation. 

Page 252-cs 



QUOTES FROM ORIGINAL STAFF REPORT TO 
PLANNING COMMISSION REGARDING 

PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY 

"Given that it would be roughly half the size of the building that was 
destroyed by fire, it is reasonable to assume that a reduction in the 
potential number of vehicle related trips would result." Page 17, Staff 
Report to Planning Commission. 

"Staff do not recommend modifying the street pavement width with this 
development proposal. The street is functioning well given the current 
transportation demands, and while the required improvements would 
address potential future increases in traffic volume, these 
modifications are beyond the scope of the Cornerstone proposal." Page 
20, Staff Report to Planning Commission. (emphasis added). 

"No changes in use have been proposed with the new building. Current 
levels of traffic impacts are not expected to change." Page 20-21, Staff 
Report to Planning Commission. 

"The current ROW width is consistent with that for a Local Street, and 
was established at a time when this area of Corvallis was not in the City 
Limits. The subsequent need for additional ROW is a result of this area 
being annexed and the subject street being designated as a Collector in 
the Corvallis Transportation Plan." Page 23, Staff Report to Planning 
Commission, (emphasis added) 

THE LAW 

"It is not permissible for the City to "require the dedication of private 
property for some future public use when such future use is not 
occasioned by the construction sought to be permitted." Dolan v. City of 
Tigard. 

Page 252-ct 







8* 3, b The rate ofw~map~oym@n~ mong rni~orifies zk  high^ fkpafor the p~zpzdkzti@~ as a 
whole. The 1990 C~BSUS i d i ~ a f e d  t-hat mi~orit-les comp~ised 9.5% of the Bmpm 
C o @ ? @ ? p ~ p ~ ~ d i u n  an$ Id 4% ~ 4 t h  wmplayed wo~krs.  

8-3.c Be~t.on C u u ~ ' ~  low utzemp~o$wnt rat@ kas m& it dzj%zl;ltfr m@y ComalJis 
em.I~ygrs 60 locate peIfle4 s&Iled w~~km-sJcoP mailabb jobs. 

8.3. d Oweral12 fhe popzPdiisn ofB8nfon Coz0nn$y is w~Zl+d~cafed. According to t k  
Census, 41% cJfhnse 25 yelam old QT older 572 Benton Cmy1iy attained a bawaiaztreate 
d~&ii"ee or Fttgher, compared Ilo 2i%f0p Orggun rn a whole. 

8.3.c: @oplkers wijZ la~8dto aggrade fhk skills on a conBnd basis to rdmain eo.mpetitiug in 
a rapJdly ckaagi~g ~ e & m y ,  Vhilo some Corvai.lis a~nployersprovide regular kai~vsing 
to the& emplopee.~, many worikrs have limited time or$financiaj Peseurcs to  train for 
bemy jogs. 

3 There aTe several k~cdb publr'c and private orga~izagz'uns which promot& jo b @alpzing 
md fadlitate @onfacfs between job seekers a ~ d p r a s p ~ ~ t i ~ e  empEoyem. The d#grmt 
service,~ are cesorne~mes not W B E Z O .  R "OYI~-Stop Gmew Center '' will be 
-es~uhlishcd in C~l-uaili,~ i.t~ 1998 Qr 1999. Thg p q o s e  of the  enter will be to Wegrate 
job training, misttrncg, aptdpbcgme:~t w-vSces in one location, 

Policies 

8.3.1 n e  City shad1 suppod ~e d~gvery of effec%ve, G O Q T ~ X P ~ ~  job tcabhg and 
weer assistame, 

Tb.e City shall supporl p ~ o g m s  initiatives Eor the developmat of a i&.Ded, tr&~ed 
w ~ 2 ~ r c e .  

The .City shall e ~ ~ g e  local employers t~ provide tbefr emp;loy~es wi& oppoxtmiti~s 
f x  ~~ and career develumw. 

TIE City shall seek app~rr~-&ies to minimize meniployment ammg dl se@?xmts of 
the c o m u n l . ~ .  

Page 252-cw 



Policies 

The City sbaU mcaurage adeq* support facilities far Cornall%' expanding visitor md 
ce&rmce activities. 

City paliel~s :shall enmurage lodging and conference facilities in close proximity to 
visitor services md public trmsportaeion. 

The City shall consider possible benefits to visitor a d  conference activities when 
evaluating possible transportation-related impvment s  through zan.ual updates to the 
Capita4 hprovement Plan. 

The City A d  suppofi the development of visitor and conference-related ammities 4hat 
promote &e hist~ricd and cultural focus sf thc c ~ m & t y .  

Tlze Good Smcnvita~ H~spitul, other medicalf~cilifies, mdpublic keaZthprogfams 
Zeeai~d ia CmpIIs's pyavide medicad senrices for BePzZ.onj E irnrJ and Lin~oln Coanijes. 

@e region's aging popglafion will iNigacf the type, abc~~tfon, and exferrt of needed 
Aealsh care fgcilities in the fillwe. R e  popIata'oiz ofthe age group above? 64 hax been 
growing appra%irnat~?ly eight fimes fister %an the population offhe regioil as a whole. 
The ComaRis mea U~SO appears €0 be gas'ningpapad2arity .tas a new home for retirees. 
The mediml~acilities, a d  the gefieral livability  fa small d . 0 ~  wikh a major 
urriver~ily, all ~~eracousage this in-rn5gratio~. 

8.7.d Somsr Cdma~~is ci&gns haw li5'~2fged access PQ hmkh cmefacil3ies d%d to the krck ~f 
fmilit'i,& in &&I?" mga, Or Jack ofmai4abJ~ &ampo~td@n 

City Council approved Corvallis Cnmprehemive Plan 
December 21, 1948 



Policies 

8.7.1 The City shall encornage cooppmtion among local, State, Fedgal, and private agenaies 
in pIamiag a d  providing for health afld rellaM s o ~ i d  semic~s. 

The City shall support the development r>s expansion of hezl& services to meet 
@om& as well as local, needs md the role of Conidis as a regisnal medical center. 

The City sbaU aceornodate land uses that support the avzrilability of a canthuurn of 
health care optilons, inclading pTimapy care, assisted Eving, home health cae, md 
nursing home e m .  

The skll stay responsive to demgraptric trends ta evaluate changing health care 
needs of the c.omUni.Q. 

The City shall continue. to encourage bealtby hfesQ1es by supporhg a variep of 
opportunities for recseationd activity md social Intera~fisn. 

The City shU. promote access to a~glable sources of health services by encouraging a 
broader geogaphc dis~ibtltion of facIIities and by coordinating l a d  use a d  
trzgispo;t.o~.tion de~isioizs &at pertain b health services. 

8.7.7 The City W work vvi& the Cowty, health smice  agencies, and local heal& case 
providers to encourage the pr~visioa of additional AIzlbeimm's facilities fix M&cm3 
Medicaid, and other lower-k~ome pEt&n&. 

Child Care Paeiiiies and Services 

8 . 8 , ~  AfloordabIe, convenien;t, quality child cure k one afthe services which crsnkjbates to the 
growth hnd s&bilify ofthe econo-azy in Corvalb When employersprovide child cme 
ag.s;ir-tarzee, they beneJi.t>om i7apiy"oved rmuitmenf mt?d retention finapl~yms, reduced 
abaentseim and increslsedpradu~fii~y. 

8.8.6 Fith the incremi~g numbw ofwarkingpar~rr~, if will b~ nacessa~y to p~ovide child 
ctsre fac-ikftih'es and services in all argas ~f%%ze communi@. 

8 . 8 , ~  In 1997, B e ~ a a  Camp b.d ~pp~mim~ttb& 26 visible child cg7.e slots avd t lb l e f~r  
svery 100 chiac;Iren und~r age 13, the highest Ze~gZfOp dZ1Z Qragm couties. Howwer, 
Bsnto~ Cmn@ has a& inadeqwte supply ~fck i ld  care for tnfanb a d  toddIe~s mdfor 
childr~n with behavi~rid up. learning d&abilPtics. 

City Council approved Goryallis CJemprehemsivc Plan 
Racem-hr 2 I, 1998 



CITY OF CORVALLIS, ORECON 

CITY ATTORNEY EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT ADDENDUM 

This agreement addendum, dated ,2007, amads the emplopmt agreement 
entered into on March 22, 2006, by Gd between the City of Cornallis, Oregon, a municipal 
corporation of the State of Oregon (hereinafter referred to as "CITY"), and the law firm of Fewel & 
Brewer (hereinafter referred to as "LAW FIRM"). 

The City and Law Firm agree to rnodifjr the original employment agreement as follows; 

1.1 Cona_pensation for Services. As compensation for services included in the xetainer, 
the City shall pay the l a w  Firm $1 9,529.56 per month effective April 1,2007. This 
monthly payment is to be paid on or before the 10th day of each month. This 
rnontZlly paymeat will be adjusted effative July 1, 2007 in the sme  amount as 
inflationary adjustments to the City Manager and Department Director sdaries. 
Specifically9 the 2007 inflationary adjustments are 2.2% effective July 1,2007, and 
an additional 1% effective December 1,2007. 

All other terms and conditions in the original ageanent remain as originally identified. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have herewith executed their signatures. 

FEWEL & BREWER 

Charles C.  Todinson, Mayor 

ATTESTING AS TO THE MAYOR 

- 

City Recorder 

Scott A. ~ewel  

Page 1- City Attorney Employment Agreement Addendum - City of Corvallis/Fewel & Brewer 
ATTACHMENT I 

Page 252-cz 



DRAFT
Subject to review & approval

by BPAC

Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Commission
MINUTES

April 6, 2007

Present
Andrew Ross, Vice-Chair
Jack Schubert
Kenyon Solecki, ASOSU
Josh Storer
Rosie Toy
Brad Upton
Joel Rea
Mike Beilstein, City Council

Absent
Susan Nelson, Chair

Staff
Joe Whinnery, Public Works
Lisa Namba, Public Works 
Sgt. Jim Zessin, Police Department

Visitors
Walt Prichard, Mid-Valley Bike Club
Susan Christie
Dean Codo
Laura Duncan Allen
Roni Sue
Brenda VanDevelder

SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION

Agenda Item Information
Only

Held for
Further
Review

Recommendations

I. Call Meeting to Order/ Introductions X

II. Approve March 2, 2007 Minutes Approved, as amended

III. Visitor Comments X  

IV. Old Business
• Prioritize Safety and Education

Recommendations
See attached for Commission’s
Recommendations

V. New Business
• Extension of Bike/Skateboard

Exclusion Zone Downtown
• BPAC Sunset Review

• 35th Street Curb Cuts Design Review

X

Approved staff’s
recommendation
Approved

VI. Information Sharing X

CONTENT OF DISCUSSION

I. Call Meeting to Order/Introductions

The meeting was called to order by Vice-Chair Ross and introductions were made. 



BPAC Meeting Minutes
April 6, 2007

Page 2 

II. Approve March 2, 2007 Minutes

The following are corrections to the minutes:

Page 3, second bullet titled “Safety”, the following words shall be added to the end of the
first sentence: “specifically the Subcommittee’s safety recommendations”.  

Page 3, fifth bullet titled “Promotion of Bike/Ped Usage”, the following words shall be
added to the end of the sentence “(see Subcommittee’s safety recommendations)”.  

Page 3, fourth bullet titled “Signage”, the sentence shall be replaced with “Signage could
be used to inform bicyclists that 10th Street is calmer than 9th Street because 10th Street has
bike lanes and less vehicle traffic.”  

Commissioners Rea and Upton, respectively, moved and seconded that the
Commission approve the March 2, 2007 minutes, as amended.  The motion passed
unanimously.  

III. Visitor Comments

• Mr. Codo addressed the Commission on the subject of boundaries needed for downtown
cafes which have outdoor seating.  The Oregon statute states that each establishment shall
have a clearly defined boundary, which does not necessarily have to be a physical
boundary but does specify that if alcohol is served, it must remain within the boundary. 
Mr. Codo opined that the fences currently delineating downtown sidewalk cafes impede
mobility for persons with disabilities.  He would like to see the fences removed and the
café  boundaries delineated with a painted stripe on the sidewalk.  

The Commission previously recommended that the City enact a regulation stating the City
will require an increase of the pedestrian portion of the sidewalk furnishings zone from 3
feet to 4 feet, even if the ADA federal statute is not yet enacted. The City currently
requires a six-foot unobstructed zone from the curb to the establishment boundary.  

• Ms. Allen is a vocational skills trainer for persons with disabilities.  Sixteen of her clients
are mobility challenged to the point they cannot negotiate either stairs or currently-
configured downtown sidewalks.  She opined that sidewalks are public domains and
should never have impediments to pedestrians or wheelchairs.  When questioned if she
had complained to the City, she answered affirmatively but that no changes came about as
a result.  Ms. Namba said Community Development has recently begun a review of the
permitting process for sidewalk cafes, with stakeholders and local business owners
included in the discussions.  Ms. Allen asked the Commission to advocate her position to
the Urban Services Committee, the body responsible for permitting.  The Commission
assured her that it has always advocated for pedestrian safety.  Currently, there is no
funding to hire a full-time code enforcement officer.  

It was decided by the Commission to add this as a future agenda item for further
discussion and possibly make a recommendation.  



BPAC Meeting Minutes
April 6, 2007

Page 3 

• Ms. Sue stated that she attended the meeting to become aware of the issues and to hear
first-hand the testimony given by Mr. Codo and Ms. Allen.  

• Ms. VanDevelder, Director of daVinci Days, attended the meeting as a follow up to her
request of Mr. Whinnery that she speak about the City’s 150th Birthday Celebration.  As
part of the celebration, the daVinci Days community art project is bike art titled
“Cycledelic”.  Ms. VanDevelder will attend the May Commission meeting to speak about
having Commissioners and staff  appear at daVinci days to provide education outreach on
bicycle and pedestrian safety.  

IV. Old Business

• Prioritize Safety and Education Recommendations

Ms. Namba said staff will present a package to the Budget Commission requesting an
addition of a half-time position Full Time Equivalent (FTE).  Currently, there is 0.5 FTE 
position dedicated to the Transportation Demand Management (TDM) program, including
bike and pedestrian programs, but that person’s time is fully committed so he is unable to
devote any additional time to implementing the recommendations.  If funded, this position
would be able to implement all of the education recommendations made by the
Commission.  Another package to be presented will request a one-quarter time position
which, if funded, would be able to only implement a portion of the recommendations. 
Urban Services Committee (USC) requested staff to provide a list of prioritized
recommendations to be implemented in the case of a one-quarter time position being
funded.  

Sgt. Zessin was asked if the Police Department has someone earmarked to implement the
Commission’s safety recommendations.  He said there is currently no one on staff who
will be able to complete this task.  A Community Service Officer (CSO), an unpaid,
unarmed volunteer, would be the most likely scenario but there is currently not one
available.  Commissioner Upton pointed out that many of the safety recommendations can
be implemented without a CSO or additional police resources.  

In advance of the Commission’s prioritization of recommendations, Ms. Namba
summarized the educational items.     

See attached for the list of the Commission’s prioritizations.  

Commissioners Storer and Rea, respectively, moved and seconded that the
Commission recommend that the attached prioritizations list be considered by staff
to be the Commission’s consensus for recommendation to Urban Services
Committee.  The motion passed unanimously. 

V. New Business



BPAC Meeting Minutes
April 6, 2007

Page 4 

• Extension of Bike/Skateboard Exclusion Zone Downtown

This item was tabled until a future meeting. 

• BPAC Sunset Review

Ms. Namba distributed a memo on staff’s recommendations for BPAC sunset review and 
asked the Commission to consider four areas of BPAC: accomplishments and activities;
future activities and plans; analysis of shared responsibilities; analysis of whether more
responsibilities should be added to the charge of the Commission.    

Mr. Prichard said current development projects, such as the Witham Oaks development,
should be presented to the Commission before approval by the City’s Planning
Commission.  This would allow the Commission to have input in the process before the
process is complete.  Commissioner Storer said this is particularly pertinent for large
projects at which bicycle and pedestrian issues are prominent.  Councilor Beilstein said
some mechanism of review could be implemented to allow the Commission to have input. 
Ms. Namba agreed to add this concern to the list of new development activities for the
Commission.  

Commissioners Upton and Toy, respectively, moved and seconded that the
Commission approve staff’s recommendations for BPAC sunset review, while adding
the Commission’s ability to review bike/ped facilities of future development.  The
motion passed unanimously.  

Staff will make its recommendion to Urban Services Commission (USC) at a future USC
meeting.     

• 35th Street Curb Cuts Design Review

The Commission was asked to review drawings of curb cuts design provided by City
Engineering Supervisor, Greg Gescher.  The location of the project is northbound on 35th

Street from Washington Way to Jefferson Way, on the east side of the street.  The intent of
the project is to use “bio-swales” to trap and treat water in vegetated swales before it
reaches the storm drainage system.  Mr. Gescher is requesting the Commission’s opinion
on the viability of the curb cut design for its potential impact to bicyclists.  

  
Commissioners Rea and Toy, respectively, moved and seconded that the Commission
approve the 35th Street curb cuts design.  The motion passed unanimously.    

VI. Information Sharing

• The next bike path cleanup will be Wednesday, April 25th.  

• Mr. Prichard said the next Planning Commission meeting will deal with the required
developer improvements at NW 29th Street and Grant Avenue, as part of the Witham Oaks
subdivision plans.  He said the Commission should make a recommendation at the
Planning Commission meeting that bike/ped facilities are not compromised by these



BPAC Meeting Minutes
April 6, 2007

Page 5 

improvements.  Ms. Namba said she would research the issue before the meeting to gather
facts and report back to the Commission.    

NEXT MEETING: May 4, 2007, 7:00 a.m., Madison Avenue Meeting Room



DRAFT
Subject to review & approval

by CACOT

CORVALLIS CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMISSION ON TRANSIT 
MINUTES

April 11, 2007

Present
Bob Lowry, Chair
Lita Verts, Vice-Chair
Scott Carroll
Stephan Friedt 
Joe Harrod
Kenyon Solecki, ASOSU
Robert E. Wilson

Absent
George Grosch, City Councilor
Brandon Trelstad

Staff
Jim Mitchell, Public Works
Lisa Namba, Public Works

Visitors
George Allmendinger

SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION

Agenda Item Information
Only

Held for
Further
Review

Recommendations

I. Introductions X

II. Approval of March 14, 2007 Minutes Approved

III. CACOT/Visitor Comments X

IV. Old Business
• Committee Report on CACOT /Staff/

Laidlaw Cookout Plans
X

V. New Business
• Sunset Review
• Ridership Trends by Route X

Approved new charge language

VI. Information Sharing Approved recommendation to
support ASOSU’s Beaver Bus
funding request 

VII. Adjournment Adjourned

CONTENT OF DISCUSSION

I. Introductions

Introductions of Commission members, staff and visitors were made. 



CACOT Meeting Minutes
April 11 , 2007

Page 2 

II. Approval of March 14, 2007 Minutes

Commissioners Wilson and Friedt, respectively, moved and seconded that the
Commission approve the March 14, 2007 minutes.  The motion passed unanimously. 

III. CACOT/Visitor Comments

• Mr. Allmendinger suggested CTS bus passes should be sold at locations in addition to
City Hall. In response to a question from the Commission, he suggested that WinCo
would be a good outlet.  He also asked that buses without functional heat or air
conditioning not be used unless absolutely necessary. 

Chair Lowry stated that this particular meeting was scheduled as an evening meeting
specifically in response to a citizen request since the citizen was unable to attend the
regular morning meetings due to work schedule conflicts. He asked Mr. Allmendinger
whether this was an issue for him and how he felt about having more evening meetings.
Mr. Allmendinger said that since he is currently unemployed, he could attend either a
morning or evening meeting and so it made no difference for him.      

• Commissioner Friedt commented that he has heard from many riders and CTS drivers who
are concerned about the maintenance of CTS buses.  He feels the cleanliness of the buses
both inside and out is not acceptable.  He said that drivers told him that reports of needed
repairs submitted by them to Laidlaw mechanics were not being follow-up on adequately. 
Commissioner Friedt asked if the Commission should set up a subcommittee to audit
Laidlaw’s maintenance schedules and practices.  Mr. Mitchell said he could ask Brian
Maxwell, Laidlaw’s Corvallis Branch Manager, to attend a future commission meeting to
answer these and similar  questions.  Mr. Mitchell said Public Works fleet staff is
currently auditing Laidlaw’s maintenance and preventive maintenance logs.  

CTS drivers have also told Commissioner Friedt that biodiesel used by the buses is time-
consuming to dispense into the buses and is wreaking havoc on the bus filters and on the
dispensing filters on the pumps themselves.  Mr. Mitchell said Public Works has used
biodiesel for years without the problems described above.  He said he would contact
Laidlaw to ask about this issue.

Commissioner Solecki said he has been hearing information indicating that biodiesel may
not be as energy efficient as claimed due to the processing required, and wondered if the
City should examine the research to determine whether the use of biodiesel is consistent
with the community’s sustainability goals.  

The Commission requested that Mr. Maxwell be asked to attend a future commission
meeting to answer questions about Laidlaw’s operations.    

IV. Old Business



CACOT Meeting Minutes
April 11 , 2007

Page 3 

• Committee Report on CACOT/Staff/Laidlaw Cookout Plans

The committee has not yet met to discuss a cookout. It was decided to table this issue until
the May Commission meeting.  It appears as though a summer picnic is much more likely
than a spring picnic.   

V. New Business

• Sunset Review

Ms. Namba asked the Commission to review the staff’s report on the Commission’s sunset
review and in particular evaluate whether it adequately represented the Commission’s
charge.  Vice-Chair Verts said one of the positives of the Commission is the role of
conduit between the community and City Council.  She suggested adding the phrase “and
furnish a means for the public to express their views on transit to City Council” to the end
of Commission’s listed charge.  

With the additional language, the Commission proposed that the Commission’s charge
would now read: “The Commission shall advise Council on all matters relating to
operation, maintenance and expansion of the mass transit system of the City and mass
transit systems interfacing with the Corvallis Transit System and provide a means for the
public to express their views on transit to the Council.”    

Commissioners Friedt and Carroll, respectively, moved and seconded that the
Commission recommend the above-stated paragraph as its listed charge.  The motion
passed unanimously.       

• Ridership Trends by Route

Routes 3 and 8 have lost ridership, likely due to route revisions that resulted in the routes
no longer traveling through the OSU campus or past high-density housing on SW 49th

Street.  Neither the Philomath Connection nor the OSU Shuttle have made up the lost
ridership because ridership on those systems is also down.  Mr. Mitchell said that in
meeting with ASOSU during the Student Incidental Fee process, there was significant
interest in reinstalling service on SW Jefferson Way in order to better serve OSU’s
campus.  The route change removing the CTS buses from campus is seen by students as a
service reduction.  OSU Facilities Services has indicated their willingness to talk with city
staff about restoring service to campus, though their preference is to keep the CTS buses
on the periphery.

There was discussion about re-examining the way the schedule is designed: providing the
same service at the same frequency for the entire day, or structuring the routes to
maximize service at certain times of the day. As an example, CTS buses enter the HP
campus each hour, but during only a few runs do riders board or disembark.  Chair Lowry
wondered whether we have an HP contact for transportation issues.  Ms. Namba said that
we do have an HP representative on the Employer Transportation Committee but their



CACOT Meeting Minutes
April 11 , 2007

Page 4 

participation has been hit and miss. 
 

It appears from ridership data that OSU student ridership is down while non-student
ridership has remained the same or even increased.  During a discussion about on-time
performance, Ms. Namba noted that the highest number of complaints she has received are
regarding Route 1.  Mr. Mitchell pointed out that our method of calculating and reporting
on-time performance by recording departure from the Downtown Transit Center distorts
the data.  On-time performance out in the system at particular stops is considerably less
than the 95% + that we typically report.  One possibility is to measure on-time
performance both at the DTC and at the midpoints of the routes. 

Ms. Namba would like to eventually re-convene a subcommittee to examine various
issues about the routes and schedule, but said she is understaffed and not able to support
that effort now.  If the City Council approves the request for an additional transit position,
that person would be charged with mining ridership data and working to develop transit
changes.  Mr. Mitchell said that with the vacant Transit Coordinator position, there is no
one currently available to use existing data to formulate changes to increase route
efficiency.  

VI. Information Sharing
 

• Mr. Mitchell reported that Congress has allocated funds for 2007, which means funds
earmarked for a 2007 replacement CTS bus is now available.  Staff will put together a
grant request to the FTA for a replacement bus.  Because of rising cost of buses, staff is
looking into the viability of purchasing a 29-foot, 28-passenger bus vs the 35-foot, 32
passenger buses in our current fleet.  

• ASOSU approached the Budget Commission in March to solicit funds for Beaver Bus
operations for next year.  The Budget Commission did not pass a recommendation for
funding.  Subsequently, ASOSU received a commitment for more funding from the
student government and from sponsors but will need approximately $20,000 from the City
which is $1,000 less than this year.  ASOSU has committed to $42,000 in funds from
student fees and will raise an additional $15,000 from sponsors.  Commissioner Solecki
pointed out that while the City’s portion is significant, it  represents slightly little more
than one-quarter of the total operating cost ($77,000) even though non-student ridership
constitutes nearly one-half of total ridership.  The date for final public input is less than
one month away.  

Commissioner Solecki pointed out that one drunk driving accident could cost many
thousands of dollars and the Beaver Bus service helps keep these people off the roads  and
preserve quality of life for the citizens of Corvallis.  Commissioner Friedt asked about the
lack of OSU monitors on the Beaver Bus.  Commissioner Solecki said that next year there
will be paid monitors budgeted for, hence the increase in operating costs.  

Commissioners Verts and Friedt, respectively, moved and seconded that the
Commission approve a recommendation to City Council to support ASOSU’s
request for $20,000 from the City for Beaver Bus service during next year’s OSU



CACOT Meeting Minutes
April 11 , 2007

Page 5 

school year.  The motion passed unanimously.  

• Ms. Namba distributed a draft copy of the summer transit program for kids advertisement
which will appear in the Corvallis Gazette-Times.  This year’s program will be expanded
from last year and will feature free rides for youths aged 17 and under.  Allied Waste of
Corvallis donated money which will offset income previously received from youth
summer pass sales and revenue from both Library and Parks and Rec summer program
riders and will allow CTS to expand and enhance the summer kid’s program with
incentives and better promote it as well.  

VII. Adjournment

Commissioners Wilson and Friedt, respectively, moved and seconded that the 
Commission adjourn.  The motion passed unanimously. 

NEXT MEETING: May 9, 2007, 8:15 a.m., Madison Avenue Meeting Room



The regular meeting ofthe Core Services Coinmittee of the City ofCorvallis Oregon was called
to order at402 pm on May 10 2007 in the Downtown Fire Station 400 NW Hanison with

Mayor Charles C Tomlinson presiding

I ROLL CALL

PRESENT Committee Meinbers Mayor Charles C Tomlinson Councilor Hal Brauner
Councilor Bill York Eric Blackledge 408 Tim Cadman Kent Daniels
John Detweiler Tom Nelson Sandy Ridlington Jacque Schreck
Diana Simpson Cary Stephens Jiin Swinyard Brandon Trelstad
Doug VaiiPelt Bob Wilson ExOfficio Member Michael Mann CPOA
City Manager Jon Nelson Finance Director Nancy Brewer Parks and
Recreation Director Julee Conway LibraryDirector Carolyn RawlesHeiser
Public Works Director Steve Rogers Assistant City Manager Ellen Volmert
Management Assistant Carla Holzworth Recorder

ABSENT Rich Carone Kathleen ParisExOfficio Members Kevin Loso AFSCME
Eric Baxter CRCCA Dan Wehnnan IAFF

II REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF APRIL 12 2007 MINLJTES

The April 12 20071ninutes were approved

Mr Daniels noted that George Browns public testimony at the April 12 meeting contained
revenue suggestions that were not included in the Watershed Management Plan that was

recently adopted by Council If those suggestions were to befurther explored the Plan itself

would have to be revisited

III PUBLIC COMMENT

Corvallis Fall Festival Director Cynthia Spencer said she appreciates the support the City
gives to her organization and da Vinci Days

IV REVIEW INFORMATION REQUESTED FROM LAST MEETING

Finance Director Nancy Brewer reviewed herhandout ofresponses to infonnation requested
fiom the previous ineeting

Mayor Toinliilson rended Cou7mittee members that requests for infonlatioii will be

forwarded to staff if the Committee agrees it is needed

Core Seivices Coirunittee Minutes May 10 2007 Page 1



3

I response to Mr Damels request staff agreed to provide follow up infoination about

City County aild School Dish7ct debt service schedules and when those bond issues are

paid Staff will also inchide where the City is relative to those same jurisdictions with flie

addition of the Library District on the 10 per thousand cap to see what taxing capacity
exists

Iiresponse to Mr Cadmails iilquiry Mr Nelson noted that tlie Citysparticipation in the

International City Managers AssociationPerforn7ance Consortilim will assist with gathering
data in the fiiture about how Corvallis City departinent services compare with similar

communities The Committee agreed that the issue could be revisited after all staff

presentations have concluded

In response to Mr Van Pelts inquiry staff agreed to provide infonnation about the tiining
of the addition ofFire Station 5 and any expenses that were added to the General Fund after

that tiille Mr Van Pelt said the project was extellsive and he is conceiedthat some may

believe that closing the station wi1111e1p resolve the Citys financial shortfalls He added that

understanding the ten years of planning and delays associated with opening the station will

be helpfiil

Mayor Tomlinson asked that Committee inembers provide reasons for their requests or

infoi7nation to help eveiyone understand their value and staff tiine necessary to develop
answers

V DEPARTMENT PRESENTATIONS

PcrIsczrzdReereation

Parks and Recreatioil PR Director Julee Conway said basedon the 2020 VisionStatement

and Council goals her department focuses on three main areas Livability with programs

and volunteer opportunities for kids families teens and seniors Econoinic Vitality
primarily through tourism activities with the Aqliatic Center alid Crystal Lake Sports Fields
and Sustainability through open space acquisitions cominunity gardens that promote food

security and urban forest activities Challenges included providing sustainable fiuiding for

the Aqliatic Center Senior Center and Chintimini Park improvements and capital fimdiug
for parks

Inresponse to Ms Ridlingtonsitlquiry Ms Conway said the City owns the Majestic Theatre

and ArtCentric buildingsIiterest on aCitymanaged endowinent supports aportion ofthe

Maj estic Theanes operations andArtCentichistoricallyreceivedfiindilgfiom property tax

due to a inillage levy approved by voters in the early 1990s After Meastiire 4750 passage

and the resulting consolidation of dedicated levies t11e City Cou11ci1 elected to continne

holioring the millage levy ainount

Core Services Comuuttee Mimites May 10 2007 Page 2



5

In respouse to Ms Schrecks inquires Ms Conway said PRscuient project is the Senior

Center and Chintimini Park expansion The Senior Center needs to beredeveloped to green

building standards to zuake it lnore sustainable andcomfoitable for users The departiuents
business plan lists otller challenges incltiding fllose they will face beyond five years slich

as the eventual need to expand the PR administration building in Avery Park Ms Conway
noted that volunteers provide a great retui7l on investment and the same level ofservice could

not be offered without them

In response to Mr Blackledgesinquiries Ms Conway confinned that PR has about 280

contract service providers for instructors coaches and park maintenance tluough
organizations like Coinerstone PR has approximately seven fulltime equivalent FTE
employees in administration and planuing for all ofits facilities

Ilresponse to Ms Simpsonsinquiiy Ms Conway said charges for service reflect income

from program participants scholarships grants and donations are categorized differently

In response to Mr Mannsinquiries regarding the Senior Center data on page nine ofthe

handout Ms Conway said the attendance figure of44722 reflects program participants it

does not include approximately 13000 in attendance from rentals and other special events

She added that expansion ofthe Senior Center would create space to increase rental income
ultimately reducing the cost per participant The size ofthe current building inhibits any

further growth in classes and progralns that could generate additional revenue Ms Conway
agreed to bring back projections forpostexpansion attendance

Mr Daniels noted that at some point inore staff will be needed to properly care for the parks
and open space areas that have been added Referring to the FTE per 100 acres ofdeveloped
paYlzlcznd metric in the Perfonnance Measures table on page 3 ofthe handout Ms Conway
agreed that over time the ability to existing staff to properlymaintain parks and open space

will decline Discussions with the School District andLiimBenton Community College are

occurring regarding therelocation ofsoftball fields that will be required as a result ofthe

expansion

Librav

Library Director Carolyn RawlesHeiser said the Libraiy is aCityCounty system that has

received inany awards Approximately 61 ofthe Library is fiinded by City property taxes
the reinainder comes froin the service district as well as fines fees charges and State

funding The Libraiy heavily einphasizes youth services and its vohuteerhours equate to

approxiinately five FTE Ms RawlesHeiser said a proposal to expand the Librarys
voltulteer program was submitted to the Budget Commission she coirected the Volunteer

Coordinator figure provided onpage 15 noting that the cost is25000 per year not33000
The Friends ofthe Libraiy agreed to provide 10000 toward the promam in the first year

Staff are constantly working to make the facility more effcient but at some point expansion
will be needed

Core Seivices Conuuttee Minutes May 10 2007 Page



FM

i firesponse to Ms Schrecks inqniry Ms Rawles Heiser said Colvallis school libraries are

in bad shape The twohigh schoolslave only one full time and one halftime librarian and

the elementary and middle schools do not have aily librarians As a result many school

cluldrell wllo do not always have library research skills lise the pliblic libraiy

In response to Mr Blackledges inquires Ms RawlesHeiser said she does not have recent

demographics on libraiy users but she will tiy to locate the data Usage by Oregon State

University is not readily known bnt the use of laptops and expansion ofVa11ey Library has

helped to better meet student needs

Inresponse toMr Swinyards inquiry Ms RawlesHeiser said DVDs and CDs are the most

conunonly stolen items and such theft is primarily related to methainphetainine use The FY

200708budget includes funds to purchase aCD and DVD dispensing machine that will not

release the item without a library card Use of a collection agency has helped with overdue

inaterials

In response to Mr Blackledgesinquiry Ms RawlesHeiser said while the Libraiy strives

to partner wherever possible worlcing to improve the School Districts libraries will not

solve the public librarys space needs Expanding the number oflocations would increase

staffing needs at coilsiderable cost

In response to Ms Ridlingtonsinquiry Ms RawlesHeiser said while she does not have

figures about usage ofthe branch libraries the infoinationcould be extrapolated from the

County population and number of library cards issued She clarified that data from the 2006

Citizen Attitude Survey reflects the Corvallis branch only

In response to Councilor Braunersrequest Ms RawlesHeiser said the bookmobile serves

both the City and Benton Couizty She added that with the exception ofthe STARS program

and Monroe Middle School the boolnobile does not go to schools Rather it stops at

conununity locations like the Boys and Girls Club Lewisberg and other areas where there

are barriers to library use

Mr Daniels estimated that approximately5 to 80ofthe librarys service district fiinds

come from Coivallis Ilresponse to his inquiries about increasing fiinding Ms Rawles
Heiser said the service district rate is fixed and growth in revenue can only come from
increases in assessed value A new voterapproved levy would be needed to increase the
rate

Tirtnsit

Public Works Director Steve Rogers reviewed the Transit handout notiug that Coivallis has

offered transit siilce about 1980 The system wasprimarily funded tluough a series oftluee

Core Seivices Conuiuttee Minrtes May 10 2007 Page 4



z

t4 year levies until theywere eliminated by Measures 47 and 50 Since then fiinding is tllrough
property tax allocations Reductions in the transit systeins reliance on property taxes have

been realized through 500000 per year in Federal fiinding that Corvallis began receiving
when it becaine a Metropolitan Planning Organization MPO Oregon State Universitys
vohintary contribution of130000 per year and the transit systeins eligibility for Business

Energy Tax Credits which total 400000annually Mr Rogers then reviewed the handout
noting that the City contracts for its transit services and the Special Transportation Fund is a

pass through with Benton County Leverage using Federal dollars is at the maximum and if

local dollars are cut some Federal fiulding will be lost

Transit system challenges include future increases in service hours and facilities issues

Mr Rogers said about halfofthe transits ridership comes froin the two routes with 30 minute

frequencies ridership is rriuch less on the remaining routes which are one hour in frequency
The City has plans to constnict aCityowned operations andrepairinaintenance facility to

encourage competitionanong contractors

il response to Ms Schrecks inquiry Mr Rogers said Federal funding is tied to a sixyear
program Corvallis expects to receive funding for another three or four years but receipts
beyond that are uncertain

I7 responseto Mr Wilsons inquiry Mr Rogers said the Business Energy Tax Credit program

has Ueen formalized over the last year but it requires partners The City now has a partner
that Mr Rogers believes will be good for the next few years The unknown factar is how long
the State Legislature is willing to go without the tax dollars that are being lost froin those

credits

In response to Mr Daniels inquiiy Mr Rogers said the transit system still has capacity to

absorb additional demand of20 percent to 30percent but the peak hour routes could be inore

challenging tomanage He added that changes in parking availability impact transit use

In response to Mr Blackledgesinquiry about partnering on the possible new transit facility
Mr Rogeis said the City initially brought all potential agencies together including Benton

Cotulty and OSU but the only feasible partners were the City and School District who share

the same contractor and the Fire Department Theprocess is currently on hold as the Federal

govei7unent which provides SO ofthe study fiinding is ilot supportive ofthe facility being
jointly used with the School District The City is fonnulating a response as to why such an

arrangement makes sense

Iresponse to Mr Van Pelts inquiries Mr Rogers said fiiel costs have not risen to the point
where ptuchasiilg llybrid blises would result in fniancial savings However the City does nse

biodiesel fiiel as nnich as possible depending on price The City owns the buses but

maintenance operation and insurance are handled through a contract with Laidlaw When

it makes financial sense the City would brig transit backiilhouse but for now it is inore

Core Seivices Coirnnittee Minutes May 10 2007 Page 5



k

ecoiioiuical to contract oLit the service The City wage requirement applies only to drivers
not to administration or managei7lent staff In addition Laidlaw achieves soine econoinies

of scale by having contracts with both the City and the School District Regarding how

OSUs financial contributions to the transit systein relate to coinparable property tax support
Mr Rogers said the Citys transit system is a municipal systein however if it was a transit

district OSUs contribution would be according to State law based on payroll taxes This

would net the City a comparable property tax amotult The State Legislature has not been

supportive of changing the existing law so the City and OSU reached the current mutually
beneficial agreeinent

VI PUBLIC COMMENT

None

VII OTHER MINUTES

Mayor Tomlinson noted the inclusion in the packet ofminutes fioin the Prosperity That Fits

Committee meetings ofMarch 26 2007 and Apri123 2007

VIII NEXT MEETING

The next Coimlitteemeeting will be June 14 at400pm in the Downtown Fire Station at 400

NW Harrison Boulevard Presentations will be provided by the Police Departinent Fire

Department and Planning The Coinmittee will then discuss the process for fiihire meetings

Ms Schreck noted that she will be absent from the June meeting but asked that firture

deparhnent presentations include information about what role vohinteers play in their

departments and the FTE their donated hours represent

Iresponse to Mr Blackledges request Ms Brewer said shewould see ifphone conferencing
could beinade available for fizture meetings to give absent coinmittee members an option for

participation

The meeting adjounled at 600pm

Core Seivices Conmuttee Minlites May 10 2007 Page 6



Page 1 of 5 

CORVALLIS-BENTON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD MINUTES
April 4, 2007

Board Present Staff Present

Sandy Ridlington, Chair Carolyn Rawles-Heiser, Library Director

Phyllis Mix Janelle Cook, Sr. Administrative Specialist

Linda Modrell, County Commissioner Mary Finnegan, Adult Reference Manager

Mohammad Saeed Shaun Hearn, Circulation Co-Supervisor

Jacque Schreck Lori Johnston, Circulation Co-Supervisor

Mary Lee Seward Curtis Kiefer, Youth Services Manager

Eric Teegarden Carol Klamkin, Management Assistant

Tom W ogaman Teresa Landers, Deputy Library Director

Bill York, City Council Liaison

Excused: 

Phoenix Ries 

Charles W icks

Excused: 

Mary Norman, Access Services Manager

Summary of Discussion

Agenda Item

Information 

Only Action/Recommendation

Call to Order 7:30 pm

Visitors’ Propositions None

Minutes: March 7, 2007 Approved

Library Board Packet x

Committee & Board Reports

• Friends of the Library

x

Director’s Report x

Presentation: Transforming Libraries for the 21st

Century

x

Information Sharing None

Adjournment 8:53 pm

CONTENT OF DISCUSSION

  I. CALL TO ORDER

 Sandy Ridlington called the meeting to order at 7:30 pm  

 II. VISITORS’ PROPOSITIONS

There were no visitors’ propositions brought forward.



Page 2 of 5 

 III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Motion: Jacque Schreck moved approval of the March 7, 2007 minutes. The motion was
seconded by Phyllis Mix and it carried unanimously.

  IV. LIBRARY BOARD PACKET QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

Carolyn Rawles-Heiser began the meeting by introducing Janelle Cook, the new Senior
Administrative Specialist for the Library Administration office. 

Sandy announced that Bonnie Helpenstell has resigned from the Board. She was a
County representative. There are now two County vacancies on the Board to fill. Carolyn
participated in interviews in the last couple of weeks and they will be appointing two new
members next week – one is a long-time library volunteer and the other is a retired librarian.
Carolyn added that she is really sorry to see Bonnie go – for the last few months, Bonnie had not
agreed with some of the Library’s teen services, especially the addition of video games and the
establishment of a MySpace account to communicate with teens. She was a great Board
member, really good Chair, and made a strong contribution. Carolyn suggested that the Board
sign a card and send to Bonnie.

Jacque presented the OLA Quarterly publication to the Board and mentioned if anyone
was interested in reading it, she would loan it out. Phyllis borrowed it and will pass it along to
anyone else who may be interested. Teresa Landers noted that the next edition will be devoted to
the President’s theme (the current OLA President is the editor of this publication) of “Finding
Community” and Jacque said she would be sure to bring it in to pass around.

   V. COMMITTEE AND BOARD REPORTS

Friends of the Library: Jacque reported the actual numbers from the February book sale
were the largest ever gross amount and the net was over $27,000. Year-to-date, book shelf sales
have brought in over $9600 and online books $1878. Now that they have their new logo, the
Friends are going to start selling book bags with the new logo on them. Memberships are coming
in; thus far, there have been 420. Jacque further reminded the Board of the following upcoming
dates:

• May 1  will be the staff appreciation lunchst

• April 18  at 7:30 pm – the Friends are having a special program honoring the Oregonth

Book Award winners, in conjunction with the 150  birthday for Corvallis and Nationalth

Library Week. The authors will be available to sign their books. Emcee will be John
Hope Johnstone. 

• Random Review in March was Marley and Me. 68 people attended. Next week, April 11
will be The Golden Spruce. The May reviewer is Sandy Ridlington reviewing Maps for
Lost Lovers. Last week the Friends sponsored a program with Ginny Anderson and
they will be announcing a date fairly soon for the co-sponsorship of the Oregon poet
laureate.

Foundation Board: No report.



Page 3 of 5 

  VI. DIRECTOR’S REPORT

The solarium that the Brookes family is funding is nearly completed. It blends in perfectly
with the building if you’re driving by on 6  Street and it looks great with the inside of the library asth

well. Carolyn commented that it’s going to be a nice addition - this is a project she and Tom
Brookes have been working on for about nine years now. They hope to have some kind of
dedication ceremony in May. Carolyn is waiting to hear back from the family on what dates work
best for them. The City Council voted a year or so ago to name the new solarium, “The Victor
Brookes Reading Area.” There will be some kind of plaque to identify the space. Phyllis inquired if
the area is restricted to young people and Carolyn said no, it is open to everyone. It is located off
the kid’s room, but it’s going to be a comfortable reading area available to all. 

Carolyn went on to report about several other topics:
• The Core Services Committee held their first meeting – Carolyn will be presenting to

them about the Library in May. They are looking at the big picture of City finances and
also looking at the individual departments as well as other areas such as social
services funding. Jacque, Sandy, and Bill are participating in this committee and it’s just
getting off the ground.

• Adair Village residents talked to Carolyn about a potential library building in their area.
They would like to move a burned out building which once contained a bar onto city
property to use for a library, but Carolyn is hoping they will find another solution. She is
happy that there is interest in building a library in Adair Village, but would really prefer
not to have to retrofit a burned out building. Carolyn gave them the name of the
architect who is working with us in Monroe so she can give the residents of Adair some
ideas about why it’s probably better to build a new building. 

• Carolyn announced that Teresa is running for president of OLA and encouraged OLA
members to vote for her after the conference.

• It’s not too late to sign up for the OLA conference on April 18 - 20. Sandy has already
signed up. Trustees and friends receive a really reduced rate. Carolyn encouraged
everyone else to attend as well since the conference is conveniently being held here in
Corvallis. The Library will pay for the registration fee. 

• Sports Illustrated (SI) has been properly chastened by librarians across the nation who
were pretty upset that SI just decided to withhold part of the subscription (the swimsuit
issue) without consulting anyone first. They are supposedly sending us a copy now.
This issue is commonly stolen and libraries often have problems (we kept it behind the
desk last year because a patron said he was going to steal it). SI didn’t tell the Library
that they weren’t going to send this particular issue; it was discovered on a ListServ
and then our librarians started asking around and found out that other libraries were
also missing the issue. 

 VII. PRESENTATION:  TRANSFORMING LIBRARIES FOR THE 21  CENTURYST

Carolyn, Teresa, Mary Norman, and Curtis Kiefer attended the Spring Symposium of the
Public Library Association in San Jose in early March. Mary and Curtis participated in a session
on customer service in the 21  century and Teresa and Carolyn participated in a session on thest

physical library building using retail techniques such as space planning and expansions. Carolyn
opined that this was one of the most inspirational conferences they have attended over the years.
It reinforced topics the Board has been discussing over the last several months. Both workshops
incorporated marketing techniques directed at discovering what the customer really wants. Curtis,
Teresa, and Carolyn used a PowerPoint presentation to share what they learned and what the



Page 4 of 5 

implications are for the Corvallis Library.
  
Curtis began by stating that Corvallis is a good library, highly valued by the community,

but in order for the library to compete in the 21  century, we need to become a great library. Hest

realized at this conference that it really is “all about the customer.” According to Curtis, studies
have shown that traditionally, libraries offer: 

• confusing signage - for example, upon entering the Corvallis Library, there are three or
four easels plus other banners advertising seven different programs;

• seemingly unapproachable staff;
• poor parking;
• hard to use online system - Curtis initiated a search for “Italian cookbooks” from the

customer’s point of view using the Library’s online catalog and received poor results
(Aquabrowser provided much better search results); and

• dark, unpleasant surroundings - often the materials have the best view, not the patrons. 

In order to survive and compete with outside retailers, Curtis said libraries must provide
value-added services and become more user-friendly. Teresa continued the presentation with
“What Libraries Need to Be”:

• A welcoming environment 
• A physical and virtual destination
• The community living room
• Supportive of self-sufficiency
• A place where people can co-exist as they are

Carolyn proposed action steps needed to change our approach instead of expecting our
patrons to change to meet our rules. She said we need to find out how customers use our
facilities by analyzing traffic patterns, reaching out to all current non-users through focus groups
and/or surveys, and identifying our core functions and our unique niche in the community. It was
agreed that the Library’s niche is that there is no charge for our services (as opposed to Borders’
for example). Carolyn continued with the second phase of action steps:

• Incorporate all of the above into our vision, mission, and goals by evaluating and
redefining customer service for our library; 

• Redesign our spaces - libraries tend to look cluttered; Teresa is attending a space
planning workshop next week and will provide a report later; and

• Consistent branding and marketing of our new identity

In conclusion, Carolyn posed the question, “What does this mean for the Board?”
• Recognize the need for this transformation
• Stay informed:

< Ask staff when you don’t understand
< Attend conferences and workshops
< Encourage dialogue

• Support staff efforts in making these changes
• Set Board goals to facilitate this transformation

Sandy mentioned that OSU has experienced the problem of not having a consistent
identity; thus four logos in the past ten years. She surmised that when you really don’t know your
identity before you start implementing changes, then it becomes expensive and confusing for the
customer. Jacque added that this confusion would suggest that we haven’t found our niche yet.
Further, Jacque suggested that the Board take a few “field trips” to local libraries to get ideas
about what is and is not working for their facilities. Linda agreed this would be a good idea and



Page 5 of 5 

Carolyn said it was worth considering. Teresa said Pierce County Library and the Richmond, B.C.
library are the gold standards. Jacque described the environment of the Sunriver Public Library
with a fireplace hearth and nearby chairs, providing a very warm and inviting locale within the
library. Mary Lee commented that change is great, but we shouldn’t forget that we already have
an outstanding library. Carolyn concurred that we hear this sentiment often from our patrons.
Linda mentioned that OSU has an entire set up for focus groups; however, it’s important to be
heavily involved in the process. Jacque suggested we invite Corvallis Tourism to speak with the
Board about customer service in the hospitality industry. 

VIII. INFORMATION SHARING   

None.

IX. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 8:53 pm.

 

NEXT MEETING: May 2, 2007 at 5:30 pm



CIIYOF CO1tVAIIIS

DOWNTOWN AND ECOIVO C VIIAIIT

ILTSIElVNIAIIONCO IIEE

IJTES

Ap 26 2007

The regular meeting ofthe Downtown and Econoinic Vitality Plans Implelnentation Committee ofthe City of

Corvallis Oregon wascalled to order at400 pm on Apri126 2007 in the Madison Avenue Meeting Rooin
500 SW Madison Avenue Corvallis Oregon wit11 Mayor Toinlinson presiding

I ROLL CALL

PRESENT Mayor Charles Tomlinson City Manager Jon Nelson Finance Director Nancy
Brewer Cominunity Development DirectorKen Gibb Assistant City Manager Ellen

Volmert Committee Members Lairy Plotkin Pat Lampton Patricia Daniels Scott

Zimbrick Julie Manning Dave Livingston Belinda Batten Elizabeth French Pam

Folts Elizabetli Foster Dave Gazeley Linda Modrell Vincent Remcho

ABSENT Committee Members Judy Corwin Barbara Ross Jay Dixon

Mayor Tomlinson introducednew member Vincent Remcho a Professor in Analytical Cheinistry at

OSU

II REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES

March 13 2007 ininutes approved as presented

III PUBLIC COMMENT None

N PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUESTED FROM LAST MEETING

Mayor Charles Toinlinson noted that this itein reflects the City Council goals adopted in March 2007
the twoyear goals are guided by tlie Corvallis 2020 Vision Statement The relevant goal is

iuiplementation of the Downtown Strategic Plan and the EVP Plan Councilor Patricia Daniels

described how the goals chart was developed

V CITY STAFFING AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS MEMORANDUM

City Manager Jon Nelson highlighted his April 11 memo to the group accompanying Coinmunity
Development Director Ken Gibbs memo on the Comxnunity Development resource requirements
necessary to support the Downtown and EVP Plans 155000 Also attached was an estimate ofthe

resourcesnecessary to provide coordination facilitation and monitoring for theEVP Plan justunder

50000 The last Prosperity That Fits Coinmittee meeting suggested that each partner contribute a

ininimum of1000 and the three principal partners the city county and the Coalition contribute

about 12000 each to start So tlie estimated total annual City resourcesnecessary to work on the

action items and facilitate plans vnpleinentation is just under 170000

Downtown and Econoinic Vitality Page 1

Plans Implementation Committee Minutes April 26 2007



Ken Gibb added that the Downtown Strategic Plan contains a series of reconunendations to be

implemented over time staffing a Downtown Coirunission is one of the recominendations The

Downtown Cormnissionwould take on the roles ofthe Parking Commission and thenonpark related

issues offlie Riverfront Coimnission The cost ofstaff support to the Downtown Commission which

would also oversee urban renewal program management and the general strategic plan
recommendations as well as the costs ofsupplies and overhead would require an estunated105000
in new dollars annually He estimated the cost of undertaking EVP reconunendations including
working with theBlue Ribbon Panel on the Development process and unplementing recommendations

as well as support work for the Barrier Buster Teain would be accommodated at no cost through re

allocating 10 FTE ofthe Cominunity Development Directorstime The estimated cost offunding
strategic consultant services and special projects would require 50000 annually in new dollars

Mr Gibb stated that flie length of a typical Urban Renewal District is around twenty years so

administrative costs ofoverseeing that work would need to be funded during thatperiod Pat Lainpton
noted that some of the administrative costs could possibly be born by the District Larry Plotkin

suggested thata shorter periodcould beeasier for the public to accept in tenns ofavoiding perception
of creating another permanent layer ofbureaucracy

Elizabetli French askedwhether it was typical ofcities to staff urban renewal districts or whether they
were outsourced Mr Gibb replied it depended on the model it could be structured with an

independent board to oversee it The City ofAlbany has a 10FTE staffer to oversee their district
Medford has 25 to 30FTE employees to do so

Ms French asked ifan urban renewal district could bereevaluated after five years or so Mr Gibb

responded thathe hadneverheard ofa district terminated early though somehave fmished early when

they have retired debt sooner than expected

Mr Nelson highlighted t11e Prosperity That Fits staffmg proposal attached to his meino The internal

support costs are an estimated32500 tlie external support costs are 14900 for a total of47400
Highlighting funding sources listed to support the EVP Plan he stated it is proposed that partners
contribute aminvnum of1000 per year with the principle Coalition City and County partners

providing the balance of the 47400 He added that neiflier County Commissioners nor the City
Council have been formally approached regarding those contributions yet The Citysshare would be

12000 Together with the 155000 the total City share is rounded up to about 170000

Ms French asked about the Chamber Coalition as a funding source Mr Nelson replied that the

Coalition would likely provide aninkindcontribution ofstaff supportworth 12000 He emphasized
the plan was still in the early framework stage

VI REVWOPTIONS FOR FUNDING PLANS IMPLEMENTATION

Mayor Tomlinson asked Finance Director Nancy Brewer to present resource implications ofthe Citys
funding ixnplementation ofthe plans She highlighted her Apri13 2007 memoonrevenue alternatives
which featured a matrix of selected possible revenue alternatives for the Committees to consider

Downtown and Economic Vitality Page 2

PlansInpleinentation Coimnittee Minutes Apri126 2007



She noted the sources vary in how accurately the revenue from each source may be estimated Soine

revenue sources are a more appropriate fit than others to fund the services being examined by the

DCAEVP Committee Other communities use sources such as a business corporate income tax or

license fees to fund economic development Payroll taxes are more typically used to generate income

from commuters She cautioned that changes in state law means t11at a1increase in the Transient

Room Tax that has been discussed would actually result in a net loss of revenue to the City Ms

Brewer stated she is doing a comparative study on how nine other Oregon cities fund econoinic

development and would bring that information to the next meeting

Scott Zunbricksuggested adding to the list ofrevenue alternatives an exploration ofthe Council policy
that lunits recouping costs of land developinent applications to 50 He noted another sunilar

community charges over 100 Mr Nelson stated that such funds could not be used to fund

DowntownCounission work Ms Daniels suggested forwarding the suggestion to the Core Services

Coimnittee to fund services such as code enforcement Mr Nelson noted that page 3 ofthe matrix

describes a Community Development Fee

Ms Brewer described how a Special District as described on page 6 ofthe matrix could generate
revenue Mr Nelson stated tliatthe funding alternatives on page 7 ofthe matrix aBusinessCorporate
Incoine Tax and a Business License Fee made most sense to staff

Ms French asked about the alternative ofSelling City Assets land Ms Brewer replied that one

possibility could also be to lease land She cautioned that substantial research would be required on

issues such as finding out how specific parcels were acquired and whether tllere were any deed

restrictions

Pam Folts noted tliat discussion ofthe increinent ofincrease in theCityUtilities Francluse Fee page 2

in the matrix usually focuses on an increase from the existing5to 7 however other sinaller

increments couldalso be considered She saidpart ofthe business ofthe city is economic development
and that can be sold to the community Mayor Tomlinson emphasized tliat part of tlie charge to

committee members is to test proposed revenue sources with the coimnunity

Mr Lampton noted a concernwith nomenclature saying it is not the DCAsplan anymore tlieDCA

developed a strategicplan far the city which the city adopted No funding for the plan will go to the

DCA He noted that the primary funciing for the DCA comes froin the Economic Improvement
District which is a voluntary tax which members levy on tlieinselves A smaller amount offunding
comes from ineinbership dues

Mayor Tomlinson outlined the allocation ofthe Trausient Occupancy Tax noting halfofthe roughly
1 million total goes into the general fund and t11e otller half gets split between Corvallis Tourisin
which receives a fixed amount ofnoney and the rest is distributed in an economic allocation process

every May Grants froin tliat process fund the DCA fairs festival etc to fund economic development
according to polices that the City Council has established Ms Daniels noted that the amount of

funding that goes to Corvallis Tourism is mandated the rest of the allocation is a choice she

suggested that perhaps that funding source should be added to the list of revenue alternatives for

consideration

Downtown and Economic Vitality Page 3

Plans inplementation Counittee Minutes Apri126 2007



Ms Brewer noted that 30of funds from the Transient Occupancy tax inust go to tourism which has

an ORS defmition However 70ofany increase in tliat tax must go to tourism as well as allowing
lodging facilities to keep 5ofthat for administrative overhead for collecting the taxes which they do

not currently keep The loss ofthat 5is why an increase in that tax would result in anet loss to the

city Increasing the proportion that goes to competitive grants and Corvallis Tourism would decrease

resources that are now available for other generally funded city services

Dave Livingston suggested that the owner ofa business on 9 Street could be concerned about the

equity ofcontributing funding to downtown economic development He askedwhedier the Economic

Improvement District could be changed from voluntary to mandatory participation Mr Lampton
replied that it has been voluntary for five years and didntsee how it could now be changed Ms

Daniels suggested exploring the change since even ifit didnttake efFect for five years it would still

make a substantial dent in the funding needed to fund atwentyyearperiod ofurban renewal

Julie Manning observed that in regard to revenue solutions tied to econoinic development goals some

oftlie activities in the EVP plan are tied to the cityand others are not a numberoforganizations were

identified in the action plan as having a lead role in implementing those tactics She related that she

saw in the previous EVP minutes that these organizations are also faced with the same challenges that

the city faces in having thefunds to go forward in the areas that they have been identified to lead She

noted that the city already has an annual grant process fliat is tied to econoinic development She

suggested that the group consider that whatever the proposed revenue solution might be that apart
from mandated tourismdollars all oftheeconomic development activity betied to the citys EVP and

Downtown Plans This would create acoinmunityowned asset that would fund both city actions as

well as other organizations work on actions outlined in the EVP Plan She emphasized that this

approach could be sold to flie cominunity as not sunply funding tlie city component but alsoproviding
grant dollars for other organizations to be able to take the lead in the EVP Plan where it makes sense

for them to do so

Ms Manning said the two plans have a list of action items and owners that have been identified it

sunply remains to fiud a way to pay for implementing the plans The city is not the only player trying
to figure out a way to pay for tlie action items that they own in the plan She advocated creating a

revenue solution that included extra in it that could be allocated in a grant process tied to achieving
actions outlined in the plans

Ms French concurred with Ms Manningsapproach characterizing it as acominunitybasedsolution

Ms Folts cautioned that many of these issues inust be addressed by the City Council and the Core

Services Cominittee Elizabeth Foster noted that the titleDCAEVP Plan could lunit the scope of

the committee flie comnunity could also perceive the work in that saineway Ms Folts concurred
suggesting perhaps there was a problein in the terminology being used

Mayar Tomlinson stated the charge ofthe coimnittee wasto focus on the cityspartofthe Downtown

Master Plan audthe EVP Plan calledProsperity That Fits He stated that Ms Manuuig is suggesting
that the Downtown Plan is part of the EVP which is an umbrella plan that benefits tlie whole

conunity economically The question is whether the committee shouldmake a recommendation for

considering EVP funding that extends beyond the citys share ofEVP funding to include a granting
process for arganizations that support the EVP Plan and tie it with arevenue source or sources that

are somehow economic development linked He suggested the committee may wish to test out the idea

Downtown and Economic Vitality Page 4

PlansInplementation Committee Minutes April 26 2007



with theCore Services Cominittee The cominittee may alsowish to simply choose to find funding for

only its original charge the citysportion

Larry Plotkin stated that he never expected that the coinmittee would tryto find fuuding for only the

Citys share 170000 He expected that the Prosperity That Fits steeringconittee would come back

witli additional recommendations for funding for which this coinmittee would have to find funding
Mayor Tomlinson related tllat the PTF group was trying to zero in on tasks that they want to

accomplish in the first year and comnunicating to the coinmunity The 50000 requirement to

support the PTF plan is part oftie staffing proposal discussed earlier He said thatwhile the group is

intending to selffund in the first year funding that work longterm is an issue Ms Mannings
suggestion deals with tliatissue Mr Nelson added that Ms Manuiugsapproach goes beyond funding
plan infrastructure to also funding the actual plan action iteins as well

Councilor Ziinbrick declared Ms Manningsidea to be brilliant A critical part of the comnittees

conversation will be aclaiowledging that all the other partners will be scrainbling to find funding for

the plans as well He added that since the EVP Plan states that a major driver ofeconoinic vitality is

downtown business owners elsewhere in the city would support the plan

Ms French stated that she also thought it was likely that tlie committee would have to coineup with

additional funding for additional pieces that haventyet come forward Itwould be better to have a

single unified comprehensive plan to articulate t11e fundingpiece she strongly favored the broadened

approach tllat Ms Manning brought forward

Ms Foster concurred with 1VIs Manningsproposal She suggested tllat perhaps adininistration of

soineofthe action items could bejoined to avoid duplication She added thatifher business wereon

Kings Blvd shedwant to see some benefit from the economic development effort

Councilor Daniels asked iftheEVP could fonn a coalitionofparticipating parfners Mayor Toinlinson

noted that it was clear to him tliat the Chalnber Coalition would not consider further consolidation

Mr Lampton advocated testing ideas before acting especially since the cominunityhas not lustorically
supported economic development efforts He cautioned that incremental economic developinent was

not effective though He added that the Citysexperience showsthat anytling can be considered to be

economic development so ifa pot ofmoney is set up the City had better be prepared

Ms Folts stated that tliere seems to be very solid strategic planning among the leading economic

developinent players in the community The community may never bebetterpositioned to do whatMs

Manning suggests Ifthe various players are united then the plan has a better chance with the public
She supported Ms Manningsproposal especially given its more inclusive approach

Mr Gazeley supported Ms Mannings concept though it willtake careto unplement it especially in

explaining it to the public Also additional funds must go only to clearly defined economic

development purposes He expressed concern about how somne organizations may feel about

requesting funds from the city

Downtown and Economic Vitality Page 5

Plans linplementation Comtnittee Minutes Apri126 2007



Mr Nelson clarified that thecoirunittee would be asking t11e Prosperity That Fits steeringcounittee if

they want the committee to look at size of funding options that cover more than what have been

identified as the citys action iteins

Vincent Remcho declared himself in support ofMs Manningsproposal to broaden funding Linda

Modrell stated it wasan idea worth discussing she cautioned that some funding mechanisms affect

others

Councilor Zimbrick stated that iffunding cantbe found to help other stakeholders in the process then

they will all be competing for and asking for funds Mr Livingston concurred with Ms Mannings
idea and agreed with Ms Foltsanalysis about the need to be inclusive Mr Plotkin stated that he

assumed from tlie beginning that the funding would have a wider scope He added that the Prosperity
That Fits approach has been customized for the Corvallis cormnunity noting that the phrase
econoinic vitality wasbeing used intentionally in this process rather than economic development
due to the latter phrasesnegative connotations to many in the community

Ms Folts stated she wanted to underscare Ms Frenchscomment regarding the DCA terminology
sometimes used interchangeably andthe potential confusion and political ramifications ofcontinuing
to refer to the plan as the DCAEVP Plan Mayor Tomlinson noted the Downtown and Economic

Vitality Plans Implementation Committee has sometimes been referredto inshorthand as DCAEVP
he willtry to avoid doing so in the future

VIIDISCUSS NEXT STEPS

Ms Manning Mr Zimbrick Ms French andMs Fostervolunteered to discuss Ms Manningsidea at

a special Prosperity That Fits meeting within two weeks Mayor Tomlinson noted the group willwant

to laiow how it will work He asked the four volunteers to bring back PTF feedback to discuss at the

next meeting He noted he has already heard soineaiety among some partners about how to raise

funds for the first year

Mayor Tomlinson stated that ifthe PFT steering cominittee buys into the broader vision then itcan be

broached to the Core Services Committee which is now hearing departmental presentations in order to

better understand how the city functions Ms Manningsproposal could be presented to the CSC in

about a montli

VIII OTHER INFORMATION None

IX NEXT MEETING

The next Committee meeting will be May 24 at400pm

X PUBLIC COMMENT

Mark Knapp 958 NW Sycamore concurred with Ms Folts concern regarding the usage of

DCAEVP language He added that economic developinent and cominunity mean difFerent things
to different people and need to bedefined Mr Gazeley highlighted defmitions at the Prosperity That

Fits website

Downtown and Econoinic Vitality Page 6

Plans Implementation Coimnittee Minutes Apri126 2007



XI ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 558pin

Downtown and Economic Vitality Page 7

Plans Implementation Comtnittee Minutes Apri126 2007



HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
MINUTES 

April 18,2007 

Present 
Judy Gibson, Chair 

Absent 
Ed Fortmiller. Vice Chair 

Buzz Berra Jennifer Jordan 
David McCarlhy Dan Schofield (excused) 
Patricia Weber, Plailuing Comn~ission Liaison 
Trish Daniels, City Council Liaison 

Staff 
Kent Weiss 
Joe DeMarzo 
Terri Heine 

Visitors 
Sheny Littlefield 
Michael Smith 

SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION 

HCDC M~nutes 

Agenda Item 

I. Consideration & Approval: I-ICDC Draft Minutes of 03/07/07 

I Status: Loan Funds and Recent Rehab Loans 

111. Loan Policy Exception Request: Neighborhood Improvement Program 
Loan 

IV. HUD's IIOME Program Monitoring Letter and Report 

V. Pending City Council Resolution and Implications for HCDC 

VI. Other Business: City Council Public Hearing of April 16, 2007 

ActioniRecommendation 

Approved as Submitted 

Information Only 

Recommendation 

Information Only 

Discussion 

Information Only 



CONTENT OF DISCUSSION 

I. Consideration & Approval: HCDC Draft Minutes of March 7,2007 

Chair Gibson opened the meeting, asking for consideration of the HCDC draft minutes of March 
7,2007. The minutes were approved unanimously. 

11. Status: Loan Funds and Recent Rehab Loan 

Housing Program Specialist DeMarzo reported that one new First Time Home Buyer (FTB) loan 
has closed since the last meeting, adding that one more is expected to close by the end of the 
month. Regarding rehabilitation loans, DeMarzo reported that two Essential Repair (ER) loans 
have closed since the last meeting, adding that several more are in the applicationireview process. 

111. Loan Policy Exception Consideration: Neighborhood Improvement Program Loan 

DeMarzo directed Commissioners to a memo included in their packet detailing a Neighborhood 
Improve~nent Program (NIP) loan policy exception request for a one person household located at 
796 NW Fox Place. He noted that the home was built in 1978 and, overall, is in good condition. 

Continuing, DeMarzo noted that the proposed scope of work addresses items that are typical of a 
30 year old structure, and is intended to repair, replace, or upgrade worn and compromised 
components of the house. Priority items include replacing the roof, windows, furnacc and 
flooring, and adding insulation. DeMarzo noted that six bids have been received from interested 
contractors to determine that costs are reasonable for the project. 

Concluding, DeMarzo noted that there is sufficient equity in the property to secure the requested 
loan amount of $32,680. Because the total loan amount exceeds the $30,000 policy threshold, the 
applicant's housing costs exceed 30% of total income, and the applicant's total fixed debt exceeds 
40% of total income, a recommendation for a loan policy exception from the HCDC is needed in 
order to forward this request for City Manager approval. 

Following a brief discussion, Commissioner Berra moved, with Commissioner McCarthy's 
second, that the HCDC recommend City Manager approval of the request for a loan policy 
exception for a Neighborhood Improvement Program loan in the amount of $32,680 lor the owner 
of the home located at 796 NW Fox Place. The motion passed una~~imously. 

IV. HUD's HOME Program Monitoring Letter and Report 

Housing Division Manager Weiss directed Commissioners to a letter and report included in their 
packet regarding the recent HOME Program monitoring visit conducted by staff from HUD's 

HCDC Minutes 2 04/18/07 



Portland Field Office. He noted that the monitoring visit was quite extensive, taking place over 
the course of threc days in early February, and included looking at files and talking with staff in 
the Housing office, as well as site visits to properties assisted with HOME funds, and to 
Willanette Neighborhood Housing Services (WNHS), the City's Co~nmunity Housing and 
Development Organization (CHDO), to look at their records and processes. 

Continuing, Wciss noted that comments included in the letter from Doug Carlson, Director of 
Community Planning and Development in HUD's Portland office, inelltion that IHousing staffs 
attention to the HOME Program's statutory and regulatory requirements is to be commended, and 
that HUD is pleased with the Housing staffs ki~owledge of the HOME requirements, attention to 
detail, communication with HUD's staff regarding colnpliance questions, and attendance at 
relevant program trainings. 

Regarding the monitoring report, Weiss noted that it conveys four findings, two concerns and a 
number of recommendations. He explained that findings are items not in compliance with 
regulatory and/or statutory requirements. Concerns are deficiencies that could lead to future 
problems. Recommendations are intended to be helpful in efforts to comply with the 
requirements and operate a successful problems. Weiss noted that Mr. Carlson mentions in his 
letter that it is HUD's opinion that the findings and concerns that were identified are isolated and 
can be easily corrected, and that the monitoring did not identify any systemic non-compliance 
related to overall program management and oversight. 

Continuing, Weiss noted that although only findings require a written response within 30 days, 
Housing staff will be responding to all findings, concerns and recommendations within the next 
week. He then provided an overview of the monitoring report: 

Finding No. 1 : The written HOME agreements with future capital funding recipients need 
some revision to include a correct coilflict of interest clause. Also, the agreements specify 
the correct length of the period of affordability, but don't specify when the affordability 
period starts. Weiss noted that affordability periods begin when the projects are actually 
closed out in HUD's financial tracking system. Language will be included in future 
agreements regarding the conflict of interest clause and affordability period beginning 
date. 

Finding No. 2: The City's HOME match credited to date includes non-federal 
contributions made to housing that is not HOME-assisted. All requirements to claim this 
inatch were met by the City's HOME-eligible First Time Home Buyer (FTB) program 
assistance except for those pertaining to property standards. Weiss noted that this was 
overlooked by staff because the FTB loans were being funded with CDBG funding, which 
does not require property inspections. The property standards requirement kicked in 
because other assistance in the transactions being provided by the Federal IHome Loan 
Bank was also being counted as HOME match. Weiss noted that staff does not want to 
give up the match credit, so will be contacting all applicable ho~neowners and asking if 
staff can come back out to take a look at their home to complete the property standards 
inspection requirement. 

HCDC Minutes 3 04/18/07 



Finding No. 3: Tenant leases did not have acceptable termination clauses included as 
required by owners of HOME funded rental housing. During site visits. HUD staff 
reviewed leases for four of the units located at WNHS's South Corvallis Townhomes (I 
and 11) and for two units located on NW Sycamore. It was found that the South Corvallis 
Townhome leases did not include specific language noting that the termination of tenancy 
requires a 30-day written notice for cause. Weiss noted that WNHS and their property 
manager will be correcting their leases to include this specific, HOME required language. 

Finding No. 4: The FTB loans did not meet the Uniform Relocatioil Assistance and Real 
Property Acquisitions Policies Act (URA) as no voluntary sales agreements were provided 
to sellers. Weiss noted that shortly after the FTB loans were processed, staff discovered 
on its own that this notice was required, and has included the voluntaly sales agreement as 
part of the loan processing procedure for several years now. 

Concern No. 1 : The City has not re-certified WNHS as a CHDO each time funding has 
been provided to the agency. Weiss noted that previously, staff has asked WNHS to sclf- 
certify each year, but will now ask them to iill out a complete application as suggested by 
HUD. 

Concern No. 2: The FTB files did not contain documentation that the purchase price bad 
been checked against the FHA mortgage limits as required by HOME regulations. Weiss 
noted that staff had actually done this comparison for each FTB loan, but had not included 
adequate documentation in the customer files. 

Concluding, Weiss noted that, as mentioned in the letter from Mr. Carlson, while there are several 
areas in which the City can improve regulatory compliance and program management, on the 
whole staff are well versed in the prograin requirements, attend to details, and clearly aiin to 
comply with the requirements. 

A brief discussion followed, during which Commissioners asked about thc monitoring visit and 
review process, and commended staff on a favorable HOME program monitoring report. 

V. Pending City Council Resolution and Implications for HCDC 

Weiss directed Commissioners to a memo and draft Citv Council resolution included in their 
packet, noting that staff expects to submit the resolution for consideration during the Council's 
May 7 meeting. He exlllained that HUD has launched an "America's Affordable Communities - 
Initiative," and is asking communities both to join the initiative, and to undertake a self- 
examination relative to the things they do to promote or discourage the development of affordable 
housing. HUD contacted Mayor Tomlinson to request that Corvallis participate, and the Mayor 
has asked staff to move forward. Weiss noted that the resolution mentions that the HCDC will be 
asked to conduct a review of current City development rules and regulations, and to assess 
whether there are barriers to the creation of affordable housing contained in or resulting from 

HCDC Minutes 4 04/18/07 



those rules and regulations. Where barriers exist, the Co~nmission will be asked to learn about 
and then recommend approaches to overcome them. 

Continuing, Weiss noted that thc two things that are being asked ofjurisdictions to set the process 
in motion are to pass a resolution noting their desire to join the initiative and how the task will be 
accomplished, and to "sign on" with HUD by notifying the Oregon Field Office in Portland. If 
things go as anticipated, both of these steps should be completed prior to the regular May meeting 
of the HCDC. At that meeting, discussion will begin regarding the best approach to the task. 
Weiss noted that the coilversation that HCDC began last fall about small houses and cottage-style 
development seems like it might have a natural place in this bigger project. To aid in the research 
and discussion, Weiss noted that also included in Commissioners' packets are copies of a HUD 
questionnaire that looks at development policies froin both the planning side and the building 
review side, adding that it has been completed with input from both the City's Planning Division - - 
and Development Services Division. 

Concluding, Weiss noted that depending on the specific direction the Council provides, this 
undertaking has the potential to be a significant work task. He added that the Planning Division 
and Development Services staff will continue to help with the research as needed, and that staff is 
also open to exploring a variety of other resources to accomplish the task. 

Following a brief discussion regarding affordable housing options and possible barriers in the 
City, it was decided that Commissioners will coiitinue reviewing the HUD questionnaire and 
thinking about ideas and approaches to completing the task in preparation for continued 
discussion at the May 16Ih meeting. 

VI: Other Business: City Council Public Hearing of April 16,2007 

Weiss provided a brief overview of the April 16 City Council public hearing to consider the FY 
07-08 CDBGIHOME Action Plan. He reported that representatives from four agencies had 
presented favorable testimony regarding the Plan, and that Council had voted unanimously to 
adopt it as written. The Action Plan will now be forwarded on to HUD for their review, and staff 
expects to hear back from HUD in mid-June regarding its acceptance of the document. 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 1:05 p.m 

HCDC Minutes 



0

CORVALLIS
ENHANCING COMMUNITY LIVABILITY

Community Development
Planning Division

501 SW Madison Avenue

Corvallis OR 97333

Approved as corrected May 2 2007

CITY OF CORVALLIS
PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES

April 4 2007

Present
David Graetz Chair

Karyn Bird Vice Chair

Jennifer Gervais

Frank Hann

Tony Howell arrived 715pm
Denise Saunders
Patricia Weber

Excused

Brandon Trelstad

SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION

Staff
David Coulombe Deputy City Attorney
Fred Towne Planning Division Manager
Keith Turner Development Engineering Supervisor
Eric Adams Associate Planner
Bob Richardson Associate Planner

Jackie Rochefort Parks Planner

Roxanne George Civil Engineer I
Terry Nix Recorder

Information Held for

Agenda Item niY Further Recommendations
Review

I Visitors Pro ositions X

II Public Hearing continued X The record was held open until

WithamOaks Conceptual and April 11 2007 at 500 pm

Detailed Development Plan Deliberations will be held April 18
Tentative Subdivision Plat 2007

PLD0600012SUB0600005

III Public Hearing X The record was held open until

Wilson Woods April 11 2007 at 500 pm

Comprehensive Plan Map Deliberations will be held April 18
Amendment and District 2007

Change CPA0600001
ZDC0600001

IV Request for Extension of a Approved
Detailed Development Plan

CorvallisHome Improvement
Center PLD0300019MLP03

00016

V Minutes
A Planning Commission Approved as presented

March 7 2007

Planning Commission April 4 2007 Page 1 of 20



Information Held for

Agenda Item OnIY Further Recommendations

Review

VI Old Business X

VII New Business X

A Planning Managers
U date

VIII Adournment 1240am

CONTENT OF DISCUSSION

The Corvallis Planning Commission was called to order by the Chair at700pm in the Downtown

Fire Station Meeting Room 400 NW Harrison Boulevard

I VISITORS PROPOSITIONS There were no propositions brought forward

II PUBLIC HEARING CONTINUED Witham Oaks Conceptual and Detailed Development

Plan Tentative Subdivision Plat PLDO600012 SUB0600005

A Opening and Procedures

The Chair welcomed citizens to the continuation of the Public Hearing for Witham Oaks
which began on March 21 2007 He then reviewed the public hearing procedures There

will be a staff report and public testimony followed by rebuttal by the applicant limited in

scope to issues raised in opposition and surrebuttal by opponents limited in scope to

issues raised on rebuttal The Commission may ask questions of staff engage in

deliberations and make a final decision Any person interested in the agenda may offer

relevant oral or written testimony Please try not to repeat testimony offered by earlier

speakers It is sufficient to say you concur with earlier speakers without repeating their

testimony For those testifying this evening please keep yourcomments briefand directed
to the criteria upon which the decision is based

Land use decisions are evaluated against applicable criteria from the Land Development
Code and Comprehensive Plan A list of the applicable criteria for this case is available
as a handout at the back of the room

Persons testifying either orally or in writing may request a continuance to address

additional documents or evidence submitted in favor of the application If this request is

made please identify the new document or evidence during your testimony Persons

testifying may also request that the record remain open seven additional days to submit

additional written evidence Requests for allowing the record to remain open should be

included within a personstestimony

The Chair opened the public hearing

Planning Commission April 4 2007 Page 2of 20



B Declarations by the Commission Conflicts of Interest Ex Parte Contacts Site visits or

Obiections on Jurisdictional Grounds

1 Conflicts of Interest None

2 Ex Parte Contacts None

3 Site Visits None

4 Objections on Jurisdictional Grounds None

C Staff Overview

Associate Planner Eric Adams said there is an opportunity this evening for additional public
testimony For those who testified verbally at the March 21 2007 public hearing
testimony is limited to information that has been submitted since that time Forthose who

have not yet testified in these proceedings testimony maybe presented on any part of the

application Mr Adams reviewed materials distributed this evening two staff memoranda

dated April 4 2007 with attached public testimony Attachments A and B a staff

memorandum dated April 4 2007 with attached additional application materials

Attachment C and testimony submitted this evening from Rebecca Wilson Attachment
D and from Elizabeth Schwartz and Jason DeLorenze Attachment E Mr Adams said

staff is also prepared to answer questions received via email from Commissioners Weber

and Gervais

Planning Division Manager Fred Towne said staff received a significant amount of new

information today which it has not yet had the opportunity to analyze Staff recommends
that the record be held open for seven days after which the applicant would have seven

additional days to submit final written argument Deliberations would then beheld on April
18 2007 Mr Towne said staff would not recommend a continuance as that would

prevent the City from meeting the 120day mandated time frame required by State law

Following briefdiscussion it was generally agreed to hold the record open for seven days

D Public Testimony in favor of the application None

E Public Testimony in opposition to the applicants request

Stella Coakley 3839 NW Jackson submitted written testimony Attachment F and said
her primary concerns are related to the wetlands She strongly supports the staff

recommendation for five years of monitoring after the last phase of development She
would like to see more trees preserved on this land and feels the number of trees slated

for removal would substantially change the natural features in this area Ms Coakley
expressed concern that Street J abuts the OSU property as a dead end without any

easement to protect access to those properties she would like that situation modified

perhaps with aculdesac She thinks a monument sign at Circle and Harrison would be

inappropriate and that the fencing should be made ofwood in order to be consistent with
the neighborhood Ms Coakley believes there are many questions with the geotechnical
analysis and that expectations are not nearly as predictable as the developer would like
them to be

Tom Jensen 970 NW Garfield 6 said he has concerns about open space and traffic

impacts He said the layout shows much of the open space to be awkwardlyshaped
pieces smaller than one acre He said the traffic impact analysis shows 195amtrips and

249 pm trips at full buildout averaging a little more than one trip per unit Mr Jensen

Planning Commission April 4 2007 Page 3 of 20



said the transportation maintenance fee on his water bill suggests that each household is

responsible for96trips He questioned that differential asked that consideration be given
to traffic impacts further down Circle Boulevard and suggested that Engineering do an

actual trip count

Robert Mason 3635 NW Jackson submitted written testimony Attachment G He

expressed concern that the plan to form a Home Owners Association HOA does not

detail what is to be maintained HOAs are known to fail and responsibility then falls to the

City at the taxpayers expense He said the Conditions Covenants and Restrictions

CCRs should be described within the application and should include a clear warning
regarding the noise and smells related to the agricultural dairy research operations Mr

Mason said control of stormwater is of great importance to him and his neighbors and he

requested additional planning and analysis prior to City approval

Jason DeLorenze 3930 NW Witham Hill Drive referred to his written testimony previously
submitted Attachment E He said the traffic studies were conducted during finals week

and he does not feel they are an accurate representation of the traffic the area gets on a

regular basis Mr DeLorenze also stated that

the monument sign seems excessive and ridiculous
a concrete fence is a bad idea considering the character of the area

the proposed variance for lot coverage seems impractical and

wildlife does not consider small oneacre pieces of land as places to flourish and

thrive

MarilrLn Moore 3608 NW Tyler Place said she lives near the subject site and bikes or

drives on Harrison every day She expressed concern that Circle Boulevard will be carried

through to Harrison Boulevard noting that Harrison is very narrow and potentially
dangerous from 36th to 29th Street Ms Moore recommended that left turns onto Harrison

from the development be illegal and that a traffic light be put in at Witham Hill Drive and

Circle

Chava Neuhaus 3362 NW Roosevelt Drive submitted written testimony Attachment H
She said she believes that the voters who approved this annexation believed trees would

be preserved and that this proposal to remove 342 significant trees is a betrayal of the

voters trust She cited Comprehensive Plan policies465and467and said areduction

in density of dwellings would address those goals Ms Neuhas called attention to the map

included with her written testimony on which she has indicated the trees proposed to be

cut and those that might be preserved if density was reduced

Karl Hartzell 750 SW C Avenue 15 said he is a member of the Marys Peak Sierra

Club and is speaking on their behalf He expressed concern about the Witham Oaks

proposal including
the loss of two acres of prime wetlands
removal of existing trees
destruction of precious and diminishing habitat
hydrological changes which are likely to create ground water problems for

homeowners and

impacts to OSU agriculture land
Mr Hartzell urged the Commission to defer consideration until the applicant meets all 60

Conditions of Approval outlined in the staff report and to reopen the hearing at that point
so the public can determine that the Conditions have been adequately met

Planning Commission April 4 2007 Page 4 of 20



Jonathan Nash 3245 NW Crest Drive said he frequently uses the multiusepath and he

is concerned about the proposed number of new street crossings He suggested that

the four crossings proposed be minimized to just one He also said that

he is in favor of a light or fourway stop at Witham Hill and Circle
some small changes could allow further preservation of the wetlands
he agreed with previous testimony that voters were persuaded to annex this property
because they thought it would save trees and

he would like to see better linkages of park land and open space with the existing City
park so this area would be a more effective place for recreation

In response to an inquiry from the Commission Mr Nash said removing the extension of

Street A and relocating Circle a little to the east would help to reduce wetland impacts

Zel Brook 3555 NW Polk Avenue said she is concerned about the developers proposal
to delay the extension of Circle Boulevard She said she previously submitted testimony
Attachment A pages 3742 detailing a traffic count she did in front of her house during
the week of spring break during which she counted more than 300 cars per hour After

spring break the rate rose to between 400 and 600 cars per hour Ms Brook stated that

traffic in the area has been increasing over time 36t Street was not built for the current

level of traffic and additional traffic would adversely impact this residential neighborhood
She would like to see an extension of Circle or some traffic relief on 36t Street as soon as

possible

Dave Mellinger 3798 NW Jameson Drive spoke about the importance of keeping areas

with natural character close to where people live He said use of the subject area exceeds
use of Bald Hill and it is convenient to where people live He said he would advocate

eliminating the high density housing or moving it further from the open areas and

preserving much of the natural character of that area Mr Mellinger said he would also

advocate trafficcalming measures to discourage excess traffic especially truck traffic

Robert Moore 3608 NW Tyler Place said this is a fairly inconsistent proposition given that

the neighborhood consists mostly of single family homes He questioned what impact this

development might have on property values Mr Mooresaid the area on Harrison between

36h and 53d is basically atwolane freeway and both sides are awash during the winter

He bikes at that location and feels it is a dangerous place He noted that OSU has a

locked agricultural facility adjacent to the property and questioned what impact ahigh
density housing tract might have on that

Larry Becker 3904 NW Clarence Circle addressed the issue of safety on Harrison He

stated that he runs and walks in that area The road is used by walkers runners children
families and dog walkers and it is very dangerous with fastmoving cars Mr Becker said

he is not convinced that residents will be ready to accept the strong smells associated with
OSU agricultural uses He thinks of this area as a landscape and would like to see it

preserved

John Foster 1205 NW Fernwood Circle requested that the record be held open for seven

days

Alice Burbott 4075 NW Dale Place said she has lived at this location for 35 years She

agreed with testimony in support of a traffic light at Witham Hill and Circle She expressed
concern that Dale Drive is not designed to take the amount of traffic that will come up that

road and she can assure the City that residents will request traffic calming devices Ms

Burbott also expressed concern about water runoff stating that she knows offour houses

Planning Commission April 4 2007 Page 5 of 20



on Dale Drive with springs She questioned where all the water pouring off of Dale will go
if the wetlands are filled She pointed out the location of the fault in this area and asked

if serious consideration has been given to placing houses on the fault

F Neutral testimony

None The Chair reminded people that speaking neutrally removes rebuttal rights

G Questions of Staff

Staff responded to questions previously submitted by Commissioner Weber as follows

What is the possibility ofgranting conditional development approval only and requiring the

applicant to comeback when engineering is finished to get detailed development approval
That is a possibility and is within the purview of this body There will be more discussion
later about requirements for conceptual development and detailed development as well

as the detailed engineering that comes before a project commences construction

Is it true that there is no traffic study that accurately depicts current level ofservice LOS
at the 29t Street and Grant Avenue intersection nor one that predicts LOS at the same

intersection should the restriping proposed by the applicant be implemented
There are traffic studies indicating that the area is on the verge of suffering adverse LOS
and this project is proposed to add traffic to that intersection Staff has not yet had time

to analyze the new information submitted

Given the number of unknowns concerning storm drainage design on this project would

the granting of a conditional development approval only assist in the process of ensuring
that the necessary design details are worked out to an adequate level prior to issuance of

a detailed development approval
Not necessarily Staff worked with the applicant to get what staff considered to be

adequate detail for a Detailed Development Plan application and it is normal for detailed

engineering to come after There is a modification process available for planned
development projects and staff set thresholds in the conditions to address components
such as stormwater design that are not specifically included in the Major Modification

criteria

Questions related to the staff report

Re Page 60 Why do we not know what the appropriate riparian buffer width is for the

drainageway Why are we asking the applicant to document this rather than telling them

what is required
The section of the drainageway that is proposed to be relocated with the construction of

Circle is located within a tract of land Staff has looked at the existing channel and the

width of the buffer proposed and believes it met the intent of the Land Development Code

LDC and would be adequate to serve that area

Re Page 70 Condition ofApprova112 How is the construction traffic to be directed onto

NW Harrison Boulevard given the weight restrictions on vehicles more than 12000 lbs

from 9h Street to the westerly City limits
The Municipal Code establishes a set of weight limits in this area on Walnut Boulevard
Circle Boulevard and Harrison Those limits are designed to address through truck traffic
but do provide for needed truck access to sites that front the streets

Planning Commission April 4 2007 Page 6 of 20



Re Page 76 Development Related Concern K What happens if the applicant is unable

to resolve this conflict and the driveways remain within 150 feet ofeach other in violation

of City standards
This situation has to do with the proposed extension of the Circle Boulevard landing near

the flag lot portion of the Beit Am property and the westerly driveway of the Latter Day
Saints LDS Church site staff is aware of the circumstance The proposed alignment
clearly preserves the wetlands to the best extent The applicant was able to communicate
with the Beit Am property owners and staff expects access to that property would be

established via Circle Staff has not yet had time to analyze all of the testimony received

including that from the LDS Church Staff review has indicated that the LDS access point
is far enough from Circle not to generate safety conflicts and therefore staff has accepted
this as a variance

Page 76 Is StreetJrequired to have an emergency vehicle turnaround at its dead end

Ifnot why nof
As proposed Street J does not exceed 150 feet in length which is what the Fire

Department says it can effectively back out of Street J is there to facilitate an

interconnected local street network with possible development to the west

Page 79 Why are we requesting a reflectorized locking gate at the multiuse path
entrance south ofStreetA Unfortunately without a barrier to prevent it some people
will drive on this portion of the property and there is evidence ofdamage in the wetland

area There is a gate similar to that proposed at the bottom of the existing multiuse path
Staff may need vehicular access to the path for maintenance of the sanitary sewer

Page 80 What sort of mechanism could the Applicant provide to ensure maintenance

should the HOA cease to exist

Condition 1 states that approval is for the application as proposed or as modified by the

Conditions Since the applicant has proposed to form an HOA that body is part of the

approval therefore the City could require it to remain intact and functioning in a manner

to maintain the facilities as intended

Page 91 Do we know if there will be adequate Level 2 water pressure to serve all fire

hydrants required for the developments including the ones located athigher elevations

Yes based on staffs experience It will need to be demonstrated that the system will

maintain 20 psi and 1000 gpm to maintain fire requirements There is discussion in the

staff report about the possibility of using private booster pumps to meet domestic water

needs Both of these items will be addressed at the Public Improvements Under Private

Contract stage

Page 93 How do private storm drains work Where does the water go
Staff strives to minimize the extent of private storm drain systems but in this case the

topography is such that it was determined that private easements along the back of the lots

are appropriate The water will be collected and tied into the public system Private

easements would be established with maintenance rights so all owners would have the

right to maintain or repair lines if needed

Page 97What level ofengineering detail would the applicant need to provide to ensure

that the stormwater drainage system can be built to King County standards
There is a great deal of detail to come Staff is comfortable that the applicant understands
the criteria that the system was designed accordingly and that thereare boundaries which
staff will be reviewing for compliance This is acomplex system which feeds wetlands and

Planning Commission April 4 2007 Page 7 of 20



staff wants to be as sure as possible that it is a viable system The language in the

Condition which indicates staff is not certain the system can be built to standards is

unfortunate and could be revised The data submitted for this application is very similar

to most other detailed development plan applications of this size

Commissioner Weber suggested that consideration be given to revising the language in

that Condition

Re Condition 11a Do we know for certain that the othernative plantmixproposed by the

applicant which purports to attract hummingbirds and butterflies would require fertilizer

andormaintenance
Staff contacted the seed company and confirmed that neither mixture would require
irrigation or mowing once the seeds have germinated However since some of the species
contained in the ProTime 712 PDX Habitat mixture have a comparatively taller growth
habit the dormant season remnants of this mixture would be more visible from abutting
properties and would place combustible materials closer to the canopy of oaks

Re Condition 11b With respect to the term Professional Ecologist is there some

professional licensing or accreditation that we can use to more clearly articulate what is

required for aperson to claim this title
The Ecological Society of America provides accreditation for professional ecologists
requiring at a minimum completion of a bachelorsdegree with at least 30 semesterhours
of biological sciences 9 semester hours of ecology 12 semester hours of mathematical

and physical science and completion of at least one year ofpostgraduate experience in

ecological research and application of ecological principles

Re Condition 19 Who determines or defines where exactly the critical root zone is

located for significant trees
A certified arborist would confirm the location and extent of the critical root zone for each

tree identified as preserved through the application At a minimum this area would be five

feet outside of the dripline for each tree

Re Condition 24Are the financial securities provided by the applicant substantial enough
to ensure to that additional mitigation will be performed if required due to impacts For

example will a bond be issued to cover the cost ofadditional wetland mitigation How
could such a bond be issued when the extent ofadditional impacts arena known

The financial security held would equate to 20 percent ofthe construction costs associated
with all the water quality and detention facilities installed for the project The original intent

of the condition was to use retention of securities as insurance that the requirements
described in the Condition were completed prior to their release not necessarily that the

securities would be used to complete the mitigation itself A bond would probably not

afford the flexibility needed since it is not known what future impacts will be There are

other mechanisms for financial securities such as a Mutual Improvement Agreement

Commissioner Weberexpressed concern that the applicant might walk away if it is cheaper
to do so Staff responded that there are other enforcement mechanisms within the LDC
and that if the work cost more than the security amount the applicant would still be legally
obligated

Re Condition 5 Couldyou provide information concerning the increase in allowable lot

coverage to 60for all detachedhouses Are there other provisions in the new LDC for

providing open space that were not included in the old Code to make up for the difference
in allowing greater coverage

Planning Commission April 4 2007 Page 8 of 20



No the revised LDC does not specifically contain additional criteria that balance a

comparative increase in allowed lot coverage However it is difficult to assess how other

new provisions related to natural features protection grading and pedestrian oriented

design would influence the site plan in this regard

Re Condition 8This condition would this allow window coverage in the dormers orgabes
to be included in the 15 Does the language proposed by the applicant make any

difference

No staff does not foresee that the proposed language would be different from what is

recommended

Re Condition 11 Could you provide information concerning the requirement for the
Habitat Enhancement Plan HEP and whether or not the changes to the size of the

riparian buffer zone around the drainageway would obviate the need for the HEP

The HEP was intended to offset impacts related to the riparian buffer stipulated through
Safe Harbor provisions If Safe Harbor provisions do not apply that would suggest the

HEP was no longer necessary However the proposed plan also results in impacts to

wetlands that are not allowed through the LDC unless approved through the Planned

Development process The HEP would be one way to mitigate these impacts This aspect
of mitigation is exclusive of that required through the Division of State Lands DSL
permitting process and absent some form of mitigating benefit it becomes more difficult
to make positive findings in support of the application

Re Condition 12 What would be the gain of having the HEP evaluated by DSL

Staff has confirmed that DSL does not have jurisdiction to alter the HEP so long as it only
involves areas outside of the wetlands DSL did note that including this information with

the permit application would not hinder or delay processing the application and might help
inform their decision

Re Condition 14 Could the City Forester comment on whether or not seedlings would
be more appropriate in the areas noted by the applicant
The City Forester has indicated that the use of seedlings would be more appropriate in the
areas noted if the following is also done

1 the soil is scalped to remove competing weeds and grasses
2 grow tubes or weed barriers and mulch are provided for each seedling
3 a followup herbicide treatment is applied to keep competing vegetation at bay while

seedlings get established and

4 grow tubes are removed after three years

Re Condition 18Would the change in roofpitch result in the ability to build an additional

story on the buildings
If no portion of the dwelling was wider than 40 feet and the height of each story no more

than 8 feet 4 inches as shown in the application materials adjusting the roof pitch to no

less than612would allow for athreestory twostorywith garage under dwelling with an

average height of 30 feet Increasing the height of each story to 9 feet would result in an

average structure height of 32 feet using these same assumptions

Re Condition 33 What is the relevance of the additional language proposed by the

applicant
The developer was concerned that the existing language might be interpreted to mean

reconstructing Harrison Boulevard to full City standards The applicants proposed
language addition is acceptable to staff Staff will evaluate the design options at that

phase of development and determine the most effective means of meeting City standards

Planning Commission April 4 2007 Page 9 of 20



Re Condition 34 What is the rationale behind staffsrecommendation to require the turn

lane to be constructed at the same time as the Circle Boulevard extension

The traffic studies were evaluated based on the assumption that the turn lane would be

constructed with the extension of Circle and not doing so would be considered new

information Given the posted speed and traffic levels staff felt constructing the turn lane

with the extension ofCircle would bethe prudent thing to do to ensure safe and convenient

pedestrian passage With regard to the thought of postponing development of the turn

lane until improvements on Harrison Boulevard are made staff said the first priority is the

extension of Circle the turn lane is less ofapriority One idea might be to require that the

applicant provide additional data in order to opt out of the condition

Re Condition 57What does an easement provide that the agreement does not

Oregon State University as a public institution prefers agreements over easements with

the City LDC Chapter336 includes language supporting these agreements with the City
and staff can accept an agreement andor easement

In response to questions submitted by Commissioner Gervais staff provided the following
responses

What are the standard setbacks from the upland edge ofa wetland

If Safe Harbor is applied the setback would be 50 feet from the uplandwetland edge In

the absence of Safe Harbor therewould be a25foot buffer from the uplandwetland edge
unless the applicant has received approval ofa DSL delineation which they have in this
case Therefore no setback applies

Re Condition 13 What is the reasoning for asking that the total site be subjected to

geotechnical analysis
Staff has taken a second look and concurs with the applicantsrequested modification

Re Condition 11 If the applicantsrequest to strike language referring to a professional
ecologist determining appropriate plantings is granted who decides what is appropriate
The decision would fall to whomever the applicant chooses to create the final landscaping
plans

Re Condition 11 The language related to TractM appears to mean that the developer
needs to replant any disturbed soil regardless of where it falls in terms of homeowner

fence lines Did the applicant not interpret the condition correctly
Staff believes the applicant did interpret the condition correctly and takes issue with the

long term maintenance issues

Commissioner Howell asked if this situation argues for the graded area being outside the

fence and under the responsibility of the HOA and staff concurred

Re Condition 18 In the absence of conceptual drawings showing a garage under the
back of the house would approval allow for increased building height regardless of the

design
The architectural details presented are sufficient to satisfy the requirements of a detailed

development plan Attachment I shows an example of a design with the garage below

Re Condition 24 What is the reasoning for the fiveyearmonitoring for locally significant
wetlands and at what time would the fiveyearperiod begin
Staff recommends monitoring would begin at the groundbreaking for Phase 1 and extend

out to five years after buildout of the site This time frame is borrowed from typical

Planning Commission April 4 2007 Page 10 of 20



requirements through the DSL permitting process for monitoring mitigated wetlands The

true impacts of the development would not be known until at least completion of the last

phase

ReCondition 31 Ifthe applicantsrequested language is approved who makes decisions

related to environmental assessment reports The City Engineer would make the

decisions The LDC requires an environmental assessment to be done when the City is

acquiring property through dedications Staff is agreeable to the proposed language

Regarding the intersection of 29t Street and GrantAvenue Would the proposed striping
reduce the LOS enough that the additional trips generated by Phase 1 would not push it

back beyond acceptable levels
Staff has not yet had time to analyze the applicants proposal

In response to inquiries from Commissioner Saunders staff provided the following
information

If the extension ofCircle Boulevard is delayed would sidewalk improvements be delayed
as well

Condition 38 would provide for pedestrian improvements concurrent with Phase 1
regardless of the timing of the extension of Circle Boulevard

Could the wall be built of wood rather than masonry
There is no limitation in the materials used and no permit needed to construct the wall as

long as it is less than 6 feet tall

Regarding the HOA would an option be to have some kindoffinancial security if it fails

Potentially However there is complexity regarding the amount of security that may be

needed An HOA may fail after several decades and it would be unusual to require a

security over that length of time

In response to inquiries from Commissioner Hann staff provided the following information

Regarding the public testimony about traffic impacts on Circle Boulevard and ideas for

traffic calming do any of the ideas raised seem reasonable
The requests are reasonable and quite standard Staff reviewed the neighborhood traffic

calming program and related City Council policy It was noted that the neighborhood must

come to agreement and contribute financially

Regarding the potential impact on Dale Drive has this been considered
There was no formal analysis done to evaluate the impacts on Dale The theory is that
ifyou preserve the capacity of the major street system diversion onto local streets will be

minimized Staff noted City policies related to an interconnected system

H Rebuttal by Applicant

Dana Krawczuk Ball Janik LLP Attorneys 101 SW Main Street Suite 1100 Portland

addressed testimony requesting the extension of Circle Boulevard with Phase 1 She

referred to her written testimony previously submitted Attachment C pages 1625
which includes an analysis and legal support for extending Circle Boulevard with Phase 2
of the development She made the following statements

Planning Commission April 4 2007 Page 11 of 20



A requirement for the extension of Circle with Phase 1 violates constitutional

limitations on exactions
There is no nexus between the impact of Phase 1 and the extension of Circle

Boulevard
The expense of extending Circle Boulevard is not roughly proportional to the impacts
of Phase 1
The cost of extending Circle with Phase 1 would result in an extra cost of about

500000
The burden of providing the proportionality is the Citys burden and

There has been no analysis in this regard by the City
Ms Krawczuk said the applicant has gone above and beyond on many things including
the habitat plan and open space but the project cannot bear the extra costs to extend
Circle with Phase 1 She asked that Condition 2 be modified so that Circle is extended with

Phase 2

Terri Valiant Pahlisch Homes said she would like to reiterate the amount of effort time

and expense that has gone into this application She said there is a team of specialists
available to answer questions this evening including a traffic engineer awater resources

individual a wetlands specialist civil engineers and representatives of Legend Homes

Ms Valiant said she will address some of the larger issues that have come up Regarding
comments that the open space was not configured appropriately to save trees she noted

that balancing was done during the natural features process when the identified area was

adopted as high priority for preservation and that this was confirmed when the property
was annexed The HOA will maintain the open space consistent with state requirements
and the applicant has had preliminary discussions with the City of Corvallis Parks

Recreation Department regarding a possible future donation She said a lot of thought and

consideration has been given to the establishment of open space

Ms Valiant stated that the traffic counts are accurate and that staff has concurred She

acknowledged that therewill be impacts from OSU agricultural uses and said the applicant
would agree to a deed restriction with each lot to make sure that is understood She

clarified that the wetlands would not be filled for lot development the wetland impacts
primarily result from the extension of Circle Boulevard which is a City requirement Ms

Valiant said there appears to be a need to describe for the benefit of the public how the
land use process works with the construction process At this level the applicant submits

engineered drawings to demonstrate that the project is feasible Staff adds conditions of

approval it believes are necessary to meet land use planning standards many ofwhich

indicate what must be done when the applicant comes back for permits at which time
another whole set ofstandards must be met Ms Valiant said it is premature to ask for that

level ofdetail now Regarding the monument sign the proposed location is in response

to concerns from bicyclists and pedestrians about visibility as well as wetland and

drainageway issues

Ms Valiant addressed comments about potential conflicts with driveway access She said

the applicant worked with the Beit Am community and hopes to have a written agreement
that Beit Am will abandon the existing driveway and access off of Circle Boulevard She

said the applicant concurs with staffs balancing argument and believes in this case

minimizing impacts to the wetlands is more important than a potential conflict with the

driveway given that thereare two driveways and this is infill Ms Valiant reviewed benefits

of the proposal including open space trails architectural features and a variety of lot

sizes and housing types She noted that adjoining properties generally have no trails or

Planning Commission April 4 2007 Page 12 of 20



open spaces but do have uniform lot sizesand housing types She referred to comments

from people who felt their trust had been betrayed and stated that those people were not

at any of the numerous meetings on this project at which the applicant consistently
explained the proposal which is consistent with the plan brought forward Ms Valiant

invited questions

Commissioner Bird said she does not see how the proposed changes at 29th Street and

Grant Avenue will improve conditions there Since most of the traffic goes straight through
the intersection she believes the proposal would seem to increase risk to bicyclists over

the current configuration In response Thomas Bauer a traffic engineering consultant for

the applicant reviewed the proposed configuration which he said addresses deficiencies

in the southbound direction during peak hours He advised that the study indicated peak
hour usage of 77 left turns 36 right turns and 326 straight through He acknowledged that

there is not a high number of left turns but noted that when there is a left turn traffic gets
held back

Commissioner Weber referred to the applicants proposed changes to Condition 11 b
based on the fact that it does not want to dictate what people are permitted to plant inside

the fence She asked if all of the fill will be inside of the fence and Ms Valiant responded
affirmatively Commissioner Howell expressed concern that placing the slope within the

fence allows for no control over how it is vegetated as a way to buffer runoff into the

wetland One strategy he said would be to require that lots end at the top of the slope
and that the slope be within the Habitat Management Plan Ms Valiant said this would

probably require retaining measures and a revision to the grading plan Commissioner
Howell said he will be discussing with staff how the slope that will run off into wetlands

could be vegetated in an enforceable place that does not intrude on peoples lots and he

invited the applicant to provide suggestions in final written comment

Commissioner Hann asked for additional information about the applicants assertion that

completing the extension of Circle Boulevard with Phase 1 would cost an additional

500000 Ms Krawczuk reviewed the cost breakdown from her memorandum previously
submitted noting that she divided the total cost by 77 homes because the City is

requesting the improvements be done with Phase 1 when only 77 homes will have been

constructed Ms Krawczuk stated that it is not fair nor proportional to require the extension

of Circle with Phase 1 Commissioner Graetz said it appears the carrying costs to borrow

the funds required for the extension of Circle would be far less than the 275000 the

applicant will spend to partially improve Circle for temporary fire access Representatives
for the applicant explained that the partial improvements would need to be done for

construction regardless of when the full improvements are required Ms Valiant stated
that the developer wants to stage improvements so that income from selling lots will help
to fund those improvements Ms Krawczuk stated that the extension of Circle is not

proportional to the development of Phase 1 and that this is a line in the sand issue for the

applicant Commissioner Weber said she will be discussing this issue further with staff
If nexus is established she said then something will have to be done about traffic Brief
discussion followed

Surrebuttal

Zel Brook 3555 NW Polk reiterated that she conducted a count of vehicles passing in

front of her house She stated that traffic counts at 36th Street and Harrison Boulevard will

not include cars which go off on side streets to avoid the traffic lights on Harrison She

Planning Commission April 4 2007 Page 13 of 20



said traffic in the area is at crisis level and she is very concerned about impacts to the

character of the neighborhood due to this excessive traffic

Ed Epley 3053 NW Harrison referred to the proposal for a gravel road for construction

He said Harrison Boulevard has a weight limit and he questioned which way the trucks

would go and whether the weight limit would be waived for construction traffic

J Additional time for applicant to submit final argument

The record was held open until April 11 2007 at500pm The applicant will then have

an additional seven days to submit final written argument Deliberations will be held on

April 18 2007

K Close the public hearing

MOTION Commissioner Bird moved to close the public hearing Commissioner Saunders

seconded the motion and it passed unanimously

111 PUBLIC HEARING Wilson Woods Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment and District

Change CPA0600001ZDC0600001

A Opening and Procedures

The Chair welcomed citizens and reviewed the public hearing procedures Staff will

present an overview followed by the applicantspresentation There will be a staff report
and public testimony followed by rebuttal by the applicant limited in scope to issues raised

in opposition and surrebuttal by opponents limited in scope to issues raised on rebuttal

The Commission may ask questions of staff engage in deliberations and make a final

decision Any person interested in the agenda may offer relevant oral or written testimony
Please try not to repeat testimony offered by earlier speakers It is sufficient to say you
concur with earlier speakers without repeating their testimony For those testifying this

evening please keep your comments brief and directed to the criteria upon which the

decision is based

Land use decisions are evaluated against applicable criteria from the Land Development
Code and Comprehensive Plan A list of the applicable criteria for this case is available
as a handout at the back of the room

Persons testifying either orally or in writing may request a continuance to address
additional documents or evidence submitted in favor of the application If this request is

made please identify the new document or evidence during your testimony Persons

testifying may also request that the record remain open seven additional days to submit

additional written evidence Requests for allowing the record to remain open should be

included within a personstestimony

The Chair opened the public hearing

B Declarations by the Commission Conflicts of Interest Ex Parte Contacts Site visits or

Objections on Jurisdictional Grounds

Planning Commission April 4 2007 Page 14 of 20



1 Conflicts of Interest None

2 Ex Parte Contacts None
3 Site Visits Commissioners Bird Hann Saunders and Weber declared site visits

4 Objections on Jurisdictional Grounds None

C Staff Overview

Associate Planner Bob Richardson reviewed the Location Comprehensive Plan Map
Designations Zoning at Time of Application and Current Zoning of the site and

surrounding properties He read the request and distributed written testimony submitted

by RoryODonnel Attachment I and Lance Jones Attachment J

D Legal Declaration

Deputy City Attorney Coulombe said the Commission will consider the applicable criteria

as outlined in the staff report and he asked that citizens direct their testimony to the criteria
in the staff report or other criteria that they feel are applicable It is necessary at this time

to raise all issues that are germane to this request Failure to raise an issue or failure to

provide sufficient specificity to afford the decisionmakers an opportunity to respond
precludes an appeal to the State Land Use Board of Appeals on that issue

The failure of the applicant to raise constitutional or other issues relating to proposed
conditions of approval with sufficient specificity to allow the local government to respond
to the issue precludes an action for damages in Circuit Court

E Applicants Presentation

David Dodson Willamette Valley Planning 350 NW Polk said he is here on behalf of the

applicant who is ill this evening He showed an aerial photograph of the subject site and

surrounding properties and reviewed zoning at the time ofapplication and present day He
noted that the North Campus Area Plan Study was done in late 1980s in response to

neighborhood concerns that
the zoning at the time encouraged disinvestment and low maintenance which led to

degradation
new development appeared out of scale and not in character with existing residences
due to differing architectural details more paving and less green area and

neighbors were often not notified about projects because the projects were allowed

outright
As a result of that study Mr Dodson said the zoning of the property directly to the west

was changed zoning on the subject site remained the same He noted that the new Land

Development Code LDC addresses architectural details building orientation massing
green area concerns pedestrian oriented development standards and common and open
space requirements which he believes will result in an improved design over what was

allowed under the previous Code He said the applicant held a neighborhood meeting
which only one individual attended and also had contact with a property owner directly
north of the site regarding potential impacts to his solar array That property owner was

encouraged to consider establishing a solar easement for his property Mr Dodson said

Comprehensive Plan policies encourage higher density development near commercial
areas employment centers and transit routes all of which apply to this property Given
that the City does not have a large supply of higher density residential land zoned the

applicant believes this is a suitable site to consider rezoning from RS9to RS20

Planning Commission April 4 2007 Page 15 of 20



Commissioner Howell said the application does a good job of looking at need based on

vacant land but the bigger issue for him is the proportion ofdifferent zones in this area and

the Citys policy for neighborhoods having a mixof density and housing types He asked

if any analysis was done regarding the proportion of RS20 in this particular area Mr

Dodson said he did not do that analysis but noted that there are policies which encourage

higher density zoning in close proximity to the university Housing near the university
provides a great opportunity for students and employees of the university as opposed to

having to drive in from across town Mr Dodson believes a greater diversity of housing
types is found around the university than in other areas of the community

In response to inquiries from Commissioner Howell regarding the vacated rightofwayon

28tH Street Mr Dodson said he suspects it was platted as a rightofwayand then vacated

at some point in which case there may still be public facilities located there The rightof
way may be used informally but he is unaware of any pedestrian easement He said his
client will need to consider connectivity requirements when redeveloping the site

Commissioner Hann said he is struggling with the rationalization that there is a lack of
available RS20land when this site is identified as underdeveloped He asked if outreach

was done to the College Hill Neighborhood which would be impacted by this action He

stated that the currentzoning seems to be logical given the adjacent zoning Mr Dodson
said there is RS12on one side and RS20on the other with this RS9site in the middle

If direct compatibility with 29tH Street is desired he said there might be an argument for

rezoning the subject site to RS12 Since this is part of a splitzoned site the applicant
believed it made more sense to zone the entire site at RS20 He noted that the old Code
allowed development consistentwith whatever the predominant zoning was on a particular
property in this case RS20

Commissioner Bird said she is not convinced ofthe public need for additional RS20in this

particular area She expressed concern about losing the nice neighborhood feel that is

there now by creating a wall ofapartment buildings along 29tH Street Mr Dodson stated

that the new LDC is designed to address those concerns through orientation and setback

requirements He again reviewed zoning on adjacent properties and stated thatthis seems

a reasonable location to provide for higher densities based on transit employment etc

He noted that only one person attended the neighborhood meeting and only one person

is here to testify this evening Mr Dodson reviewed the notification area which he said
did penetrate into a portion of the College Hill neighborhood Brief discussion followed

Commissioner Hann said the proposal addresses the possibility of the City acquiring
additional land to widen 29tH Streetjust along this property line and he expressed concern

that impacts on other streets from the 150 to 160 units that development on this site could

generate is not addressed Mr Dodson responded that is not part of this proposal and is

also true of other RS20 lands in the area

In response to inquiries from Commissioner Weber Mr Dodson said the traffic analysis
was based on the worst case analysis he could find with a comparable project adjacent to

the university Commissioner Weber noted that the new LDC has more stringent open

space requirements Mr Dodson said those requirements could beaddressed with creative

options such as a rooftop garden and underground parking

In response to inquiries from the Chair Mr Dodson said he does not know the current

occupancy rates although most of the buildings appear to be occupied Chair Graetz said
the existing complex has filled a niche as a desirable place for new families and he asked

Planning Commission April 4 2007 Page 16 of 20



if there is any intent to keep that niche in mind Mr Dodson said he cantanswer that

question at this time as it has not yet been decided what a future project might look like
Brief discussion followed

F Staff Report

Planner Richardson reviewed portions ofthe staff report related to Public Need Net Benefit

and Advantages vs Disadvantages Compatibility Factors and Best Method of Meeting
Need He said staff finds the proposal complies with applicable LDC and Comprehensive
Plan Policies in the four areas outlined above and recommends that the Planning
Commission recommend to the City Council approval of the proposed Comprehensive Plan

Map Amendment and that the Commission approve the proposed Zone District Change
contingent upon Council approval of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment

G Public Testimony in favor of the application None

H Public Testimony in opposition to the applicants request

Tammy Stehr 3560 NW Tyler said she does not live within the notice area She pointed
out that most of the notices were sent to renters and the lack of public response should
not indicate a lack of interest She requested that the record be held open for seven days
Ms Stehr stated that in reading the staff report she was struck that staff seemed to be

advocates of the applicant in this case She expressed concern that perhaps the desire

for additional high density development took consideration over other goals and policies
She said she finds no policy which advocatesupzoning ofexisting built land as a remedy
for lack of a particular zone and she thinks reasonable person would expect that zoning
would not change in established neighborhoods Ms Stehr said that in her opinion the

only condition which has been met is the general need for high density She is not

convinced that there is specific need at this site nor that this is a desirable way to meet

public need She said the interpretation regarding advantages outweighing disadvantages
is subjective and lacks quantifiable findings Ms Stehr is concerned that

upzoning this site would be contrary to the Citys goals for sustainability
new construction creates waste
the existing housing stock just needs repairs and

new construction would not be of the same quality as existing construction
Ms Stehr referred to the North Campus Area Plan and said approval of this proposal would

result in disinvestment incentive incompatibility with the character of the existing
neighborhood and no public involvement She showed photographs ofnew construction

across the street from the subject site and said having threestorybuildings on each side

of the street is not compatible with the neighborhood Ms Stehr expressed concern about

impacts on traffic the intersection at Harrison and parking and said she does not think

more housing units in this area are warranted She said she will be submitting written

testimony

Chair Graetz asked how important the issue of sustainability is to Ms Stehr She

responded that she lives in an80yearold house she has talked to experts who say the

majority of housing stock built today will be torn down in 40 years She said the current

housing is well built and rehabilitating and repairing is almost always cheaper than new

construction Chair Graetz asked whether the proposal would be more palatable if the

developer addressed the issue of sustainability Ms Stehr said the current housing stock

has not deteriorated to the point that new construction is needed At the very least she
would like the duplexes to be moved rather than adding to the landfill She said she thinks
it is dangerous to upzone when it is unknown what will go in there

Planning Commission April 4 2007 Page 17 of 20



I Neutral testimony

None The Chair reminded people that speaking neutrally removes rebuttal rights

Questions of Staff

In response to inquiries from Commissioner Hann Planning Manager Fred Towne said the

rezoning of this property would add to the stock of higher density land and reduce the

potential deficit but he acknowledged that it is not currently vacant land He noted the

higher density zoning on adjacent land and stated that if there are areas where

consideration of an upzone should be given this is one of those areas In response to

further inquiry staff affirmed that there would be no transition zone on 29th Street

Commissioner Howell asked if staff has a way to evaluate the degree of

underdevelopment ie the need for RS20 if all land was fully developed at its current

zoning Mr Towne said staff does do a query based on an assumption of improvement
value as a ratio with the land value He said the question ofwhether this would be needed
if all property was developed to its full potential is valid and this is a discretionary decision

Staff believed approval was appropriate Brief discussion followed

K Rebuttal by Applicant

David Dodson addressed the question of redevelopment on already developed lots He

said in the years he has worked in the community short of periodic review where the City
takes broad view of designations land that is rezoned to higher density is usually an

existing parcel which is oftentimes already developed If the City chose not to approve this

application he expects there would be other similar applications and it would have to be

determined whether those locations are more viable than this location based on the

available criteria Mr Dodson said he cannot recall many Comprehensive Plan policies
thatspeak to sustainability specifically as a factor in rezoning He acknowledged that fixing
up buildings which are in reasonable shape is probably more sustainable than

redevelopment however new construction is more energy efficient and allows for putting
people in close proximity to where they will shop work or go to school Regarding the

issue ofdisinvestment his client purchased this property with the intent to redevelop it and

he would consider that to be investment rather than disinvestment Mr Dodson

acknowledged these buildings are old but he does not know that they are architecturally
significant He acknowledged that rezoning the property to RS20would negate the need

for additional public review but noted that the new LDC was intended to do just that He

stated that the applicant will comply with City standards related to traffic that the parking
analysis was based on existing demand and supply and that any new development would

be subject to parking requirements

L Surrebuttal

Tammy Stehr said disinvestment refers to a developer buying property neglecting it until
it is no longer habitable then tearing it down and rebuilding an upzone to RS20reduces
incentive to rehabilitate existing stock She thinks architectural significance is relevant and

suspects this site would be appropriate for national register status as this was one of few

projects ofhigh quality construction built during World WarII Ms Stehr said the key issue

is compatibility and allowing the existing buildings to be torn down would degrade the

Planning Commission April 4 2007 Page 18 of 20



integrity of the neighborhood She said new units would rent for more than the existing
units and residents would likely own more vehicles than the people who currently rent

there She thinks parking impacts would be greater than those anticipated by the

applicant

M Additional time for applicant to submit final argument

The record will be held open until April 11 2007 500pm The applicant will then have
an additional seven days to submit final written argument Deliberations will be held on

April 18 2007

N Close the public hearing

MOTION Commissioner Bird moved to close the public hearing Commissioner Gervais

seconded the motion and it passed unanimously

IV Request for Extension of a Detailed Development Plan Corvallis Home Improvement
Center PLD0300019MLP0300016

Planning Manager Towne briefly reviewed a request from Devco Engineering for an extension
of the PLD0300019 and MLP0300016 approvals for two years as allowed under LDC Chapter
255007a

Lyle Hutchins Devco Engineering 245 NE Conifer provided a brief update on the status of the

project

Commissioner Gervais said she has some concern about extending decisions that were made

under the old Code Commissioner Howell said the proposal incorporated many features from
the new Code including gateway features and orientation He said he thinks it would be

appropriate to approve the request Commissioner Hann agreed that an extension is

appropriate but he said he does have concerns about the feelings of neighbors in that area

Commissioner Weber said she will abstain due to conflict of interest

MOTION Commissioner Bird moved to approve the requested twoyear extension

Commissioner Howell seconded the motion and it passed unanimously with Commissioner
Weber abstaining

V MINUTES

A Planning Commission March 7 2007

MOTION Commissioner Howell moved to approve the minutes as presented
Commissioner Hann seconded the motion and it passed unanimously

Planning Commission April 4 2007 Page 19 of 20



VI OLD BUSINESS None

VII NEW BUSINESS

Planning Manager Towne noted that several Commissioners terms are coming to an end and

he encouraged them to reapply He provided a brief update on upcoming agenda items as

outlined on the back of agendas

VIII ADJOURNMENT The meeting was adjourned at 1240am

Planning Commission April 4 2007 Page 20 of 20



O

CORVALLIS
ENHANCING COMMUNITY LIVABILITY

MEMORANDUM

From Eric Adams Associate Planner

To Planning Commission

Date April 4 2007

Re Witham Oaks Conceptual and Detailed Development Plan PLD0600012
et al Additional Public Testimony

The attached pieces of public testimony were submitted to the Planning Division between
March 21 2007 and noon on April 4 2007

This memorandum makes these comments public information



Adams Eric

From David Eckert deckert@virginiavillageproductionscom
Sent Friday March 16 2007 131 PM

To Adams Eric

Subject Witham Oaks development comments

Comments for Planning Commission Hearing

Re Witham Oaks

The current submitted development plan you are considering for Witham Oaks excessively

impacts wetlands and other sensitive lands by altering the rainwater infiltration rates

and water table levels Mitigation techniques are inadequate to compensate for the

hyrdological changes such development will create

The land to be developed currently feeds water and nutrients in a balanced dynamic way to

the existing wetland A casual walk through this development site reveals a high water

table in the development area and multiple springs This entire ecosystem is also critical

to maintaining a healthy dynamic for the water table in the adjacent OSU agricultural

properties

We urge the Planning Commission to send back the current plan and request the developer to

return with a scaled back plan that will have far less hydrological impact

Thank you for your consideration

Annette Mills and Dave Eckert

2311 NW Van Buren Ave

Corvallis OR 97330

5714515867

Dave Eckert

5714515867
POBox 1980

Corvallis OR 97339

wwwvirginiavillageproductionscom
deckert@virginiavillageproductionscom

1



D

MAR Z00
l

John W Foster
1205 NW Fernwood Circle

Corvallis OR 97330
jwfmat@comcastnet

Community Development 21 March 2007
Planning Division

Testimony for the Planning Commission on Witham Oaks

I do not believe this plan is yet ready for final approval but I believe there
are reasons for giving it preliminary approval I suggest that you approve it
only as a conceptual plan and send it back to the developer for additional
work

The staff report contains 60 conditions and 12 development related
concernsatotal of 27 pagesraising questions about whether this
proposal is really ready for approval Some of the conditions are easily
complied with and others are as much waivers as conditions but there are
some that could require significant changes to the plan after you approve it

Condition 2 requires that the developer choose one of two options either of
which will change the layout of the plan you are considering Why not have
the developer decide what plan he will follow before you give approval

Condition 13 requires a geotechnical analysis thatdepending on the
resultscould force a Planned Development Modification Why not wait
for the geotechnical analysis before approving something that might have to
be redone

Conditions 20 and 23 require DEQ and DSL approvals These approvals
may or may not be consistent with what the Planning Commission is being
asked to approve

Condition 54 requires a stormwater maintenance plan

Condition 57 requires offsite easementsinaddition to the agreement
with OSUforthe drainage plan Ifthe developer cannot acquire the
easements another major modification to the plan may be required Why not
have the developer get the easements first



Condition 58 questions whether the stormwater facilities can be

constructed to the required standards Perhaps further study of the problem
should precede approval

Even so there are some reasons why you should go ahead now

The city needs a resolution of the status of Tract A the timbered area not

being developed The staff report assumes that it will become city owned

conservation land but as long as it remains in private hands or with

agricultural zoning there are serious potential problems When the citizens

voted for annexation they were voting to save these trees not tobuild over

200 houses or to extend Circle

It would also be useful to lock down the developer as much as possible to

the current plan This plan will create serious traffic problems add to urban

sprawl add children to an area without a school and put increased pressure
on OSU agricultural programs among other problems Nevertheless it is

actually slightly better than what the developer originally said he would do

More important it is vastly better that what the zoning rules allow

Perhaps the best solution would be approval of a Conceptual Plan but not

a Detailed Development plan The developer has submitted only one plan
for both but the plan could be approved as a conceptual plan with the staff

report conditions added At the same time the zoning of the open space

parcels could be changed from agricultural to conservationwhat is already
in the Complan

This would give the developer some assurance of future approval as well

as the opportunity to rework the plan to conform to the many conditions of

approval and to explore alternate solutions to the problems identified by
Staff

Whatever you decide you should uphold condition 24 which extends the

time the developer is responsible for the drainage and wetland plans No

one knows whether these plans will work and we probably wontknow until

after the usual periods of responsibility have expired Ifthe plans work the

condition costs the developer almost nothing Ifthey do not the developer
not the tax payers would be responsible for fixing the problem



Private driveways line Circle from Highland Drive to Woodland Meadow

Park Circle Blvd is already crammed with cars motorcycles and trucks

Residents must back into heavy traffic each day Add to this children going

to and from school each day and it is a dangerous mix A 60 increase in

traffic will also increase the high number of speeders in our neighborhood

HELP

It is reasonable and correct to ask developers to write into a

Budget a 20000 allocation for SPEED HUMPS on the west

end of Circle in the block going into Woodland Meadow Park

City Planners recommend a traffic control device at Witham and Circle

Note the safety data for traffic circles over signals Attached is an article

from the March 17 2007 GazetteTimes Not only are traffic circles safer

for us seniors they are the traffic device of choice for all citizens

I Let the CircleWitham intersection be the first well designed

roundabout or TRAFFIC CIRCLE in Corvallis USAs east coast

j has installed countless well designed traffic circles as has

1 j Bend Oregon Please pay attention to traffic safety study

research and write in a Witham Hill Drive Circle Blvd

TRAFFIC CIRCLE

Thank you Carly Davis 3 0 NW Circle Blvd CorvallisOr97330

Q
a o

a

w
U



L

O1

OH

N
y

yy
G
i

Gi
pj

Li
y

V
y

p
y

H
jy

icy
i

t
v

V
cd

Q
U

J
li

v

y
c
d

O
y

J
C

L
R

V

00
3
oFd

d

b
w

c
n
vb

o
H

m
w

o
v

v
C

G
J
s

O
4

y
O

C
C

C
y

N
iq

C
bA

V
t

U
O

N
d

3
av

O

v
r

y
i

bev
d

s
O

CAF
ern

n
i
l

0

W
W

Z

O
2WH

tTV
uW

C
aam

o

o
v

O
w

o
a

N
h

O
fv

O
v

L

O
J

C
C

q
a
a

i
w

ti
V

N
O

oE
ny

H
o

o
t
j

o

r
s

o
w

v
o

A
Ov



MAR 2n07
21

William L Kemper
3730 NW Harrison Blvd

Corvallis OR 97330

Community Development
Planning Division

Witham Oaks Plan Comments

March 21 2007

Ideally this project should never be developed as supported by 8
annexation requests over28 years But it is now annexed and
development will occur

Staff approval of these plans was based on the imposition ofsixty 60
conditions Imposing these conditions on the development at a

minimum is critical to the mitigation ofthis large development in an
area with significant wetlands and steep slopes

Having lived on Harrison Blvd for over 25 years I have witnessed the
increased traffic flow firsthand as well as storm runoff flooding my
western neighbors front yards and driveways I have major concerns
over this development and want every possible action taken to ensure that
there is minimum impact from this development
Areas of greatest concern

o Storm runoffand the impact on the remaining wetlands
Conditions 23 24 47 48 49 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 and 58

o Traffic Impact New traffic flows have resulted from the
construction of the two traffic lights on Harrison Blvd at 35th and
36th Streets Anecdotally this has resulted in traffic backups on

eastbound Harrison from 36th St to almost Witham Drive past my
house at 3730 NW Harrison
Condition 26 plus an initial traffic study to establish a base point
for review and approval prior to any development

Condition 28 plus an analysis of the impact of the construction of
Circle Blvd to Harrison Blvd with or without traffic calming
devices on traffic flows to through and from the development and
ifwarranted requiring the installation of traffic calming devices by
the developer Also consider not having Circle Blvd connect to
Harrison Blvd which would mitigate some of the impact on the
wetlands as well as the impact oftraffic on Harrison Blvd

x



Louise Marquering
1644 NW Woodland Drive
Corvallis Oregon 97330
7530012

March 21 2007

To the Planning Commission

patchlL@aolcom

I have four concerns about the Witham Oaks Development plan

Concern 1 Four to sixfootmasonry wall

MAR 2007
i

Community Development
Planning Division

Comp Plan 921 City land use decisions shall protect and maintain neighborhood
characteristics in existing residential areas

LandUse Code254004 Review Criteria include Noise attenuation

On p29 of the staff report the develeoper proposes a four to sixfoot high masonry wall that

would extend along the rear of Lots 1 through 3 and 157 through 171

Lots 1 thought 3 and 157 through 171 will have yards that back onto Circle Boulevard The

proposed masonry wall will be built between those lots and Circle

The construction of a four tosixfootmasonry wall is inconsistent with neighboring residential

areas Higher up on Circle Boulevard the houses that face Souza and back onto Circle have six

foot high wooden fences Homes in the Sunview addition that face Lance Way and back onto

Witham Hill Road have sixfoot high wooden fences and buffering plantings Homes in the

Walnut Park subdivision that face Acey Way and back onto Walnut Boulevard have sixfoot

wooden fences berms and buffering plantings In the Timberhili area across from Hoover School

the homes that back onto Walnut Boulevard havesixfoot wooden fences and buffering plantings
There are no sixfoot high masonry walls in the area They are inconsistent with local

neighborhoods

This masonry wall is proposed to be built between the homes and the multiuse path that was

constructed in 20022003 Many people use that path on a daily basis for pleasure exercise and

to enjoy the wildlife Wooden fences and buffer plantings exist along the upper portions of the

path The lower part of the path goes through open space and wetlands This masonry wall will

be inconsistent with the rest of the path and would significantly alter the experience of those who

use the Multiuse path Masonry walls are not pedestrian friendly Masonry walls are fortresslike

and exclusionary They are not welcoming to pedestrian traffic

Masonry walls reflect noise I have stopped many places along Highway 34 and heard the cars go

by But when I stopped at the Linn County Animal Shelter nearI5 which has asixfoot

concrete wall the noise was horrendous A wooden fence and buffer plantings absorb the noise

A masonry wall would reflect noise back onto the rnultiuse path which would significantly alter

the experience of the people walking on the path

I ask that you require a four tosixfoot wooden fence possible berms and buffer

plantings in order to be consistent with other neighborhoods and allow continuity on the

multiuse path Do not allow a wall to be built between part of the development and the

neighborhood

F



Concern 2 Construction of a monument sign at the corner of Harrison and Circle

Comprehensive Plan Policies925LNeighborhood building and street proportions relate to
one another in away that provides a sense of enclosure

On page 36 of the staff report there is disucssion of a monument sign Consistent with LDC
section479009 the applicant has submitted a signage plan for the proposed development The
proposed monument sign would be constructed at the northwest corner of the intersection at
Circle Boulevard and Harrison Boulevard

I wonder why the proposed sign is so far from streets A and D The proposed location certainlydoes not provide a sense of enclosure At some point in time Tract M will be turned over to
the city The location of the sign implies that all of Circle Boulevard and Tract M are part of the
development I believe the location of the monument sign should be north of Tract M at the
entrance to Streets A or D It should not be at the entrance to a neighborhood collector street

While a monument sign of this type is allowed under the LDC this sign is inconsistent with the
local neighborhoods There are no monument signs designating the Cedarhurst Walnut Park
Sunview Edgewood Estates Forest Hill or Woodland Park developments There is a wooden
not lighted sign at one of the entrances to Timberhill Many apartment complexes do have
monument signs to advertize their location but none of the neighborhoods do Rather than
blending into existing neighborhoods this monument sign will set the neighborhood apart

I propose that you recommend moving the monument sign closer the the tracts that are
to be developed

Concern 3 Granting Tract A to the City
When this development was first proposed it gained support from the electorate because 396
acres ofPDAGOS are to be made unavailable for future development and tentatively are to be
granted to the city The upper ridge on the northwest corner of the development is to be
connected to the Witham Hill Natural Area

The Open Space Advisory Commission is working on ecosystem management plans for each of
the Open Space Areas purchased in 2000 If there is any way of allowing or encouraging the
developer to integrate management plans for Tract A with the city plans for managing the
Witham Hill Natural area it would benefit the natural features The OSAC will be determiningtheir prioities for Witham Hill Natural Area in the next few months The most likely common
goal is to preserve the white oaks at the top of Witham HiII and along the ridgeline in Tract A
Already the white oaks on the ridge are being overtaken by Douglasfirs The OSAC was told
that timeliness is really important in preserving the upland prairie and white oaks by removingexcesive woody undergrowth If those firs can be removed in the near future the oaks have a
much better chance of surviving than if the firs are left until the property transfer is complete In
addition it is easier to remove firs at a smaller diameter than to wait and do it after another four
or five years of growth

I propose that you work with the developer to come to an understanding that will allow
integrated management of Tract A and the Witham Hill Natural Area



To Corvallis Planning Commission
Eric Adams Planner

We are writing regarding The Witham Oaks Annexation Development Plan We

own the house at 3555 NW Polk Ave at the comer of 36th and Polk The area that

we live in is residential One side of our house Polk Street is a designated local

street The 36th street side of our house is a designated collector street We have

lived here over 30 years in a significantly historical house that has been listed in

Oregon for the Curious During this same time period traffic on 36h has

continued to climb to an alarming rate In a study done Nov 2006 there were

145 AM and 141 PM peak trips going down Witham on 36th toward Harrison

Because of increased numbers of apartments being built on Witham Hill and

vicinity and the lack of the extension of Circle Boulevard at the same time traffic

has gotten worse Witham HiI1 Oaks Apartments alone contain over 130

apartments that can now go down our street but could also share with Circle if it

was extended Oak Vale Apartments contain over 257 units that can now most

conveniently go down our street that could also travel Circle via if it was extended

This does not count any other apartment or housing units currently existing at the

top of the hill that could be diverted to share traffic with Circle if it was extended

allowing travel to OSU The halfway point between 36th and Harrison and the

Walnut look to Harrison is beyond Walnut Street This means that to save time it

is most likely that cars from the following streets are likely to travel Witham Hill

to 36th street down our street rather than being able to also use Circle when it is

extended These streets are Woodland Douglas Elmwood and Canary adding a

total of many many more houses to the mix

If Circle was extended this traffic could travel on Circle as well This does not

count any houses on additional side streets that wauid likely use Circle either This

means that anyone in over 387 apartment units plus more houses living in

those areas will likely chose 36t street in front of our house as the most

expedient way to travel each time they go to an event such as a football dame at

the stadium Gill Coliseum LaSells Stewart Center CH2MHill Alumni center or

to another OSU event These are even higher volumes of cars for these regular
OSU events that are likely well over the already high volume indicated in the 141

to 145 vehicletrip studies During some of these OSU related events we have seen

cars lined up in front of our house going towards Harrison and OSU Since the



traffic light has been installed at 36th it has reduced their high rate of speed only
slightly

Drivers have few options they cannot o on 35th out to Harrison because it is only
a one way street the wrong wad This high volume of traffic on 36th will continue
until we get some relief from the extension of Circle Blvd The longer the wait for
the extension of Circle the worse the traffic is likely to be

According to Mr Adams the turn Lane proposed near 29th and Sams station turns
left into the direction of Fred Meyer onto Grant not up Witham Hill so this turn
lane will not help mitigate traffic on 36 street At the last hearing on this issue
the developer suggested that Circle Blvd not be extended until a phase two or later
part of the project The developer recommended a later time for the extension of
Circle than city staff

We oppose the developers later extension of Circle This means that further
delays will cause still worse increased traffic onto 36th When we moved into this
house over 30 years ago we understood that at some time Circle Blvd would be
extended to help mitigate traff c on 36th Circle has not been extended for the over
30 years we have been here and traffic has only grown worse

If you compare 36th street to 29th street also a collector street there is commercial
development on 29t1i street including Sams Station the First Alternative Schmidts
and several other commercial stores None of these type stores exist on 36th street
in front of our house yet the traffic has continued to increase here in an area of
residential houses and no businesses

We would like to see the extension of Circle to mitigate traffic as soon as feasible
not later on in the development project The extension of Circle Blv should occur
not longer than one year after the completion of the first house in the development

We would also like to see minimal signage for the development project and a

stipulation for upkeep of the appearance of any signage placed there

r

11

1 Brook and Brad WhitingX3555 NW Polk Av 36th and Polk
Corvallis Oregon 97330

b



cv

John W Foster YAR 2 6 211
1205 NW Fernwood Circle

Corvallis OR 97330 Community Development

jwfinat@comcastnet Planning Division

24 March 2007

Additional testimony on Witham Oaks

The Beit Am Property An agreement between Beit Am and the developer would solve

some problems with the lower portion of Circle such as eliminating the Beit Am pipestem
driveway and allowing the developer to grade on Beit Am property along Circle Such an

agreement should come before approval ofadetailed development plan It should not be

something to be negotiated after approval

There is however a further problem to such an agreement Presumably Beit Am plans
to do something with their five acres Alternatives that have been mentioned include a

synagogue a school and a residential development ofup to 30 houses If Beit Am

receives access from Circle will a single access road be sufficient Even if the pipestem
were retained we could easily see two access points leading to asingle choke point Is

access through the LDS parking lot an acceptable alternate fire route To avoid future

problems this is something that should be addressed now not put offuntil Beit Am

applies for annexation or acounty building permit Perhaps Beit Am should have two

separate access points on Circle

Condition 28 There is no need to extend Circle with phase one The supposed benefit

to this extension would be a very TEMPORARY reduction oftraffic on Harrison due to

the transfer of some of that traffic to Circle With the completion ofabout 70 houses
traffic on Harrison would reach thepreextension level With or without extension
traffic would continue to increase on Circle with the construction ofevery house

Arguments for the extension of Circle generally relate to the doubtful proposition that

it will improve circulation throughout the city We should remember that this part of

Circle is designated as aneighborhood collector not an arterial or an alternate route for a

federal highway According to this designation Circle is needed only to funnel the traffic

that originates from the neighborhood If so there clearly is no need for Circle in phase
one before there is a neighborhood

There is however an implied contradiction in the Transportation Plan in that it makes

Circle aneighborhood collector but says that it will be needed presumably for other

reasons when the city reaches62000 population Even so the Transportation Plan

makes it clear that the extension is not needed until population rises considerably

If the city still wants Circle extended with phase one a light or traffic circle will have to

be installed at Witham Hill and Circle sooner than currently planned



Bus Transportation There is a lot more involved in public transit for Witham Oaks
than building a few bus shelters

It is unreasonable to expect people in Witham Oaks to walk all the way down to Harrison
to catch the route 8 bus or to walk up to Witham Hill Drive for the route 1 bus Sendingthe 8 bus up through the developed part of the property will increase the time and
distance of that route significantly CTS should be asked if this is feasible

Rerouting the 1 bus from 36th Street to the Circle extension would take away bus service
from established neighborhoods that already have more people than Witham Oaks will
have at build out There would be no service between Circle to the north and Harrison to
the South and no service west of29th the 7 busan area about 10 blocks by 10
blocks CTS should be asked if such achange is desirable or feasible

The bottom line is that the Planning Commission should be aware that Witham Oaks
cannot have public transit without costs to areas already served by CTS



RECj

Corvallis Planning Commission

Attn Eric Adams Planner

1AR 1

COonttyDevelopmentPlarjrvn Division

600 NW 36tH
Corvallis OR 97330

March 26 2007

We are opposing the delay in implementing the extension ofCircle Boulevard contained

in the Witham Oaks development plan We live at 36t StPolk Ave This delay would

greatly increase the traffic in front of our house which is already quite large for a

residential neighborhood This traffic is anoise problem and asafety concern for both

people and animals as many motorists using 36t fail to abide by the residential speed
limits The recent removal ofthe school crosswalk at Polk has made the speeding
problem worse and increased substantially the hazards for middle school and high school

students as well as the general public in crossing the road Traffic has also increased on

the local streets as people try to avoid the lights at the Harrison36thintersection There

have already been accidents as the cross traffic attempts to get across Polk trying to beat

the continual line of traffic Thus the delay in extending Circle and the resulting increase

oftraffic due to a further increase in planned housing aggravates a situation that has

already been deteriorating

Another problem with the increased traffic is the long delay on the traffic lights at

Harrison which already backs up the traffic to Polk on busy mornings Often the traffic

doesntmake it through one cycle ofthe light and thus it continues to back up During
the time we have lived here the traffic has gotten heavier and heavier due to the

construction not only ofsingle unit housing but in particular the multiunithousing It is

not isolated to the peak travel times as is much traffic in other locations This is because

ofa high percentage of students living in the apartments they are constantly coming and

going to classes and work and there is ahigh traffic flow on 36th the entire day The

Circle extension would at least remove the west bound traffic from Witham Hill from

using that intersection

As per the original development plan the developer should pay for the cost ofextending
Circle The public has already paid for the beginning ofthe extension which was

completed several years ago The annexation was finally approved by voters in part due

to the promise of extending Circle to relieve the burden of traffic from surrounding
neighborhoods It is only logical that the roads be built first to service the development
not after it is already built We are concerned if the developer postpones this construction

that there will be a further large increase in noise backed up traffic and accidents and

stress an already heavily trafficked neighborhood

James and Cindy Kitchen



Page 1 of2

Adams Eric

From Tara taranhome@comcastnet
Sent Thursday March 29 2007630 PM

To Adams Eric

Subject Witham Oaks testimony

Dear Eric and Planning Commission

Iwould like you to consider not passing the Witham Oaks development plan
The first concern is based on the criteria in Section45120 which states that the mitigation site
will retain sufficient natural buffer so as to sustain a class ofwetland or habitat type that is typical of the
natural surrounding watershed Wetland mitigation tends to have ahigh failure rate due to the lack of
water sources that provide equitable flow and recharge This mitigation plan is inequitable
compensation for the intact integrity of the ecosystem as it currently exists Moreover waiting 5 years to
monitor after the final phase is complete is not in the range ofa temporal scale recommended by any
natural resources protocol that I am aware of It will likely be too late for any kind ofrecovery at that
point

45110 b Building Paving and Grading activities although the planning details may state that there
will be mitigation for the increase in impervious surfaces the impact ofa220 unit development its
parking allotments and new road counterparts will vastly increase the amount of impervious surface
such that unanticipated cumulative negative impacts are bound to incur to the riparian wetland and
interconnected upland ecosystems When land is developed increased volume ofrunoff and reduction in
groundwater recharge can destabilize nearby stream channels and instream habitat as well as lower the
available groundwater supply

There has always been adisconnect between Oregon landuseplanning and water planning Oregon
counties and communities are not required to develop water planning efforts They are required to
follow planning goals set by the State but there are no measures in place that ensure water availabilityand quality for every development that is planned and approved

6600230090Riparian Corridors Were there sufficient field investigations for wildlife and the
wildlife habitat loss that would occur with this development This development would fragmentwildlife habitat for up to 10 known species ofbirds and other wildlife

Traffic The quality of the traffic flow will be significantly negaitvely impacted on Witham Hill Dr an
area that draws residents for its more rural nature And the quantity oftraffic flow that will occur at the
35th St lights will eventually impart great costs if not in the short term then in the midterm because it
will be aripple effect to other traffic flow locations that will need to be modified

40110 Land for Public Purposes Although abike path will still run through this development the
intent ofthe land will no longer be fora public purpose Rather it will be a linear corridor in amatrix
of private overdevelopement Open space is one ofthe salient qualities that draws people to Corvallis
and this development would destroy the feeling ofopen space that currently thrives in this area Open
space is critical to a communitysmental health and leadership Ifyou open yourself to the natural
environment you will find personal and specific answers to the leadership challenges and opportunities
you face Stephen Covey Personally I am deeply saddened thinking that my daughter will not be
able to grow up being able to safely walk to and enjoy this rejuvenating open space area It is an area

3302007



Page 2 of 2

that our family greatly values we enjoy the quiet and since we are able to walk there we do not

contribute to traffic or pollution With this development we would be pushed to drive to another open

space area as would many others in the vicinity

When one tugs at asingle thing in nature he finds it attached to the rest ofthe world John Muir

I urge you to consider the known unknowable and uncertain costs and value the integrity ofthis

interconneted riparian wetland and upland ecosystem as well as the immeasurable addedvalue ofthe

open space by disapproving this development plan

Thank you for your time

Tara Nierenberg MSForestRiparian Ecology
15 year Corvallis resident

3302007



City of Corvallis

Planning Commission
501 SW Madison

Corvallis Oregon 97330

32407

ECID
M R 2 7 20

Community Development
Planning Division

Please Extend Circle Boulevard soon to help alleviate same of the heavy traffic on

36 Street in front of my house The eaters have already approved the annexation
and I would like to see Circle extended without mare delays

Anne Swanson
642 NW 3G St

Corovallis Oregon 97330



r m Dou las M Hen 3270 NW Circle BoulevarREVTestimony f o g ry
Corvallis Planning Commission on Wednesday March 21 2007

MAR 2 7

Community Development

I am here to speak on behalf of the Circle Boulevard NeighborhoodAiiDn

tion Our homes are located along Circle Boulevard from 29th Street going
west to Lantana We also include the homes on Arbol Place and Juniper
Place About 50 homes are represented

Through time we have seen a steady increase in traffic

volume and the number of speeders Many of us have called the police and

asked for increased patrols But their department is limited by what they can

do I wish to make a formal request for the placement of speed humps on

upper Circle that will serve as traffic calming devices Reference citys com

prehensive plan article Eleven35 Local streets shall be designed and built to

discourage high speedthrough traffic

We conducted an official speed survey with asonishing re

sults 32 of the4875 cars observed were speeding This translates to

1560 speeders Important point This tally was taken only during peak rush

hours and does not include any other times day or night See attachment for

complete survey results

It is projected there wilt be an additional2100 car trips per

day generated from the 220 home Witham Oaks Subdivision prediction
is a 60 increase in traffic This translates to an additional 700 speeders on

Circle each day We are a neighborhood collector and must back into the

street to get going This makes for a dangerous situation It will only get
worseAnddrastic measures are needed to correct it Reference compre
hensive plan article Eleven3jAs traffic congestion increases as it has on

Circle it detracts from residential livability

As you know cars that go faster emit more noise higher

pitch than slower moving autos Reference comprehensive plan article

Seven4g Noise from speeding traffic constitutes excessive sound This is a

hazard to the public health safety and quality of life We believe that speed
humps will remedy this situation and restore calm to our neighborhood and

have asked the developer of Witham Oaks to defray the majority of these

costs To help local residents will be asked to pay 5080 per household

The humps will be at 330 foot intervals from just west of Lantana and go to the

midpoint between Dogwood and Firwood Streets We have worked closely
m



Testimony from Douglas M Henry 3270 NW Circle Boulevard to the
Corvallis Planning Commission on Wednesday March 21 2007

Page 2

with Steve Rogers and he estimates the total cost of this project at20000
A breakdown of these costs is as follows 3250 per speed hump x 5
16250 This covers asphalt marking tape signage and labor but It does
not cover the cost of inflation hence the request for20000

The Matrix Development CorporationLegend Homes has
agreed to participate in the funding of five speed humps based upon the per
centage of homes within the drawn boundary of the recovery area

We also request a traffic circle be installed at the intersection of
Circle and Witham Hill We understand the city has future plans to install a

traffic light at this location But we feel a traffic circle will be more environmen
tally friendly For example as cars are stopped at a stop light their emissions
will spread into Woodland Meadows Park and the prevailing westerly winds
will carry these pollutants on down Circle Boulevard and into the air we

breathe Another reason for the circle is to discourageprevent throughtruck
traffic especially large trucks that may try to use this as a shortcutto Highway
20 and on to the Coast We have recently seen an inexplicable rise in large
truck traffic in this area and can only think their numbers will rise unless effec
tive counter measures are taken Reference comprehensive plan article
Eleven3jGood methods are available that can be used to discourage
throughtraffic in residential areas We propose the city and the developer of
Witham Oaks reach some agreement to share the costs of this traffic circle

There are safety health environmental and livability issues
involved here Corvallis has always prided itself with high standards in each
of these areas It is time to address these at this critical juncture in time We
hope you will support these requests

If you have any questions regarding any portion of this testi
mony please call me at 7527126 or email me at douglasmhenry@peakorg



Speed Survey Summary
Upper Circle Boulevard Corvallis

Dates January 30 31 and February 1 2007 and February 6
7 and 8 2007

Use of radar gun from the Corvallis Police Department

Persons Who Conducted the Survey Steve Anderson Bill

Ayers AI Habelt and Doug Henry

Times 730900am and 47pm each day 20 hours spent
observing during week 1 and 20 hours during Week 2

Locations Various Locations on Circle between Lantana and

Dogwood

Results 4875 cars observed of which1560 were speeding
32

The average 85th percentile speed was 323mph The 85th

percentile speed ranges from 305 mph to 35 mph

See further data summary page attached



N
M

M
M

M
N
t

N
o
0

t1
to

N
l
f

N
j

M
M

M
M

M
M

N
M
M

M
M

N
M

M
O

M
M

D
M

d
M

M
M

M
M

N
M

M
M

M

o
Q

a
o

E

h
C

O
N

0
0

0
0

M
t

o
p
f

O
O

N
c
fl

o
p

In
to

m
M

O
c
D

c
0

O
M

O
I

C
O
j

N
O

N
N

O

N
M

f
l

O
T

N
N

M

EON

NC
N

N
i

y
N

N
y

N
y
N

N
y

to
fA

y
N

N
N

N
N

w
a0i
3

3
ai

3
m

3
ai

3
ai

3
ai

3
ai
3

3
ai

3
ai

3
aDi

3
N

N
N

N
N

N
to

t
f

N
N

C
r

r
r

t

O
T

r
f

L

TTL
0

1Y

0
cp

vim
D

O
N

N
N

f0
tU

O
N

q
fQ

C
C

C

O
N

O
fn

A

o
Q

a
Q

Q
a

a
Q

Q
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

O
M

O
M

O
O

O
M

M
O

E
r

v
t
i

t
i

v
v

H

1
D

1
t

t
i

t
i

t
i

t
i

O
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
N

N
N

N
N

N
N

N
N

N
N

a
a

a
M

M
j

M
a

M
O

N
a

r

W

Yo
Y0

Y0
O

O
O

Yo
Y

Y
a

O
c

n
U

U
U

n
0n

on
J

c
o

o
o

o
o

o
J

M
M

f
M

M
M

Cam
cam

c
Q

Q
T

t
i

M

O
ON

mO
C

N

U
n

U
t

t
o

N
t

k

rnEMO

t
C

QE
E

MN
O

M
M

rn
EO

NN
N

a
OG

oar
n

a

Q
ago

s



n
i

t
1

F



City of Corvallis

Planning Commission
501 SW Madison

Corvallis Oregon 97330

32707

FCID

iAR 2 82007

Community Development
Planning Division

I walk my dog on 36 street and have noticed the level of traffic there long before
work begins at S AM If drivers had the option of going down Circle to Harrison in
addition to traveling on 36 it might give drivers an additional choice if they are going
in the direction of OSU or downtown which would help reduce traffic on 36x

The developer stated at the last planning commission hearing that they were

considering delaying the extension of Circle even longer than city staff recommended
Because there are hundreds of apartments at the top of Witham Hill that frequently
travel on 36 it would help relieve some of the traffic if Circle were extended from
Witham Hill to Harrison as people have been waiting for less traffic on 36 I would
like to see the extension of Circle as one of the earliest stipulations for the
development

e78 v

5zy w 3 5



RECEIVE
Richard M Hines

458 NW 36th St R 2 8 2007
Corvallis OR

97330
Community Development7586089 Planning Division

To whomever it concerns

Recently members ofour neighborhood have been noticing a great increase in the

traffic on NW 36h St At one time there was talk ofthe City extending Circle Blvd on

thru to Harrison but Iam hearing this is being placed back on the shelf possibly for

another 5 years or so Meanwhile the traffic in our RESIDENTAL neighborhood
continues to increase And often times this traffic does not pay attention to the posted
25MPH signs This has many concerns for my self and numerous neighbors Perhaps a

topic ofdiscussion at the next City Council meeting A thoughtperhaps a four way

stop at the corner of 36th and Fillmore say would either deter some traffic using 36h to

save time or at the very least slow some ofthis traffic down Thank you for listening
R Hines

w



RECITED
March 28 2007

Attn Members ofthe Corvallis Planning Commission
MAR 2 9 pa7Re Submission ofWritten Testimony following the meeting of32107 to be continued

on4407 ofAgenda Item IV Public Hearing Witham Oaks Conceptual and
DevelopmentPlanTentative Subdivision Plat PLD0600012 SUB0600005 o4yDevelopment

Planning DivisionSubmitted bv Carolyn Simmons 1302 NW Souza Place Corvallis OR 97330
Tel 7580271email CrCAROLYNnaaolcom

Item327
B Visual Elements Construction of a 6 masonry wall along multiuse path is not compatible

with the surrounding area Construction of a modest wooden fence with
attractive landscape features would be more compatible

C Noise attenuation Traffic noise will drastically increase on Circle Blvd Witham Hill Dr
Harrison Blvd and the neighboring streets specifically Dale Drive
Dale Place Souza Place Kline Place Kline Drive and Fernwood Drive

F Signage Proposed sign with lighting is not appropriate to site
G LandscapingBufferin See B above
I Traffic

Since it is inevitable that Dale Drive must be a through street it is imperative that
it be marked and used as an EXIT ONLY ROAD Putting Dale through will seriously
impact the approximately 48 homes in the existing subdivisions NO TRAFFIC STUDY
HAS BEEN DONE OR PRESENTED FOR THESE STREETS as listed in Cabove
NOR THE POTENTIAL IMPACT WITHAM OAKS WOULD HAVE UPON THEM
CURRENTLY THE 5 INTERSECTIONS IN THIS EXISTING SUBDIVISION
HAVE NO TRAFFIC CONTROLS This has always been aquiet family neighborhoodIt should never become a two way through street to the extension ofCircle Blvd Never

Item4109HabitatMigration
The proposed removal ofnoninvasive existing trees will have serious negative consequences
on the existing habitat ofthe area namely deer rabbit bird populations and more Also the
extensive planned removal ofmature trees will affect air qualityaswell as weather patterns such
as the natural upward air flow which currently travels up and along the multiuse path area and
cools upper air in the hot Summer months along the ridge ofWitham Hill Concrete and asphalt
are not environmentally friendly
Item753Water ualitX
Cand D Only conceptual plans have been presented for storm water runoff We must have the

Hard Numbers BEFORE the plan goes ahead not after
Water retention and runoff into the Harrison ditch have not been presented beyond the
conceptual plan Water runoff is aHUGE ISSUEPROBLEMwhose solutions
MUST be presented with detailed specifications BEFORE the plan proceedsIn conclusion this written testimony addresses only a few ofthe 60 conditions yet to be entirely

met by the Witham Oaks Developers and addresses only a few ofmy deep concerns regarding the
negative impacts this proposed development will have on our quality oflife here in Corvallis
Respectfully Sub ed

Carolyn Simmons
NW Corvallis



OSU Facilities Services
130 Oak Creek Building
Corvallis OR 97331

Oregon State
5417370917

UNIVERSITY

Thursday March 29 2007

Mr Fred Towne Senior Planner

City ofCorvallis Community Development Department
Planning Division

501 SW Madison Avenue

Corvallis Oregon 9733i

Re Witham Oaks Development

Dear Mr Towne

RECEID
MAR3p

COtYDevelopmentPlattning Division

This letter serves as OSUswritten response to the Witham Oaks Conceptual and Detailed

DevelopmentPlanTentative Subdivision PlatPLD0600012SUB0600005OSU wishes to

bring attention as a matter ofpublic record two considerations 1 the proposed wetland impacts
and mitigation strategies proposed along Harrison Boulevard and 2 the traffic analysis report
completed by PTVAmerica Inc

Wetland Considerations

OSU was approached by 1Vlatrix Development through a preliminary planning process to discuss

potential stormwater management strategies OSU and Matrix Development completed a

Memorandum ofUnderstanding on August 15 2006 to ensure that the preliminary storm drain

system proposed at the Witham Oaks Development would be realized

OSU wants to restate the agreement with Matrix Development that final engineering drawings of

the stormwater facility plans will be provided toboth the City and OSU Facilities Services for

review and approval OSU must approve any material change from the preliminary stormwater

management plan and any change that affects the direction flow volume quality or location of
water that will migrate across OSU property

Transportation Considerations

A condition ofapproval for the OSU Campus Master Plan was the inclusion ofaBase

Transportation Model BTM to ensure that transportation mitigation strategies were included as

the campus grows The model includes analysis for trip distributions based on identified uses

within each sector The City has accepted the premise ofthe BTM and the method ofcalculation

The approved master plan includes a section LDC33670d Campus Master Plan Monitoring
where OSU is required to provide an update to the BTMwhich includes traffic counts to be

updated on a5year cycle new development and ifknown future development square footage
and use type based onthe existing modelscategories tobe included in the model assumptions
on a per sector basis and new parking areas or roadways that may have an effect on traffic

Page 1



OSU Facilities Services
130 Oak Creek Building
Corvallis OR 97331

Oregon State
5417370917

UNIYERSITY

volumes or patterns The code requires OSU to complete an annual update report which includes
any transportation improvements identified in the BTM

OSU is concerned about the intersection at 30 and Harrison The OSU BTM Section424
identifies this intersection currently operating at a LOS F during the AM and PM peak times The
report proposes a mitigation strategy to restrict turns from 30 street to right turn only during peak
hours if abackup persists Since this is aCity road the proposed mitigation is for consideration by
the City but it is something OSU needs to consider to track transportation impacts in this azea if
development occurs The added traffic as aresult of the Witham Oaks Development site as acut

through or a destination could add to the difficulty of this intersection

Due to the length oftime ofthe full buildout scenario ofthe Witham Oaks development and the
size ofthe subdivision OSU would request for consideration by the City that Matrix Development
produce a similar monitoring report focused on traffic impacts as identified in the November 2006
PTVAmerica report The annual monitoring report will enable Matrix to continually update and
refine the report to account for the ongoing development The report should also be available for
public review

If you have any questions about the information provided in this letter please feel free to contact
me at5417370917 oremailpattymcintoshgoregonstateedu

Sincerely

yaml
Patricia J McIntosh
Interim Campus Planning Manager
Facilities Services

130 Oak Creek Building
Corvallis OR 97331

Page 2



EECIVD
April 2 2007

Community Development Planning Division APR 2
PO Box 1083

Corvallis OR 97339 Community Development
Phone 7666908 Planning Division
Fax 7541792

Re Witham Oaks Conceptual Detailed Development PlanTentative Subdivision Plat
PLD0600012

Attention Eric Adams

Planning Division

Please accept these comments for the April 4 2007 Hearing regarding the Witham Oaks Subdivision

After having reviewed the Planning Commission Staff Report I would like to commend the staff on the

review and recommendations I am concerned that all conditions be fully met especially 17 20 22
23 24 31 and 36 before development proceeds

I do appreciate the clause 321 for Efficient use of energy and other resources The site if

developed has great potential for solar energy if only passive through such simple requirements as

appropriate orientation height design and overhangs Please encourage this

I support most of the staffs 60 recommendations and would like assurances that those concerns are

fully addressed before the project proceeds I am concerned about the loss of and damage to

wetlands through development stormground water management and diminished water and air

quality In addition the biodiversity of the area will be decreased with the removal of25 of Oregon
White Oaks which are being replaced by nonnative species The Natural Features Overlay and

community expect these to be addressed

Recommendation 24 Wetland Mitigation and Monitoring Plan requests extending to 5 years after

completing of the last phase of the Conceptual and Detailed Development Plan an objective
monitoring of wetland and riparian areas This must be strongly enforced or we could end up with

OopsIm sorry which helps no one especially the irreplaceable wetlandswildlife I support holding
financial securities until all mitigation is complete

There are many things to consider when approving developments but I encourage you to hold

developers to the standards the community is demanding including the Natural Features Overlay
energy efficiency and environmental assessments and protections

Thank you

Leslie Redpath
3085 NW Autumn St

Corvallis OR 97330
7570312

CDocuments and SettingsadamseLocalSettingsTemporary InternetFilesOLK22Planning Letter Witham Oaks4407doc April 2
2007



Y

APR 2 2007

Community Development
Planning DivisiontiT343Fareh 247

iy rfCcnvaitllis

stctffiaclrIrltcrt
is thehaft iivvattCitoY

xeestofie
rntmcmsidrom itsag3teatetieseetwith

Teed ztban
Y afanbaobacenssfed abu y

rw Eshedwc

rr

2

r

C

C c

l



Louise Marquering Apn
1640 NW Woodland Drive

Corvallis OR 97330

5417530012 CorvallisMatters@aoleom APB 2 07

Re Witham Oaks 13eve entConCernS Community Development
PIanning Division

Regarding the 25 foot buffer between OSU lands and the lots 33 through 44

p17 Policy 324would suggest a buffer between these two uses should be created

Why is the buffer only proposed between lots 33 and 44 and not Street J OSU has indicated

that they do not have plans to develop their property for at least fifty years and it is debatable

whether they ever will Why isnta buffer also needed to prevent pedestrians from accessing the

OSU property from the end of Street J If there is to be a buffer shouldntit also extend across

Street J
Who will plant the buffer area and when Who will monitor it to make sure that the

homeowners maintain that buffer rather than use it for private gardening What kind of plants
will be planted in the buffer to discourage pedestrians from accessing the OSU property One

suggestion is to allow the poison oak to continue to grow in place and plant native shrubs such
as Oregon Grape

Trees

Policy465On tree covered hillsides development shall be designed to preserve as many

trees as possible and tree removal shall be consistent with the approved development plan
CcmpPln9x1 City landuse decisions shall protect and maintain neighborhood
characteristics in existing residential areas

11Iany people supported this annexation because the developer planned to preserve the trees

Trees were preserved in the construction ofnearbyneighborhoods in Forest Hill Edgewood
Estates andboth apartmentcomplexes tothe north of the proposed development
is removal of 342 trees consistent with what the voters expected when they supported this

annexation Wouldalowerhousing density preserve more trees To be consistentwithlocal

neighborhoods and preserve trees a decrease in housing density should be considered

p8182 Condition 38 Phasing of Pedestrian Facilities As a person who uses the current

multiusepath almost daily I really appreciate the recommendation that these facilities be

completed with the first phase of the development Promoting safety during construction is of

the utmost importance The neighbors who use the area definitely favor as little disruption to

their routines as possible

FYI Condition 10 p30 the erosive downcutting currently occurring along the existing
trail throughTractA I appreciate trail maintenance but the downcutting and erosion on

this trail is due to repeated vehicle traffic about 15 years ago Those deep ruts were created by
tires in the very wet soil



Stormwater and Wetland Mitigation Plans

The proposal seems to be incomplete based on material that the applicant is still submitting and
all of the studies that still need to be completed My cancem is that the public will have no input
if the application is approved without the studies being completed Several conditi4rs togother
indicate lack of detailed analysis about the geological and hydrological functions on this
property Some of the conditions that still have to be met involve studies on storm water runoff
and wetland mitigation planslam concerned that storm water plans are incomplete and that
there are no engineered calculations for preand post development peak stormwater runoff
flow I ask that you not approve this development until those are clarified Everything hinges
on those as yet incomplete studies These conditions show that there are many questions that
need to be answered before this application is approved

p64 I really support the city on Condition 24 recommending a five year warranty period
after build out for the public facilities in the riparian and wetland areas In Timberhill Seavy
Meadows Cedarhurst and other housing along Harrison and the area east of Sequoia Street
water problems occurred after the developer left The homeowners end up paying for the work

necessary to prevent water from entering their homes Because of all the incomplete studies and
the complexity of the stormwater and wetland management plans this is an excellent
recommendation

p95 97 Condition 56 Feneing will not be allowed around any of the stormwater
detention facilities unless otherwise approved by the City Engineer Fences would impede
wildlife and are not aesthetically pleasing However the public will have no input on whether
or not fences will be placed if the calculations from the study show that there could be more

water and the ponds will exceedthe3HIV The stormwater storage facilitiesmust be designed
so that no fences are requiredlt could indicate building fewer house to allow for larger ponds
with sides less than the 3H1V

Conditionl3Geotechnical Analysis
We have been asking for years for a geotechinieal analysis of the property We read about cities
all over the country where landslides occur and we wonder why the developer was ever allowed
to build there Please be sure the studies are complete before this application is approved

p48 Drainage Basin Map has boundaries that do not appear to correspond with the existing
topography

p95 Condition 51 52 the design and location of the flow control structure for Outfall 2
was not addressed or shown on the plans

p97 Conditions 54 55 and 56 Water Quality and Detention Facilities

p98 Condition 58 Stormwater Facilities Design Given the complexity of the stormwater

drainage system it is not clear at this time wetland mitigation



To Department ofPublic Works

Corvallis OR

Transportation Department
Attn Som Sartnurak

From Carolyn Simmons

1302 NW Souza Place

March 28 2047

RECEIVED Received

APA 3
MAR 2 2007

Corvallis OR 97330
ConemuniSleat PUBLIC WORKS

541 7580271 PlanningDivision
CrCAROLYNaaolcom

Re Proposed connection ofDale Drive with the Circle Blvd Extension as part ofthe

Proposed 221 home Witham Oaks Development to be constructed between Witham Hill

Drive and Harrison Blvd

Mr Sartnurak

I amwriting to urge you to see that Dale Driveifwhen it goes through as part ofthe proposed
Development Witham Oaks will ONLY BE USED AS AN EXIT FROM CIRCLE as

opposed to being used as both an entrance and an exit

I have proposed this idea more than once to the Developers but they tell meI must go through
the Transportation Department and that is why I amwriting you I am not aware ofanyone being
opposed to this proposal

Please let me know that you have received this written request and please carefully consider

making Dale Driveoneway0UT

The 48 homes and 5 intersections existing now have shared these streets without any
kinds oftraffic controls Please help keep ourneighborhood quiet and safe

Sincerely

Carolyn Simmons

I am also enclosing acopy ofthe written testimony I am submitting to the Planning Commission



March 28 2007
Attn Members of the Corvallis Planning Commission
Re Submission ofWritten Testimony following the meeting of32107 tobe continued

on4407 ofAgenda Item IV Public Hearing Witham Oaks Conceptual and Detailed
DevelopmentPlanTentative Subdivision Plat PLD0600012 SUB0600005

Submitted bv Cazolyn Simmons 1302 NW Souza Place Corvallis OR 97330
Tel 7580271email CrCAROLYNaaolcom

Item327

B Visual Elements Construction of a 6 masonry wall along multiusepath is not compatible
with the surrounding azea Construction ofamodest wooden fence with
attractive landscape features would be more compatible

C Noise attenuation Traffic noise will drastically increase on Circle Blvd Witham Hill Dr
Harrison Blvd and the neighboring streets specifically Dale Drive
Dale Place Souza Place Kline Place Kline Drive and Fernwood Drive

F Signnage Proposed sign with lighting is not appropriate to site
G LandscaningBufferin See B above
I Traffic

Since it is inevitable that Dale Drive must be a through street it is imperative that
it be mazked and used as an EXIT ONLY ROAD Putting Dale through will seriously
impact the approximately 48 homes in the existing subdivisions NO TRAFFIC STUDY

HAS BEEN DONE OR PRESENTED FOR THESE STREETS as listed in Cabove
NOR THE POTENTIAL IMPACT WITHAM OAKS WOULD HAVE UPON THEM
CURRENTLY THE 5 INTERSECTIONS IN THIS EXISTING SUBDIVISION
HAVE NO TRAFFIC CONTROLS This has always been aquiet family neighborhood
It should never become a two way through street to the extension ofCircle Blvd Never

Item4109HabitatMigration
The proposed removal ofnoninvasive existing trees will have serious negative consequences
on the existing habitat ofthe azea namely deer rabbit bird populations and more Also the
extensive planned removal ofmature trees will affect air qualityaswell as weather patterns such
as the natural upward air flow which currently travels up and along the multiusepath azea and
cools upper air in the hot Summer months along the ridge ofWitham Hill Concrete and asphalt
aze not environmentally friendly
Item 753Water Quality
C and D Only conceptual plans have been presented for storm water runoff We must have the

Hazd Numbers BEFORE the plan goes ahead not after
Water retention and runoff into the Harrison ditch have not been presented beyond the
conceptual plan Water runoff is aHUGE ISSUEPROBLEM whose solutions
MUST be presented with detailed specifications BEFORE the plan proceeds

In conclusion this written testimony addresses only a few ofthe 60conditions yet to be entirely
met by the Witham Oaks Developers and addresses only a few ofmy deep concerns regarding the
negative impacts this proposed development will have on our quality oflife here in Corvallis
Respectfully Submitted

Carolyn Simmons
NW Corvallis



RECEIVED
April 3 2007

4045 NW Dale Place
Corvallis Oregon 97330

bettyloganacomcastnet

752b014

Corvallis Planning Commission

APR 27

CommunityDwelopmeat
Planning Division

I write concerning the Witham Oaks Planned Development The impact of increased
traffic especially in Dale Drive is my primary concern but I also comment on speed
control on Circle Blvd east of Lantana

Dale Drive With the inevitable increased congestion that will occur at Witham Hili

Drive and Circle Blvd I feel traffic from the Witham Oaks subdivision will use Dale

Drive as an alternate route to Witham Hill Drive Dale Drive Kline Place and the short

segment ofFernwood Circlebetween Kline Place and Witham Hili Drive are small

residential streets with four uncontrolled intersections Increased traffic will present

danger to residents as well as those who may detour through the neighborhood

A condition ofdevelopment should include provisions to eliminate this increased traffic
A couple ofoptions seem logical to me

I Limit access from Circle to Dale to local traffic only
2 Add stop signs on Dale Drive at the intersection with Souza Place and at the

intersection with Kline Place I believe these would discourage through traffic

In addition a stop sign on Fernwood Circle at the intersection with Kline Place is

needed to prevent collisions due to traffic and poor visibility at this intersection

To facilitate traffic planning for these streets the current amount oftraffic on them

should be determined before Circle is extended to Dale Drive This will provide a

quantitative basis for judging the impact ofthe development and options outlined above

Circle Boulevazd I am opposed to the proposal for speed bumps on Circle east of

Lantana Circle is an arterial and installation of speed bumps will cause traffic to divert

through adjacent residential areas Local residents are rightfully concerned about limiting
speed but I see this as a matter ofrigorously enforcing the existing speed limit in that

area

I will be pleased to enlarge on any of these points if youwish

Sincerely

Logan A Norris

CC Scott Zimbrick Jim Mitchell

J



30 March 2007

Planning Commission

City of Corvallis

attn Eric Adams

501 SW Madison St

Corvallis Oregon 97333

To the Planning Commission

RECEIVED
APR 4

Community Developm
Planning Division

2 have lived at the address below on NW 36th Street since early 2003 and have
noticed since then an increase in vehicle traffic on 36th I believe that the
long planned and expected Circle Blvd Extension from Witham Hill Dr to

Harrison Blvd would be a significant benefit to traffic flow especially with
the development of the new subdivision on Harrison west of Merrie in this part
of Corvallis and reduce some of the traffic pressure on 36th Street

This is therefore a request that the City proceed with the Circle Blvd Exten

sion at the earliest possible date

Thank you for your consideration of the above

VVr i

Douglas Leedy

532 NW 36th St eet

Corvallis Ore n 97330

7382611



Adams Eric

From Aaron Liston listona@peakorg
Sent Wednesday April 04 2007 857 AM

To Adams Eric

Subject webWitham Oaks Condition 11

Importance Low

This is an enquiry email via s from Aaron Liston listona@peakorg

In regards to Condition 11 The ProTime 710 PDXPlus Green Clover Plus Flowers is

definitely not a native plant seed mix Only two of the 10 included species are native

California poppy and dwarf yarrow In the past native sources of grass and flowers were

difficult to obtain However today groups like the Corvallisbased Native Seed

Network are developing the growermarker supply chain Both Salix Associates and the

Institute of Applied Ecology could assist you in developing a grass and flower mix that

included localsource native plants
Sincerely
Aaron Liston

Herbarium Director

Dept of Botany and Plant Pathology
Oregon State University

1



Steven J Krygier Apri12 2007
641 NW 36 Street

Corvallis OR 97330

The City ofCorvallis Planning Commission
Corvallis Oregon APR 4 1

Community Development
Corvallis Planning Commission Piaing Division

I am alifetime resident ofourcity and alongtime resident ofthis northwest
neighborhood and I amwriting to express my concerns about traffic along 36th street
between Witham hill and Harrison blvd

My concerns are twofold Speed and volume It is common for traffic tomove along
36th street at 35mph noted when the police radar display was stationed near my house
when the posted speed limit is 25mph Police traffic patrols are rare on this section of
36d street and so cars routinely accelerate over the posted speed this situation appears to
have been exacerbated by the addition ofthe traffic light at the corner of36th and
Harrison Over the years the large apartment complexes on Witham hill and Walnut
have increased the population density dramatically resulting in acorresponding increase
in traffic volume

Having lived on 30th street for 10 years I understand that speed bumps can slow traffic
effectively The effect ofspeed bumps an 30th street was dramatic I am asking that the
commission consider a similar solution on 36th street

I am also asking the commission to consider expediting the extension ofCircle Blvd to
accommodate amore natural traffic flow Circle being amain arterial is much better
suited toserve not only the WithamhillWalnut population but the planned development
between Circle and 53rd street as well

Thank you for giving my concerns due consideration

Sincerely

Steven Krygier



To the Corvallis Planning Commission
501 SW Madison
Corvallis Or 97333
4407

D
APR 4 2007

Community Development
Planning Division

Summary
L Traffic on 36th street can be heard from every point in my house even parts of

the house that are near the alley almost halfway down Polk street towards 35th
My house was built in 1953 and faces the corner of 36th and Polk with a carport on

Polk as well as 36th It is architecturally significant and has been listed in the book

Oregon for The Curious Traffic has been increasing over the years and is

noisier frequently above the speed limit I can hear this at every point in my house

all day long especially if someone is playing booming music that reverberates

2 Traffic on 36th street exceeds the rate of traffic in many parts of downtown

Corvallis even though there is no commercial development and 36th is only
residential Traffic going past my house typically accelerates ifpeople are going
up Witham hill or if they might be in a hurry for some reason as they are coming
down 36th

3 During Spring Break most traffic on 36th comes down from Witham Hill

towards Harrison and not the opposite After Spring Break sometimes more go up

4 Traffic has increased dramatically during the more than 30 years I have lived

here because more housing has been built There are two apartment complexes at

the top of Witham Hill with 387 auartment units in them This does not count

any of the houses The halfway point between 36 and the Walnut loop is beyond
Walnut Street almost to Walnut Park This means that it is most expedient for
cars to travel over Witham Hill to 36th street each time there is work or an event

at OSU football basketball LaSells Ch2M HiII Alumni Center work atlnear

OSU

5 Traffic is constant all day long on 36th street sometimes worse than others

with cars backed up in front of my house two blocks from Harrison We were

informed when we moved here in the 1970s that Circle Boulevard would be
extended towards Harrison to help mitigate traffic on 36th The annexation passed
but that still has not happened Instead at the last hearing on Witham Oaks the

developer spoke about delayin extending Circle for years We oppose this

because the rate of traffic is becoming worse on 36th and drivers have few other

options



6 The traffic lights an 36t and 35 have had Tittle effect on us Large numbers
of cars still speed past our house beyond the speed limit of 25 MPH constantly
The one wav from Harrison to 35 does not help us The turn lane the developer
spoke of on 29th will not affect us because it is too far away and turns toward Fred
Meyer Cars make more noise now when they accelerate and exceed the speed
limit in front of my house

7 The crosswalk at 36 and Polk has been removed The school bus lets students
off on 36th and Polk in front of my house and I watch many students cross 36th
with no cross walk each time the bus lets them out in front of my house

Traffic Count on 36t St and Polk
Icould not count any cars at the ends of 36

Time period exceeds a rate of 300 carsliour
Exceeds rate of 400 carshour
Exceeds rate of 500 earshour
Exceeds rate of 600 carshour

there were very few bikes and bikes were not counted buses and trucks counted
each time they passed just like cars

According to my traffic data kept in I O minute segments in front of my house on

rin break traffic exceeded a rate of 300 cars per hour starting at the
following times 746 AM 749 822 842 845 853 1140 1210 PM
1232PM111121 PM113123 PM 147 240 PM 304 PM 347 PM 414
PM 504 PM 512 525 536548 6 PM and 714 PM Basically this was all day
long during Springy Break when we have less traffic than usual This starts early
in the morning and goes well into the evening After Sarin Break the rate of
traffic often exceeded 400 and 500 cars per hour and went beyond 600hr

Springy Break32607 Monday
246 PM to254 PM 8 minutes
38 cars

One additional minute 9 minutes
44 cars in 9 min rate 48 cars per mnutef293 er hour Many are over the speed
limit
This count was done with my neighbor across 36th street
504 PM to 514 PM ten minutes82 cars rate 82 cars per minute492 per
hour Many are over the speed limit



Tuesday32707 Spring Break

530 AM I can hear traffic in my bedroom 2 block from 36th facing the alleyway
and towards the back yards ofthe houses on 35th
6507 AM 24 cars 144hour
740750 AM 48 cars 288 per hour 7 going up towards Witham Hill and the

rest towards Harrison As I left the cars got faster and faster beyond the 25MPH

speed limit presumably as people are late for work
837847 42 cars 252 per hour
512522 PM 77 cars 462 per hourl

Wednesday32807 Spring Break
658708 AM 7 cars 42 cars per hour 3 going uphill towards Witham

749759 AM 62 cars 372haur 13oing up towards Witham Hill

822832 AM 53 cars 318hour 12oing up towards Witham Hill

12 noon1210 47 cars 282hour 25 going up Witham Hill from Harrison

12101220 56cars 336hour 32 going up towards Witham Hill from

Harrison
147157 PM 47 cars22hour16 going up towards Witham Hill

718728 PM 44 Cars 264hr 17 going up towards Witham Hill from Harrison

Thursday32907 Spring Break

556606 AM 6 cars 36hr
Harrison
647657 AM 16 cars 96hr
657707 AM 21 cars 126hr
707717 AM 33 cars I98hr
717727 AM 41 cars 246hr

1 of them going up towards Witham Hill from

5 of them going up Witham Hill from Harrison
5 or them going up Witham Hill
13 going up towards Witham Hill

10 going up towards Witham Hill

746756 AM 58 cars 3481hr 13 going up towards Witham Hill
757807 AM 37 cars 222lhr 12 going up towards Witham Hill

842852 AM 55 cars 330hr 20 of them going up towards Witham Hill

853903 AM 55 cars 330hr 20 of them going up towards Witham Hill

11401150 AM 54 cars 324hr 13 of the cars going up towardWitham Hill

including one police car

12321242 51 cars 306hr 17 going up 36t towards Witham Hill

111121 PM 53 cars 318hr 24 on 36th uphill to Witham Hill

3030313 PM 26 cars 156hr 11 going up 36th to Witham



347354 PM 57 cars 342hr 25 going up 36th to Witham Hill
714724 PM 51 cars 306hr 30 going up 36th towards Witham Hill

Friday31007Snrin Break
735745 AM 34 cars total 204hr13 of them going up 36th towards Witham
Hill many above 25MPH
746756 AM 48 cars total288lhour 8 of them going up 36th towards Witham
Hill
833843 41 cars 246fhr 15 going up 36th towards Witham Hill
845855 58 cars 3486our 14 traveling on 36 up towards Witham Hi11
940950 45 cars 270hour 11 traveling on 36th up towards Witham Hill
113123PM 53 car 318hour 19 traveling on 36th up towards Witham Hill
147157 54 cars 324hour 15 traveling on 36th up towards Witham
205215 47 ears 282hour 16 traveling an 36th up towards Witham
240250 50 cars 3006our 21 traveling on 36th up towards Witham Hill
304314 51 cars 3066x 20 traveling on 36th up towards Witham Hill
414424 52 cars 3126x 13 traveling on 36th up towards Witham Hill
513523 76 cars 456hr 37 traveling on 36th towards Witham Hill
525535 56 cars 336hr 44 traveling on 36th towards Witham Hill
536546 65 cars 3906x 40 going on 36th uP towards Witham Hill
548558 66 cars 3966x 31 going on 36th uP towards Witham Hill
558608 52 cars 3126x 20 of them going up 36th towards Witham

Sunday April 1 2007
10231033 AM 38 cars 228lhr 14 going up 36th towards Witham Hill
143 153 PM 39 cars 234hr I S going up 36th towards Witham Hill
345355 PM 48 cars 288hr 23 going up 36th towards Witham Hill
425435 PM 47 cars 282lhr 27 going up 36th towards Witham Hill
543553 PM 57 cars 3426x 21 going up 36th towards Witham HiII

Monday Apri12 2007

643652 AM 27 cars 162Ihr 3 going up 36th towards Witham Hill
653703 AM 32 cars 192hr 9 going up 36th towards Witham Hill
735745 AM 82 cars 492hr 13 going up 36th towards Witham Hill
745755 AM 87 cars 5226r 24 going uP 36th toward Witham Hill
755805 AM 76 cars 456hr 24 going up 36th towards Witham Hill
855905 AM 52 Cars 312hr 18 going up 36th towards Witham Hill
905915 AM 50 cars 3006x 20 going up 36th towards Witham Hill
935945 AM 63 cars 3786x 20 going up 36th towards Witham Hill
945955 AM 64 Cars 3846x 24 going up 36th towards Witham Hill

b



10061016 AM 51 cars 306hr 17 going up 36th towards Witham Hill

115012NON65 cars 390fhr 36 going up 36 towards Witham This is the
first time more cars have gone u than are coming down Witham on 3 6th
12021212 PM 72 cars 432hr1 39 going up 36th towards Witham
12121222 PM 54 cars 324Ihr 21 going up 36th towards Witham Hill

256306 PM 57 cars 342hr 33 going up 36th towards Witham Hill
308318 PM 53 cars 342Hr 25 going up 36th towards Witham Hill

411421 PM 64 cars 384hr3 I going up 36th towards Witham Hill
458508 PM 83 cars 498hr 44 going up 36th towards Witham Hill

521531 PM 116 cars 696hr 59 going up 36th towards Witham Hill

540550 PM 88 cars 528hr 3 8 going up 36th towards Witham Hill
551601 PM 98 cars f588hr 46 going up 36th towards Witham Hill
622632 PM 62 cars 372hr 30 going up 36th towards Witham Hill

622658 PM 65 cars 390hr 32 going up 36th towards Witham Hill
725735 PM 34 cars 204hr 14 going up 36th towards Witham Hill

Tuesday Apri13 2007

735745 AM 83 vehicles 498hr I S going up 36th towards Witham
756806 AM 82 vehicles 492hr 28 going up 36th to Witham
823833 AM 69 cars 414hr 1 28 going up36th towards Witham
844854 AM 78 cars 468hr 22 going up 36th towards Witham
931941 AM 63 vehicles 378hr 29 going up 36th towards Witham
101010 AM 39 cars 234lr16 going up 36th towards Witham
112122 PM 54 cars 324hr 23 going up 36th towards Witham
146156 PM 62 cars 372hr 20 going up 36th towards Witham
242252 PM 61 cars 366lhr 26 going up 36th toward Witham
306316 PM 85 cars 510lhr 1 45 going up 36th towards Witham
339339 PM 66 cars 396hr 29 going up 36th towards Witham
417427 PM 73 cars 438hr 35 going up 36th towards Witham Hill

439449 PM 81 cars 486hr 44 going up 36th towards Witham Hill

4505 PM 90 cars 540hr 40 going up 36th towards Witham Hill
5510 PM 93 cars 558hr 63 going up 36th towards Witham
512522 PM 113 cars 6781hr 57 going up towards Witham Hi11

537547 PM 92 cars 552hr 48 going up towards Witham Hill

547557 PM 99 cars 594 hr 56 going up towards Witham Hill
610620 PM 76 cars 456hr 44 going up towards Witham Hill

6507 PM 62 cars 372hr 29 going up 36th towards Witham Hill
19 cars were traveling on 36 in 5 minutes from53858 PM



Thank you for considering this traffic information

Z rook
3555 NW Polk 36 and Polk
Corvallis Oregon 87330

7536241



RECEIVED
F

F

Apri14 2007

Corvallis Planning Commission

501 SW Madison Avenue

Corvallis OR 97333

APR 42007

Community Development
Planning Division

RE Witham Oaks Planned Development PLD0600012SUB0600005and the

proposed Circle Blvd relocation

Dear Planning Commission Members

I represent the Corvallis Stake Physical Facilities of the Church ofJesus Christ ofLatterday
Saints LDS The Corvallis Stake Center is the37yearold church building just east ofthe

proposed CircleHanisonintersection shown on the December 19 2006 plans of the Witham

Oaks Planned Development

We have no objections to the proposed residential development nor do we oppose relocating
Circle Blvd However we believe that ifCircle Blvd is to be relocated its intersection with

Harrison Blvd should not be within the required 150 feet from the nearest access We base this on

adopted policies of the Corvallis Transportation System Plan26010 and Comprehensive Plan

1121 both ofwhich have the same top priority for transportation planning

The transportation system shall beplanned and developed in a mannerwhich contributes

to community livability recognizes and respects the characteristics ofnaturalfeatures
and minimizes the negative effects on abutting land uses

We believe the proposed Circle Blvd is wellintended but the proposed location ofthe

intersection with Harrison Blvd does not comply with the three criteria of the above policy
minimizing negative effects recognizing natural features and contributing to community
livability

Minimize Negative Effects The proposed Circle Blvdrightofway near its intersection with

Harrison Blvd is directly adjacent to a25foot flag lot of the Beit Amproperty our neighbor to

the west and north Our west entrance is approximately 30 feet from the Beit Am flag lot This

adds up to 55 feet of separation from our driveway to the proposed Circle Blvd rightofway This

is an insufficient distance for the safe operation ofHarrison Blvd which our property abuts The

Corvallis LDS Stake Center is a heavyusefacility particularly during certain days of the week

Frequently our parking capacity is maximized and traffic demand on Harrison Blvd increases

accordingly

Furthermore Section4140ofthe Corvallis Land Development Code LDC states Accesses

shall be located a minimum of 150 ft from any other access street or intersection With about

1300 feet of frontage on Harrison Blvd the subject property has more than enough land to select

a safe intersection for Circle Blvd without having to request a variance that negatively impacts
existing land uses



Finally Statewide Planning Goal 12 Transportation begins To provide and encourage a safe
convenient and economical transportation system OAR660015000012 We believe
realigning the rightofwayofan arterialcollector intersection to within 55 feet ofan existing
access is not safe convenient or economical

Natural Features The existing Circle Blvd rightofwaybetween Witham Hill and Harrison was

surveyed in 1963 In 1996 the Transportation Plan said amultiuse path from Witham Hill to
Harrison was a top priority of10year improvement projects 104 A few years later the City
constructed the path using about 20 feet ofthe existing 80foot rightofway The narrow path
did not meander through the wide rightofway as would have been most convenient rather it
exactly followed the easternmost 20 feet so as to reserve the remaining 60 feet for the future
expansion ofCircle Blvd as prescribed by the Transportation Plan In short it appears the City
has planned on using thisrightofway for Circle Blvd for over 40 years

The existingrightofwaytherefore should be the standard by which all other proposed
realignments are measured its intersection with Harrison is at least 150 feet to the nearest access
and the amount ofwetland area impacted according to the applicant is 363 acresno

alternative should exceed this amount The applicants proposed Circle Blvdrightofway
impacts fewer wetlands but is well under the 150 feet required for driveway accesses There is an
abundance of land on the site for the applicant to relocate Circle Blvd impact fewer wetlands
than the existingrightofwayand still meet the 150 feet requirement

Community Livability We believe this residential and open space development will be a great
addition to the community We look forward to having new neighbors who will soon enjoy this
beautiful part oftown with us We believe their safety and our safety on the roads will be ensured
only if livability sustainability and accessibility are priorities for new and existing streets

Comprehensive Plan 11310 Ifthe accessibility of our west entrance is restricted or eliminated
because Circle Blvd is located too close to it then the Comprehensive Plan the Transportation
Plan and the Land Development Codeall of which say the CircleBlvdHarrison Blvd
intersection should be located farther to the west than is currently proposedwill lose
effectiveness in measuring community livability

For these reasons we believe the currently proposed location of the CircleBlvdHarrison Blvd
intersection is not in compliance with the intent and policies ofstate and local land use ordinances
and should be adjusted before approval is granted

Thank you for your time and consideration

Regards

C

Paul Davis

Corvallis Oregon Stake Physical Facilities Representative
The Church ofJesus Christ ofLatterday Saints

Pauldavisaich2mcom

5417683584

Cc Eric Adams Associate Planner

Eugene Braun PE City Engineer
Terry Valiant Pahlisch Homes

yy



O

CORVALLIS
ENHANCING COMMUNITYLIVABILITY

MEMORANDUM

From Eric Adams Associate Planner

To Planning Commission

Date April 4 2007

Re Witham Oaks Conceptual and Detailed Development Plan PLD0600012
et al Additional Public Testimony

The attached piece of public testimony was submitted to the Planning Division between

noon and 500 PM on April 4 2007

This memorandum makes these comments public information



Adams Eric

From Rana S Fostertweet37@junocomSent Wednesday April 04 2007439 PM
To Adams Eric
Subject Witham Oaks Testimony April 04 2007

Dear Corvallis Planning Commission
Concern about analysis of Annexation Notice of Disposition is this proposal fordevelopment fulfilling the wishes of the community with relation to Notice of DispositionHow has this proposal varied from the original Annexation Finding of Factreasons peoplein the community voted for the land to be annexed
I recall being asked to consider voting for the annexation due to pending threat bythe owner to log off all or much of the sites Oregon White OakWith this proposal a known number and location of individual Oregon White Oakotherhardwood spp from 850 inches 25300 years diameter breast height DBH will beremoved Is there a way to provide compromise from the applicant for conservation of thissame amount of live Oregon White Oak on the parcel Steeper slope to north and attached toOSU and City Open Space may be the location that can not be cut and filled forhomebuilding and roadways due to elevation above City Water Service

Could this area be extended by the owners to include the same number of trees anddiameter that are targeted for removal should there be trees that will be removed in thisarea

Instead of planting nonnative commercial trees owner could dedicate that number oftrees on site to be conserved permanently and plantrelocate native hardwoods or Oregonwhite oak where overhead power lines are not located as landscaping plant materialWith Harrison Blvd becoming a storm water conveyance channel as proposed and to bedeveloped with a side walk with planting strip how much County right of way will beeliminated This reach of Harrison Blvd
is considered historic for Federally Listed T and E species Sed
nelsonii and Benton County and State of Oregon are aware of this site I assumemitigation will occur with the State for this spp loss

How will the use of NW Harrison Blvd north ditch used as a storm water convancechannel and sidewalk with planting stripe work to not destroy the right of way damage Tand E plants within it and protect the engineering design of the ditch and road bed itselfwith x volume of water moving directly to Oak Creek outfall from ditch line on North sideof Harrison

With relocation of Circle to the east how are SDC for City owned Bike path paid forthen if Circle will not connect to or be near the existing bike path Will City Parks orCity Public Works pay for Bike Path if this path was built specifically to be paid forwhen a future developer comes to construct Circle Hundreds of people use this bike path aday hopefully they can continue to do so in future and perhaps will just enjoy endlesscorridor of wood and plastic yard fences With Phased development will bike path be openor closed due to construction hazard insurance requirements

With proposed developmentsubdivision plat is Circle Blvd relocation overtop of a partof the Corvallis fault Noise levels from this location could be increased due tohillslope reflecting all traffic noise out across the subdivision west and south fromthis significant land form already in place due to perhaps historic floodflow erosion bythe Willamette River or perhaps this slope face is present due to Corvallis FaultWith location of this development the owners may note air quality issues with operationof all historic AG zone The owners should not be allowed to sue as they should note thisin their deeds that they came to this site after AG zone was in place

Hopefully traffic impact studies historic and current jointly state or define the needfor traffic signals at both Circle and Witham Hill and Harrison and Circle Speed bumpswill be needed to slow the volume of traffic and reduce noise perhaps

Wetland delineation and cut and fill are significant and I would like more information
on both Off site movementengineeringcontrol of run off is not clearly presented

I am not in favor of the proposal as there are substantial information not presentrelated to hydrology and its management I object to this proposal for development as it

1



is unclear how Annexation Disposition relates to the current proposal what has changed

or been granted in this proposal with relation to what the voters requested by the vote

for Annexation There is not enough info in detail about storm water mg off site water

storage and movement to the waters of the State of Oregon

Thanks R Foster 1415 SW Brooklane Dr Cor OR



O

CURVALLIS
ENHANCING COMMUNITY LIVABILITY

MEMORANDUM

From Eric Adams Associate Planner

To Planning Commission

Date April 4 2007

Re Witham Oaks Conceptual and Detailed Development Plan PLD0600012
et al Additional Application Materials

The attached materials were submitted on April 4 2007 by the applicant for the case

noted above Please note that Staff have not had an opportunity to review these materials

and will not be able to comment on them at the April 4 2007 public hearing continuance

In order to provide an opportunity for Staff and the public to consider these materials the

applicant has authorized a 14day extension to the period within which a decision on the

subject case must be made

This memorandum makes these materials public information



Page 1 of2

Adams Eric

From Terri Valiant tvaliant@pahlischhomescom
Sent Wednesday April 04 2007 1034AM 1 27

To Adams Eric

Cc Krawczuk Dana CommunityZevelonmPnt

Plantiin division

Subject FW Invitation to Attend a Neighborhood Meeting

Email committing participation in speed humps

From Randy RutherfordmailtoRRutherford@legendhomescom
Sent Monday March 26 2007536 PM

To Terri Valiant

Subject FW Invitation to Attend a Neighborhood Meeting

fyi

From Randy Rutherford
Sent Wednesday March 21 2007 155 PM

To Douglas M Henry
Subject RE Invitation to Attend a Neighborhood Meeting

Dear Mr Henry

Thank you for your continued interest in ensuring that Matrix Development Corporation and Legend
Homes are considered as aparticipant in your ongoing traffic calming efforts within the upper Circle

neighborhood As Tem Valliant committed at your neighborhood meeting on Monday March 12 2007

Matrix Development Corporation will commit to the following

We will participate as 221 homes orwhatever the final of approved homes is within the

identified recovery area Further our participation will be based upon the percentage ofhomes

within the drawn boundary ofthe recovery area

Our participation will not be finaled until all appeal time periods have expired for the approvals
ofthe Witham Oaks land use applications being sought by MatrixLegend
MatrixLegend will participate in installation oftraffic calming features along Circle Blvd from

the Witham Hill intersection down to 29th Street consisting of up to 5 speed tables

MatrixLegend shall provide the full amount ofour percentage ofparticipation in advance of the

installation of the appropriate traffic calming features subsequent to the final traffic calming

proposal being presented by the neighborhood for approval and authorized by the City Council

Doug we sincerely hope that our committment to participate in this neighborhood attempt to

address traffic saftey illustrates our committment to the community as well as flexibility in trying
to help solve some potential impacts to the larger neighborhood Please feel free to contact me

in order to further this agreement as you are able

Respectfully submitted

Randy Rutherford

442007



Page 2 of2

Matrix Development Corporation
Ph 5036208080 ext 260
Fx 5035988900
Cell 5039396682

Original Message
From Douglas MHenryymailtodouglasnlteiticipakr
Sent Tuesday February 27 2007 1251PM
To Randy Rutherford

Subject Invitation to Attend a Neighborhood Meeting

1250pn Tuesday February 27 2007

Dear Mr Rutherford

I first wanted to invite Terry Valiant to our neighborhood meeting but was informed by your Corvallis office tocontact and invite you instead So please do notbe offended by the fact you are our second choice It will be on Monday at700pmMarch 12 2007 at the residence of Bill Brandt 3490 NW Circle Boulevard Corvallis

At this meeting and upon the advice of Steve Rogers Director of Public Works for the City of Corvallis we will
request Legend Homes to fund the placement of four or five speed humps on upper Circle Boulevard These will be placedeast of Lantana and west of Dogwood a distance of 330 yards from the 1st one to the 4th
We will show you the actual placement of these on a map at the meeting

This is but one of several meetings we have had
Among our activities We just completed an official trafficspeed study over a period of two weeks We observed traffic for20 hours one week and another 20 hours during the second week at specific times and different specific locations We used apolice radar gun to record the speeds of each car and recorded these We found that 32 of the cars were speeding This is ahigh and alarming rate and translated into numbers equals 1560 speeders outof a tota14875 cars observed

Steve Rogers has estimated the Witham Oaks development of 220 homes will generate2100 car trips per day Ifthe majority of these cars travel down Circle which they may do it could increase by 700 the number of speeders throughour

neighborhood Of course the further expansion of Witham Oaks will
increase these numbers

Again on the advice of Steve Rogers we will request your organization place 20000 in an escrow account withthe City of Corvallis to be used for traffic calming devices The city has estimated these to cost around3000 per hump or atotal of 215000 The actual cost of the humps may vary depending on inflation These are estimates and as you know thenumbers can change Any amount not used will be returned to your organization

The bottom line is that the residents in our neighborhood are already frightened by the speeders through here Wehave worked closely with the city police department and requested added patrols but their manpower resources are limitedand can only provide sporadic patrols not enough to cover the need So we feel that in order to restore a degree of calmand peace of mind in ourneighborhood your funding of these speed humps will provide a great deal of good will toward theWithamCaks development and your organization

We feel that it is important to lay all of these facts out to you prior to the meeting on March 12th so that you are
aware of all of the issues I look forward to hearing from you and hope you can attend our meeting

Doug Henry
3270 NWCircle Boulevard
Corvallis OR 973301764
Tel 5417527126

442007



Apri14 2007

Planning Commission

City ofCorvallis

501 SW Madison Avenue

Corvallis OR 97339

RE Witham Oaks PLD060001SUB0600005

Dear Planning Commission Members

rPR Zo

Coircmuiveeopznent
PianigLiision

This letter is written to respond to questions raised during our presentation and public
testimony in opposition during the March 21

st
public hearing

IssueQuestion raised How are we meeting the 10rule for affordabilityattached and

how does this tie into the requested lot coverage

Response Lot coverage is not positively linked to affordability In fact with

land prices what they are a home that uses less land more lot coverage can be

more affordable by virtue of the lot price alone Legend Homes spends a

significant amount on windows to meet percentage of glazing window
requirements diverse architectural elements such as lap siding shake stone and

brick wider trim boards etc Those costs are similar on a 2400 square foot

home to a 1400 foot home Site preparation foundation and roof are major costs

and the size of the home particularly the lot coverage are not significant

impacts on those costs either While there is certainly some difference in hard

costs sticks and bricks per square foot those hard costs are still typically less

than half the cost of the home with lot costs permits SDCs commissions

insurance interest and other soft costs not having a direct relationship to square

footage of the home making up much of the balance Lot coverage standards

includes driveways sidewalks porches etc not just the footprint of the home

We have designed the lot sizes and grading in this plan to allow for avariety and

diversity ofhousing types We planned more affordableie small to mid range

sizes lots in the center of the project where grading is minimized and thereby
results in lower development costs We intend singlelevel housing on

appropriately flatter and more accessible lots in the southern portion of the site

adjacent to the wetland area where the privacy afforded by the open space will

result in higher lot costs to balance the costs of building on one level Attached

housing has been placed where grades are reasonable and impacts from Circle



Boulevard would better support a lowerpriced product These lots are
narrower in order to accommodate attached homes Finally larger lots higherprice has been planned in the upper and steeper areas of the project where
grades dictate expensive construction techniques which are balanced byproximity to open space and views

IssueQuestion raised Sign Standards in this case should include standard for fences
and walls which limit height to 6

Response We are amenable to accepting a condition of approval which limits
the structure to which the sign is attached to 6 feet in total height The sign will
use masonry and cultured stone and be heavily landscaped This together with
the vision clearance triangle will ensure compatibility with the surrounding area
The wall at the back of lots 157171 was proposed to be a concrete block with
cultured stone accents We are amenable to a condition of approval that
requires the wall to be limited to materials such as wood cultured stone or rock
to provide for an aesthetic that blends better with the natural surroundings and
neighborhood

IssueQuestion raised Why didntwe provide alleys for a more pedestrian friendly less
larage oriented development

Response The primary reason was topography Given the slopes it is difficult to
implement the alleys minimize grading and create lots that dont entail
expensive stepped foundation walls site retaining walls and exterior concrete
steps that limit accessibility One of the development goals is targeting family
friendly housing with private usable back yards with gentle slopes Adding
alleys would have increased cuts and fills It was a balancing of policies that we
weretrying to achieve

IssueQuestion raised oftrees removed from RS6area estimate of overall

Response Page 43 of the staff report states that 342 trees will be removed from
the RS6 zone These include significant trees as defined by Section4220of
the Land Development Code which includes any tree 8 or greater at a height of
4 feet above grade While we have not counted all the trees over the entire site
we estimate that the number of significant trees saved over those removed is at a
ratio of approximately 61 Many of the trees proposed for removal include
apples cherry fir and hemlock which compete with the native oaks
Additionally over 13 of the trees proposed for removal occur in the area of the
remnant orchard and include ornamental fruit trees and invasive Hawthorn
Roughly 107of the trees are proposed to be removed for the extension of
Circle Blvd as required by the Citys to and through requirement More



trees will be added through required landscaping for street trees than will be

removed

Tracts A and K are specifically established to coincide with the Open Space
Conservation designation placed on the property at the time of annexation

These tracts include a large number of mature oak maple and fir trees and

coincide with the areas designated for a high level of protection through the

Natural Features Planning Process So the Citys Natural Features process

placed priorities on preservation of natural features and we followed the Citys

goals At this time it was anticipated that the rest of the site was developable
and that future development would likely involve removal of the some of these

trees This was part ofthe balancing of Citys goals for urban development

IssueQuestion raised Clarification on intent ofHabitat Enhancement Plan

Response We have proposed a Habitat Enhancement Plan as part of our

overall development package We are still proposing to complete this plan as a

part of our proposal However we do believe that State Dept of Lands DSL
review of the plan is inappropriate as it is outside their regulatory authority and

they have no criteria for which to review it under The area covered in the

Habitat Enhancement Plan area is located outside the wetland boundary not a

component ofour wetland mitigation package and not under the jurisdiction of

DSL It is burdensome and inappropriate to the applicant to require this

additional level of agency review We object to Condition 12 as we are

proposing the Habitat Enhancement Plan and feel it is appropriately handled

under Condition 1

IssueQuestion raised What does the wetland mitigation plan entail

Response Typically wetland mitigation plans and approval through the State

Dept of Land and the Army Corps of Engineers occurs post development approval
The reason for this is that final engineering of streets and development may change
through the land use process through compliance with conditions of approval As

such our final plan is still being completed and may be revised to meet conditions

of approval

However based on the plans in place today the estimated wetland impact is 20

acres We potentially have at up to 15 acres onsite suitable for wetland creation

mitigation We will propose enhancement of existing wetlands at a 31 ratio but

final review of enhancement has not been finalized Any amount remaining that can

not be mitigated on site will be mitigated in a local wetland bank We also plan to

make use of logs large woody debris that are removed on site to direct water from

the lower channel area out into the wetland and mitigation areas This makes

direct and beneficial use of exiting on site resources We will use the same method



throughout the west side fingers to force water up into the marginal wetland area
to try and support a wetter plant community This has the additional advantage of
delaying storm water flow concentration at the lower end of the site We have and
will continue to work closely with the Corps and DSL regulators to achieve the best
and most sustainable mitigation areas possible on the site

For Both DSL and the Corps of Engineers there is not a significant difference in
mitigation for what causes the impacts The extension of Circle Boulevard would
have an impact on the wetlands regardless of the proposed lot development and we
would have to mitigate for these wetland impacts

IssueQuestion raised Provide a summary of Storm water plan and answers to the
following questions

Why is the storm water report only conceptual at this point
How does the existing storm water runoffdescription work today
How will the water quality treatment system work after development
How are we going to protect and preserve the wetland natural systems and our

neighbors downstream ofthe project

Response Why is the storm water report only conceptual at this point The level of

engineering plan detail is limited during the land use review process The
amount of information needed for construction is significant and costly to have
completed It can be mute or significantly altered with conditions of approvalthat dictate changes to the land use design location or width of streets utility
connections cut and fill limitations storm water systems etc So during the
land use process preliminary engineering details factor in topographic
boundary and soil surveys cut and fill sections street alignment and site designOnce conditions of approval are finalized detailed engineering specific to the
construction of the infrastructure and grading are completed These details are

closely reviewed during what is referred to as the PIPC process Public
Improvement by Private Contract which includes storm water systems alongwith streets water sewer power and grading These plans are reviewed against
the detailed technical specifications adopted by the City ofCorvallis or otherwise
required through specific conditions of approval Approval of these plans
along with payment of performance bonds at 120 of the cost of the
improvement are required before any permits for construction are granted

How does the existing storm water runoff description work today
How will the water quality treatment system work after development
How are we going to protect and preserve the wetland natural systems and our neighbors
downstream of the project

Extensive planning design and modeling were performed to evaluate and
determine the best way to manage increased runoff from the project site We
used XPSWMM version 10 Software to model flows generated under both
existing and proposed conditions topography hydrology soils vegetation etc



and to determine how flows interact and travel through the existing wetland

areas Wayne Huber a Civil Engineering Professor at OSU developed EPA

SWMM which is the model that the EPA uses and upon which theXPSWMM

program is based The XPSWMM HydrologicHydraulic Model considers

unsteady flow conditions and provides realistic estimates of the interaction

between Best Management Practices and the natural drainage system

This level of modeling is not generally needed to develop a conceptual residential

storm water management plan but we felt that the complexity and delicacy of

the downstream natural systems necessitated a more detailed study

Please refer to the Memorandum from Scott Ferre with the OTAK Water

Resources Dept OTAK to provide more detailed answers to the specific
questions

IssueQuestion raised What are we doing to minimize garage appearance

Response As stated during the hearing and in the submittal narrative we are

following the pedestrian oriented design guidelines of the newly adopted code

which call for recessed garages and front porches together which serve to

minimize the appearance of garages These standards are intended to implement

Comprehensive Plan policy 925 which states in part as follows

Development shall reflect neighborhood characteristics appropriate to the site andarea

New and existing residential commercial and employment areas may not have all of
these neighborhood characteristics but these characteristics shall be used to plan the

development redevelopment or infill that may occur in these areas These neighborhood
characteristics are as follows

J Neighborhoods have automobile parking and storage that does not

adversely affect the pedestrian environment Domestic garages are behind

houses or otherwise minimized eg by setting them back from the front
facade of the residential structure

The newly adopted Code included provisions which were intended to implement
the above policy We propose that all the garages shall meet a least one of the

following four criteria

1 The garage shall be oriented toward a rear or side public street
2 The front of the garage shall not project any closer to the street than 2

feet behind a minimum 10foot wall of living area ofthe home facing the

street
3 The garage shall be recessed a minimum of 4 feet behind any habitable

living space of the residence OR if the garage is flush with or in front of

the house a maximum of four feet a covered porch shall extend a



minimum of 6 feet from the face of the house and be a minimum of 36
square feet

4 The garage doors shall be oriented away from the street at a minimum
90 degree angle side loaded garage The side wall of the garage facingthe street must have at least 15 of its area as windows Asideloaded
garage is defined as a garage whose doors open at a 90 degrees or greater
angle to the front street

Additionally we are proposing the following design features which provide
greater architectural interest and variation

1 Covered front porches with a minimum dimension of36 square feet
2 A minimum area of 15 percent windows andor dwelling doors on

facades including garage facades facing streets sidewalks and multiuse
paths

3 2 different types of building materials such as rock andor brick column
bases and horizontal lap siding

4 A minimum of225inch trim or recess around windows and doors that
face the street

5 Increased roof pitches most likely between 812 and 1012
6 Eaves with a minimum 18inch overhang
7 Architectural details such as beam ends eave brackets windows with

grids or divided lights or pergolatrellis work integrated into the building
facade for windows nooks dormers eaves etc

Together we feel garages are minimized through application of the above
standards

issueQuestion raised Elaborate on timing of Circle 29thGrant and Harrison traffic
issues

Resuonse As mentioned on our March 21 2007 lettermatrixon the conditions
based on staffs analysis the phasing of Circle Blvd with Phase I is warranted
for the following reasons

1 to and through requirement
2 emergency access

3 SDCZone of Benefit Eligibility
4 Completion of necessary components of overall transportation system

The to and through requirement can and has been historically met with
phasing provided the completed phasing plan provides for a complete to and

through connection which our proposal does There is also an issue of rough
proportionality which is addressed in the attached letter from Dana Krawczuk

Emergency access can be accomplished via a 20 foot wide gravel road and is
acceptable to the Fire Dept SDCZone of Benefit is an option the development



can utilize to recoup costs and is not a reason for requiring an extension that

isnt roughly proportionate to the Phasing Plan

The transportation system impacts referenced in item 4 primarily responds to

the discussion on page 69 relating to the level of service at the intersection of 29tH

and Grant With the current methodology required there are some existing
critical turn movements that cause the intersection level of service to be 91
which is O1 over the acceptable level of service 90 for that intersection With

restriping the south bound 29tH street movements from the existing right turn

and shared through and left turn lane to a shared right turn and through with a

dedicated left turn see attached graphic the intersection level of service is

improved to 80 which meets and exceeds the acceptable level of service This

improvement allows the transportation system to function acceptably with the

Circle Blvd extension occurring with Phase2

IssueQuestion raised Issues raised by the Church of the Latter Day Saints re their

westerly driveway access and proximity to the proposed Circle Blvd alignment

Response We had numerous neighborhood meetings to discuss the proposed
development plan and any issues that neighbors or adjoining property owners

may have In several cases we modified the plan to account for their comments

Representatives of the LDS church did not attend these meetings Itwasntuntil

at the hearing did we hear their comments about the proximity of Circle Blvd to

their western most driveway approach We spoke with them on March 27tH

about trying to hold a meeting with our traffic engineer and civil engineers to

look at potential conflicts and how to address the conflicts We heard back from

them on Tuesday April 3rd stating their opposition to the proposed location of

Circle Blvdrightofway

We are assuming that the weekend service peak hours will provide little conflict

with the intersection of Circle and Harrison Blvd as the weekends at this

intersection are not peak am or peak pm times as found during the week

According to the TIA submitted with the application 15 ofthe overall traffic

tofrom the Witham Oaks site will travel tofrom the east intersection at

Harrison35tH While the representatives of the Church did say that activities

are planned during the week given the different peak hours for most of the

week we anticipate little traffic conflict with activities at the church

As part ofthe Planned Development process a balancing of goals is necessary to

realize benefits that wouldntotherwise be achieved with a standard subdivision

design

Our proposed realignment of Circle Boulevard places the centerline of Circle

Boulevard within approximately 495 feet of the Beit Am gravel driveway
centerline and within approximately 1065feet from the centerline of the LDS

churchs westerly most driveway As part of our Planned Development proposal



we specifically requested the ability to deviate from the existing location to the
proposed The request included a465foot deviance from the distance needed
between access ways By placing Circle Blvd where it is proposed we are able
to provide Beit Am frontage on Circle which enables them to eliminate their

driveway approach on Harrison which is closer in proximity to Circle
Harrison Blvd intersection than the LDS driveway We therefore minimize the
conflict and maximize protection ofthe wetlands

Should we shift the ROW and constructed street over 45 feet to meet the
standard of 150 feet distance we impact an additional 7500 square feet of
wetland and4800 square feet ofproposed wetland mitigation area

As with other infill projects throughout town that have driveways in close
proximity to intersections or other driveways caution is warranted Given the
other issues associated with wetland impacts the proposed alignment of Circle
Blvd provides on balance a greater overall benefit than if moved further to the
west

IssueQuestion raised Confirm that the TIA addressed the signals at Harrison35th and
Harrison36th There seemed to be some skepticism about the functioning ofthese newlysignalized intersections Also why was Dale Drive was not analyzed in the TIA

Response The Traffic Impact Analysis did address both signals Analyzed
with the requested VC ratio these intersections operate at levels of service
LOS A The currentwaitdelay times have to do with signal timing not with
the intersection capacity

When Traffic studies are undertaken the first step is to contact the city and
request from staff a list of intersections to be included in the study Dale Drive
was not included as it was not requested by city staff The proposed mitigation
of the intersection of Witham Hill and Circle Blvd should minimize anypotential use of Dale Drive for out of direction travel Should neighbors alongDale Drive wish to further reduce potential use traffic calming devices could be
installed at the homeowners request through the Citys Neighborhood Traffic
Calming Program

lssueOuestion raised Confirm the issue of contribution of funds towards the speed
humps on Upper Circle

Response We met with the Upper Circle Neighborhood Association and

participated with them in discussions over the establishment of a recovery area
for speed bumps via the Citys Neighborhood Traffic Calming Program As the
attached email indicates we are willing to participate in the cost of these speed
bumps



Thank you for the opportunity to clarify the issues or questions you raised We hope we

have provided you with the information needed to move forward with a positive
recommendation

Sincerely

Terri Valiant

Pahlisch Homes



Technical Memorandum

TO Terri Valiant Jasmin Woodside PE

From ScottJ Ferre EIT

173ss 5W Boones Ferry kd

Lake Oswego OR 9703s Copies File

Phone s03 63s3618

Fax so3 3ss3s Date Apri12 2007

Ubject Witham Oaks Stormwater Management Plan
Review

Project No 12059

Introduction

ci y
A P2

Comrrillnih development
PlattingDiviion

This memorandum describes the design and operation of the Stormwater management plan SWMP
for theXithamOaks Development proposed for construction in Corvallis Oregon

Extensive planning design and modeling were performed to evaluate and determine the best way to

manage increased runoff from the project site XPSWMM version 10 Software was used to model
flows generated under both existing and proposed conditions and to determine how flows interact
and travel through the existing wetland areas TheXPSWMMHydrologicHydraulic Model
considers unsteady flow conditions and provides realistic estimates of the interaction between Best
Management Practices and the natural drainage system A model such as this is not typically
required to develop a residential Stormwater management plan but the design team concluded that
the complexity and delicacy of the downstream natural systems merited a more detailed study

The Witham Oaks Stormwater Management Plan is a compilation of work by a multidisciplinary
team of scientists architects and engineers The plan has been developed to maintain the existing
natural system and to minimize impacts to the downstream systems as a result of development

The SWMP consists of two main sections water quality and flow control

Water duality
Water quality consists of treating collected runoff generated by rainstorms before its able to flow
into natural areas and waterways downstream The design of the water quality system for the
Witham Oaks project is based on and is in accordance with the 2002 City of Corvallis Stormwater
Management Plan and the 1998 King County Surface Water Management Manual KCSWMM The
Oregon Department of Environmental Quality DEQ Document titled StormmaterManagement Plan
Submission Guidelinesfor KemovalFillPermitApplication Which Involve ImperuiourSurfacer from July 2005

l Ikciaient an ScStinr tiane1 nil ticcss t nparl Internet 1 rle 011 1 itxnmatc r mane e4mhfum A3iinc

Deleted PIand Development
FoldersWithamOaksPUDSubmittals
CityCountyMiscDocsPCStorrrrwater
memo clarification 040307doc

DeletedCDocuments and

SettingstemvPHIHQLocal
SettingsTemporary Intemet

FilesOLK6Rebutfle002073doc

J



Page 2

Witham Oaks SWNIP Beuiev Apnl2 2007

was referenced to develop the overall stormwater management plan

Existing Conditions How does it work today
Under existing conditions runoff from the land proposed for development upstream of the wetland

area flows overland and through aseries of small channels into and throughout the wetland area

These overland flows are filtered stored taken up by plants and evaporated as they flow though
and are utilized by the wetland These processes treat and condition the water and produce the

clear cool water that canbe observed during storms Excess runoff not stored or utilized by the

existing wetland flows into the existing ditch along the north side of Harrison where it eventually

joins Oak Creek then Marys River then the Willamette River along its journey to the Columbia

River and then the Pacific Ocean

There is one larger channel that carries flows from the forested and partially developed hillside

upstream of the wetlands and the project site This larger channel originates as an existing ditch

along the west side of Circle north of the project site The ditch transitions to a more natural

appearing channel as it flows through the project and wetland area and into the ditch along the

north side of Harrison Harrison forms the southern boundary of the project site

Proposed Water Quality Treatment System How will it work after development
Under proposed conditions runoff generated by the developed land will be collected and conveyed
by a series of catchbasins and pipes under the streets throughout the development This system will

take the collected runoff to the water quality system The water quality system has been designed to

specifically treat pollutants commonly associated with residential developments

The waterquality system consists of a two part treatment process to address typical residential

pollutants The first part of the system relies on special manholes designed to pretreat the water

Thesepretreatment manholes are designed to remove larger sediment and floatable debris and

litter as well as oils and grease Afterpassing through thepretreatment manholes the runoff will be

divided and conveyed to four water quality treatment facilities including avegetated biofiltration

swale and three vegetated sedimentation treatment ponds One of the vegetated sedimentation

treatment ponds will be constructed as part of the detention facility These facilities will provide final

treaunent and conditioning of the runoff through vegetative filtration settling plant uptake and

biological decomposition of pollutants typically found in residential runoff The facilities will be

organically shaped and blended into the topography of the land and will be planted with native

plants specifically selected for their abilities to uptake and remove certain types of pollutants All

four facilities will be located along and outside the upstream boundary of the wetland area

This waterquality system has been designed and modeled with technology beyond that typically

applied to residential developments To ensure that the system will work with and blend into the

natural environment the design teamhas produced a high level of detail and exerted a great amount

iuotsatfveto i Salam4 xl Stttnlerxnwmenu t Iils P eiramvarcr nreinr clanGcatm74t30do

DeIQYEd PIand Development
FoldersWithamOaksPUDSubmittaLs

V CityCountyMiscDocsPCStormwater

memoclarification 040307doc

j DeletedCDocuments and

SettingstemvPHIHQLocal
SettingsTemporary Internet

FilesOLKGRebuttle 0402073doc



Page 3
Witbar7 OakrSlYMP Beviety

Apnl2 2007

of effort to develop this plan The design team has also taken the time to explain the design and
operation of this system to neighbors the general public and the City of Corvallis

The City of Corvallis has been provided with design hydrographs for existing proposed and
proposed regulated flows for both waterquality and water quantity facilities the preliminary
stormwater management plan water quality facility design calculations and amemorandum dated
September 21 2006 describing the function and operation of the stormwater management system in
more technical terms

Careful thought and innovative lowimpact design solutions were engineered specifically for this
project using the latest research and knowledge of scientists landscape architects and engineersfrom both academia and private water and natural resources consultants

Flow Control How are we going to protect and preserve the wetland natural systems and our

neighbors downstream ofthe project

Under existing conditions as rain falls on the existing land and wetlands it is utilized as described
above But after development some vegetated ground will be replaced with pavement and rooftopsThe payement and rooftops will prevent rain water from being stored and utilized and instead will
force it to flow into catchbasins and pipes at higher rates than would occur under existing
conditions These higher flows will be controlled and routed so that impacts to the natural system
are minimized

Once flows have been collected conveyed treated and conditioned as described above they will be
released from the water quality facilities through level flow spreaders The flow spreaders have been
designed as a series of small openings that will drain the water quality facilities so that treated water
will radiate out along the ground in an even constant sheet flow along the upstream boundary of the
wetland The flow spreaders have been designed to mimic existing flow patters to allow water to get
to andiollow the existing flow paths downstream of the development This will allow water to

reach everypart of the wetland As in existing conditions excess runoff not stored and utilized bythe wetland will flow to the ditch along the north side of Harrison

The ditch along the north side of Harrison will be improved and have two areas incorporated into it
that will allow excess runoff to pond providing storage The ditch and the storage areas will drain
through a flow control structure and will function as adetention facility The flow control structure
has been designed to regulate released flows from the ditch and storage areas so that the
downstream system will not experience larger flows than it does today in accordance with the City of
Corvallis and Oregon State University

Uoc mcnt5 t ul Cetr i damse 1 ucal Settvi fem iatrn ht reset I les z LKY rornwarer ntn lvitu trc r tirit7dii

DeletedPland Development
FoldersWithamOaksPUDSubmittals

j CityCountyMiscDocsPCStormwater

memo clarification 040307doc

DeletedCDocuments and

SettingstetxivPHIHQLoca
SettingsTemporary Internet

FilesOLK6Rebutde0402073doc J

r



Witham Oaks SWNIP Kevieav

Page 4

April2 2007

DEletedPLand Development
FoldersWithamOaksPUDSubmittals
CiTyCountyMiscDocsPCStormwater

memo clarification 040307doc

DeletedCDocuments and

SettingsterrivPHIHQLocal
SettingsTemporary Internet

i FilesOLKGRebuttle 0402073doc

C I x n t nt id ec um ad not 1 0 tl Sett riemrlr Inttniet I Irs 1 F i tommuermemo lanticv onfItiiiOd



DvuA LECRAwczult
ALSO t1DM1lrrfED INWASH1NGf0N

dALL JANIK LIn

APR 7
A T T O R N E Y S

101 SOUiHWF3T Mnua TFieET Sucre 1100
PORTLAND OHeGOrr 372043213

wwwballardkcom

TeEPNONe5032282525
FACSIMILE 503295IOSB

Comnznity iieekrment
1Innn

dltrawczultbllp com

March 30 2007

Planning Commission
co Eric Adams

City ofCorvallis
501 SW Madison Avenue

Corvallis OR 97339

Re Prouortionality Analysis ofCircle Boulevard Extension Witham Oaks
PLD060001SUB060005

Dear Members ofthe Planning Commission

This firm represents Matrix Development Corporation Matrix the property
owner and applicant for the above referenced project Please include this letter in the record

The purpose of this letter is to explain why NW Circle Boulevard should be
extended with Phase 2 not Phase 1 from a Iegal and common sense perspective From the
outset Matrix wants to emphasize that it agrees to extend Circle Boulevard our objection is to
the requirement in condition 28 that Circle Boulevard be extended concurrent with the first phase
ofdevelopment

A related concern is that the extension ofCircle Boulevard triggers the Harrison
Boulevard improvements Condition 34 The Harrison Boulevard improvements include the
anew intersection with Circle Boulevard including adding turn lanes on Harrison conditions 32
and 33 and improving Harrison Boulevard along the sites frontage to full City standards
condition 33 Matrix agrees that the Harrison Boulevard improvements should be constructed
concurrently with the extension ofCircle Boulevard However if Circle Boulevard is extended

prematurely with Phase 1 then Phase 1 is unreasonably burdened with the costs for construction
ofboth the Circle Boulevard extension and Harrison improvements

l Legal Support for Extending Circle Boulevard with Phase 2

A Requiring the Extension of Circle Boulevard with Phase 1 Violates
Constitutional Limitations on Exactions

AlI exactions that are conditions ofapproval such as the extension of Circle
Boulevard and related Harrison Boulevard improvements must be reasonably related to and

roughly proportional to the impact of the proposed development to survive constitutional

p
MAPCDOC5IPORTLANDl562445 1

PORMND OREGON WASHINGTON DG YEKD OREGON



JEALL JAIVIK L

Corvallis Planning Commission
March 30 2007

Page 2

scrutiny under Dolan v CitfTigard S12US 374 1994 To prevent unconstitutional

exactions Dolan demands that there be a nexus between the local governments interest and

imposition of a condition and a roughly proportional connection between the condition and

the impact ofthe proposed development Requiring Circle oulevard to be extended and the

NW Harrison improvements with Phase 1 rather than Phase 2 fails both prongs ofthe Dolan

test

i There is NoNexus Between the Impact ofPhase 1 and the

Extension of Circle Boulevard and Related Improvements to Harrison Boulevard

In order for there to be a nexus between the conditioned improvements and the

proposed development the improvements must be related to the impact of the proposed
development In simple terms when analyzing only the impact ofFhase 1 would the impact
justify the extension ofCircle and Harrison improvements If not then there is no nexus

between requiring the improvements to be concurrent with Phase 1 Staff determined that Phase

1 would cause the intersection of29x Street and Grant Avenue to fail which would be mitigated
by the extension of Circle Boulevard However Matrix has demonstrated that changing the lane

configuration of the 29th Street and Grant Avenue intersection mitigates the impact of Phase 1

This interim mitigation measure will improve the function of the 29 Street and Grant Avenue

intersection which will continue to perform adequately oncePhase 2 is constructed and Circle

Boulevard is extended Therefore extending Circle Boulevard is not needed to mitigate the

impact ofPhase 1 so there is no impactbased justification ornexus for requiring the extension

of Circle Boulevard and improvement ofHarrison Boulevard prior to Phase 2

ii Extending CircleBoulevard and the Related Improvements to

Harrison Boulevard are NotRoughly Proportions to the Impact ofPhase 1

The cost ofextending extending Circle Boulevard and improving Harrison

Boulevard with Phase i is also not roughly proportional to Phase 1 of Witham Oaks Dolan

requires the City to make some sort of individualized determination that the exaction is related

both in nature and extent to the impacts ofthe proposed development on a specific facility S 12

US at 391 No individualized assessment ofif the required improvements are proportional to

Phase 1 has been conducted by the City

The City cannot rely upon the future development of Phase 2 to require the improvements with

Phase 1 Improvements basedupon future development or impacts are impermissible As the

Oregon Court ofAppeals has stated The problem with that speculative approach is that Dolan

requires that the exactions imposed be related both in nature and extent to the impact ofthe

proposed development Schultz v City ofGrants Pass 884 P2d569 S73 Or App 1994
emphasis added by the court in Schultz In this case the propased development includes

phases so the impacts of the development will be phased Therefore the timing ofmitigation
measures must correlate to the phased impact

ODMAFCDOCSIPORTLAt3D5624451



BALL IANIK 1n

Corvallis Planning Commission
March 30 2007

Page 3

Extending Circle Boulevard and making the related improvements to Harrison

Boulevard with Phase 1 will add approximately 498062 to the cost ofPhase 1 Spread over the
77 homes in Phase 1 the cost is an additional6468 per home There City has not made the

required individualized determination if the additional6468 per home is related to the nature

and extent of the impacts of the first Phase Because the extension ofCircle Boulevard and
Harrison Boulevard improvements are not needed to mitigate the impacts of Phase 1 it is

unlikely that such aproportionality justification could be made Without an individualized
determination that the improvements are related in nature and extent to the impacts ofPhase 1
condition 28 fails the proportionality prong of Dolan

2 Common Sense Reasons for Extending Circle Boulevard with Phase 2

In addition to not being required to mitigate the impacts ofPhase 1 and that the

cost ofextending Circle Boulevard with Phase I is not constitutionally supportable there are

common sense reasons for waiting to extend Circle Boulevard Circle Boulevard will crass

through designated wetlands although the proposed realignment impacts less wetland area than
the alignment on the TSP At the March 215 public hearing members of the public requested
that the extension of Circle Boulevard be delayed so that the wetland would not be impacted
until a later phase ofdevelopment If the Circle Boulevard extension is delayed until Phase 2 a

gravel emergency access road will be constructed in the natural area3 However because the
access road will not be open to the public for vehicular use the impact ofthe gravel road on

users of the mulitpath will be mizumal Also because the gravel road is pervious there will be
Less of an impact on stormwater than if the paved street is extended with Phase 1 In sum

delaying the extension of Circle Boulevard to Phase 2 will preserve the natural area and wetland

for a few additional years

3 Conclusion

There is no transportation or safety based reason to extend Circle Boulevard and

improve Harrison Boulevard with Phase 1 Witham Oaks Therestriping ofthe 29h Street and
Grant Avenue intersection mitigates the impact of Phase I so the extension ofCircle Boulevard
is not warranted until Phase 2 Despite the lack of a transportation based need to extend Circle

Boulevard Matrix may have been willing to go above and beyond what was required if the cost

werenot as significant As noted above and explained onthe attached spreadsheet extending
Circle Boulevard and improving Harrison Boulevard with Phase 1 is a very expensive endeavor

Requiring the improvements with Phase 1 add almost halfa million dollars to the cost of Phase
1 Not only is this significant expense not related to or proportional to the impact ofPhase I it

The attached spreadsheet provides the calculation for the additional costs associated with

extending Circle Boulevard and constructing the Harrison Boulevard improvements with Fhase
1
s

The Fire Deparhnent has not objected to using a gravel road for emergency access to Phase 1

ODMAPCDOCSPORTLAND156244511



BALL JANIK LLP

Corvallis Planning Commission
March 30 2007

Page 4

unnecessarily impacts a wetland and natural area prematurely Therefore Matrix Development

respectfully requests that the Planning commission modify Condition No 28 so that the

extension ofCircle Boulevard and related Harrison Boulevard improvements are constructed

concurrent with Phase 2 ofWitham Oaks

Sincerely

lYt j
Dana LKrawczuk

Enclosure
cc Randy Rutherford Matrix Development Corporation

Tern Valliant Pahlisch Homes

David Coulombe City Attorney

ODMAPCDOCS1PaRTLAND5624i5l

I



Additional Costs for Extending Circle Boulevard and Constructing Harrison Boulevard
Improvements with Phase 1 ofWitham yaks

Estimated Cost to improve Circle Boulevard
from terminus ofPhase 1 to Harrison Circle South 755830

Estimated Cost to complete Harrison 140144
improvements with Phase 1

895974
Estimated cost to partially improve Circle
South for fire access 275090

620884
Estimated SDC Credits for Circle South 82010
Estimated SDC Credits for Harrison 40811

Total Additional Costs for Phase 1 498062

Divided by number ofhomes in Phase 1 77

Total Additional cost per home in Phase 1 6468

If Circle Boulevard is not extended with Phase 1 Circle South will be partially improved
iegravel surface for emergency access IfCircle Boulevard is extended with Phase 1 then
Matrix will not have the expense ofpartially extending Circle Boulevard Therefore to
determine the actual cost difference between extending Circle Boulevard with Phase 1 or Phase
2 the estimated cost to partially improve Circle South is subtracted from the costs for extending
Circle Boulevard and the Harrison Boulevard improvements

The estimated cost to improve Circle Boulevard through Phase 1 is807360 or 52of
the total cost for the entire Circle Boulevard extension1563190 The total estimated SDC
credits for the entire Circle Boulevard extension are 170856 Therefore we estimate that
Circle Souths proportion the Circle Boulevard SDC credits is approximately 48or 82010
of the total SDC credit To determine the actual cost of improving Circle South the estimated
SDC credits for Circle South are subtracted from the construction costs for Circle South

The estimated SDC credits for the Harrison Boulevard improvements are40811 To
determine the actual cost of improvingHarrison Boulevard the estimated SDC credits for
Harrison are subtracted from the construction costs for Harrison Boulevard

Attached is a spreadsheet that details the construction cost estimate

ODMAPCbOCSPORTLANQ562726I



io
ioicaioi

nt
l

o
a
a

d
i

o
o

O
N
OO

OO
O

N
O

O
h
1

p
p
p

bo
Q

i

N
I

r
N

O
Or

J
I
N

N
N
NmNt
A

V
ll
f
l

t
A
NN

M
N

V
I

N
N

M
NNN
NMV

1
V

I
t
i
M

V
N

h
t
i

ti
p
p

O
O

0
0

0
O

O
O

O
O
Cb

f
t
I
n
00

a
a

O
OC

O
SOO

O
a
Ni

p
O

O
L1

O
U

C
a

O
h

Q
0O

O
t
o

4
1

O

Q

Oq
h

O
L

m

m
1
1
NNNm

NC
J

t1
rl1
M0
0

00
R

1
C

r
N

p

N

N
Q2

I
O

l
m

ll

rM
M17NV

1
V

1
V

I
U

l
N
NN1
NfNN

In
V

IV
t

V
1

1
l

4V
Y

N
VV

V
i

N

O

OO
4

m
p
wo

G
OOO

qrl
OO

OO
01

O
O

U
OG

O
O

O

Id
n

jril

t
t

W
y

YYY
YL
L

Wd
d

Q
z

1
fA
UGUUL

L
L
L

L
L
4
1

W
J
JJ

J
J
JJ

I
n

U
UUU

N
t
A
Nt
A
NV

7
JV

1
W

N
WU

N

U
i

1
1

p
o

Qz
pp

q
00

O
O

OS
tl

O
OQ

bO
O

br
0

O
N

OO
O

u
1

OO
OiUOC

O
t
l
OG
NOO

Gpp
Ur

N

I
r

J
O

O
r
N

Q
p

N
OCK

O
O

Q
N

O
O

r
C4

V
l

O
t1O

U
1
0
9

lL
1

t
A

P
1

N
WNr
l

t
o

M
u
tltN

U
Nli1

n
r

V
f

V
i

V
1

NV
I

VNNNVMV
r

N
V

I
VN

NNN
N

l
h

V
1

1
n
N

I
A

1
A
NV

i
N

N
n

V
r

t
p
p

p
p

p
p

O
O

p
p

y
p

p
O

O
p

mO
N

V
I O

S
fl

G
t0

4
O
nOr0

9
SN

tqf
fQ

O
OO

d
O

10
fft

N
Y

S
V

O
IrJ

N
MC
Ne

D
P

f
Im
MOO

O
O
O

O

N

A
Qm

I
p

p
p

q
G

mN
N

N

4
1

NNi
l

NV
1
1
p

NV
Y

1
n

V
1

VNNNhY
Y

NN
NYU
V

l
NV

l
V

r
NN

M

p
Op

pp
O

p
O
00
1
0

pONNO
O
tf0

Q
OO

o
C

a
O

Q
YaN

r
NO

O
N

V
O

Nq
ln

tj
rll

N
1

LJ
iC
t
l

ht
7
f

c
w

a

7
NJdtfI
J

L
L

ula
u
uY7

t
C

J
r
r
J
WGJJ

JJ
J
JNU

UU
UV

S
f
n

N
NV

l VV
i

W
V
U

r
Z

V
1

r

a

O
O

O
O

O
OO

O
O

O
O

O
p
p

O
O

raf
0

0
0
1
0

0
OO

O

1
7
OOO

O
O

O
O

O
O

P
OO

O
O

Q
X

7
0

OP
OO

O
7

OOOO
CO

O
O

O
O

J

d
fi
N
b

O
a
f

Ou
t

O
I
t

O
OO

m

fN
O

u
i

ln
N
NOO

O
O

O

ONm
u

p
a
L

N
m

i
1

N
V

W
mr
n

1
7

O
V

I
R

rV
J

JO
L
7

L
7

Vt
a

M
y1t
a
Nr
7

C
t

Na
i

u

N
N

N
N

V
NMN
NNV

V
1

N
N

u
1

1
1

I
N
MVN

V
IV

f
n
N
NHV

r
Nm

N

x

V
1

V

I
t

0000000
5

O
17

O
O

O
O

O
O
O

6
0
00

O
NOO

ah
O

O
q
gtn

t
o
OO

O
LO

O
O
hOt
l

8
NfJi
t
00

O
p

O
S
t

Nm
t1

u
Y

m
N

f
0

i

OO

om

6
r
N

4
r

r

QQ
OO

Sb
Q

P

hV
1
NlV

I
V

1
N

i
1
A
VVNNV

l
l
9
V1V

I
NV

I
NNI
A

N
u
l

VNV
l

NN
N

i
O

O
p0

OY
f

N
N
OOG

4
O
d0C

p
rl3

uOj
O

Q
S

N
tf

N
tD

4
7

h
4
7

i
w

Z
V
V

i
f

J
t
l
J

J
JJL
L

f
A

V
VV

V
V

l
V

V
7
f
A

V
VJ

V
u
I
N1
1

U
J
J

l
J

L
I

V

3
3
O

a

QQ
o

gog
S

91
S

N

c

1
W

C
Y

p
7
6

O

yf
3

a
N

t
D
L
L
L

Q
a

iFig
o

o
r

O
V

Y
t
i

c
1
a

r
tJ

1i
i

o
3
u

C
r

uW
y
UQo

ii
v

V
ti

c
u
t3Y

q
ril

V
7

T
L

o

4o
VN

F3
LD2
S

r
J

a
O

S
v

5
rC

x
V

1
r

a
C

e

V
c

l7
yG

a
O

a
1

y
Q

4
7

1
G

o
LI
L

L
p

C
yW

J
3

C
C7

V
O

eC
r

I

N
1
Q
0

C
C

S
C

Q
IX

a
4

N
Cr
S

Ge
d

QI
IC
5

r
N

sn
O

1
d

G
rY

p
qlq

i
NvGn

cb
o

r
x
l
ir
n
cFs

r
a

co
a

ta
r

3
q

q
KS

tU
V

V
U

V
U

V
F

C

U
SA

C
O

O
J

rm
m

VIIWW
W
L
l

i
q
a
f

ON
J

V
V

N
N

t
n

Q
O

tip
C

i
A

N
f
9
h

7
GP

N
10h

ON
N
NNG

V
NlU

V
N
4t
V

O
c

F
G
CC

G
4

CG
G

G
4

C
d
CC
i

f
4
4

c

Q
a

C
1W

to



i

m0
f

C1y
Q

1

No

T0

a
Z

U
ti

I
mp
t
i

NU

F

N
G

1

p

p

ouG
O

U
4
f

J
QmQ

O

M

1
N

a

o

t0

i
i

h

CQL
L

i
4

q
x

a
0

0

VOV

i
o

O
a

oEEf
r
f
L

S

u
e

F5

hNWNWWN
WW

N
NNV

1
W

RC
f

N
m

ot
t70COOt
i

ONC
f
M
i

y
f
3

NN

WW
4
l

WW
Vl
a
a

V
a

WV
a

WNW

o
oo

jo
io

o
io

io
ooaa

JJ
J
J

sW
W

W
I
J

W
J

W

i

l
WNu
9
WNa
a
r
WNV

f
W
yNV

I

i

00006OaOb
O

Oo
QONCmf
D
OG

COfCC
V

NN

NWN
VWV

4
1
f
q

W
WWWN

o
a
i
o

ao
t
o

aooooo
j

J
J

J
J

J
J

W
W

L
J

j
J

1
W

if
i

G
O
o00

0
O

n
i

e
i

c
a

im
p
o

o

V
n

WWWWWV
I

NV
i

W
W
WW

N
N

OO
O
OOoa00

00
OC

r
t

o
Npm
ua
p

op
p
n
er
v
i

N
N

WN
WWV

a
V

I
WVVWl
f
i

WW

c
r

WL
W

IL
L
i
CqL
L
dQQdW

t
JJ

J
JW

w
l

a
J

w
w

w

my

U
I

N
7

U
y

X
L
L

i
Li

o
W

as
a
x

w
t
e

s
4

N

i
f

M

h
mvvi
a

G
iia

1
u

C
N

N
N

p

f

UU
i
U

U

7
N

Mf
C

l
C

1
m

W
u

rx
c

h

O
ca

i
V

oa
u

3
p
p

c
J

pi
D
p1
7
U

iy
G

C
f

Cf
f

O

SI
Y

N
v

F

d
ci
c
i
o

c
r



Y
2
i

v

J

0
G

t
l
0

h

o

ma

4

V
oo

U
N

Jr

ozNt
l

x

d

Oid

Z
QV0bV

a
O

u

C
Q

S
a
o

o
d

o

0
0

c
o

o
a

d
a

N
O

v
a

Q
N

Y
p

NmNV
i

NN
J
r
hNNNN

Na
A
NNNNimNt
i

U
M
NJ
I

N
i

th
N

d
0
4
0

OO
O
Oa

p
0
b0

a
s
OOO

OOxx
Oxd

p
p

a

npOC
NOaC

1
O
OOO

O
a0PObp
p

OOx
O

O
x

f
i

V
i

N7NSf09Oo
4

v
a

pL1U
1

CO
t
N

OOOOI
f

mO
ydy
N

t
0

IvF
f

7
NNNL
h

G
N

1L
L

POnNNM0
1

NfN
mOln

i

N
tN

N
N
N

N1
A

1
A
N
NI
A
NWt
n
N

N
N

V
r

i
11
A

M
l
A
V

l

O
Na
iO

IN
0

xO
L1

O
ca
ddxOOGCZ

O
C

7
OOPOt
7

YjJ1a6AWt
l

wt
i
7

W
ti
WWW1JwWr
w

WWJ
x

a0
d

p
o
o

a
gig

O
0

OG
x

NVNY
1

NNNNMN
NV

1
V

1
N

N
N
NA4

3
u
1
UN

N
N

N
N

N
N

N
1

O
Oap

a
p
OO

O
O

O
a

Q
a

d
OO

p
0
OO

O
O

O
x

D
7d

1
O

O
L

N
n
OO

o
d

O
d

p
m

0
40

O
x

O
O

O
p

G
p

x
O

V
I

NNO
O

4
b
O

p
a

p
p

0
dJ

u
1

OaY
i
pOOaf

m
p

O
N

VNC
MeINNN

G
N

N1
4
1

3
tIA
P

VmO
NN

I
6

N
0

I
A
1t
i

I
A
AANA

V
1
NI
R

N
V

l
N
NNNV

l
11V

I
I
A

CIA
t
A
Wt
A
NN

N

Q
m
O

Or
y

CJNOCOGNO
1
N
LuDOOOb

0x1
Oap0

Om
r

Str
wuL
L

i
s
L

L
L
u

a
L
tq
d

C
GG
GC

i
4

GGGG
G
u

I
J
JJ
JJJJJ3

W1
3
1

WWWtlWi
J

WIWWlJ
WWwJ

o
c

va
a

nb
c
i

N
N

7
N

41

V
i
t
1
A

h
NNN1

A
NIt
n

V
I

vNN
V

I
NNN
I
A
NNNNVV

I
V

I
V

I
N

G1O06NGibC
7

bOO
OOta
jooon

Oo
o

n1o0
v
V

1
Nx
deQ
vOGOO

NN
x
a3
1
x0

O
O

t1m
G

b
N

t
7

L1
ie7ANNN

ry
V

Nt3y
dt
i

N
Q

x
U

O
N

Nfi
O

R

pOL
1Ol11
1
7

m
A

N
Ni
7

f
1

1
N
Nm

4
n

M
1

lV
I
I
A

NNV
Y

Nf
A
l
f
l

l
f
i

NNN1
p

NNNN1
i
h
l
A
VV

NI
A
j
N

V
1

H
1

tp
O

O
CC

O
OQOO
OOOOOOOOm00OO0

4lw

i
I
L
L
L

Nt
L
I
L

L
L

L
L

G
QGSa

G
QG

CC
t

J
JJJJ
JJJ

WW
W
WWWWL

L
7
UIS

i
W

WL
WW

1
3
1
J

i
r

liFA

tai
V

2
U

i
W

x
i
s
y
s

cD
i

Qp
rf

ib
i

cpip
n

p
t

t
ri

X
f
7
p

7
6

C
C

9
e

DS
l
D

C
is

i
G

d
t

N
rf
7

n
rs
n
Eea

g
e

c
i

d
o

nt
s
4
i

n
o

t
C

r
coi

n
r

Q
4

q
Nom

t
i
c

a
v

r
o
nawa3csui

aGNt
x

T
l

V
c
irn

ii
n
i
v

B
o

S
9N
2NN

Lit
r
J

o
i
B

i
N

nmr

o
ran
i
i
i

o
a

a
Z

S
w

iw
i
i
rl

m
a

a
a4

e
V
o

p
p

m
t
l
8

C
9

T
j

C
1

T
3

u
u

u
u

c
u
ci3n
cOl1t
l
t
l

c
2

2
i
2

i
2

i
U2

i
V

t
c
exme

g
i

3im
h

fYi1
n

N
N

N
L
L
SW

l7
y3

V
y

ydD
D

S
o
i
o

o
f
d

yqbp
t
q

Nt
A
cnyaouu

9c
l

UU
UVU

VU
rcUu
l

N
C
mVVUUN

l
1

l
A
31

iD
U

j
ti

L7111iD
t
ON1
7
V4l1
0
tO

NNNNNNC
i
NN

Etc
i

c
io

c
i

c
i

u
u

c
i

c
i

uv
i
v

c
i
ic
S

c
i

uot
i

c
i

c
i
ir
o
c
i

c
i

u

O3



QQ

V
lhhh
nN

h
y
V

I
hV

V
1

Ne
R
yN

h
hN

N
NV

i
h

N
O

O
OOOp00

O
O
OO

O
00

OO
O
OOOOO

P
p0

OOOp
C

p
O

4
0
0p
O

tptO
O

O
O

0
0
OpOa

Q
1y
c
L
ft
O

n
G01

m

pNl
l

Q
11nONNNQ

t
OOb

a7
N

N
N

tC1lUt7
M
h
h

n
h

h
h

h
h

1
3
h

h
h

h
h

N
h

h
y
hh

h
h

Q
OpOO

OO
O
OO

O
POO

OO
O

O
0004

O
O

t
t

z
J
i
C

J
J

J
t
G
IWW

J
J
I

W
W

W
WUW

J
CUiJWW

O
o

D
6

O
O

p
O

o
O

N
O

O
O

Z
O

op
L
7

N
N

N
O

NhhhU
lhyhhNhhhhhhh

NNO

V

U
NtV

i
0

i
Y

h

COV
N

4
O

7
q
b

U
c

o
D

3d
c

r

a
t

V
iiS

Q
4
l

3
a
o

r

Y
Tt
n
NI
n
I
T

NL
G

f
yt
Y
NN

O
C

l
LI

QQ
N

N
NNv

N1i
hNM

L7
v
f

t
n
hNNV

I
y

yV
lyhhhtl

h
y

y
6q

p

Q
NOO

OON
O

CO
ON
OO

P
OO

J
JWWW

t
J
W

J
JSW

W
JW

W
W
wWWW

O
H

O
0q0

O
OC

l
O

t7
O

OO
OO

OO
tpy

QJd
NCO

WI
4M

d
1

N
I

hhV
r

I
R
hhhNi
A

h
NNNyy

Vh
hyV

1
yV

Y
11

i

J
p

p
OOOOGOpOOOOCp000

000OO
b
b

V
1
u
i

p
O

h
C

m0
OO

O
1
7
OV

f
v
t

0
pp

pp
O

1
t
6f
7
r
t

t
t
I
V
p1
1
1

p
I
n
b

h
I

t
t
i h

1
Y

S

C
I

O
Q

L
yy
I
t

C
7

C
1

N
7

t
t
f
t
f
1

N
N

N
t

z
7

N
y

Nt
V
I

hhhhI
n
hhNhhhhh

h
h

h
hhl
n
ht
n

h
h

n0

O
400

0
0
NO

40
0700

C
OOK

0

r
la
C

u
C

Qu
L
L

G
CKQ

C
I

C
G

rG
Z

IJ
W

J
W

W
t

W
W
J
J

W
W

W
WVW

W
w
wW

L
1

W

9
itni

I
I

c
i

ias
r

W
U

CF
d

u
L

C
O

q

n
O

f
i

h
is

y
0

F

a
7
p

2
i 1
n

o
17
g
I
p

mmN
N

pq
Tel

u
A

n
v

G
1

P
t
s

O
o
arl
yya

fin w
t

2
Lp

x

C
e

o
j
i
g

7
a

c
o

0
i
i

Ga
o
t
l

i
n
LUoi
o
r

mt
y

aNtfQNln90
1
0NnQbNNN

N
of
l
5
a

oooooa
i
o

i
o

do
oo

i
o

o
i
o

doo
d

J
H

L
4

v
m

N
Y

O
V

O
a
1

N
p

O

N
N

N
N

R

pOpN
1

t
yVC

fV
tj

y

Q

O

C

D
i

a

I
CV7

N
cf

N
p

t
t

p

N
h

Q
1

m
m

m

I
l

N
m

N
1
ff

y
e

N
y

N
y

h

fN

f

V
f

NhOo

I

y
O

M
m

i
N

O
H

S
ID

N
1

O
N1

0
t
9

h
y

N
y

N
h

y
N

p
p

t1
1

IV

hOo

hA
j

o
i

i

Z
o

C
y

G
3
1

e
p

w
iu

a
a

a

r
a

o
m3

E
E

6
a

o
q

i
g

L
L



oo
oo

0
0
0o

ao
ao

0
0

0
o

O
i

a
n

u

pO
j

O
i
O

O
OOQ

O
OOOO

O
O

i7
N

I
N

t

O
O

O
i0

O
N

O
O

O
OO

i
O

O
V

7
I

M

OO
O

O
L

m
OO

I
A

N
O

W
N

1
O

w
a

C
O

i7
f

N
iA

t
y

G
7
1Iti

NN
C

a
O

a
jn

V
c
0

m
O

t
p

K
7

w

Ml7N
i
N

NO
N

Q
M

iN
N

N
fN

M
4

tD
m

0
I

f
f

r
I

t

i
n

I
A
t
n
f
A

U
1

N
IN

N
N

INS
t
0

1
n

N
I

N
I
N

N
t
n
Uf
n

M
I

t
r

1

I

O
Y

O
O

O
r
O

p
Q
OO

O
N

O
I0

0
I

I

O
A

li
u0
0

N
t
D
O

O
h
ON

t7
j01

i
N

N

q
effr
rCf

Q
1

N
rCN7
r1
i

V
W

i
i

I

in
Q

F
I

Y
t

t

J
m

Z
i

O

I
t

I
I

t
n
lN

l
n
lNt
n
NN

V
1

N
Nn

Nt
n

j

O
t0
OOO

SQ
Q

O
OO

Y
O

O
I

a0
OO

f
0O

t
o
OO

O
O

i
D

O
f

C
7
C

J
NM

O
t
0

t
D

I
Q

1
1

p
N

i
I

I
I

I
i

I
I

I
1

I
1

f
i

I
1

I
i

I
C

4
L
L
L
l
t

L
L

I
t

lL
Y

L
L

I
i

I

k
o

Z
i
l

a
l
r

V
U

m
U

7
uc
J

I
i

I

ro
I

I
f

z
E

r

i p
I

N
I

I
1

G
i

C
7

N
t

rL
L

c
T

o
I

j
w

Z
r

C
I

3
e

Q
O

O
O

C
n
iC

aj
I

W
i

I
3

O
t

i
ry

m
o

Z
It

mm
uIc
l
M

o
I

m
c

io
n

Y

AD
w

D
i

C
N

D
r

d1
4

0
p

a
ii

i
P

p
Im

Y
I

O
Q

t
C
CN

U
T

om
t
p

O
N

i
Im

o
WC

I
a
l
l

O
Y

ro
T

i
r

d
x
l

C
i

N
I

N
l

hm
jv of p

i
I

W
i

U
I

I
p
l

a
j

m
P

I
c

a
GW

m
i

rrn
e

a
a

d
N

m
m

c
o

rJ
ul

I
v
l

m
o

o
a

0
a

m
i

n
ca

m
o

a
i

a
o
U

I
j

r
o

m
t

a
n

t
I

U
v

c
I
o

t
r
o

o
r
o

a
P

a
c
l

t
S

I
a

c
i

i
oa

Y
I

ro
D

x
N

osU
m

m
l

a
E

t
P

EI
Ii

EI
i

p
A

ti
h
r
o
Tm

a
w

x
o
in

o
o

m
o

d
W

uii
UI
o
j

V
4

O
r

tn
lc

c
ic

l
N
JWl

b1
M6

7
J

U
Itt1

C
1

ti

I
I

t

t
I

i

a
N
f
7
e
t

lA
p
P

c
m

O
l

N

m
C

m
Q
CG

C
C
4
C
4

j
I

e
c

g
iD

O

W
O

F
ia

t
yu

v

pa3



TV America Ir7r
712E3 NF1rcS t f3te zoo
rJisr

Fe3x 541754

wwwptvamericacom

MEMO

RECEIVED
APR 4

Community Development
Planning Division

o n
iV

traffic mobility logistics

To Keith Turner PE City of Corvallis
From Thomas Bauer PE PTOE PTV America

Cc

Date March 20 2007

Subject 29t at Grant Mitigation Analysis for Witham Oaks TIA

ThE purpose of this memo is to specifically analyze the option of a small

intErim mitigation for the intersection of 29t Street at Grant Avenue This

intErsection is expected to reach a VC ratio of 091 which corresponds to

LOS E in the 2007 AM peak period under nobuild conditions Its poor

performance has prompted the City of Corvallis to request the construction
of 1he entire Circle Boulevard extension as part of Phase 1 of the Witham

OaFs development

A closer look at the operation of this intersection reveals that the

souithbound approach is responsible for the poor AM peak operation
Currently the intersection lane geometry provides for an exclusive right
turn lane and a shared through and left lane for this approach Changing
the lane configuration to a shared right and through lane and an exclusive

leftturn lane improves the operation for 2007 AM peak Phase 1 build no
Circle extension conditions to a VC ratio of080which corresponds to LOS

D n 11 reduction in saturation

approach lane reconfiguration

Figure 1 below shows the proposed

Page 1



wwwptvamericacorrr

I
f t

la
s F

iJf l

erY
j

o v

ereur33frt
a krsir

J rrs

r

EIINi

Y

IV

traffic mobility logistics

P
Figure 1 Proposed SB Approach Lane Reconfiguration for 29th Street at Grant Avenue

Page 2



n
n

O
N

om

0N
OJ

w

i
O

O

e
a

0

G
scEcai

aN

E
G

m
o

am
U
7

U
Cfd

L
tf

ip
r
f
t

r

N
o

Q
zr
y
i

r
x

U
MO

0

NON

Q
LL

LL

J

NO
O

r
r

ON
pQ

LL
W

JU
OO

O

O
O

O

C
V

W
W

U
O

O
O

O
OON

nQ
W

W

JU
O

00
O

O
OON

nQ
W

W

J

O
W

00

R
O

O
OO

O
w

w
J

N

U
COO

N00
p

to
o

o
U

a

p
D

f
O

n
U

p
O

J
0

Q

O
Q

Uj
J

d
m

O
O

O
Z

m
U

Q
L

NQ
N

C7
N

U
r

c0
ON

d
Q

LL
LL

J

h
rn

rn
N

O
O

O

m
ON

Q
W

W
JU

N
O

O
O

m
o

ON
Q

w
w

J

O
O

O
O

Q
ON

Q
W

W
J

McperM

U
O

W

m
O

O
O

f
a

O
Q

N
Q

W
W

J

C
U

c
r

O
O

00

LU
c

O
O

O
X

Q
W

Q
W

J

C
U

lD
M

U
O

O

oz
x

O
w

w
m

i
L

O
U

rn
rn

0
0

0
ON

p
w

w
U

a
Q

Co

OU
N

N

Q
co

NN
O

C

csNUNsa

r
L

Mca

d



o
NN

C
n
p

tL

m
Jj

OO
NO

v
to

O

o
t0

ON
p

J

O

v
O

O

o
N

p
Q

W

J

cj
U

pW
LnO

O
O

m
ON

p
p

w
JU

O
O

O
O

Q
O

a
N

O
Q

w

w
rn

m
o

0

Q
o

p
p

w

J

N
p

U
00

NO

a7
N

O
O

U
z
O

N
n

w
p

o
0

N
U

O
O

Uo
z
N

O
p

w

U

OW
O

N
O

O
O

o
N

U
O

o
z

N
O

O
D

ai

J

J

J
5L

W

CO
h

Q
0

O
J

0

V
D

0
c0

F
r

U
C0

W

t6

N
O
i

Q
U

W
in

LO
Q

M
L

i
a

Qz
p

c

N
io

Xr
C

L
U

d
ii

f

rn0CCGOUUQ

aato



Planningt4rsesss

April 4 2007 Jham 7aks

APR 11 2007

To City of Corvallis Planning Commission wf

From Rebecca Wilson

1540 NW Woodland Dr

Corvallis OR 97330

Subject Witham Oaks Development Plan

As anearby resident ofthe proposed Witham Oaks development Iwould like to speak
out in opposition to the proposed plan

Before the vote on Measure 0248in 2004 for the annexation ofthis area I received a

flier authorized and paid for by the Citizens for a Livable Corvallis see back page This

flier headlined boldly with ENVIRONMENTAL ALERT stated that aYES vote will

Save Oregon White Oak trees

Set aside permanent open space
Preserve wetlands

Add bike and pedestrian paths

So misleading was the flier evenI who wasaware of the development plan at the time
had to read it over a few times in order to determine what aYes vote actually meant

Similar arguments were put forth in the Benton County voters pamphlet Nov 2 2004

pp B17B20 It is my feeling that many residents ofCorvallis may not have been fully
aware of the outcomes ofa yes vote on this measure

In their proposed plan Matrix Development has in part fulfilled the abovestated

promises Not all of the Oregon White Oaks will be removed permanent open space and

wetlands will be set aside and bike and pedestrian paths will be added

However I question whether the citizens would have voted yes on this plan if they had

known that a total of 342 significant trees including Oregon White Oak maple cherry
fir and ash were to be removed with apotential of 25 morep42 staff report Would

they have voted yes if they had known that the viability ofthe preserved wetlands

could be seriously and irreversibly endangered While the applicantshydrologic model

has accounted for a set of variables that can be reasonably ascertained at this time there

are also unknown factors that cannot accurately be quantified through the modeling

process and that ifmodifications to the existing drainage patterns resulted in an

appreciable alteration to the amount of water infiltrating these areas additional loss of

wetland area could result and that effectiveness of the proposed storm water

management plan would not be known until some point after completion ofthe last

phase pp62 64 staff report Wouldthe citizens have voted yes if they had known

that the additional bike and pedestrian paths spoken of will mostly be those along paved
streets in acrowded development and that the area would potentially no longer be a

place to which they were drawn for those activities



Unfortunately the citizens did vote yes on measure 0248and now it is in the hands of
the Planning Commission to approve or disapprove the current development proposal
for the Witham Oaks area From what Ican ascertain several questions remain Many
reports were either incomplete wetland remediation wastewater traffic or inaccurate
presence offish pp5960staff report before the hearing on March 21St 2007 It was

necessary for the Corvallis Planning Division to include 60 conditions for approval for
this development plan Perhaps this inordinate number ofconditions reflects the
uniqueness ofthis scarce wetland and oak savanna within the heart of Corvallis

I urge you to seriously consider whether the Comprehensive Plan Policies and Land
Development Codes have been or could ever be adequately addressed specifically the
following

Comprehensive Plan

455 On tree covered hillsides development shall be designed to preserve as many trees as possible and tree removal
shall be consistent with the approved development plan
456On tree covered hills the design of dwellings and their placement shall be planned to retain a sufficient number of
trees to preserve a green tree covered hillside appearance
4109 Negative impacts on habitat and migration corridors for birds wildlife aquatic life and on open space and the
recreation qualities of significant drainage ways shall be minimized
4132Development on land identified with significant plant communities or significant fish and wildlife habitats shall be
planned to minimize the impact on the significant resources

491Significant watercourses lakes and wetlands shall be preserved or have their losses mitigated in order to maintain
clean water support natural vegetation protect the aquatic habitat retain existing significant public vistas and providewildlife habitat and recreation sites
4103 Significant drainage ways shall be kept in a natural state to protect tree lines maintain their natural functions and
enhance native plant species to the maximum extent practicable
4109Negative impacts on habitat and migration corridors for birds wildlife aquatic life and on open space and the
recreation qualities of significant drainage ways shall be minimized
4132Development on land identified with significant plant communities or significant fish and wildlife habitats shall be
planned to minimize the impact on the significant resources
4135 Development occurring in significant wildlife areas will set forth a plan of action to reduce impact to significantidentified areas

Land Development Code
4220GENERAL PROVISIONS
c Significant plant and tree specimens should be preserved to the greatest extent practicable and integrated into the
design of a development Trees of 8 in or greater diameter measured at a height of 4 ft above grade and shrubs
excluding blackberries poison oak and similar noxious vegetation over 3 ft in height are considered significant Plants to
be saved and methods of protection shall be indicated on the detailed planting plan submitted for approval Existing trees
may be considered preserved only if no cutting filling or compaction of the soil takes place between the trunk of the tree
and the area 5ft outside the trees drip line In addition the tree shall be protected from damage during construction by a
construction fence located 5 ft outside the drip line

254004Review Criteria
Requests for approval of a Conceptual Development Plan shall be reviewed to assure consistency with the purposes of
this chapter policies and density requirements of the Comprehensive Plan and any other applicable policies and
standards adopted by the City Council In addition the following compatibility factors shall be considered

Basic site design the organization of uses on a site
Visual elements scale structural design and form materials and so forth
Noise attenuation

Noxious odors

Lighting
Signage
Landscaping for buffering and screening
Traffic
Effects on offsite parking
Effects on air and water quality

Section4580DRAINAGEWAY EASEMENTS AND DEDICATIONS
Development can have a number of impacts on the drainage system and its associated water quality



I ask you would approval ofthis development especially in its current incomplete state

of planning truly benefit the future of our special community And finally I urge you to

take the steps necessary to create that vibrant livable town described in the Corvallis

2020 Vision Statement

Corvallis 2020 Vision Statement

Open Space and Habitat

Our natural features hillsides floodplains streams wetlands and other natural areas are protected and treasured

Wildlife habitat areas scenic areas and other natural areas help shape development patterns as we grow Our natural

open space helps buffer flood events purify our air and water provide recreational and educational opportunities and

reinforce the communitysdistinctive character Corvallis has identified its open space resources and has established

criteria and priorities for open space protection

Corvallis isencircled by an emerald necklace of parks scenic vistas natural habitats and farm and forest lands that

define thecitysboundaries The OSU Research Forests and the OSU agricultural research lands located within easy

walking distance to campus also contribute to the unique character of Corvallis as a land grant college community

Corvallis has established a common open space with Philomath which provides recreational opportunities wetland

protection and community identity to each city

We value our rivers our streams and our watershed carefully managing them to protect the purity of ourwater their

aesthetic and biological qualities and their value as recreational areas The citysstreams and wetlands act as the

backbone for a system of green fingers which weave through and connect the citysopen space resources These

green fingers provide trail corridors and habitat areas where native plants and wildlife grow and flourish in their natural

state These green fingers widen out at communityscale parks and open space preserves and areeasily accessible to

neighborhoods

Developers and homeowners are encouraged to use natural landscaping which integrates and presences the existing

significant vegetation on homesites and commercial developments increative and environmentally sound ways Habitat

disturbed during construction is restored and enhanced

Thank you

rrcuaLL
Rebecca Wilson



Wltham Oates willbedeelopetsoon
The onlygnestiuit is 1oiv
Horv many trees wAIbeleftflow much erprn spare wdl M

prcscrvedSy voting YFS on Messtire 0245 qou on make
surethedeions rogood for the cmirunmwit

AYESvotesviH

Save OregmWltitc CYak tttes
tiet aside pemranent spam
Yreseiv wexlands

ydd hike and Ixxkxarian paths

But a 1V0 wbemeanw

No rtryuuttxZlt foecen space
No cimtrol over ckartutting
Weakrreavirrxunental contnrls

Slrppvrt nutcommunity

Vote YFS on Measure0248
du7lxirfzl arinkifor bV erttzeresjo074xrile Crmxil7tr

Qrrrrrea

Citizens fex a livable Corvallis
SK SWWstem Blvd

Cnrvallis OreRcxr 97333



April 2 2007

Elizabeth Schwartz Jason DeLorenze

3930 NW Witham Hill Drive apt 64

Corvallis OR 97330

541 7523016

APR 2007

Sch f elarentai

To the Corvallis Planning Commission and residents

Ihave several concerns in reference to the planned Witham Oaks Development project The

first regards the Circle Boulevard extension The extension is meant to become a main

thoroughfare connecting opposite sides of town It would completely change the character of

the area which currently gets mostly local traffic The comprehensive plan promises that

The transportation system shall be planned and developed in a manner which contributes to

community livability recognizes and respects the characteristics ofnatural features and

minimizes the negative effects on abutting land uses1121page 37 As I see it the

extension of Circle Boulevard will add more traffic than necessary to the Witham Hill and

Harrison Boulevard areas Harrison Blvd will already have an influx of traffic from the new

development To make Circle Boulevard a quick route across the northern portion oftown

will only worsen this problem As it will track closely with the multiusepath for some

distance it will make the path a muchless peaceful and welcome place to walk As a daily
user ofthe existing path Ido not welcome the thought ofwalking along abusy highway each

day Overall it will not only affect the path but it will significantly and negatively alter the

character ofthe surrounding areas on Witham Hill by transforming a relatively quiet area into

atraffic artery

If the Circle Boulevard extension is approved against my recommendations it should not be

done without additional traffic studies The current studies were incomplete and often

conducted during OSU dead and finals weeks Attachment I 93 Though the applicant
asserts that OSU is fully operational during these weeks I would point out that many students

particularly graduate students do not have finals and are free to leave town during the finals

period The traffic reports should attempt to more accurately represent normal traffic patterns

I would also like to see traffic slowing devices xecoinmended by other citizens in their

testimonies from March 21 2007 They recommended traffic circles and speed bumps to

slow traffic and help maintain the pedestrian friendly neighborhood atmosphere ofnorthwest

Corvallis Please keep these recommendations in mind when amendingapproving the

development plan

My second concern is in regards to the excessive tree removal from the site Residents voted

for the annexation of the property only after threats from the developer ofclearcutting The

campaign laid out by the developer for annexation was based on a save this tree philosophy
Now that the plan is out it preserves only 47 of 189 existing significant trees staff report pg

l 9 This is in contrast to the comprehensive plan policies as stated in466 the design of

dwellings and their placement shall be planned to retain asufficient number of trees

page 17 and4220c Significant plant and tree specimens should be preserved to the

greatest extent practicable and integrated into the design of a development page 41 In

order to comply with the expectationsof voters when they agreed to the annexation as well as

the comprehensive plans own policies if is iinperative that a large number of significant trees



remain on the property As the surrounding neighborhoods all have a large number of
existing significant trees requiring tree preservationof the new development project willnot
only satisfy the voters but also help thenew aeighborhood blend with existing developments

Third I would like to address the layout ofthe proposed development The applicant is
asking for avariance to allow fora2030 increase in allowable lot coverage page 21
paired with a decrease in the side yard setback to under 5 ft page 23 The tight lot spacingis impractical for home maintenance and repair and is not in keeping with the character ofthe
surrounding areas I ask that you deny these variance requests in order to create amore

practical homeowner situation and to better blend the new development with existing
neighborhood

Similarly a goal ofthe comprehensive plan as stated in article925jDomestic garages are
behind houses or otherwise minimized eg by setting them back from the front facade of the
residential structure Parking lots and structuresare located at the rear or side of buildings
page 15 The applicant reiterated this in attachment I page 38 However the building
typicals in attachment I202227 show garages that dominate the homes and are prominently
placed At the hearing on March 212Q07theapplicantstatedthat these were just typicals
and not exact replicas of the homes This is mheh too vague aportion ofthe development
plan Prior to acceptance ofthe proposalaecuraterepresentations ofthe homes should be
presented and adherence to those plans shouldbe a condition of approval

As expressed by other residents of Corvallis I see a definite need for ageotechnical analysisofthe property It is imperative that these studies be completed prior to further development
planning or approval Across the country we have seen towns that allow developers to move
ahead with building before fully investigating the stability of the soil This kind of oversight
can lead to disastrous results and shouldbeavoided at all costs

Lastly Iwould like to address the monument sign and masonry wall Both are obscenely and
unnecessarily large The monument sign they are proposing is larger than the maximum
allowed size page 36 I am also opposed tothe materials proposed For the wall in
particular a wooden structure wouldblend intothe environment and reduce noise
reverberation better than a masonry wall There is no needfor such huge and obtrusive
structures in aneighborhood entrance and they should be reduced to amore reasonable size

Iask you to remember that the comprehensive plan is meant in part to protect existing
neighborhoods and the encompassing ecosystem So many components ofthis plan the
extension of Circle Blvd the significant tree loss and associated wildlife habitat the tight
neighborhood layout etc conflict with that goal Please make an effort to resolve these
issues and help to make the proposed development more acceptable to the surrounding
residents before approving this plan

Thank you

Elizabeth Schwartz
Jason DeLorenze



A

Tuesday April 03 2007

To City of Corvallis

Planning Commission

From Stella Melugin Coakl
3839 NW Jackson

Corvallis OR 973 0
5417536215

RE Witham Oaks development Plan

PLD0600012SUB0600005

L

r

APR l
x

There are numerous issues within this development proposal that are of

concern to residents of Corvallis Among them are

1 Those who have watched the ebb and flow of the wetlands on this property
believe that the proposed density exceeds that appropriate to this area Earlier

studies of the wetlands showed that they were substantially greater than 1987

acres It is of concern that the calculations done in regards to what is necessary

for mitigation has been limited to a 24 hour precipitation or a10yearwater event

p 62 and that the issue of the springson the property has apparently not

been considered in the calculations

I strongly support the recommendation that the developer be responsible for 5

years of monitoring and mitigation of the wetlands after the last phase of the

developmentp64 Without this safeguard the homeowners and the city are

likely to end up with expensive modifications to deal with water issues that are

likely to accompany the development of this hillside Following the completion of

the multiuse path there have been additional flooding issues in the surrounding
fields and every effort should be to return the runoff rate toprepathsewer line

installation

One possible way to assure that the wetland delineation is adequate would be to

leave the development of the adjacent area until the last phase ofbuildout This

could allow onsite adjustments without disrupting existing homes

2 In addition to the questions about adequacy of water management are the

issues of how many signifcant trees will be removed The proposed removal of

342 trees with the potential for an additional 25 p42 is not consistent with the

promises made at the time of annexation Indeed the threat of a clearcut was

likely the tipping point for the approval of the annexation The development as

laid out suggests that the preservation of trees will be greatly limited by the

housing density requested and the impact of grading I request that every effort

be made to preserve more of the significant trees so that this development will be

consistent with surrounding neighborhoods



3 Lack of setback or limited access to OSU property via Street J To deadend
this street adjacent to the OSU property would invite entry onto the research
lands by residents of this area Consistent with the proposed in yardsetbacks
for lots 3344 suggest a culdesac be created to ensure that the buffer is
maintained in perpetuity There are no plans for the university to develop or

change the use of the agricultural research property adjacent to this development
so it makes no sense to have adeadend street at this location

4 To be consistent with surrounding neighborhoods no monument sign should
be allowed for this development and most certainly not at the proposed location

5 Fencing should be 46 foot wood and a combination of berms and buffer
plantings should be used to ensure that the multiuse path remains open to
citizens A masonry fence would be unfriendly reflect noise and be inconsistent
with the surrounding neighborhood

6 Geotechnical analysis It is critical that this be done and that no development
be allowed unless homes can be constructed safe from water flow and land
slippage have visited neighborhoods in Portland where relatively new homes
are already moving down hillsides due to the steep slopes and cutdowns that
were used when the houses were constructed Dependent on precipitation and
other weather factors such movement may take some years before it occurs

When however it does the developer is usually longgone and the homeowners
and other citizens are left with the cost of mitigation

In summary I believe the Planning Commission should deny this development
request until more of the issues within the City Stafias conditions have been
addressed by the developer



Robert Mason

3635 NW Jackson Ave

Corvallis OR 97330

T@S 7iaP6gnt3tsaYasry

QPR vr

r

Witham Oaks Plan Testimony

April 4 2007

The developersplan needs revision in two key areas before it merits city
approval

First they plan to form a Home Owners Association to maintain common

tracts within the development and enforcement of Covenants Conditions

and Restrictions CCRs No details are provided to assure anyone what is

maintained and what is not Moreover a Home Owners Association is

primarily a legal strategy that allows a developer to shift his responsibility to

maintain his property to others Home Owners Associations are known to

fail because of poor planning or lack of skill among Association leaders

This lapse in responsibility when it occurs as it has in the past falls to

others such as the City to pick up the pieces at taxpayers expense
Examples are the Skyline West or Ponderosa development and a smaller

development on Reservoir Road near the County Fairgrounds

As well none of the CCRsis described and this is a major shortcoming
The CCRs should include one clear warning to new homeowners that a

working agricultural dairy research operation is functioning nearby that will

expose them to the noise and smells of dairy animals from time to time

Buyers should understand that the University has a legal right to operate
their facility as they see fit The CCC is the appropriate place to provide this

information as a deed restriction and the developer should do so before the

development plan is approved

Secondm the control of stormwater is most important to me and my

neighbors The University has stipulated through a memorandum of

understanding signed August 15 2006 by the representatives of the

developer and the University that stormwater storage and control facilities

will be designed to detain up to the 100 year proposed peak flow from the

1



v
7

oect to channels crossing the OSU property This is a conservative
gure t a has major cost implications for the developer Although points of
tMsagreemtare scattered throughout the text of the development plan
seeppw996of development plan text no mention of it is included in the
60 conditions the City of Corvallis has imposed on the development The
developer should state somewhere in his development plan that the 100
year peak flow ofstorrmwater from the development applies to conditions
245152535455565758 and particularly to Major Modifications to the
approved conceptual and detailed development plan that are defined by City
of Corvallis and King County criteria Staffapproval of these plans was

based on the imposition of the 60 conditions Acceptance ofthese
conditions while critical to the mitigation of this development in an area

with significant wetlands and steep slopes may not be sufficient to meet the
more rigorous OSU 100year requirement for stormwater control

I believe more planning and analysis in these two areas is required before the
development plan receives City approval

2



Cf t1

Witham Oaks Annexation

Written Testimony
April 4 2007

Submitted by Chava Neuhaus

3362 NW Roosevelt Dr

Corvallis OR 97330

6025161 cell

ylly R@cehe

4 20

N

Many people supported this annexation because the developer planned to preserve the

trees Is the removal of 342 significant trees consistent with what the voters expected
when they supported this annexation A greater number of significant trees could be

preserved if the number of planned houses were reduced I propose reducing the number

of houses from 221 to 123 By eliminating 98 houses on the steepest slopes and on land

that contains the largest clustering oftrees many of the concerns raised about this

development are effectively addressed The reduction in density of houses would still

result in adensity consistent with the RS6 designation at 123 units5775 acres or 21

units per acre

Please refer to the attached map which shows preserved trees in yellow and proposed
reduction in dwellings in blue

Preservation of agreater number of trees by reducing the density of dwellings addresses

many ofthe concerns raised by the public

Fewer of the significant trees would need to be removed

Reduction in erosion trees add stability to hillsides

Fewer streets would be needed resulting in fewer impervious surfaces further

reducing runoff and erosion

Reduced trafficnoise

Maintain voters trustavoid betrayal of voters wishes In an aggressive PR

campaign by the ownersdevelopers of the property voters were led to believe

that the trees would be spared not cut if they voted for the annexation
Maintain consistency with local neighborhoods which preserved trees ie Forest

Hill Edgewood Estates and both apartment complexes to the north ofthe

proposed development

Comprehensive Plan Policies
465On treecovered hillsides development shall be designed to preserve as many trees as possible and

tree removal shall be consistent with the approved development plan
467In azeas where development is permitted standards in the Land Development Code for hillside areas

will achieve the following
A Plan development to fit the topography soil geology and hydrology of hillsides and to ensure hillside

stability both during and after development
B Preserve the most visually significant slopes and ridgelines in their natural state by utilizing techniques
such as cluster development and reduced densities

C Preserve significant natural features such as tree groves woodlands the tree meadow interface and

specimen trees



uesn
sr

i

i

i



usnr
nrs

i

i

i

i
i

i
i
i

i
i
i

r

I

i

F

1



Page 1 of 2

Richardson Robert

From RoryODonnellroryodonnell1@hotmailcom

Sent Monday March 26 2007 443 PM

To Richardson Robert

Subject Proposed Wilson Woods Zoning Change yyy 4rr7ta3H r G40pj9 ITy ZYSh vii9 fSt
n

To Bob Richardson Associate Planner 0 2S

City ofCorvallis Planning Division

Dear Bob

I received the Notice ofLand Use Public Hearing scheduled for April 4 2007 regarding the proposal
torezone the western portion ofWilson Woods from RS9Medium Density Residential to RS20High
Density Residential

For the past 40 years my family has owned a home directly across Polk street from Wilson Woods Our

home is located at the northeast corner of29th Street and Polk Street with the address of 603 NW 29th

Street Unfortunately I cannot attend the hearing in person so Iwanted to provide you with this written

testimony

Istrongly oppose this proposal to rezone the western portion ofWilson Woods to High Density
Residential I believe that higher density zoning would have adetrimental impact on the quality and

character ofthe immediate neighborhood I lived in this neighborhood from 1967 through 1981 and

have visited several times per year since then so I am extremely familiar with this area and the history
of Wilson Woods It is very clear to me that a higher density zoning ofWilson Woods will not yield a

net benefit to the community and in fact will detract from the community

Higher density zoning of this location would in the longer run result in less open space and taller

structures which block views and are less aesthetically appealing In addition parking and traffic

congestion are longer run consequences ofhigher zoning

In summary changing the western portion ofWilson Woods to High Density residential zoning should

not be allowed as it will lead to the deterioration ofthe quality oflife in this immediate neighborhood

Sincerely

RoryODonnell Trustee

TheODonnell Family Trust

4156376591 cell

3262007



Page 1 of 1

Richardson Robert

From lancer lancemandu@comcastnet
Sent Wednesday April 04 2007 536 PM

To Richardson Robert

Subject Fw Wilson Woods ammendment

I neglected to put my name on this

Lance Jones
2953 NW Polk Ave

Corvallis OR

Original Message
From lancer

To ROBERTRICHARDSON@CICORVALLISORUS
Sent Wednesday April 04 2007534 PM
Subject Wilson Woods ammendment

I object to the proposed Wilson woods zone district change for the following reasons

panri
T

tisy
9tqreviINS

5c nAPR
s 07

rpf

1

Traffic analysis shows increase of28 PM trips and suggests that is not significantIf the trips were 30 that would

be significantIt is patently absurd that two additional trips make that much difference Inaddition noanalysis

of the traffic on Polk street to the west of the planned site has been factored inThat is often used asashortcut

toget around the light at 29th and Harrison by local residents which leads drivers directly past several residences
2

Trade offs in livability new developmentofthe site at a higher density would mean the individual units would be

higher in rental cost than the existing further decreasing the number of affordable rental units inthe community

3

Parking the neighborhood streets inthe vicinity already have very high usage due to a nearby school church the
health department the senior center and most recently the new location ofthe dialabusheadquarters Existing
parking allows for 52 spaces for the west half ofthe larger site more than specified in the staff report Putting
university students into units with the Corvallis formula MAX of 15spaces per 2bedroomunit means there

will have tobe on streetparking Because thereis none on 29th street that parking will move to Polk and Tyler

and will affect neighborhoods beyond the immediately adjacent4

Compatibility even though there are height limits this proposal occurs only tens of feet away from an RS5zone
the block across 29thto the northwest That is too abrupt a change for neighborhood compatibility4

42007







DRAFT
Subject to review & approval

by WMAC

Watershed Management Advisory Commission
MINUTES

April 18, 2007

Present
Michael Campana
Jennie Cramer
Matt Fehrenbacher
Nicole Strong, Chair

Absent
Hal Brauner, City Council
Jerry Davis
Robert Griffiths, Vice Chair
Frank Morris 

Staff
Tom Penpraze, Public Works
Steve Rogers, Public Works
Bob Worthean, Public Works
Mike Hinton, Public Works

Visitors
Scott Ferguson, Trout Mountain
John Berry
Frank Davis, Siuslaw National Forest

SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION

Agenda Item Information
Only

Held for
Further
Review

Recommendations

I.  Introductions X

II. Approve March 21, 2007 Minutes Approved

III. Public Comment X  

IV. Discuss Harvest Planning Scope of
Work

X

V. Discuss Vegetation Control Scope X

VI. Commission Reports/Requests X

VII. Public Comment Period X

CONTENT OF DISCUSSION

I. Introductions

Introductions of Commissioners, staff and visitors were made. 

II. Approve March 21, 2007 Minutes 

The minutes were approved.



Watershed Management Advisory Commission Minutes
April 18, 2007

Page 2 

III. Public Comment

An email message (attached) from Jim Fairchild to Chair Strong, dated April 18, 2007,
was read into the minutes.  

IV. Discuss Harvest Planning Scope of Work  

Mr. Ferguson led a discussion about the locations and scope of work for two areas
identified for some treatments.  Trout Mountain has investigated three areas in the north
part of the watershed as potential harvest areas.  The areas include two approximately 30-
acre pieces of agriculture origin with timber in the 70-110 year old range and one larger
younger (40 year old) plantation.  One of the agriculture origin stands is proposed for a 
thinning harvest of approximately 25% in Fiscal Year 2007-08.  This area has been
reviewed by U.S. Fish and Wildlife for conflicts with murrelet habitat, and spotted owl
will also be surveyed.  The intent of the harvest is to open an existing meadow, create
openings for the existing large old trees in the stand and create openings to promote a
hardwood second storey.  Typical harvest markings will be in place in this stand for
review by the Commission during the May meeting.

V. Discuss Vegetation Control Scope

Mr. Ferguson reviewed the vegetation control outline for the sites included in the
proposed timber harvest area.

VI. Commission Reports/Requests 

Chair Strong led a discussion regarding development and implementation of a public
outreach plan in relation to the Good Neighbor Policy contained in the Stewardship Plan.

Discussion centered around the need to inform neighboring property owners of any forest 
activity in the vicinity, such as log trucks using roads adjacent to homes.  A short-term
and more broad-reaching plan for the general public was also discussed.  Mr. Rogers said
staff will develop a short-term and long-term public outreach plan and bring it to the
Commission for discussion at the next meeting.

VII. Public Comment Period 

• Mr. Davis, a USFS planner, told the Commission that the Marys Peak Stewardship Group
continues to make progress on developing an organizational structure, stewardship area
boundaries and restoration priorities on the Siuslaw National Forest-owned portion of the
City’s watershed and adjacent properties.  He also mentioned that the USFS has been
asked to write a letter of support for the Marys River Watershed Council’s (MRWC) grant
application to the Oregon Watershed Enhancement Board (OWEB) for fish passage
improvement projects on the City-owned portion of the watershed.



Watershed Management Advisory Commission Minutes
April 18, 2007

Page 3 

• Mr. Penpraze updated the Commission on the status of OWEB and the Oregon
Department of Fish and Wildlife (ODFW) grant applications for City watershed fish
passage projects.  The City is working with the MRWC to solicit grant funds for the
survey and design work for the following projects:

• Fish passage at the Griffith Creek and South Fork of Rock Creek water intakes;
• Replacement of four perched culverts on the main watershed road;
• Placement of large wood in the mainstem of Rock Creek; and
• Reestablishment of a meander in the mainstem of Rock Creek.

The MRWC is acting as the agency requesting the grants.  ODFW recently announced that
it has approved a grant for survey work for the fish passage and culvert projects.  A grant
has been submitted to OWEB for the design work for the projects.

NEXT MEETING:  May 16, 2007, 5:00 p.m. - Note time change.  

The next meeting will be held in the field, in the areas under consideration for restoration work. 
The tentative plan is to leave from City Hall at 5:00 p.m., tour the work areas, conduct the
Commission meeting, and then return to Corvallis at approximately 8 p.m.  The public will be
invited to attend.





MEMORANDUM

To City Council Members

CFrom Charles C Toinlinson Mayor

Date May 16 2007

Subject Confirmation ofAppointments to Boards Commissions and Committees

As you know at our last regular meeting Iappointed the following persons to boards
commissions and committees with the terms ofoffice stated below

Capital Improvement Program Commission

Larry Stover
2557 SW 45th Street

Corvlis OR 97333

Telephone 7453990

Tenn expires June 30 2009

Citizens Advisorv Cormnission on Civic Beautification and Urban ForestrX

Franlc Maudlin

1112 NW Charlemagne Place

Corvallis OR 97330

Telephone 7531467
Term Expires June 30 2008

Downtown and Economic Vitality Plans Implementation Coinmittee

Vincent Remcho

240 Gilbert Hall

Oregon State University
Corvallis OR 97331

Telephone 7378181



City Council Members
Re Confiimation of Appointments to

Advisory Boards Cominissions and Coinmittees

May 16 2007

Page 2

Downtown Parking Coininission

Brad Upton
1465 NW 15th Street

Corvallis OR 97330

Telephone 7528801 ext 224 work
7528196

Term expires Jtme 30 2009

Housin and CommunivDevelopment Commission

Sherry Littlefield

929 SE Bethel Place

Corvallis OR 97333

Telephone 2319293 cellular
Term expires June 30 2007

Iask that you confirm these appointinents at our next Council meeting May 21 2007

1064



MEMORANIUM

To City Council Members

From Charles C Toinlinson Mayor

Date May 14 2007
d

Subject Vacancy on Committee for CitizenIzvolvement

Beth Peutz has submitted her resigiiation fiom the Cominittee for CitizenIivolvement A

changei1work hours will prevellt her fromateilding Committee ineetiilgs Beths tenil oil the

Coilunittee expires Jtuie 30 2008

Iwould appreciate your nominations ofcitizeizs to fill this vacancy

1062










	Council Agenda.pdf
	Activity Calendar
	CONSENT AGENDA
	Council 05.07.07 Minutes.pdf
	BPAC 04.06.07 Minutes.pdf
	CACOT 04.11.07 Minutes.pdf
	Core Services 05.10.07 Minutes.pdf
	Library Board 04.07.07 Minutes.pdf
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5

	D-EVPIC 04.26.07 Minutes.pdf
	HCDC 04.18.07 Minutes.pdf
	PC 04.04.07 minutes.pdf
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C
	Attachment D
	Attachment E
	Attachment F
	Attachment G
	Attachment H
	Attachment I
	Attachment J

	PTF 05.09.07 Minutes.pdf
	WMAC 04.18.07 Minutes.pdf
	BCC Confirmations.pdf
	CCI Vacancy.pdf
	Schedule State Shared Revenue and Budget Public Hearing.pdf
	Schedule 7th Street Station Public Hearing.pdf
	Schedule Witham Oak Vacation Public Hearing.pdf
	Liquor License-Tokyo Japanese Steak House.pdf
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS-REFER TO PART 2
	MAYOR/COUNCIL/STAFF REPORTS-REFER TO PART 2
	VISITORS' PROPOSITIONS-REFER TO PART 2
	PUBLIC HEARINGS-REFER TO ATTACHED DOCUMENTS
	STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS-REFER TO PART 2
	MEETING HANDOUTS-REFER TO PART 2



